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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF IDAHO

CLEARWATER REI LLC., an Idaho limited

company; BARTON COLE COCHRAN, an Supreme Court Case No. 40809
individual; CHAD JAMES HANSEN, an individual;

RONALD D. MEYER, an individual;
CHRISTOPHER J. BENAK, an individual; RON
RUEBEL, an individual,

Plaintiffs-Respondents,
and

RE CAPITAL INVESTMENTS, LLC., a Delaware
limited liability company,

Plaintiff,
Vs,

MARK BOLING, an individual,

Defendant-Appellant.

CLERK'S RECORD ON APPEAL

Appeal from the District Court of the Fourth Judicial District, in and for the County of Ada.

HONORABLE DEBORAH A. BAIL

MARK BOLING REBECCA A. RAINEY
APPELLANT PRO SE ATTORNEY FOR RESPONDENT
LAKE FOREST, CALIFORNIA BOISE, IDAHO
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Date: 5/1/2013

Fourth Judicial District Court - Ada County

User: CCTHIEBJ

Time: 02:58 PM ROA Report
Page 1 of 3 Case: CV-0C-2012-08669 Current Judge: Deborah Bail
Clearwater REI LLC, etal. vs. Mark Boling, etal.
Date Code User Judge
5/14/2012 NCOC CCHOLMEE New Case Filed - Other Claims Deborah Bail
COMP CCHOLMEE Complaint Filed Deborah Bail
SMFI CCHOLMEE Summons Filed Deborah Bail
6/28/2012 ANSW CCSWEECE Answer to Complaint {Mark Boling Pro Se) Deborah Ball
TPCO CCSWEECE Counterclaim and Third-party Complaint For Deborah Bail
Violations of the ICPA and Breach of Guaranty
SMFI CCSWEECE Summons on Counterclaim and Third Party Deborah Bail
Complaint
NOTS CCSWEECE Notice Of Service Deborah Bail
7/2/2012 HRSC DCDOUGLI Hearing Scheduled (Scheduling Conference Deborah Bail
08/08/2012 03:30 PM)
DCDOUGLI Notice of Status Conference Deborah Balil
7/16/2012 MOTN CCSWEECE Motion to Dismiss Counterclaim Deborah Bail
MEMO CCSWEECE Memorandum in Support of Motion to Dismiss Deborah Bail
Counterclaim
7/25/2012 MISC CCTHERTL Response to Motion to Dismiss Counterclaim Deborah Bail
MOTN MCBIEHKJ Motion for Protective Order Staying Discovery Deborah Bail
7/27/2012 BREF CCWRIGRM Reply Brief in Support of Motion to Dismiss Deborah Balil
Counterclaim
MISC CCTHERTL Defendant/Counter-Claimant's Opposition to Deborah Bail
Motion for Protective Order Staying Discovery
8/8/2012 CONH CCTHERTL Hearing result for Scheduling Conference Deborah Bail
scheduled on 08/08/2012 03:30 PM:
Conference Held
8/14/2012 HRSC CCTHERTL Hearing Scheduled (Motion to Dismiss Deborah Bail
09/12/2012 03:00 PM)
8/17/2012 MOTN CCWATSCL Motion to Stay Arbitration Deborah Bail
MEMO CCWATSCL Memorandum in Support of Motion Deborah Bail
8/23/2012 OPPO MCBIEHKJ Opposition to Motion to Stay Arbitration Deborah Bail
MISC MCBIEHKJ Declaration of Mark Boling in Support of Deborah Bail
Opposition to Motion to Stay Arbitration
9/7/2012 RPLY CCBOYIDR Reply Memorandum in Support of Motion and Deborah Bail
Application to Stay Arbitration
9/12/2012 DCHH CCTHERTL Hearing result for Motion to Dismiss scheduled  Deborah Bail
on 09/12/2012 03:00 PM: District Court Hearing
Held
Court Reporter: Susan Gambee
Number of Transcript Pages for this hearing
estimated: Telephonic - 50
10/16/2012 DEOP CCTHERTL Decision and Order Re: Motion to Stay Arbitration Deborah Bail
10/18/2012 HRSC DCDOUGLI Hearing Scheduled (Status Conference Deborah Bail
12/05/2012 03:30 PM)
DCDOUGLI Notice of Status Conference Deborah Bail
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Date: 5/1/2013

Fourth Judicial District Court - Ada County

User: CCTHIEBJ

Time: 02:58 PM ROA Report
Page 2 of 3 Case: CV-0C-2012-08669 Current Judge: Deborah Bail
Clearwater REI LLC, etal. vs. Mark Boling, etal.
Date Code User Judge
11/9/2012 ANSW CCTHIEKJ Answer to Counterclaim Deborah Bail
11/16/2012 NOTS CCSWEECE Notice Of Service Deborah Bail
11/20/2012 NOTS MCBIEHKJ Notice Of Service Deborah Balil
11/26/2012 NOTS CCHEATJL Notice Of Service Deborah Bail
STIP MCBIEHKJ Stipulation for Scheduling and Planning Deborah Bail
11/29/2012 CONV CCTHERTL Hearing result for Status Conference scheduled Deborah Bail
on 12/05/2012 03:30 PM: Conference Vacated
12/10/2012 AFFD CCMEYEAR Affidavit of Mark Boling in Suppor of Debcrah Bail
Defendant/Counter-Claimant's Motion to Compel
Arbitration
NOTC CCMEYEAR Notice of Motion and Deborah Bail
Defendant/Counter-Claimant's Motion to Compel
Arbitration Memorandum of Points and Authorities
in Support Thereof
12/13/2012 MOTN MCBIEHKJ Motion to Strike and Request Hearing Be Notice Deborah Bail
in Accordance with IRCP
MEMO MCBIEHKJ Memorandum in Support of Motion to Strike Deborah Bail
HRSC MCBIEHKJ Notice of Hearing Scheduled (Motion 02/06/2013 Deborah Bail
) 02:00 PM)
12/14/2012 OPPO CCHEATJL Defendant/Counter-Claimant's Opposition Deboerah Bail
ToPlaintiff's/Counterdefendants’ Motion To Strike
12/28/2012 NOTS CCPINKCN Notice Of Service Debocrah Bail
12/31/2012 NOTC MCBIEHKJ Notice of Hearing (2/6/13 @ 2 pm) Deborah Ball
1/7/2013 MOTN CCSWEECE Defendant/Counter-CLaimants Motion to Compel Deborah Bail
Further Responses to Interrogatory No 31 and to
Demand for Production Inspection and Copying of
Documents Nos 36 through 39 Inclusive
AFSM CCSWEECE Affidavit of Mark Boling In Support Of Deborah Bail
Defendant/Counter-CLaimants Motion to Compel
Further Responses to Interrogatory No 31 and to
Demand for Production Inspection and Copying of
Documents Nos 36 through 39 Inclusive;
Certificate Under URCP Rule 37
MEMO CCSWEECE Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Support Deborah Bail
of Defendant/Counter-CLaimants Motion to
Compel Further Responses to Interrogatory No
31 and to Demand for Production Inspection and
Copying of Documents Nos 36 through 39
Inclusive
NOHG CCSWEECE Notice Of Hearing On Motion to Compel February Deborah Bail
6,2013 @ 2:00 PM
1/30/2013 AFFD CCTHIEKJ Affidavit of Rebecca A. Rainey in Support of Deborah Bail
Opposition to Motion to Compel Discovery
MEMO CCTHIEKJ Memorandum in Opposition of Motion to Compel Deborah Bail
Discovery
MEMO CCTHIEKJ

Memorandum in Opposition of Motion to Compel Deborah BaiI0

Arbitration
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Date: 5/1/2013

Fourth Judicial District Court - Ada County

User: CCTHIEBJ

Time: 02:58 PM ROA Report
Page 3 of 3 Case: CV-0OC-2012-08669 Current Judge: Deborah Bail
Clearwater REI LLC, etal. vs. Mark Boling, etal.
Date Code User Judge
2/1/2013 RPLY CCHEATJL Defendant/Counter-Claimant's Reply To Deborah Bail
Counterdefendants' Opposition To Motion To
Compel
RPLY CCHEATJL Defendant/Counter-Claimant's Reply To Deborah Bail
Counterdefendants' Opposition To Motion To
Compel Arbitration
MOTN MCBIEHKJ Motion for Judgment on the Pleadings Deborah Bail
MEMO MCBIEHKJ Memorandum in Support of Motion Deborah Bail
2/6/2013 DCHH CCTHERTL Hearing result for Motion scheduled on Deborah Bail
02/06/2013 02:00 PM: District Court Hearing Helt
Court Reporter: Susan Gambee
Number of Transcript Pages for this hearing
estimated: 50
2/7/12013 DEOP CCTHERTL Second Decision and Order Re: Motion to Stay  Deborah Bail
Arbitration and 54(b) Certificate
2/14/2013 STAT CCTHERTL STATUS CHANGED: inactive Deborah Bail
2/28/2013 NOTS MCBIEHKJ Notice Of Service Deborah Bail
3/11/2013 APSC CCTHIEBJ Appealed To The Supreme Court Deborah Bail
NOTA CCTHIEBJ NOTICE OF APPEAL Deborah Bail
3/20/2013 ORDR CCTHIEBJ Order: Remanded to District Court for Entry of Deborah Bail
IRCP 54(a) Final Judgment - Supreme Court
Docket No. 40809
3/26/2013 ORDR CCTHIEBJ Order Withdrawing Order Remanding to District Deborah Bail
Court - Supreme Court Docket No. 40809
5/1/2013 NOTC CCTHIEBJ Notice of Transcript Lodged - Supreme Court Deborah Bail

Docket No. 40809
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Rebecca A. Rainey, ISB No. 7525
RAINEY LAW OFFICE .

910 W. Main St. Ste. 258

Boise, ID 83702

Phone: (208) 258-2061
Facsimile: (208) 473-2952
rar@raineylawoffice.com

Attorneys for Plaintiffs

AM... A

CMAY 14 222

CHRISTOPHER D. RICHM, Glark

By ELYSHIA HOLMES
DEPUTY

- IN'THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF
THE STATE OF IDAHO, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF ADA

CLEARWATER REI, LLC, an Idaho
limited liability company; BARTON
COLE COCHRAN, an individual;

CHAD JAMES HANSEN, an individual; ,

RONDAL D. MEYER, an individual;
CHRISTOPHER J. BENAK, an
individual, RON RUEBEL, an
individual; RE CAPITAL
INVESTMENTS, LLC, a Delaware
limited liability company,

Plaintiffs,
Vs.
MARK BOLING, an individual,

Defendant.

GV 0C 1208669

Case No.: . :

COMPLAINT AND APPLICATION FOR

~ORDER STAYING ARBITRATION

COMES NOW, the above named Plaintiffs, Clearwater REI, LLC; RE Capital, LLC;

Barton Cole Cochran, an individual; Chad James Hansen, an individual; Ronald D. Meyer, an

individual; Christopher J. Benak, an individual; and Rob Ruebel, an individual, by and through

thé undefsigned counsel of record, and ilereby complains and applies to this Court for an ordgr

staying arbitration as follows:

!

-

COMPLAINT AND APPLICATION FOR ORDER STAYING ARBITRATION -1500005 °



6.

7.

PARTIES

. Plaintiff Clearwater REI, LLC, is an Idaho limited liability company.

Plaintiff RE Capital Investments, LLC, is ajelaware limited liability company;

. Plaintiff Barton Cole Cochran is an individual residing Idaho.

Plaintiff Chad James Hansen is an individual Idaho.
Plaintiff Ronald D. Meyer is an individual residing in California.
Plaintiff Christopher J. Benak is an individual residing in California.

Plaintiff Rob Ruebel is an individual residing in Idaho.

8.XDefendant Mark Boling (“Boling™) is an individual residing in Lake; Forest, California.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

9. The amount in controversy exceeds the minimum jurisdictional requirements of this

court.

10. Jurisdiction is proper pursuant to Idaho Code § 7-902 and § 7-917.

11. Venue is prbper pursuant to Idaho Code § 7-918.

CLAIM FOR RELIEF

12. Demand has been made upon the above named Plaintiffs for arbitration. Such Plaintiffs

are not signatories to any arbitration agreement.

13.On February 12, 2010, Defendant Boling submitted a Subscription Agreement to

Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC, an Idaho limited liability company.

, 14}The Subscription Agreement was signed by Defendant Boling and by Clearwater REI,

LLC as agents for Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC, an Idaho limited liability company.

15. A true and correct copy of the subscription agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit A.

16\.<The Subscription Agreement included an arbitration provision.

. COMPLAINT AND APPLICATION FOR ORDER STAYING ARBITRATION - 243430006



17. Pursuant to the arbitration provision of paragraph 11 of the subscription agreement,
Boliné filed g!demand for arbitration with the American Arbitration Association on Febn;ary 15,
2012.

18‘.’I_n f'addition to Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC, the entity that is a party to the
agreement containing the arbitration provisioh, such demand for arbitration also ‘listed as
respondénts all of the Plaintiffs herein: Plaintiffs Clearwater REI, LLC; Clearwater Real Estate
Investmenfs, a.k.a. ClgarWater Real Estate Investments, LL.C, an unknown business entity;
RE Capital, LLC, an unknown business en_tity; Barton Cole Cochran, an individual; Chad James
Hansen, an individual; Ronald D. Meye'rﬁI an individual; Christopher J. Benak; an individual; and
Rob Ruebel, an individual, as responderit;, collectively referred to as “Plaintiffs.”

19. A true and correct copy of the demand for arbitration is attached hereto as Exhibit B.

20. Because none of the plaintiffs identified herein aré partiés to an agreement containing an
arbitration provision, eaéh plaintiff is entitled to an order staying the arbitration proceedings as to
them.

ATTORNEY’S FEES AND COSTS

21. Plaintiffs have been required to retain the services of counsel to prosecute this matter and
are entitled to their reasonable costs and attorneys fees pursuant to Idaho Code § 12-121 and
Rule 54 of the Idaho Ru‘1e5 of Civil Procedure.

DATED this d%‘ay of May, 2012.

RAINEY LAW OFFICE

2 A= -

Rebecca A. Rainey — Of the Fi
Attorneys for Defendants

' COMPLAINT AND APPLICATION FOR ORDER STAYING ARBITRATION - 3000007
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PPM BOOK NUMBER

08Note-A238

S

INSTRUCTIONS TO INVESTORS

Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC
9.0% Notes Due December 31, 2015

Please read carefully the Private Placement Memorandum dated August 18, 2008 for the sale of $20,000,000
(subject to increase to $40,000,000) in aggregate principal amount of 9.0% Notes dué December 31, 2015 (“Notes™)
issued by Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC, an Idaho limited liability company (“Company™), as supplemented
from time to time, and all Exhibiis thereto (collectively, the “Memorandum”), before deciding to subscribe.
Capitalized terms not defined herein have the meanings set forth in the Memorandum, A
. , Each prospective investor in Notes should examine the suitability of this type of investment in the
context of his/her own needs, investment objectives and financial capabilities and should make his/her own
independent investigation and decision as to suitability and as to the risk and potential gain involved. Also,
each prospective investor in Notes is encouraged to consult with histher attorney, accountant, financial
consultant or other business ox tax advisor regarding the risks and merits of the proposed investment,

This Offering is limited to investors who certify that they meet all of the quahﬁcanons set forth in the
Memorandum for the purchase of Notes.

If you meet these qualiﬁcatibns and desire to purchase Notes, then please complete, execute and deliver the
attached Subscription Agreement along with your check, payable to “Home Federal Bank, as Escrow Agent for
Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC” in the amount of the Subscription Paymient.

Subscription Agreements and all aﬂacilments should be mailed or delivered to the Company af:

Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC
1300 E. State Street, Suite 103
Eagle, ID 83616
Attn: Subscription Services

All funds should be mailed, deiivered or wired to:

Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC
1300 E. State Street, Suite 103
' Eagle, ID 83616
Attn: Subscription Services

Wire Instructions:
- Account Number:

Routing/ABA Number: [ GIcIzINB:
‘Account Namei Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC

Upon receipt of this signed Subscription Agreement, verification of your investment qualifications and
acceptance of your subscription by the Company (the Company reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to accept or
reject a subscription for any or no reason whatsoever), the Company will notify you of receipt and acceptance of your
subscription.

Important Note: The person or entity actually making the decision to invest in Notes should complete
and execute this Subscription Agreement, For example, retirement plans often hold certain investments in
trust for their beneficiaries, but the beneficiaries may maintain investment control and discretion. In such a
situation, the beneficiary with investment control must complete and execute this Subscription Agreement (this

, also applies to trusts, custodial accounts and similar arrangements).

lNTERNALUS%{ P

Date Rec'd: /C/ ]
By: ‘

. 1 %/7 %,4 7 ; 3]
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SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT

Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC
9.0% Notes Due December 31, 2015

This is the offer and agreement (“Subscription Agreement”) of the undersigned to purchase Sct.’l a( 000 02
(850,000 minimum investment) in principal amount of 9.0% Notes due December 31, 2015 (“Notes™) to be issued by
Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC, an Idaho limited liability company (the “Company™) (“Subscription Price”),
subject to the terms, conditions, acknowledgments, representations and warranties stated herein and in the
Confidential Private Placement Memorandum relating to the offer of up to $20,000,000 (subject to increase to
$40,000,000) in aggregate principal amount in Notes dated August 29, 2008, as supplemented from time to time (the
“Memorandum™). I am including with this Subscription Agreement a check payable to the order of “Home Federal
Bank, as Escrow Agent for Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC” in the amount of $:5 2,800 : 66
reprcsentmg the Subscription Price for the Notes I am purchasing, All terms uhhzed herein shall have the same
meaning as set forth in the Memorandum.

In order to induce the Company to accept this Subscription Agreement for Notes and as further consideration
for such acceptance, I hereby make the following acknowledgments, representations and warranties with the full
knowledge that the Company will expressly rely thereon in making a decision to accept or reject this Subscription
Agreement:

L. I hereby adopt, confirm and agree to all of the covenants, representations and warranties set out in
this Subscription Agreement. , \

2. My primary state of] %

3. My date of birth is: .

4 If T am a natural perd® warrant that (check as appropriate):
(a) ;_( 1, together with my spouse, have a net worth, inclusive of home, home furnishings

and personal automobiles, in excess of $1,000,000; or

®) I have individual income in excess of $200,000, or joint income with my spouse, in
excess of $300,000, in each of the two most recent years, and I reasonably expect
individual or joint income in excess of that amount in the current year.

S. If other than a natural person, such entity represents and warrants that (check as appropriate);
it is an “accredited investor” as defined in Regulation D promulgated under the Securities Act
of 1933, as amended. ,
6. If other than a natural person, is such entity a benefit plan qualified under Code Section 401(a), a

benefit plan subject to ERISA, an individual retirement account or arrangement under Code Section
408 or any other company sponsored employee benefit plan or program?

Yes. No.
7. Neither I nor any subsidiary, affiliate, owner, shareholder, partner, member, indemnitor, guarantor
or related person or entity: -
(@ is a Sanctioned Person (as defined below);
®) has more than 15% of its assets in Sanctioned Countries (as defined betow); or
(©) derives more than 15% of its operating income from investments in, or transactions with

Sanctioned Persons or Sanctioned Countries.
For purposes of the foregoing, a “Sanctioned Person” shall mean (2) a person named on the list of
“specially designated nationals” or “blocked persons” maintained by the U.S, Office of Foreign
Assets Control (“OFAC”) at htip:/fwww.ireas.gov/offices/eotffc/ofac/sdn/index.html, or as otherwise
published from time to time, or (b) (1) an agency of the government of a Sanctioned Country, (2) an
organization controlled by a Sanctioned Country, or (3) a person resident in a Sanctioned Country,
to the extent subject to a sanctions program administered by OFAC. A “Sanctioned Country” shall
mean a country subject to a sanctions program identified on the list maintained by OFAC and
available at hfp:/Avw.treas. gov/offices/eotffe/ofac/sanctions/index.hitml, or as otherwise published
from time to time.

8. Under penalties of perjury, I certify (a) that the number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer
identification number and (b) that I am not subject to backup withholding, either because I have not
been notified that I am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or
dividends or the Internal Revenue Service has notified me that I am no longer subject to backup
withholding. (Please strike out the language certifying that you are not subfect to backup
withholding due to notified payee under-reporting if you have been notified that you are
subject to backup withhelding due to netified payee under-reporting, and you have not

2
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received a notice from the Internal Revenue Service advising you that backup withholding has
terminated.)

9. 1 further represent and warrant that such investment is not disproportionate to my income or
available liquid funds and that I further have the capacity fo protect my interests in connection with
the purchase of the Notes,

10. I(we) wish to own my (our) Notes as follows {check one):

. 2 (a) Separate or individual property. (In community property states, if the
purchaser is married, his (her) spouse must submit wrilten consent if community
funds will be used to purchase the Notes.)

(b) Husband and Wife as community property. (Community property states
only., Husband and Wife should both sign all required decuments unless advised
by their attorney that one signature is sufficient.)

: (c) ~ Joint Tenants with right of survivorship. (Both pariies must sign all
required documents unless advised by their attorneys that one signature is
sufficient.)

(d) Tenants in Common. (Both parties must sign all required documents.)
' © Trust. (Attach copy of trust instrument and include name of trust, name
. of trustee and date trust was formed.) -
{®  Partnership or Limited Liability. Company. (Attach copy of articles or
certificate, if any, and parinership agreement or operating agreement and include
evidence of authority for person who executes required documents.)
R ® Husband and Wife with right of survivorship, (Husband and wife should -
; sign all documents unless other advised by their attorney.)
(h) IRA or Qualified Plan:

<

- ® Other (indicate):

11, If the owner of Notes is an entlty (trust, LLC, Partnership, etc.) my relationship to the owning entity

’ is (lrustee, owner, partner, etc.)

Subscriber’s Signature: X W M Date: 7’/ / 7’/ /o
Subscriber’s Signature: X~ : Date:

.l. 1 understand that in the event this Subscription Agreement is not accepted or, if accepted, the Offering is

subsequently terminated or cancelled then the fonds transmitted herewith shall be returned to the undersigned and this Subscription
Agreement shall be terminated and of no further effect. 'RE Capital, LLC has agreed to guarantee the repayment of principal under
the Notes. By executing this Subscription Agreement, each prospective investor of Notes approves the foregoing, acknowledges
the risks described in the section of the Memorandum entitled “Risk Factors,” and waives those provisions of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, generally governing funds held in escrow prior to closing an offering.

2. I acknowledge that I have received, read and fully understand the Memorandum. I acknowledge that I am
basing my decision to invest in Notes on the Memorandum and 1 have relied only on the information contained in said materials
and have not relied upon any representations made by any other person. I recognize that an investment in Notes involves
substantial risk and T am fully cognizant of and understand all of the risk factors related to the purchase of Notes, including, but not
limited to, those risks set forth in the sections of the Memorandum entitled “Risk Factors.”

3, My overall commitment to investments that are not readily marketable is not disproportionate to my individual
net worth, and my investment in Notes will not cause such overall commitment to become excessive. I have adequate means of
providing for my financial requirements, both current and anticipated, and have no need for liquidity in this investment. I can bear
and am willing to accept the economic risk of losing my entire investment in Notes.

4. T acknowledge that the sale of Notes has not been accompanied by the publication of any advertisement, any
general solicitation or as the direct result of an investment seminar sponsored by the Company or any of its Affiliates.
5. All information that I have provided to the Company herein concerning my suitability to invest in Notes is

complete, accurate and correct as of the date of my signature on the last page of this Subscription Agreement. T hereby agree to
notify the Company immediately of any material change in any such information occurring prior to the acceptance of this
Subscription Agreement, including any information about changes concerning my net worth and financial position.

6. 1 have had the opportunity to ask questions of, and receive answers from, the Company and the Manager
concerning the Company, the creation or operation of the Company or terms and conditions of the offering of Notes, and to obtain
any additional information deemed necessary to verify the accuracy of the information contained in the Memorandum. I have been

3
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provided with all matena]s and information requested by either me or others representing me, including any information requestcd :
to verify any information furnished to me.

7 I am purchasing Notes for my own account and for investment purposes only and have no present intention,
understanding or arfangement for the distribution, transfer, assignment, resale or subdivision of Notes. I understand that, due to the
restrictions referred to in Paragraph 8 below, and the lack of any market existing or to exist for Notes, my investment in the
Company will be highly illiquid and may have to be held indefinitely.

8. Iam fully aware that Notes subscribed for hereunder have not been registered with the Securities and Exchange
Commission in reliance on an exemption specified in Regulation D under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, which reliance is
based in part upon my representations set forth herein. Tunderstand that Notes subscribed for herein have not been registered under
applicable state securities laws and are being offered and sold pursuant to the exemptions specified in said laws, and unless they are
registered, they may not be re-offered for sale or resold except in a transaction or as a security exempt under those laws, I further
understand that the specific approval of such resales by the state securities administrator may be required in some states, Notes
have not been approved or disapproved by the United States Securities and Exchange Commission or other regulatory
authority, nor have any of the foregoing authorities passed upon or endorsed the merits of this Offering or the accuracy or
adequacy of the Memorandum, Any representation to the contrary is unlawful,

9. 1 acknowledge that Home Federal Bank is acting solely as escrow holder in connection with the Offering of
Notes, and makes no recommendations with respect thereto. I understand that Home Federal Bank has made no investigation
regarding the Offering, Notes, the Company, the Manager, their Affiliates or their officers and directors, or any other person or
entity involved in the Offering,

10. This Subscription Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of
Idaho without regard to its choice of law provisions.
11, I hereby covenant and agree that any dlspute, controversy or other claim arising under, out of or relating to this

Agreement or any of the transactions contemplated hereby, or any amendment thereof, or the breach or interpretation hereof or
thereof, shall be determined and settled in binding arbitration in Boise, Idaho, in accordance with applicable Idaho law, and with
the rules and procedures of The American Arbitration Association. The prevailing party shall be entitled to an award of its
reasonable costs and expenses, including, but not limited to, attorneys’ fees, in addition to any other available remedies. Any
award rendered therein shall be final and binding on each and all of the parties thereto and their personal representatives, and
judgment may be entered thereon in any court of competent jurisdiction. BY EXECUTING THIS AGREEMENT, YOU ARE
AGREEING TO HAVE ALL DISPUTES DECIDED BY NEUTRAL ARBITRATION, YOU ARE GIVING UP ANY
RIGHTS YOU MIGHT POSSESS TO HAVE SUCH DISPUTES LITIGATED IN A COURT OR JURY TRIAL, AND
* YOU ARE GIVING UP YOUR JUDICIAL RIGHTS TO DISCOVERY AND APPEAL. IF YOU REFUSE TO SUBMIT
TO ARBITRATION AFTER AGREEING TO THIS PROVISION, YOU MAY BE COMPELLED TO ARBITRATE. BY
EXECUTING THIS AGREEMENT, YOU HEREBY CONFIRM THAT YOUR AGREEMENTS TO THIS
ARBITRATION PROVISION IS VOLUNTARY.

12. T hereby agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Company the Manager, their Affiliates and
all of their members, managers, sharcholders, officers, employees, affiliates and advisors, from any and all damages, losses,
liabilities, costs and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs) that they may incur by reason of my failure to
fulfill all of the terms and conditions of this Subscription Agreement or by reason of the untruth or inaccuracy of any of the
representations, warranties or agreements contained berein or in any other documents I have furnished to any of the
foregoing in connection with this transaction, This indemnification includes, but is not limited to, any damages, losses,
liabilities, costs and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs) incurred by the Company, the Manager, their
Affiliates and any of their members, managers, shareholders, directors, officers, employees, affiliates or advisors, defending
against any alleged violation of federal or state securities laws which is based upon or related to any untruth or inaccuracy
of any of the representations, warranties or agreements contained herein or in any other documents I have furnished in
connection with this transaction,

13. 1 hereby acknowledge and agree that : (a) I may not transfer or assign this Subscription Agreement, or any
interest herein, and any purported transfer shall be void; (b) except as specifically described herein, I am not entitled to cancel,
terminate or revoke this Subscription Agreement and that this Subscription Agreement will be binding on my heirs, successors and
personal representatives; provided, however, that if thé Company rejects this Subscription Agreement, this Subscription Agreement
shall be automatically canceled, terminated and revoked; (c) this Subscription Agreement and the Memorandum, together with all
attachments and exhibits thereto, constitute the entire agreement among the parties hereto with respect to the sale of Notes and may
be amended, modified or terminated only by a writing executed by all parties (except as provided herein with respect to rejection of
this Subscription Agreement by the Company); (d) within two days after receipt of a written request from the Company, the
undersigned agrees to provide such information and to exccute and deliver such documents as may be necessary to comply with
any and all laws and regula(lons to which the Company is subject; and (e) the representations and warranties of the undersigned set
forth herein shall survive the sale of Notes pursuant to this Subscription Agreement.

14, I am not making this investment in any manner as a representative of a charitable remainder unitrust or a
charitable remainder trust.

Initial Here Initial Here
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(SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS: In all cases, the person/entily mnking the investnent decision to purchase Notes must complete
and sign the Subscription Agreement. For example, If the form of ownership designated above is a retivement plan for which
investinents are directed or made by a third party trustee, then that third party trustee must complete this Subscriptioni
Agreement rather than the beneficiaries under the retirement plan. Investors must list their principal place of residence rather
than their office or other address on the signature page so that the Company can confirm compliauce with appropriate
securities laws. If you wish correspondence sent to some address other than your principal residence, please provide a mailing
address in the blank provided below. Additionally, in.an attempt to expedite the delivery of material information, the Company
asks (but does not require) that you list a secondary contact source that may be able to reach you, if you are unavailable
through any other reasonable means listed below.) .

20(6
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, 1 (we) has executed this Subscription Agreement this_{ 2 __ day of Feb reev a6e
A. REGIIS{’II\"IRA“}HOOIEI\I Please print the exact name (registration) investor desires on account:
INFO TT ¢
or m AAK Bz) ling
CUSTODIAN !
INFORMATION

if applicable) -
SendA.[gL p(ﬁrgnvork directly Mailing address: Z (qs/ (9 Co.\é U’tl’a’ (,ML

he custodian
et Lake Forest, CA 42630
. E-mail address: Mo»‘ﬂc) ( 'tv\ﬁoi @;'e«.u'%'l'v\lﬁ. V\Q"'

B.. INVESTOR N Please send all investor correspondence to the following:
INFORMATIO ‘
Name:_JWNi & ¥ ‘Gb(‘“{l

Address: 21986 (o yrnga Lome, Lake Boest, CA G430
Investor Phone: Business Home: (-) —
tavestor Fax: Business (D I oo > D

‘) N 4
Primary State of Residence: Ca ‘ "p'” nuo-

Social Security or Federal Tax ID Number;, _

C. SECONDARY If the Company is unable to contact the Subscriber directly through any reasonable means
CONTACT rovided by the Subscriber hereby, please contact the following individual who will be instructed
INFORMATION y Subscriber to inform him/her that Subscriber should contact the Company as expeditiously as

(OPTIONAL) possible:
Secondary Contact Name: po.“(\’ ! 7 V\A" cedlo
Secondary Contact Address: 214896 ¢, (3-'7“'\‘1 (et LJ’V‘”’L& ke Foes *ﬁ/\ qié-‘ja
Secondary Contact Phone: Business ( ) Home: (-) —
Secondary Contact Fax: Business (____) Home: _

D. ELECTION TO If you wish to participate in the Interest Reinvestment Program, please initial here:
PARTICIPATE IN

INTEREST If you wish to receive monthly distributions of interest, please initial here: !ﬂ’z
REINVESTMENT

PROGRAM You will have the opportunity once annually to change your election by giving written notice

thereof to the Company no later than November 30 in the year prior to the election year.
P y

E. SIGNATURES THE UNDERSIGNED HAS THE AUTHORITY TO ENTER INTO THIS SUBSCRIPTION
AGSE%MENT ON BEHALF OF THE PERSON(S) OR ENTITY REGISTERED IN A,
AB 2

2010 £ A
Executed this_| %~ _day of FCbn‘“V"]v +200 ,at[—ﬁlbe F—Milfl L//\

% Waid Yordiey

. v Signature (Investor, or authorized signatory)

X

Sigpature (Iuvestor, or authorized signatory)




F. SUBMIT Mail the executed Subscription Agreement to:
SUBSCRIPTION

Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC
1300 E. State Street, Suite 103
- Bagle, ID 83616
Attn: Subscription Services

The check (make payable to “Home Federal Bank, as Escrow Agent for Clearwater 2008 Note
Program, LLC”) or funds should be wired, mailed or delivered to:

All funds should be delivered or wired to; : Wire Instructions:
Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC Account Number:
1300 E. State Street, Suite 103 Routing/ABA Number:
Eagle, ID 83616 Account Name: Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC
Attn: Subscription Services

Subscription Accepted:
" Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC

By: Clearwater REI, LLC
an Idaho limited liability company
Its: Manager

By: _ Date: _%4 /20({ °

Name:

Its:

000014




BROKER/DEALER REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

Purchaser suitability requirements have been established by “Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC” (the “Project”) and
fully disclosed in its Private Placement Memorandum dated August 29, 2008 (the “Memorandum™) under “Who May Invest.”
Before recommending purchase of membership interests in the Project being offered pursuant to the Memorandum (the
“Interests”), we have reasonable grounds to believe, on the basis of information supplied by tlie subscriber concerning his, her or its
investment objectives, other investments, financial situation and needs, and other pertinent information that: (i) the subscriber is an
accredited investor as defined in Section 501(a) of Regulation D and meets the investor suitability requirements set forth in the -
Memorandum; (i) the subscriber has a net worth and income sufficient to sustain the risks inherent in the Interests, including loss
of investment and lack of liquidity; and (jii) the Interests are otherwise a suitable investment for the subscriber. We will mamtam in
our files documents disclosing the basis upon which the suitability of this subscriber was determmed

‘We verify that the above subscription either does not involve a discretionary account or, if so, that the subscriber’s prior
written approval was obtained relatmg to the liquidity and marketability of the Interests during the term of the purchase.

Broker/Dealer Firm Name %ﬂ/f/m/&;zf F handia/ 651’0 Vlo e

Registered Representative Name ﬂ% rni \/ h% ri-
Registered Representative’s BRANCH ADDRESS 2700 j R V/ive lenw TE /Q D r, #50 Q

LRV/IVE CF 52217

L4
Representative Phone Number_é-L!
——l _N |

Represenfative Email Address:__ /¥ h art & marnshar . Qo)

Broker/Dealer Firm BRANCH Phone Number: _)

Broker/Dealer Firm BRANCH Facsimile Number: ( -) _

The Registered Representative Firm is licensed in the state in which the investor resides: Yes MNo

O St~

Registered RepresentativeSi€nature © - o ‘

Broker Dealer Authorized Principal

Print Name
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MARK A. BOLING
21986 Cayuga Lane
Lake Forest; CA 92630 .
(949) 588-9222 - (949) 588-7078 [fax]

February 15, 2012 '
: FACSIMILE ONLY

TO:

Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC, an Idaho limited liability company
Clearwater REI, LLC, an Idaho limited liability company

Clearwater Real Estate Investments, aka Clearwater Real Estate Investments, LLC,
an unknown business entity

RE Capital Investments, LLC, an unknown business entity
‘Barton Cole Cochran, an individual

Chad James Hansen, an individual

Ronald D. Meyer, an individual

- Christopher J. Benak, an individual
Rob Ruebel, an individual .

1300 E. State Street, Suite 103
Eagle, ID 83616 . ' .
Fax #: 208-939-1431 -

FROM: MARK BOLING

RE: Demand for Arbifration
Total number of Pages Transmitted iincluding this one): 4
If you do not receive all of the pages, please call as soon as possible.

Message:

Enclosed is Claimant’s Demand for Arbitration, List of Respondents and arbitration
clause from the Subscription Agreement accepted on. February 26, 2010.

NOTICE

This message is intended only for the individual or entity to which it is addressed
and may contain information that is privileged, confidential, or exempt from
disclosure. If the recipient of this message is not the addressee, or a person
authorized to receive this message for the addressee, then you are hereby notified
that all protections applicable to this information remain in effect and that any
retention, dissemination, distribution or copying of this communication is
prohibited. If you received this communication in error, please destroy this
facsimile and notify the sender by telephone. Thank you.

000017
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@ Amencan Arbitration Association COMMERCIAL ARBITRATION RULES
Dispnt Resolusisn Services Worldwide

DEMAND FOR ARBITRATION

MEDIATION: [fyou would like the AAA {0 contasi the other - parties and attempt 1o arrange a mediation, please check this box. CF
There s no additioral adwministrative fee for this service.

Name of Respondent _ Name of Representative (if known)
See Aftached List of Respondents ‘Unknown
Address . Name of Firm (if applicable)
1300 E. State Strest, Suite 103 ' ‘
Representative’s Address
City State | ZipCode - -} City State | Zip Code
Eagla ! I} 83616- .
Phone No. , Fax No. Phone No. » Fax No.
{208) 6394488 (208) 939-1431 :
Email Address: Email Address:
InvestorServicgs@ClearwatesRElLcom : ,
The named claimsnt, a party to an arbitration agreement dated 2/26/2010 , which provides for arbm-atlon under the
Commercial Arbitration Rules of the Ametican Atbitration Association, hereby demands arbm-anon
THE NATURE OF THE DISPUTE ‘

Violations of the idaho Consumer Protection Act against all named Respondents, Breach of Agreement agalnst Clearwater 2008 Note
Program, LLC, Breach of Guaranty against RE Capital Investments, LLC arising from Claimant's purchase and periodic payment of a

9 % Note. Faulure to make timely interest and redemption principal payments. Failure to timaly provide all material documents before
submitting Subscription Agreement.  Tendency to mislead in and the untimely disclosure of financial documents,

Dollar Amount of Claim $50,000.00 ’ Other Relief Sought: O Aftortieys Fees X Interest

) ) . ) | - B Arbitration Costs & Punitive/ Exemplary ® Other Late Charges
Amount Enclosed $ 975.00 In accordance with Fee Schedule: OFlexible Fee Schedule R Standard Fee Schiedule .

PLEASE DESCRIBE APPROPRIATE QUALIFICATIONS FOR ARBITRATOR(S) TO BE APPOINTED TOHEAR THIS DISPUTE:
Experienced in the ldaho Consumer Protection Act and contract law.

Hearing locale Bolse, Idaho (check one) O Requested by Claimant 8 Locale provision included i the contract
Estimated time needed for hearings overall: Type of Business: Claimant __Consumer o
hoursor __1.00 _ days, - Respondent Real Estate Investments

Is this a dispute between a husiness and a consumer? BYes [ No Does this dispute arise out of an employment relationship? 0 Yes 8 No

If this dispute arises out of an emhloyment relationship, what wasfis the employec’s annusl wage range? Note: This question is required
by California law, DLess than $100,000 O $100,000 - $250,000 O Over $250,000

~ You are hereby notified that a copy of vur arbitration agreement and this demand are being filed with the Amermn Arbitration
Association with a request that it commence administration of the arbitration. The AAA will provide notice of your opportunity
to file an answering statemnent,

Signature (may be signed bya rsprﬁmtativc) Date: | Name of Representative
2/15/2012 None

Name of Claimant i/ Name of Firm (if applicable)

Mark Boling ]

Address (to be used in connection with this case) Representative’s Address
21986 Cayuga Lane ' ‘

City . State | Zip Code City ) ' .| State | Zip Code

Lake Forest ‘ CA 92630-

PhoneNo. . : Fax No. ' Thons No. . : Fax No.
| 949.588-9222 . 949-588-7078

Email Address: Email Address:

maboling@earthlink.net T

To begin proceedings please send a copy of this Demand and the Arbitration Agreement, along with the filing fec as
provided for in the Rules, t0: American Arbitration Association, Case Filing Services, 1101 Laurel Oak Road, Suite 100 -
Voorhees, NJ 08043. Send the original Demand to the Respondent.

Please visit our website at www. 3dt.qre. if you would like to file this case online. AAA Case Filing Scrvices can be reached at 877-495-4185
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Boling v. Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC, et al.
Attachment to Demand for Arbitran"on '
List of Regspondents:
Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC, an Idaho limited liability company
Clearwater REI, LLC, aﬁ Idaho limited liability company

Clearwater Real Estate Investments, aka Clearwater Real Estate Investments, LLC, an

unknown business entity
" RE Capital Investments, LLC, an unknown business entity
Barfon Cole Cochran, an indiv’idual
Chad James Hansen, an individual
Ronéld D. Meyer, an individual
Christopher J. Benak, an individual

Rob Ruebel, an individual
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provided with afl materials and jnformation requested by either me of others representing e, including sy infiormation requested
to vesify any information furnished to me. L.

7 Inmpwuhasit!gNooesfuxmyownaccoumsndfwiuwstmcmwmlyaﬂdhavcnbprmmmw,
understanding or artangement for the distribution, ransfer, assigntient, resale of subdivision of Notes. X mnderstand that, due to the
restrictions referted to in Paragraph 8 below, and the lack of any moarket existing or 20 cxist for Notes, my investment in the
Company will be highty illiquid end tay have t0 be held indefinitely. :

8. I am fully aware that Notos subscribed for hereunder bave not been registered with the Sectities and Exchange
Commission in relianee on an exemption specified in Reguiation D wider the Securities Act of 1933, 25 amended, which reliznce is
based fu part tpon 1My fepresentations set forth herein, Iunderstand that Notes subscribed for herein have not boen registered ander
applicable state securities laws atid arc being offered and sold pursnant to the exemptions specified in said laws, and unless they are
tegistered, they may not be ro-offered for sale or resold except It a transaction or 25 a scqumity exempt under those lews. I fusther
maderstand that the specific approval of such resales by the state securities administrator may be regwired jo some siates. Notes
have not heen approved or disappreved by the United States Secuxities and Exchange Commizsion ar other regulatory
authority, nor have auy of the foregoing authorities passed apon or endorsed the merits of this Offering or the acruracy or
adequecy of the Memorandum. Any represeatation to the contrary is imlawfnl.

9. I acknowledpe that Home Federal Bank is scting solely as escrow hokder in copnection with the Offering of
Notes, and makes o recommendations with respect thereto, I onderstand that Home Federal Bank bis made oo investigation
regarding the Offering, Notes, fe Cotpany, the Manager, their Affilistes or their officers and directors, or any other person or
entity involved in the Qffering. '

10.  This.Subscription Agresent shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of
Idabo without regard to its choice of law provisions. .

[~ i1. [ hersby covenant and agree that any dispute, cotitroversy or other clajm srising under, out of or relating to this
Agreement or any of the ttausactions contemplated heroby, or any amendment theseof, or the breach or imerpretation hereof or
thereof, shall be detenmined gnd settled in bindiny arbiteation, in Boise, Idabo, in accordance with applicable Idabo law, and witk
the res and procedures of The American Arbitration Asgociation. The provailing party shail be entitled to an award of its
rezsonable costs and expenses, including, but not Yisited to, attorpeys® fees, in addition to any other available remedies. Any
award rendered fherein shall be final and binding on cdch and all of the parties thereto and their personal represenmtives, ond
judgment may be entered thereon i =ny coust of competent jurisdiction. BY EXECUTING THIS AGREEMENT, YOU ARE
AGREEING TO HAVE ALL DISPUTES DECIDED BY NEUTRAL ARBITRATION, YOU ARE GIVING UP ANY
RIGHTS YOU MIGHT RPOSSESS TQ HAVE SUCH DISRUTES LITIGATED IN A COURT OR JURY TRIAL, AND
YOU ARE GIVING UP YOUR JUDICIAL RIGHTS TO DISCOVERY AND APFEAL. IF YOU REFUSE TO SUBMIT
TO ARBITRATION AFTER AGREFING TO THIS PROVISION, YOU MAY BE COMPELLED TO ARBITRATE. BY
EXECUTING THIS AGREEMENT, YOU HEREBY CONFIRM THAT YOUR AGREEMENTS TO THIS
ARBITRATION FROVISION IS VOLUNTARY. ‘ , ’
L~ 12, Xherehy agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmiess the Company, the Manager, their Affilistes and
~ afi of their members, mapagers, sharcholdexs, officers, employees, affilfates and advisors, from any and 2ll daipages, losscs,
Eahilities, cests and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs) that they may iwcur by reasen of myy faflure to
fuliih all of the terms and conditions of this Subscription Agreement or by reason of the wxtruth or inaecaracy of amy of the
repregentations, waxranties or agreements centained herein or in any other docmnents T have furnished to any of the
foregoing in conmection with this trapsaction. This indemnification includes, but is wot Hmited to, any damages, Josses,
Uabilides, costs and expenses (ncluding reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs) tncarved by the Company, the Manaper, thefe
Affiliates and any of their mexobers, mansgers, shareholders, Mrectors, officers, employees, affitates or zdvisors, defending
against any alleged violation of federal or state securities lawy which 15 based upon or related to any untroth or fosccoracy
of apy of the representations, warranties or agreements contatned herein or in any other docaments I have farmished in
connection with this transaction. 4
.13, I hereby acknowledge and agree that : (a) T may not transfer or assign this Subscription Agrecment, or any
interest herein, and any purported teangfer shall be void; (b) except s specifically described herein, I am not entitled to cancel,
terminate or revoke this Subscription Agresment and thas ¢his Subscription Agreeinent will be binding on my heirs; seccessors and
personal representatives; provided, however, that if the Company rejects this Subscription Agrecment, this Snbscrigtion Agreerment
shall be autometically canceled, tezminated and fevoked; (c) this Subscription Agreement and the Mesnorandims, together with all
attachments and exhibjts thereto, constimte the entire agreement among the perties hereto with respect to the sale of Nots and may
be amendzd, roodified or terminated only by a writing executed by all parties (except as provided herein with respect to rejection of
this Subscription Agreement by the Company); (d) within two days sfter receipt of & written request from the Company, the
undersigned agrees 10 provide such infonmation and to execute and defiver such documends a3 tnay be necassary to comply with
any and all Jaws and regulations to which the Company {g sublect; and {e) the representations and wasesmties of the undetsigned sct
forth herein shall snrvive the sale of Notes pursuant to this Subgeription Agreement.

.14, 1 amt not making this investment in any tnanner as a representative of a charitable remainder usitrust or a
charitable remainder trpst. .

Yoitin] Hexe  Initisl Here
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JUN 2 8 2012 L

Ada County Clerk JUN 2% 20

) CHRISTOPHER D
Mark Boling By CHR'STINE'st{v'gEHT' Clerk
21986 Cayuga Lane DEPUTY
Lake Forest, CA 92630
(949) 588-9222
(949) 588-7078 [fax]
maboling@earthlink.net
Defendant/Cross-Complainant, in pro per

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT

OF THE STATE OF IDAHO, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF ADA
CLEARWATER REI LLC, et al. Case No.: CV OC 1208669

Plaintiffs, ANSWER TO COMPLAINT

Ve CATEGORY I (1) FILING FEE: $58
MARK BOLING,
Defendant,
COMES NOW Defendant Mark Boling to Answer the Complaint as follows:
ANSWER TO COMPLAINT

1. Defendant admits the following allegations in paragraphs: 8, 14, .16, 17,
18, and 19.

2. Defendant has insufficient information or belief to respond to the
following paragraphs and therefore denies the allegations in each paragraph: 1,2, 3, 4,
5,6,7,9, 10,11, 13,15, 20 and 21.

ANSWER TO COMPLAINT - Page 1
' 000021
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3. In paragraph 12, Defendant admits “Demand has been made upon the
above named Plaintiffs for arbitration.” Except for said admission, Defendant has
insufficient information or belief to respond to the remaining allegations of said
paragraph and therefore denies the remaining allegations of said paragraph.

AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES

4. As a first affirmative defense to the Complaint, Defendant is informed
and believes, and on the basis of that information and belief alleges, that neither the
Complaint nor any purported claim alleged by Plaintiffs against Defendant states
facts sufficient to constitute a claim against Defendant.

5. As a second affirmative defense to the Complaint, Defendant alleges that
Plaintiffs’ purported claims are barred by the failure of conditions precedent,
concﬁrrent and/or subsequent.

6. As a third affirmative defense to the Complaint, Defendant alleges that to
the extent Plaintiffs failed to mitigate their alleged remedies, any remedies awarded to
Plaintiffs should be barred or reduced accordingly.

7. As a fourth affirmative defense to the Complaint, Defendant alleges that
Plaintiffs failed to act in good faith or to deal fairly with the Defendant by failing to
provide sufficient and timely information before or after a demand for arbitration was

made.

ANSWER TO COMPLAINT — Page 2
: 000022
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8. As a fifth affirmative defense to the Complaint, Defendant alleges that
Plaintiffs’ purported claims are barred, in whole or in part, by the equitable doctrines of
waiver, estoppel, laches, and/or unclean hands.

9. As a sixth affirmative defense to the Complaint, Defendant is informed
and believes, and on the basis of that information and belief alleges, that by their acts
and omissions, Plaintiffs expressly and/or impliedly consented and/or acquiesced in
whole or in part to the alleged conduct and/or behavior of Defendant.

10. As an seventh affirmative defense to the Complaint, Defendant is
informed and believes, and on the basis of that information and belief alleges, that
Plaintiffs were at fault in and about the matters referred to in the Complaint. Plaintiffs’
failure to exercise reasonable care was the proximate cause and contributed to the
damages complained, if any.

11.  Further, any fault not contributed by the Plaintiffs was a result of fault on
the part of persons and/or entities other than Defendant. Such fault bars and/or
proportionally reduces any recovery by Plaintiffs against Defendant.

12.  As a eighth affirmative defense to the Complaint, Defendant is informed
and believes, and on the basis of that information and belief alleges, that the action, and
each claim therein is barred because Defendant performed, satisfied, dischafged and/or
extinguished all duties and obligations he may have owed, if any, to Plaintiffs and/or
third parties arising out of any and all agreements, representations or contracts, whether

written or oral.

ANSWER TO COMPLAINT — Page 3
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PRAYER
WHEREFORE, Defendant prays that judgment be entered in his favor and
against Plaintiffs as follows:
1. That Plaintiffs are not entitled to any recovery under the Complaint;
2. That Defendant is awarded his attorneys' feés, if any, and costs to defend
the Complaint; and
3. That Defendant is awarded such other and further relief as the Court may

deem just and proper.

Dated: June 25, 2012 Wb M

MARK BOLING,
Defendant

ANSWER TO COMPLAINT — Page 4
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Clearwater REI, LLC, et al. v. Boling, Case No. CV OC 1208669

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I am a resident of Orange County, State of California, over the age of eighteen
(18) years, and not a party to the above-entitled action.

I certify on June 25, 2012, I served the following document(s) in this action:

ANSWER TO COMPLAINT

by sending a true copy thereof by ELECTRONIC SERVICE pursuant to
LR.C.P,Rule 5 (b) (E) addressed to the party(s) served as follows:

Rebecca A. Rainey — rar@raineylawoffice.com

Attorney for Plaintiffs and Cross-Defendants Clearwater REL, LLC,
Clearwater Real Estate Investments, LLC aka Clearwater Real Estate
Investments, RE Capital Investments, LLC, Barton Cole Cochran, Chad James
Hansen, Ronald D. Meyer, Christopher J. Benak and Rob Ruebel.

The transmission of said document(s) to each party served was reported as

complete and without error within a reasonable time after said transmission.

Dated: June 25, 2012 M
PATRICIA MOCELLA

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE -PAGE 1
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RECEIVED .

! NOW— }
JUN28 202 | A S
Ada County Clerk JUN 28 2017
Mark Boling CHRISTOPHER D. RICH, Clerk
21986 Cayuga Lane By CHRISTINE SWEET
Lake Forest, CA 92630 pEPUTY

(949) 588-9222

(949) 588-7078 [fax]
maboling@earthlink.net
Defendant/Cross-Complainant, in pro per

IN THE DISTRICT COURT FOR THE FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT
FOR THE STATE OF IDAHO, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF ADA

CLEARWATER REL LLC, et al. Case No.: CV OC 1208669

Plaintiffs,

vs. COUNTERCLAIM AND THIRD PARTY
_ COMPLAINT FOR VIOLATIONS OF THE
MARK BOLING, I.C.P.A. AND BREACH OF GUARANTY
Defendant, ’

CATEGORY K(3) FILING FEE: $14

MARK BOLING, an individual,
Cross-complainant,

VS.

CLEARWATER REI, LLC, an Idaho limited
liability company, RE CAPITAL
INVESTMENTS, LLC, a Delaware limited
liability company, CLEARWATER REAL
ESTATE INVESTMENTS, LLC, aka
CLEARWATER REAL ESTATE
INVESTMENTS, a Delaware limited liability
company, BARTON COLE COCHRAN, an
individual, CHAD JAMES HANSEN, an
individual, RONALD D. MEYER, an
individual, CHRISTOPHER J. BENAK, an
individual, ROB RUEBEL, an individual,
DOES 1-10,

Cross-Defendants.

COUNTERCLAIM AND THIRD PARTY COMPLAINT — Page 1 000026



INTRODUCTION

1. This counterclaim and third party complaint is brought to obtain
equitable relief, restitution, damages and/or other remedies, for violations by the Cross-
Defendants of Idaho consumer protection statutes and breach of guaranty, in connection
with Cross-Defendants’ course of conduct arising out of Cross-Complainant’s purchase
and periodic payment of a 9 % Note.

2. A true and correct copy of any and all alleged exhibits are attached
heref[o and incorporated fully herein where referenced.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

3. In this civil action, the amount in controversy exceeds the minimum
jurisdictional requirements of this court.

4. As more fully alleged infra, at all relevant times several Cross-
Defgndants have their principal place of business, reside or were employed in this
judicial district.

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS-CROSS-DEFENDANTS

5. Cross-Complainant is informed and believes and thereon alleges that
Cross-Defendants Clearwater REI, LLC (“Manager”) is an Idaho limited liability
company, Clearwater Real Estate Investments, LLC, aka Clearwater Real Estate
Investments (“Clearwater”) is a Delaware limited liability company, RE Capital
Investments, LLC (“Guarantor”) is a Delaware limited liability company (collectively

“Business Cross-Defendants™).

COUNTERCLAIM AND THIRD PARTY COMPLAINT — Page 2
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6. Cross-Complainant is informed and believes and thereon alleges that the
Business Cross-Defendants and Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC’s (“Company™)
principal place of business is located at 1300 E. State Street, Eagle, ID 83616.

7. Cross-Complainant is informed and believes and thereon alleges that the
]éusiness Cross-Defendants and the Company compete primarily in the real estate
investment industry.

8. Cross-Complainant is informed and believes and thereon alleges that
Cross-Defendants Barton Cole Cochran is an individual residing in Idaho, Chad James
Hansen is an individual residing in Idaho, Ronald D. Meyer is an individual residing in
California, Christopher J. Benak is an individual residing in California and Rob Ruebel
is an individual residing in Idaho (collectively “Individual Cross-Defendants™)

9. Cross-Complainant is informed and believes and thereon alleges that the
Individual Cross-Defendants are owners, officers and/or employees of the Business
Cross-Defendants and/or the Company.

10.  Doe Cross-Defendants 1 through 10, whose names are unknown, are
sued herein by their fictitious names, as Cross-Complainant believes that such Doe
Cross-Defendants are responsible, in whole or in part, for the incident and damage
hereinafter alleged, and the Cross-Complainant will amend this counterclaim and third
party complaint to properly identify such Cross-Defendants once their culpability and/or
identities become known to Cross-Complainant.

11.  Cross-Complainant is informed and believes and thereon alleges that

COUNTERCLAIM AND THIRD PARTY COMPLAINT - Page 3 000028



each named and/or Doe Cross-Defendant and/or the Company is responsible in some
manner for the acts, occurrences and liability hereinafter alleged and referred to.

12.  Cross-Complainant is informed and believes and thereon alleges that at
all times mentioned herein, each named and/or Doe Cross-Defendant was the agent,
servant or employee of each and every remaining Cross-Defendant and/or the
Company, and the acts of each Cross-Defendant were within the course and scope of
said agency and/or employment.

CROSS-COMPLAINANT

13.  Cross-Complainant Mark Boling is a California resident who purchased
a real estate investment promissory note in the sum of $50,000.00 for personal use after
viewing and in reliance on the alleged material representations, acts and/or omissions of
material facts as set forth herein. |

14.  Cross-Complainant has suffered an injury in fact and has lost money or
property as a result of Cross-Defendants® business acts, omissions and practices as

alleged herein based on his purchase of the real estate investment note.

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS
A. Private Placement Memorandum, Supplements One and Two Thereto
and Guaranty
15.  On or about February 4, 2010, Cross-Complainant received an initial

package from Rob Ruebel, Regional Vice-President of Sales of Clearwater consisting of

A) a bound Confidential Private Placement Memorandum Book # 08Note-A238 dated
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August 29, 2008 (Exh. 1), which included, inter alia, the Private Placement

Memorandum (Exh. 1A ,“PPM”), a Guaranty (Exh. 2), and Supplements One and Two

to the PPM (collectively, Exh. 3), and B) a cover letter dated February 1, 2010 and

miscellaneous sheets about Clearwater Real Estate Investments (collectively, Exh. 4).

Cross-Complainant did not receive a copy of the Note dated August 29, 2008, the Third

Supplement to the PPM dated January 20, 2010, or the 2009 Year-End Update dated

March 19, 2010 until after the submission and acceptance of his Subscription

Agreement, infra.

16.

The PPM sets forth the following:

Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC, an Idaho limited
liability company, was organized to offer up to
$20,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of 9.0% Notes
due December 31, 2015. The Company will use the
proceeds from the offering of the Notes to provide
secured financing for real estate acquisition and
development projects undertaken by Clearwater REI,
LLC, an Idaho limited liability company, its Affiliates and
other borrowers who satisfy the lending criteria
established by the Company. * * * All loans made by the
Company will be collateralized by a first position
mortgage or.deed of trust, as the case may be. [PPM,

Introduction.]

Noteholders may elect, from time to time, to (a) receive

monthly distributions of simple interest at the annual rate
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0f 9.0%, or (b) re-invest accrued interest at a compounded

annual interest rate of 9.0%. [PPM, Introduction.]

The mailing address of the Company is c/o Clearwater
REIL LLC, 1300 E. State Street, Suite 103, Eagle, Idaho
83616. [PPM, Introduction.]

If, after carefully reading the entire Memorandum,
obtaining any other information available and being fully
satisfied with the results of pre-investment due diligence
activities, a prospective Noteholder would like to
purchase Notes, a prospective Noteholder should
complete and sign the attached Subscription Agreement.
The full purchase price for the Notes must be paid by
check upon submission of the Subscription Agreement for
the Notes. [PPM, p. 3.]

There are various conflicts of interest among the

Company, the Manager and their Affiliates. [PPM, p. 5.]

COMPANY’S PRINCIPAL OFFICERS [PPM, p. 17.]:
The Investment Committee will include, but not be
limited to the following principals:

* Ron Meyer, Chief Development Officer

» Chris Benak, Chief Development Officer

* Don Steeves, National Sales Director & Broker-Dealer

Relations
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* Bart Cochran, Vice President of Acquisitions &
Operations

* Chad Hansen, Vice President of Finance. [PPM, p. 17.]

MANAGER’S KEY MANAGEMENT [PPM, p. 18.]:

* Ron Meyer, Chief Development Officer

* Chris Benak, Chief Development Officer

* Don Steeves, National Sales Director & Broker-Dealer
Relations

* Bart Cochran, Vice President Of Acquisitions &
Operations

* Chad Hansen, Vice President of Finance

Interest: Noteholders may elect to receive monthly
interest payments in an amount equal to 9.0% simple
interest on their principal investment. All distributions
will paid in arrears on the fifteenth day of each month,
beginning with the month following the month in which
the Notes are issued. [PPM, p. 19.]

Interest Reinvestment Program (IRP): By giving written
notice to the Company of their desire to do so not later
than November 30, Noteholders may elect to have their
interest reinvested and compounded monthly beginning
on the first day of the year immediately following the date
on which such notice was received by the Company.
Reinvested interest will be compounded at the annual rate

of 9.0%. Interest that is reinvested will be added to and
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considered part of the principal amount of the Note at the
end of each calendar month. [PPM, p. 19.]

Liquidity; Callability: Beginning December 31, 2010 and

once annually thereafter, Notes representing up to 10% of
the original principal amount may be called by the
Noteholders upon not less than 90 days written notice to
the Company. [PPM, pp. 19-20.]

Guaranty: The Notes will be obligations of the Company
the principal of which will be guaranteed by RE Capital
Investments, LLC [PPM, p. 20.] The Guaranty is
attached to the PPM as Exhibit D.

Annual Report: Within 120 days after the end of each
calendar year, the Company will send to each Noteholder
of record during the previous year: (2) an audited balance
sheet for the Company as of the end of such fiscal year
and (b) an audited statement of the Company’s earnings
for such fiscal year, along with a year-end status report.
[PPM, p. 24.]

Definitions:

“Company” means Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC,
an Idaho limited liability company. [PPM, p. 25.]
“Manager” refers to Clearwater REI, LLC. The Manager
is sole owner and the initial manager of the Company.
[PPM, p. 26.]
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“Noteholders” means purchasers of Notes. [PPM, p. 26.]
“Notes” means the $20,000,000 aggregate principal
amount of 9.0% notes due December 31, 2015, subject to
increase to $40,000,000 at the sole discretion of the
Company, which will be obligations of the Company the
principal of which will be guaranteed by RE Capital
Investments, LLC; however, the Notes will not be secured

by collateral. [PPM, p. 26.]

“Event of Default” refers to the occurrence of any of the
following: (a) failure to pay the principal on the Notes

when due at maturity, or upon any earlier due date, or

upon mandatory redemption at the option of Noteholder,
(b) failure to pay any interest on the Notes for ten days
after notice of such default to the Company; (c) failure to
perform any other covenant for ten days after receipt of
written notice specifying the default and requiring the
Company to remedy such default; or (c) events of
insolvency, receivership, conservatorship or
reorganization of the Company. [PPM, p. 26.] (Emphasis
added.)
Guarantor’s Balance Sheet dated July 31, 2008 — attached
Exhibit C to the PPM.

17. The Guaranty dated July 31, 2008 — attached as Exhibit D to the PPM,

was signed on behalf of the Guarantor, RE Capital Investments, LLC, by its managing

member, Diamond B Asset Management. The Guaranty states, inter alia:

COUNTERCLAIM AND THIRD PARTY COMPLAINT — Page 9
000034



“In order to induce each prospective purchaser (each a
“Noteholder” and collectively the “Noteholders”) of 9%
Notes due on December 31, 2015 (each a “Note” and
collectively the “Notes) issued by Clearwater 2008 Note
Program, LLC (the “Company”) to purchase the Notes,
the Guarantor hereby unconditionally guarantees the
paymenf of the original principal amount of the Notes as
provided therein. This Guaranty shall remain in full force

throughout the terms of the Notes.”

“Guarantor hereby waives notice of acceptance of this
Guaranty and all other notices in connection herewith or
in connection with the liabilities, obligations and duties
guaranteed hereby, including notices to them of default by

the Company under the Notes.”

“The Guarantor’s net worth will at all times during the
term of the Guaranty be maintained at $54, 000.000
subject to increase in pro rata up to $78,000,000 if the

Company increases the offering of the Notes.”

“Guarantor further agrees, to the extent permitted by law,
to pay any costs or expenses, including the reasonable
fees of an attorney, incurred by the Noteholders in
enforcing this Guaranty.”

18. The First Supplement to PPM dated October 3, 2008 states, inter alia,

that Peter Cooper, Senior Vice-President of Sales will assume the role of Director of
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Sales and Broker Dealer Relations for Clearwater REI, LLC. Don Steeves, former
National Sales Director and Director of Broker Relations, concluded his employment
with Clearwater REI, LLC. [1* Suppl., p. 2.]

19.  The four member Investment Committee now consists of current
principal members of Clearwater REL, LLC, namely: Ron Meyer, Chris Benak, Bart
Cochran and Chad Hansen. No loan will be made by the Company without the prior

approval of the Investment Committee. [1% Suppl., p. 3.]

20. The Second Supplement to PPM dated June 30, 2009 states, inter alia,

that the RELATIONSHIP of the Company (Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC), the

Manager (Clearwater REI, LLC) and the Guarantor (RE Capital Investments, LLC) to

each other, and their respective owners, is as follows [2" Suppl., p.2]:

o RE Capital Investments, LLC owns 55.84% of Clearwater (Real Estate
Investments).
. Ronald D. Meyer owns 100% of Terron Investments, Inc., which
owns 50 % of RE Capital Investments, LLC.
. Christopher J. Benak owns 100% of Diamond B Asset
Manégement, Inc., which owns the other 50% of RE Capital Investments, LLC.
o Barton Cole Cochran 100% of Leap, Inc. which owns 19.58% of
Clearwater.
o Chad James Hansen owns 100% of Green Jackets Investments, Inc.,

which owns 19.58% of Clearwater.
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Bart Cochran, who was formerly the Company’s Vice-President of Acquisitions
& Operations, is now the Company’s President. Chad Hansen, who was formerly the

Company’s Vice-President of Finance, is now the Company’s Chief Financial Officer.

[2™ Suppl., p.2]

Guarantor’s Balance Sheet dated December 31, 2008 — is attached as Exhibit A
to the 2" Suppl.

B. Subscription Agreement

19.  Having viewed and in material reliance upon the contents of the initial

package from Rob Ruebel, on February 12, 2010, Cross-Complainant executed and
submitted a Subscription Agreement (“SA”) (Exh. 5) to Clearwater, and Cross-
Complainant paid the sum of $50,000 pursuant thereto as his personal investment in the
Company’s Note Program without having previously received a copy of the Note.

20. The Subscription Agreement states, inter alia, that the SA is the offer

and agreement of the Cross-Complainant to purchase $50,000 in principal of 9% Notes
to be issued by the Company subject to the terms, conditions, acknowledgments,
representations and warranties stated herein and in the PPM, as supplemented from time
to time. [SA, p.2.]

21.  The Guarantor agreed to guarantee the repayment of principal under the
Notes. [SA, p.3., 1]

22.  Pertinent portions of the SA are as follows:

“T acknowledge that I have received, read and fully

understand the Memorandum. I acknowledge that I am
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o

basing my decision to invest in Notes on the
Memorandum and I have relied only on the information
contained in said materials and have not relied upon any
representations made by any other person.” [SA, p.3., 2]
(underline added)

“I am purchasing Notes for my own account and for

investment purposes only.” [SA, p.4, §7.]

“This Subscription Agreement shall be construed in
accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of
Idaho without regard to its choice of law provisions.”
[SA,p4, 710.]

“[Alny dispute, controversy or other claim arising under,
out of or relating to this Agreement or any of the
transactions contemplated hereby, or any amendment
thereof, or the breach or interpretation hereof or thereof,
shall be determined and settled in binding arbitration in
Boise, Idaho, in accordance with applicable Idaho law,
and with the rules and procedures of The American
Arbitration Association. The prevailing party shall be
entitled to an award of its reasonable costs and expenses,
including, but not limited to, attorneys’ fees, in addition to
any other available remedies. Any award rendered therein
shall be final and binding on each and all of the parties
thereto and their personal representatives, and judgment

may be entered thereon in any court of competent
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jurisdiction. BY EXECUTING THIS AGREEMENT,
YOU ARE AGREEING TO HAVE ALL DISPUTES
DECIDED BY NEUTRAL ARBITRATION, YOU ARE
GIVING UP ANY RIGHTS YOU MIGHT POSSESS TO
HAVE SUCH DISPUTES LITIGATED IN A COURT
OR JURY TRIAL, AND YOU ARE GIVING UP YOUR
JUDICIAL RIGHTS TO DISCOVERY AND APPEAL.
IF YOU REFUSE TO SUBMIT TO ARBITRATION
AFTER AGREEING TO THIS PROVISION, YOU
MAY BE COMPELLED TO ARBITRATE. BY
EXECUTING THIS AGREEMENT, YOU HEREBY
CONFIRM THAT YOUR AGREEMENTS TO THIS
ARBITRATION PROVISION IS VOLUNTARY.” [SA,

p.4, q11.]

“[T]his Subscription Agreement and the Memorandum,
together with all attachments and exhibits thereto,
constitute the entire agreement among the parties hereto
with respect to the sale of Notes and may be amended,
modified or terminated only by a writing executed by all
parties.” [SA, p.4, 13.]

23.  Interest Payments: The PPM is clear that interest payments at the rate of

9% are to be made on the fifteenth (15™) of the month in arrears. Under the Subscription
Agreement, Cross-Complainant acknowledged that he was basing his decision to invest

in Notes on the Memorandum and he relied only on the information contained in said

COUNTERCLAIM AND THIRD PARTY COMPLAINT — Page 14 000039



materials and have not relied upon any representations made by any other person. [SA,
p3.,92]

C. Acceptance of Subscription Agreement, Certificate and Note

24, On or about March 6, 2010, Cross-Complainant received a cover letter
dated March 1, 2010 (Exh. 6), an Acceptance of the Subscription Agreement (Exh. 5), a
Certificate with an effective date of February 27, 2010 (Exh. 7), and a Note dated
August 29, 2008 (Exh. 8) from Clearwater.

25.  The terms of the agreement between Company/ Cross-Complainant arise
out of 1) the executed Subscription Agreement, subject to the terms, conditions,
acknowledgments, representations, and warranties stated therein and in the PPM, 2)
Supplements One and Two to the PPM, and 3) those terms of the Note that are not
inconsistent with the PPM and Supplements One and Two to the PPM. [SA, pp.2 & 4.]

26.  The Acceptance of Subscription Agreement states, inter alia, that on

February 26, 2010, Bart Cochran signed the acceptance of the SA, as the Manager for
the Company.

27. The Certificate states, inter alia, the effective February 27, 2010,
Certificate No 08-470 was signed by Bart Cochran as the Manager for the Company and
issued to Cross-Complainant.

28. The Note states, inter alia, that a Note dated August 29, 2008, with the
Company as the maker, was signed by Bart Cochran as the sole member for the

Manager. No Exhibit A, listing the names of the Noteholders, including Cross-

COUNTERCLAIM AND THIRD PARTY COMPLAINT — Page 15 000040



Complainant, was attached or included with the Note that was delivered to Cross-

Complainant.

29.

Pertinent portions of the Note are as follows:

FOR VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, the receipt,
adequacy and sufficiency of which are hereby
acknowledged, Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC, an
Idaho limited liability company (“Maker”), promises to
pay to the parties listed on Exhibit A attached hereto (the
“Noteholders™), the aggregate principal amount of
Twenty Million and 00/100 Dollars ($20,000,000) with
the option to increase to Forty Million and 00/100 Dollars
($40,000,000), together with interest, late charges, costs
and expenses, and all other amounts described below in

accordance with the following terms and provisions:

Section 1 Definitions.

“Memorandum” shall mean Maker’s Confidential Private
Placement Memorandum dated August 18, 2008, as
amended or supplemented from time to time, relating to
the offer and sale by the Maker of up to $20,000,000 of
Notes (subject to increase to $40,000,000).

“Noteholder” shall mean any person or entity hereafter
purchasing a Note in accordance with the Memorandum,
subject to the provisions of the Transaction Documents
applicable thereto, and any successor or assign thereof or

entity acquiring an interest herein at any time.
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“Transaction Documents” shall mean this Note, the

Subscription Agreement and the Memorandum.

Section 2.1 Fixed Interest.
“Commencing on the date hereof and continuing until
December 31, 2015, the outstanding principal hereunder

shall bear interest at a fixed annual rate of 9%.”

Section 3 Payments; Accrual.

“Commencing on the fifteenth day of the month next
following the Funding Date and continuing on the
fifteenth day of the month thereafter until the outstanding
principal hereof is paid in full, Maker shall pay to, or
accrue and compound for the benefit of, the Noteholders
all unpaid Interest in an amount equal to the product of
the principal amount hereunder and that fraction the
numerator of which is the Noteholder’s principal
investment and the denominator of which is the principal
amount hereunder. If not sooner paid, Maker shall pay
the principal balance hereof in full on the Maturity Date,
together with all unpaid accrued interest. Maker shall
make all payments of Interest, late charges, and principal
to the Noteholders at their respective addresses on file
with the Maker as of the day which is ten days prior to the
due date of such payment, on or before the date when due,
without notice, deduction or offset. All payments shall be

made in lawful money of the United States of America.”
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Section 5 Put Rights.

“Beginning December 31, 2010 and once annually
thereafter, up to 10% of the original principal amount may
be called by the Noteholders upon not less than 30 days

written notice to the Maker.”

Section 6 Late Charges.

«* * * Maker therefore agrees that a late
charge equal to 5% of each payment of Interest or
principal that is not paid within 10 days after its due date
is a reasonable estimate of fair compensation for the loss
or damages to the Noteholders will suffer. Further,
Maker agrees that such amount shall be presumed to be
the amount of damages sustained by Noteholders in such
case, and such sum shall be added to amount then due and

payable.”

Section 8.1 Events of Default:

“Any of the following occurrences shall constitute an
“Event of Default” under this Note: (a) failure by Maker
to make any payment of Interest on or principal of this
Note on or before the twenty-fifth (25™) day of the month
first becoming due in accordance with the terms of this
Note, without any notice or demand for payment (a

“Payment Default”); * * *.”

Section 8.2 Remedies.
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“Upon any Event of Default under this Note and the
expiration of any applicable notice or cure periods: (a)
the entire unpaid principal balance hereof , any accrued
but unpaid Interest, late charges, and all other amounts
owing under this Note, shall, at the option of the
Noteholders, without further notice or demand of any
kind to Maker or any other person, become immediately
due and payable; and (b) Noteholders shall have and may
exercise any and all rights and remedies available at law,
by statute, or in equity.

The remedies of the Noteholders, as provided in this
Note, shall be cumulative and concurrent and may be
exercised singularly, suécessively, or together, at the sole
discretion of the Noteholders, as often as occasion
therefor shall arise. No act of omission or commission by
the Noteholders, including specifically any failure to
exercise any right, remedy or recourse, shall be deemed a
waiver or release to be effected only through a written
documents executed by the Noteholders. A waiver or
release with reference to any one event shall not be
construed as continuing, as a bar to, or as a waiver or
release of, any subsequent right, remedy, or recourse to
collateral as to any subsequent event.”

30. Principal Redemption: The PPM and Section 5 of the Note allows for an

annual 10% redemption of principal commencing December 31, 2010 with 90

(previously 30) days written notice. This term is clear and unambiguous.
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31.  Since Cross-Complainant was not provided a copy of the Note prior to
submission of the Subscription Agreement and payment, Cross-Defendants cannot
argue that the Company’s inconsistent right to accrue interest as compared with pay
interest as set forth in Section 3 of the Note is applicable to Cross-Complainant.
Moreover, the “accrue and compound” language of Section 3 of the Note is ambiguous
. and inconsistent with the PPM, because this language may reasonably be interpreted to
apply to the Interest Reinvestment Program as expressed in the PPM.

32.  Breach: Under the PPM an event of default occurs for a (a) failure to

pay the principal on the Notes upon mandatory redemption at the option of Noteholder,

without notice or cure period, and/or (b) failure to pay any interest on the Notes for ten
days after notice of such default to the Company.

33.  Under Section 8.1 (a) of the Note, a different event of default occurs
when interest and redeemable principal payments are not paid on or before the 25t day
of the month first becoming due, without notice or a cure period. Because Cross-
Complainant never timely received the Note this inconsistent term would not apply.

D. Subsequent Communications to Cross-Complainant

34.  On or about March 19, 2010 Cross-complainant received from
Clearwater by mail a 2009 Year-End Update (Exh. 9) to keep the investors informed of
the status of the Note Program. The 2009 Year-End Update letter states, “the assets of
RE Capital, the guarantor, are being maintained at sufficient levels to allow us to meet

our obligations.” This 2009 Year-End Update revealed information regarding the
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update and current strategy of the various loans made by Cross-Defendants prior "co
Cross-Complainant’s investment. Two of the four loan projects were in default and/or
in bankruptcy. The other two loan projects were having delays in the entitlement
process.

35. On or about June 1‘7, 2010, the Company disclosed its Independent
Auditor’s Report and Financial Statements for the calendar years 2008 and 2009 (Exh.
10).

36.  On or about March 24, 2011, Cross-complainant received from
Clearwater by mail a 2010 Year-End Update (Exh. 11) to keep the investors informed
of the status of the Note Program. Now, all five (5) outstanding loans were in default.

37.  On or about August 19, 2011, the Company disclosed its Independent
Auditor’s Report and Financial Statements for the calendar years 2009 and 2010 (Exh.
12). ‘

38.  The Company is solely owned by the Manager.

39.  The Company maintained a separate allowance for each loan receivable.
At December 31, 2010, the Company had an allowance for losses of $2,311,584.

40.  In 2010, the Company suspended early redemption requests.

4]1.  On November 4, 201 1, Cross-Complainant received from Clearwater by
mail a Notice to Note Holders dated October 26, 2011 (Exh. 13).

42.  The Notice states, “Note Holders can be optimistic of the collateral

position of the Note Program today.” The Notice further states that the amount of the
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intefest payment distribution would be reduced for the months of November 2011,
December 2011 and January 2012 and reassessed for February 2012.

43. On November 6, 2011, Cross-Complainant sent Clearwater written
notice to redeem 10% of his principal amount under the Transaction Documents and
requested a current Balance Sheet of the Guarantor (Exh. 14 — Email String/Letters). '

|

44.  As of November 6, 2011, the last Balance Sheet of the Guarant:or
disclosed to the Cross-Complainant was dated December 31, 2008.

45.  On November 10, 2011, Clearwater acknowledged receipt of Cro_%s—
Complainant’s liquidation request, placed Cross-Complainant’s request on a priority léz'st
with an acceptance date of November 7, 2011 and informed Créss-Complainant that %111
liquidation requests have been suspended (Exh. 14 — Email String/Letters), , thius

z
creating an anticipatory breach of Cross-Complainant’s right to redeem 10% of the

unpaid principal amount. Clearwater stated that it “has made multiple attempts to g'et
updated financials from RE Capital (Guarantor) and we have received word that vive
should have updated financials no later than year end 2011.” ‘
46.  No contractual authority existed for Cross-Defendants’ bad faith positicg)n
to suspend the Cross-Complainant’s mandatory right to principal redemption. 1
47, On December 1, 2011, Cross-Complainant first became aware c;f,
obtained by email and reviewed a copy of the Third Supplement to the PPM daté:d

January 20, 2010 (Exh. 15) from Ross Farris, Director Marketing and Investor Relations
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for Clearwater in response to Cross-Complainant’s previous inquiries into the
Clearwater 2008 Note Program.

48.  Any terms of the Note and/or Third Supplement to the PPM that are
inconsistent with PPM and Supplements One and Two are inapplicable and
unenforceable against Cross-Complainant because a copy of the Note and/or Third
Supplement to the PPM were never timely provided to Cross-Complainant prior to
submission by the Cross-Complainant and acceptance by the Company of the
Subscription Agreement, and therefore such inconsistent terms cannot be considered as
part of the Company/Cross-Complainant agreement.

49.  The Third Supplement to the PPM states, inter alia, “[a]lthough the

Guarantor’s net worth of approximately, $53.4 million is lower than the net worth of
$54 million it has covenanted to maintain under the Guaranty based on a Maximum
Offelring Amount of $20,000,000, in the event that the increased Maximum Amount of
$21,900,000 is attained, the Guarantor’s net worth does provide a principal coverage
ratio of: (a) 1.2x, if a portion of the Guarantor’s net worth is reserved to provide 1.5x
coverage over principal amounts outstanding under the notes issued by Clearwater 2007
Notes Program, LLC (the “2007 Notes Program™) (accounting for liquidation of
$2,000,000 in principal amounts of the notes issued by the 2007 Notes Program as of
December 31, 2009, with $18,000,000 remaining outstanding), and (b) 2.44x, if this

reserve is not made (the Guarantor is not required to make this reserve). Attached as
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Exhibit A to the Third Supplement to the PPM was the Guarantor’s Balance Sheet dated
December 31, 2009.

50.  On or about December 14, 2011, Cross-Complainant received a letter by
mail from the Company on Clearwater letterhead confirming that 1) the security for the
loans were not cross-collateralized, 2) the Manager decides exclusively when to get
appraisals for the Projects, 3) the 2010 Audited Report and financials of the Company
were purportedly first available on May 1, 2011, 4) the initial PPM packet included the
Third Supplement to the PPM, the Company has requested a final 2010 Balance Sheet
from the Guarantor, and 5) the Company “cannot honor the liquidation requests of a
few Note Holders at the expense of the other Note Holders.” (Exh. 14 — Email
String/Letters)

51.  On December 20, 2011, Cross-Complainant spoke by telephone with
Lori Fischer, Controller of Clearwater, who informed Cross-Complainant that the 2010
Audited Report and financials of the Company were first available on or after August
29,2011.

52. On December 20, 2011, Cross-Complainant stated in an email to
Clearwater: “If the Company maintains now and at the time of the initial PPM that it
can alter or over-ride this expressed term regarding Callability on the basis that it has an
obligation to ALL Note holders allowing the Company not to abide by this expressed
term, then I would request that my subscription be immediately rescinded and the total

principal amount of my hote be restored.” (Exh. 14 — Email String/Letters)
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53.  On or about January 12, 2012, Cross-Complainant received a form letter
by mail from Clearwater as a Note Holder postponing all 2011 liquidation requests until
further notice. (Exh. 16)

54.  On or about January 25, 2012, Cross-Complainant received a letter by
mail from Company on Clearwater letterhead stating that it has “been in contact with
RE Capital and are hopeful of receiving correspondence from them in the next 30 days.
(Exh. 14 — Email String/L etters)

55. On February 2, 2012, Ross Farris, Director of Marketing and Investor
Relations of Clearwater informed Cross-Complainant by telephone that the reduction of
interest payments was made pursuant to Section 3 of the Note and the suspension of
liquidation rights was made in 2010 to protect all Note;holders. Cross-Complainant
informed Mr. Farris that he never received a copy of the Note until after submitting his
Subscription Agreement and $50,000 payment to the Company. Cross-Complainant
further requested a copy of Exhibit A to the Note. Mr. Farris responded that he would
obtain a copy of Exhibit A to the Note, but only with Cross-Complainant’s name on it
and not the identity of all Noteholders. No Exhibit A to the Note was ever received by
Cross-Complainant.

56.  On February 2, 2012, Cross-Complainant sent to Clearwater by email,
regafding the Clearwater 2008 Note Program, a written Notice of Default on Interest

payments for November 2011, December 2011, and January 2011, and a written Notice
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of Default on his liquidation rights and demanding that payment be made immediately
or after a cure period, if necessary. (Exh. 14 — Email String/Letters)

57.  The Company breached the applicable Transaction Documents by not
timely paying full interest to Cross-Complainant for the months of November 2011,
December 2011, and January 2012 after any necessary cure period.

58. On February 6, 2012, Cross-Complainant received by mail from
Clearwater a cover letter and January Update dated January 31, 2012. (Exh. 17) The
cover letter states: “the February payment will be 25% of the monthly interest
distributed.” The Update acknowledges: “Real Estate values have fallen dramatically
nationwide.”

59.  Cross-Complainant can assert that the Company made an anticipatory
breach on November 10, 2011 by giving notice of its suspending the Noteholders’ right
to principal redemption. Regardless, on February 6, 2012 the Company breached the
applicable Transaction Documents by its failure to timely pay to Cross-Complainant the
redeemable principal that was due and owing after the 90-day waiting period.

60.  On February 9, 2012, Cross-Complainant received from Clearwater a
Quarterly Statement ending December 31, 2011 (Exh 18) that sets forth the “Total
Outstanding Principal of Master Promissory Note to Investors” as $21,810,000 and
“Total Appraised Value of Collateral” as $25,100,000 and “Collateral valuations dated

September 15, 2010, January 19, 2011 and September 21, 2011.”
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61.  On February 15, 2012 and out of abundance of caution, Plaintiff filed a
Demand for Commercial Arbitration with the American Arbitration Association
(“AAA”) against all named Cross-Defendants and the Company and served said parties
therewith regarding the acts and omissions set forth herein under the arbitration clause
in the SA.

62.  On or about March 8, 2012, Cross- Defendants filed with the AAA and
served their Answer Statement objecting to arbitrate the disputes set forth in the
counterclaim and third party complaint on behalf of all named Cross-Defendants, but
not the Company.

63.  Cross-complainant has and continues to incur costs in proceeding with
the forced arbitration against the Company under the arbitration clause of the SA.

64.  If Cross-Complainant was timely made aware of the aforementioned
facts, Cross-Complainant would not have made his $50,000 investment in the
Clearwater 2008 Note Program.

65.  The representations and/or material omissions of fact are presented in a
manner that is likely to mislead a reasonable consumer, the consuming public, including
Cross-Complainant, and serves no legitimate purpose.

66.  These acts, omissions, and/or representations were made for the purpose
of inducing consumers, including Cross-Complainant, to purchase real estate
invesﬁnent notes with Cross-Defendants or the Company and not Cross-Defendants or

the Company’s competitors.
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CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS AND CLAIMS RESERVED
67. In addition to Cross-Complainant’s individual claimé, Cross-
Complainant reserves the right, after appropriate discovery, to amend this pleading to
add class allegations, class claims, subclass claims, and/or seek certification of a class
and/or any appropriate subclass under ZR.C.P, Rule 23.

FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF

VIOLATION OF THE IDAHO CONSUMER PROTECTION ACT JI.C. § 48-603
(12) (13 1n)

(Cross-Complainant against All Named. Cross-Defendants and Does 1-10)

68. Cross-Complaina;nt repleads and incorporates fully herein by this
reference, each and every allegation contained in the preceding paragraphs of this
pleading.

69.  Cross-Defendants violated 1.C. § 48-603 (17) based on their initial
failure to timely provide Cross-Complainant with the information contained in the Note,
the Third Supplement to the PPM, and the 2009 Year-End Update with enclosures.

70.  On or about February 1, 2010, the initial package including the PPM
came from the offices of Clearwater, who had a duty to include the information
contained in the Note, the Third Supplement to the PPM, and the 2009 Year-End
Update to allow Cross-Complainant to fully review and assess the status of the
investment in a timely manner before Cross-Complainant’s submitting the executed

Subscription Agreement.
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71.  The information contained in the Note, the Third Supplement to the
PPM, and the 2009 Year-End Update were material to Cross-Complainant’s investment
decision because 1) the Note sets forth purportedly different terms in the payment of
interest in the Program, 2) the Third Supplement to the PPM sets forth a change in the
principal redemption term and a more recent and substantially reduced financial
condition of the Guarantor, and 3) the 2009 Year-End Update discloses on-going

information of the Note Program’s failing loan portfolio that existed as of December 31,

2009, to-wit, two of the four loan projects were in default and/or in bankruptcy and the
other two loan projects were having delays in the entitlement process, which would
greatly affect the collateral’s value.

72.  If before investing, Cross-Complainant had been made aware of 1) the
Note’s contents that the purported accrual of interest payments, as compared with the
actual payment of interest as expressed in the PPM, was to apply to his transaction with
the Company, 2) the contents of the Third Supplement to the PPM that a) further
restrictions were place on the Noteholder’s right to redeem principal, and b) the
Guarantor’s net worth on December 31, 2009 was less than the covenanted amount set
forth in the Guaranty, 3) the Guarantor’s cash reserves was depleted before Cross-
Complainant received the PPM, and/or 4) the Program’s unstable loan portfolio as
described in the 2009 Year-End Update, Cross-Complainant would not have entered

into the Subscription Agreement and invested in the purchase of the Note.
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73.  Cross-Defendants violated I. zC. § 48-603 (17) during the course of the
Note Program because the Cross-Defendants failed to timely and conspicuously disclose
material facts as to the deteriorating financial condition of the Note Program’s loan
portfolio, the inability or refusal of the Company to pay interest or redeemable
principal, and the Guarantor’s unsatisfactory net worth and cash position.

74.  The Cross-Defendants knew, or should have known with their superior
knowledge, that 1) they would not timely provide a 2010 audited balance sheet for the
Company, 2) they would not timely pay all accrued interest to the Noteholders, 3) they
would refuse to allow the Noteholders who opted, including Cross-Complainant, to
partially redeem principal, 4) they would not seek payment of the redeemable principal
amounts from the Guarantor, who had no sizable cash flow, and 5) the Guarantor’s net
worth was insufficient under the conditions of the Guaranty and continuing to
deteriorate. Each of these facts, if timely disclosed to Cross-Complainant, would have
allowed Cross-Complainant and other Noteholders to exercise his/her right to the 10%
principal redemption substantially earlier in the investment period.  Thus, Cross-
Defendants’ willful blindness and repeated and flagrant failure to timely disclose these
facts reduced the value of the Noteholders’ investment including Cross-Complainant.

75.  Cross-Defendants violated I.C. §48-603 (17) based on their failure to
timely provide the 2010 audited reports and financials for the Company and Guarantor’s

Balance Sheet for 2010 and 2011.
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76.  The 2010 audited reports and financials for the Company were due to be
given to the Noteholders by May 1, 2011, but were not disclosed on Clearwater’s
website until on or after August 19, 2011. This audited report first disclosed the
suspension of principal redemption rights that occurred in 2010, the default or
foreclosure status of all 5 existing projects, and the significant Net Loss of the
Company.

77.  With real estate values falling dramatically nationwide, the lower net
worth and reduced cash flow as seen in the Guarantor’s 12/31/09 Balance Sheet, the
Company and/or Manager’s failed to get any current Balance Sheet between 1/1/10 to
the present from the Guarantor, which would disclose and trigger a further breach of the
Guarantor’s net worth.

78. It is evident that the officers of the Company did not want to financially
harm themselves because of their full ownership of RE Capital Investments, LLC
(Guarantor), which is split 50/50 between Ron Meyer and Chris Benak’s wholly-owned
LLCs, who are key management for the Company and the Manager.

79.  The Cross-Defendants have acted unfairly by not 1) seeking a timely
Balance Sheet from the Guarantor for 2010 and 2011, 2) enforcing the net worth status
of the Guarantor and/or 3) seeking} any payment of the opted redemption principal

payments on behalf of the Noteholders.
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80.  Cross-Defendants violated I.C. § 48-603 (17) because the 10/26/11
Notice to Note Holders (Exh. 13) had a tendency to mislead or deceive the Noteholders,
including Cross-Complainant.

81.  The 10/26/11 Notice to Note Holders sent by Clearwater and signed by
the Company attempted to conceal their financial subterfuge by misleading the
Noteholders as to the relative Valué of the collateralization in comparison to the
Company’s outstanding loans.

82.  The Notice sets forth in regular font individual valuations for each
project relative to the loan amount and then sets forth in bold font the totals thesc;,
valuations and loan amounts to lead the Noteholder to believe that the loans are
adequately secured under the totality of the circumstances.

83. In fact, the Company has admitted in its 12/14/11 Letter to Cross-
Complainant (Exh. 14) that no cross-collateralization agreements exist between each
project loan.

84.  Thus, the Note Program was not fully secured. For example, the Coastal
Gables — Vertical Loan is $2,063,977 with collateral valued at $345,600. The Coastal
Gables — Vertical Loan reflects a loss of value to the Noteholder because the loan is
significantly under-secured by $1,718,377, which causes the overall Program to be
under-secured by more than 12%.

85.  Thus, the BOLD comparison of total amounts in the Notice is

misleading or has a tendency to mislead the Noteholders, including Cross-Complainant,
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as to the financial strength of the Program and ability to meet its financial obligations to
the Noteholders.

86.  Additionally, the Notice states: “Note Holders can be optimistic of the
collateral position of the Note Program today. As shown in the following table, because
of conservative underwriting, the loans made by the Note Program continue to be
secured by the following collateral.”

87.  These surreptitious statements in the Notice have a tendency to mislead
or deceive the Noteholders, including Cross-Complainant, in violation of I.C. § 48-

603(17) by failing to disclose a current valuation of the Healthcare of Florence project.

The date of valuation for the Healthcare of Florence project was 1/19/11, as compared
with recent valuation between 9/15-21/11for the other three projects. As the Healthcare
of Florence project is the biggest investment by the Company, and with failing
valuations in the general real estate market during 2011, the lack of a current valuation
on the Healthcare of Florence project is likely mislead or deceive the Noteholders as to
the overall collateral position of the Note Program and the Company’s ability to pay
interest and allow the Noteholders to redeem 10% principal annually.

88.  Cross-Defendants violated 1. C. § 48-603 (12) and/or (13) based on their
failure to provide Cross-Complainant with a copy of the Note at the time of providing
the PPM and/or Cross-Complainant submitting the executed Subscription Agreement
because the Note, which was the subject matter of the entire agreement, contained

different terms regarding the payment or accrual of interest than stated in the PPM.
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89.  Cross-Defendants violated I. C. § 48-603 (13) based on their failure and
refusal to provide Cross-Complainant with Exhibit A to the Note, which was to list of
all existing Noteholders, including Cross-Complainant, at the time of providing the
Note or at anytime.

90.  Cross-Complainant was not given the entire agreement that provides him
with the expressed ownership rights in the Note. Cross-Defendants’ failure and refusal
to provide the identity of all existing Noteholders in Exhibit A to the Note is also a
violation of I.C. § 48-603 (17) and inconsistent with the plural tense language of the
Note regarding “promise to pay the parties listed on Exhibit A attached hereto (the
“Noteholders™).

91.  Cross-Complainant has incurred an ascertainable loss as a result of
Cross-Defendants’ acts, as set forth in the ICPA Violations section, supra, and in
reliance on the affirmative statements made by the Cross-Defendants that the a) annual
an audited balance sheet for the Company would be timely disclosed, b) interest at the
annual rate of 9% of the unpaid principal balance would be timely paid each month, c)
10% principal could be timely redeemed by the Noteholders annually after December
31, 2010, d) the Guarantor would be obligated to repay principal, and €) net worth of
the Guarantor would be maintained at least $54 Million during the Note period.

92. By being duped into purchasing the Note based upon Cross-Defendants’
disclosures and omissions of material facts, Cross-Complainant is damaged by 1) the

loss of his purchase money, 2) the loss of use of his purchase money, 3) the loss of his
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buying power, 4) an inadequate and/or diminution in value of that investment at the time
of the actionable conduct, and/or 5) full and timely payments of interest and redemption
principal.

93.  Asa proximate result of the above-described representations, acts and/or
omissions by Cross-Defendants, Cross-Complainant has sustained an injury in fact and
suffered damages by purchasing the Note as a result of viewing and in reliance upon
Cross-Defendants’ disclosures and/or material omissions of fact as alleged herein.

94.  Cross-Complainant’s loss consists 1) of his initial $50,000 principal
amount in the purchase of the Company’s Note Program, 2) of the use of his initial
principal amount, 3) in not receiving full interest payments from the Company for
November 2011, December 2011, January 2012, and thereafter, 4) in not receiving
$5,000 as 10% of his redeemable principal amount on February 6, 2012, and/or 5)
arbitration costs.

95.  Cross-Defendants knew, or should have known, that a potential investor,

including Cross-Complainant, regards or is likely to regard 1) all terms of the Note that
is being purchased in conjunction with the PPM, and 2) the financial conditions of the
Company, the Loan Portfolio and the Guarantor as important factors in determining a
potential investor’s choice of action and resulting investment in the purchase of the Note.
The material aspect of these factors can be established from the circumstances wherein
Cross-Defendants include similar facts in the PPM, the Supplements thereto, the Annual

Updates and Notices provided to the Noteholders.
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96.  There are various conflicts of interest among the Company, the Manager
and their Affiliates. [PPM, p. 5.] It is these conflicts as set forth in the PPM and the
supplements thereto, supra., which includes co-mingling officers and business entities,
that establishes joint and several liability against all named Cross-Defendants as agents
for and in control of the Company for the ICPA violations herein. The incestuous
operation of the individual corporate officers and their web of interlocking business

entities under the umbrella of the “Clearwater” name create an oneness of activity with

respect to each significant business decision made for the Note Program and to the
detriment of the Cross-Complainant.

97.  Liability against the Individual Cross-Defendants exists as “persons”
under I.C. § 48-602 (1) based on their active participation in the actionable conduct as
set forth in the ICPA violations, supra, and based on their principal ownership and
management of the operations of the Company, the Manager, and/or Clearwater, which
are the business entities that were the conduit of the unlawful acts, and therefore
warrants equitable or statutory relief.

98.  Liability against the Business Cross-Defendants exists based on the acts
of their agents, employees or officers in perpetrating the ICPA violations, supra.

99.  Under the private-right-of-action provision of the ICPA [L.C. § 48-608
(1)], Cross-Complainant may treat any agreement incident thereto as voidable or, in the
alternative, may bring an action to recover actual damages or one thousand dollars

($1,000), whichever is the greater. Any such person may also seek restitution, an order
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enjoining the use or employment of methods, acts or practices declared unlawful under

this chapter and any other appropriate relief which the court in its discretion may deem
just and necessary. The court may, in its discretion, award punitive damages and may
provide such equitable relief as it deems necessary or proper in cases of repeated or
flagrant violations.

100. Cross-Defendants have repeatedly or flagrantly misrepresented and/or
omitted a material fact known to the Cross-Defendants with the intention on the part of
the Cross-Defendants of thereby depriving its customers of property or legal rights or
otherwise causing and/or intending to cause injury to its customers as alleged herein,
and Cross-Complainant is therefore entitled to punitive damages in an amount to be
determined at time of trial.

101. To the extent that any Cross-Defendant claims ignorance of the law or
the alleged violations of law contained herein, such ignorance is terminated as of the
date this lawsuit and/or pleading is served on such party, if not sooner.

102. Each and every violation committed after the date this lawsuit and/or
pleading is served, shall be deemed to be an INTENTIONAL violation of Idaho law the
laws of all other jurisdictions with the same or similar consumer protection laws, if not
sooner.

103. Prejudgment interest to fully compensate Cross-Complainant for money
lent under Cross-Defendants’ deceptive practices is available at the contract rate of 9%

per annum OR the rate of 12% per annum in those cases where damages are "liquidated
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or ascertainable by mere mathematical process." See 1.C. § 28-22-104; Ervin Const. Co
vs. Van Orden (1993) 125 Idaho 695, 704. In this case, Cross-Complainant’s damages
are liquidated at $50,000.00.

SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF

BREACH OF GUARANTY

(Cross-Complainant against Defendant RE Capital Investments, LLC and Does 6 — 10)

104. Cross-Complainant repleads and incorporates fully herein by this
reference each and every allegation contained in each and every preceding paragraph of
this pleading.

105. The terms of the Guaranty between the Guarantor and Cross-
Complainant (Exh. 2) are also set forth as Exhibit D to the PPM.

106. The Guarantor’s obligations to the Cross-Complainant, as a third party
beneficiary, arise out of and are referenc':ed in the executed Subscription Agreement,
subject to the terms, conditions, acknowledgments, representations, and warranties
stated therein and in the PPM, Supplements One and Two to the PPM, and the Note,
which reference the Guaranty’s applicability to the Noteholders’ investments.

107. The Guaranty unconditionally guarantees the payment of the original
principal amount of the Notes as provided therein. “Guarantor hereby waives notice of
acceptance of this Guaranty and all other notices in connection herewith or in
connection with the liabilities, obligations and duties guaranteed hereby, including

notices to them of default by the Company under the Notes.” “The Guarantor’s net
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worth will at all times during the term of the Guaranty be maintained at $54, 000.000
subject to increase in pro rata up to $78,000,000 if the Company increases the offering
of the Notes.”

108. Since the Company failed to timely pay redeemable principal to Cross-
Complainant, the entire unpaid principal balance of $50,000 is due and owing under the
Remedies section of the Note. The Guarantor is currently liable for this indebtedness.

109. Guarantor also breached the Guaranty by its failure to maintain a net
worth of $54,000,000 as seen in the Guarantor’s 12/31/09 Balance Sheet, which was
disclosed in the Third Supplement to the PPM.

110. Since Cross-Complainant did not timely receive a copy of the Third
Supplement to the PPM until December 1, 2011, Cross-Complainant was unable to

identify his claim and seek relief for this breach earlier.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF
Wherefore, Cross-Complainant prays as follows:

FIRST CLAIM

1) For a preliminary and/or permanent injunction, pursuant to ZC. §48-608

(1), enjoining Cross-Defendants and its agents, servants, employees and
anyone acting on their behalf from committing further violations of the
ICPA as described in this complaint in Idaho and throughout the United
States;

2) That Cross-Complainant’s $50,000 investment in the Clearwater 2008
Note Program be voided;

3) Principal purchase money paid in the amount of $50,000;
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4) Accrued by unpaid interest to date at the annual rate up to 12%;

5) Late charges equal to 5% of each unpaid monthly interest payment;

6) Late charges equal to 5% of the principal redemption payment amount of
$5,000;

7 Arbitration costs in an amount to be determined at time of trial;

8) Statutory damages, pursuant to LC. §48-608 (1), of $1,000 for each
ICPA violation;

9) Punitive damages, pursuant to LC. §48-608 (1), in an amount to be
determined at time of trial;
10)  Attorney fees, if any, pursuant to I.C. §48-608 (5) and allowable costs;
and
11) Such other and further relief as the court deems just and proper. |
SECOND CLAIM
1) Principal purchase money paid in the amount of $50,000;

2) Accrued by unpaid interest to date at the annual rate up to 12%;

3) Late charges equal to 5% of each unpaid monthly interest payment;

4) Late charges equal to 5% of the principal redemption payment amount of
$5,000;

5) Allowable costs; and

6) Such other and further relief as the court deems just and proper.

Dated: June 25, 2012 W M{

MARK BOLING,
Cross-Complainant
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Book Number

@ CLEARWA. /R - 08Note-A238

REAL ESTATE INVESTMENTS

CONFIDENTIAL PRIVATE PLACEMENT MEMORANDUM

CLEARWATER 2008 NOTE PROGRAM, LLC
$20,000,000 9.0% Notes
(Subject to increase to $40,000,000)

Minimum Investment: $50,000
Minimum Offering Amount: $1,000,000
Maximum Offering Amount: $20,000,000 (Subject to increase to $40,000,000)

Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC, an Idaho limited liability company, was organized to offer up to $20,000,000 in
aggregate principal amount of 9.0% Notes due December 31, 2015, subject to increase to $40,000,000 at the sole discretion of the
Company. The Company will use the proceeds from the offering of the Notes to provide secured financing for real estate
acquisition and development projects undertaken by Clearwater REI, LLC, an Idaho limited liability company, its Affiliates and
other borrowers who satisfy the lending criteria established by the Company, Such projects may include, without limitation,
acquisition, entitlement, and development of and construction on undeveloped real property and purchase or refinance of existing
real estate assets. See “Business Plan.” All loans made by the Company will be collateralized by a first position mortgage or deed
of trust, as the case may be. The Company expects that most, if not all, loans will be made to its Affiliates for projects located in
Idaho, Nevada, Arizona and California, although the Company reserves the right, at its sole discretion, to make loans in other
areas. Each collateralized loan made by the Company will be described in a supplement to this Memorandum.

The Notes will be obligations of the Company the principal of which will be guaranteed by RE Capital Investments, LLC.
See “Description of Notes”, “Clearwater REI, LLC” and the Guaranty attached hereto as Exhibit D. All Notes issued pursuant to
this Memorandum will mature on December 31, 2015. Notes will be issued and will begin accruing interest on the first day
immediately following the day on which the investment proceeds therefrom are received by the Company. Noteholders may elect,
from time to time, to (a) receive monthly distributions of simple interest at the annual rate of 9.0%, or (b) re-invest accrued interest
at a compounded annual interest rate of 9.0% (such reinvested interest will be added to and considered principal from and after re-
investment). See “Description of the Notes — Interest Reinvestment Plan.” Beginning December 31, 2011, the Company, at is sole
discretion, may call all or any portion of the Notes, at any time, for 100% of the original principal amount of such Notes, plus
accrued but unpaid interest, upon 90 days written notice to the Noteholders, without penalty. Beginning December 31, 2010 and
once annually thereafter, Notes representing up to 10% of the original principal amount may be called by the Noteholders upon not
less than 90 days written notice to the Company. See “Description of the Notes.” Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein
have the meanings given to them in the Glossary.

The Notes are being issued with a minimum investment of $50,000 and in additional denominations of $1,000; however,
smaller purchases are available at the sole discretion of the Company.

Price to Selling Commissions Proceeds to

: Investors and Expenses'” the Company®
Minimum Investment® $50,000 $ 4,650 $45,350
Maximum Offering Amount $20,000,000 $1,860,000 $18,140,000

(1) Notes will be offered and sold on a “best efforts” basis by broker-dealers who are members of FINRA. The members of the Selling Group will receive selling
commissions of up to 7.0% of the Gross Proceeds. The amount of Selling Commissions may be reduced, however, if a lower commission rate is negotiated
with a member of the Selling Group. The Managing Broker-Dealer will receive up to 2.3% of the Gross Proceeds as compensation and reimbursement for
due diligence and marketing expenses up to 1.0% of which may be re-allowed to members of the Selling Group for marketing and due diligence expenses.
The aggregate amount of Selling Commissions and Expense Reimbursements paid to members of the Selling Group will not exceed 9.3% of the Gross
Proceeds. See “Use of Proceeds” Affiliates of the Company may receive Selling Commissions in connection with the sale of Notes. See “Conflicts of
Interest.” The Company, in its discretion, may accept purchases of Notes net of all or an agreed portion of the Selling Commissions from subscribers
purchasing through a registered investment advisor, from subscribers for Notes who are affiliates of the Company or a member of the Selling Group.

(2) Amounts shown are proceeds after deducting selling commissions and allowance, but before deducting organizational and offering expenses and other
expenses incurred in connection with the Offering and the Company’s operations.

(3) The minimum purchase is $50,000 principal amount of Notes. The Company has the right, at its sole discretion, to waive the minimum purchase requirement.

(4) Subject to increase to $40,000,000 at the sole discretion of the Company. If the offering is increased to $40,000,000 the Selling Commission and Expenses in
the table will be $3,720,000 and Proceeds to the Company will be $36,280,000. )

This Memorandum is dated August 29, 2008
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CONFIDENTIAL PRIVATE PLACEMENT MEMORANDUM

CLEARWATER 2008 NOTE PROGRAM, LLC
$20,000,000 9.0% Notes
(Subject to increase to $40,000,000)

Minimum Investment: $50,000
Minimum Offering Amount: $1,000,000
Maximum Offering Amount: $20,000,000 (Subject to increase to $40,000,000)

Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC, an Idaho limited liability company, was organized to offer up to $20,000,000 in
aggregate principal amount of 9.0% Notes due December 31, 2015, subject to increase to $40,000,000 at the sole discretion of the
Company. The Company will use the proceeds from the offering of the Notes to provide secured financing for real estate acquisition
and development projects undertaken by Clearwater REI, LLC, an Idaho limited liability company, its Affiliates and other borrowers
who satisfy the lending criteria established by the Company. Such projects may include, without limitation, acquisition, entitlement,
and development of and construction on undeveloped real property and purchase or refinance of existing real estate assets. See
“Business Plan.” All loans made by the Company will be collateralized by a first position mortgage or deed of trust, as the case may
be. The Company expects that most, if not all, loans will be made to its Affiliates for projects located in Idaho, Nevada, Arizona and
California, although the Company reserves the right, at its sole discretion, to make loans in other areas. Each collateralized loan made
by the Company will be described in a supplement to this Memorandum,

The Notes will be obligations of the Company the principal of which will be guaranteed by RE Capital Investments, LLC.
See “Description of Notes”, “Clearwater REI, LLC” and the Guaranty attached hereto as Exhibit D. All Notes issued pursuant to this
Memorandum will mature on December 31, 2015. Notes will be issued and will begin accruing interest on the first day immediately
following the day on which the investment proceeds therefrom are received by the Company. Noteholders may elect, from time to
time, to (a) receive monthly distributions of simple interest at the annual rate of 9.0%, or (b) re-invest accrued interest at a
compounded annual interest rate of 9.0% (such reinvested interest will be added to and considered principal from and after re-
investment). See “Description of the Notes — Interest Reinvestment Plan.” Beginning December 31, 2011, the Company, at is sole
discretion, may call all or any portion of the Notes, at any time, for 100% of the original principal amount of such Notes, plus accrued
but unpaid interest, upon 90 days written notice to the Noteholders, without penalty. Beginning December 31, 2010 and once annually
thereafter, Notes representing up to 10% of the original principal amount may be called by the Noteholders upon not less than 90 days
written notice to the Company. See “Description of the Notes.” Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein have the meanings
given to them in the Glossary.

The Notes are being issued with a minimum investment of $50,000 and in additional denominations of $1,000; however,
smaller purchases are available at the sole discretion of the Company.

Price to Selling Commissions Proceeds to

Investors and Expenses'” the Company®
Minimum Investment® $50,000 $ 4,650 - $45,350
Maximum Offering Amount(® $20,000,000 $1,860,000 $18,140,000

(1) Notes will be offered and sold on a “best efforts” basis by broker-dealers who are members of FINRA. The members of the Seiling Group will receive selling
commissions of up to 7.0% of the Gross Proceeds. The amount of Selling Commissions may be reduced, however, if a lower commission rate is negotiated with a
member of the Selling Group. The Managing Broker-Dealer will receive up to 2.3% of the Gross Proceeds as compensation and reimbursement for due diligence
and marketing expenses up to 1.0% of which may be re-allowed to members of the Selling Group for marketing and due diligence expenses. The aggregate
amount of Selling Commissions and Expense Reimbursements paid to members of the Selling Group will not exceed 9.3% of the Gross Proceeds. See “Use of
Proceeds” Affiliates of the Company may receive Selling Commissions in connection with the sale of Notes. See “Conflicts of Interest.” The Company, in its
discretion, may accept purchases of Notes net of all or an agreed portion of the Selling Commissions from subscribers purchasing through a registered investment
advisor, from subscribers for Notes who are affiliates of the Company or a member of the Selling Group.

(2) Amounts shown are proceeds after deducting selling commissions and allowance, but before deducting organizational and offering expenses and other expenses
incurred in connection with the Offering and the Company’s operations.

(3) The minimum purchase is $50,000 principal amount of Notes. The Company has the right, at its sole discretion, to waive the minimum purchase requirement,

(4) Subject to increase to $40,000,000 at the sole discretion of the Company. If the offering is increased to $40,000,000 the Selling Commission and Expenses in the
table will be $3,720,000 and Proceeds to the Company will be $36,280,000.

This Memorandum is dated August 29, 2008
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An investment in Notes is hig..., .peculative and involves substantial risks. Risk Factors” beginning on page 9
for a complete discussion of the risks, including, but not limited to, the following:

¢ there is no certainty as to an investment in Notes being profitable;

¢ underlying risks inherent to the individual real estate projects for which the proceeds are used, including the risks
associated with residential and commercial development;

o  risks of national, regional, and local economic downturn;

o the Notes are not a diversified investment; and

o there are various conflicts of interest among the Company, the Manager and their Affiliates.

The mailing address of the Company is c/o Clearwater REIL, LLC, 1300 E. State Street, Suite 103, Eagle, Idaho 83616,
Attention: Don Steeves. The telephone number of the Company is (208) 639-4488.

The Notes offered hereby have not been registered under the Securities Act or the securities laws of certain states and are
being offered and sold in reliance on exemptions from the registration requirements of the Securities Act and such laws. The Notes
are subject to restrictions on transferability and resale and may not be transferred or resold except as permitted under the Securities
Act and such laws pursuant to registration or exemption therefrom. In making an investment decision, investors must rely on their
own examination of the person or entity creating the securities and the terms of the offering, including the merits and risks involved.

The Securities Act and the securities laws of certain jurisdictions grant purchasers of securities sold in violation of the
registration or qualification provisions of such laws the right to rescind their purchase of such securities and to receive back the
consideration paid. The Company believes that the Offering of Notes described in this Memorandum is not required to be registered
or qualified. Many of these laws granting the right of rescission also provide that suits for such violations must be brought within a
specified time, usually one year from discovery of facts constituting such violation and three years from the violation. Should any
investor institute such an action on the theory that the Offering conducted as described herein was required to be registered or
qualified, the Company contends that the contents of this Memorandum constituted notice of the facts constituting such violation.

No person has been authorized to give any information or make any representations other than those contained in this
Memorandum, and, if given or made, such information or representations must not be relied upon as having been given by the
offerors. This Memorandum does not constitute an offer or solicitation by anyone in any jurisdiction in which such an offer or
solicitation is not authorized, or in which the person making such an offer is not qualified to do so, or to any person to whom it is
unlawful to make an offer or solicitation.

Neither the information contained herein, nor any prior, contemporaneous or subsequent communication should be construed
by the prospective investor as legal or tax advice. Each prospective investor should consult his own legal, tax and financial advisors to
ascertain the merits and risks of the transactions described herein prior to purchasing the Notes.

FOR FLORIDA RESIDENTS

The securities referred to in this Memorandum have not been registered under the Florida Securities Act. If sales are made to
five (5) or more investors in Florida, any Florida investor may, at his option, void any purchase hereunder within a period of three (3)
days after he (a) first tenders or pays to the Company, an agent of the Company, or an escrow agent the consideration required
hereunder or (b) delivers his executed Subscription Documents, whichever occurs later. To accomplish this, it is sufficient for a
Florida investor to send a letter or telegram to the Company within such three (3) day period, stating that he is voiding and rescinding
the purchase. If any investor sends a letter, it is prudent to do so by certified mail, return receipt requested, to ensure that the letter is
received and to evidence the time of mailing.

FOR NEW HAMPSHIRE RESIDENTS

Neither the fact that a registration statement or an application for a license has been filed under Chapter 421-B of the New
Hampshire Revised Statutes with the State of New Hampshire nor the fact that a security is effectively registered or a person is
licensed in the State of New Hampshire constitutes a finding by the Secretary of State that any document filed under RSA-421-B is
true, complete and not misleading. Neither any such fact nor the fact that an exemption or exception is available for a security or a
transaction means that the Secretary of State has passed in any way upon the merits or qualifications of, or recommended or given
approval to, any person, security or transaction. It is unlawful to make, or cause to be made, to any prospective purchaser, customer,
or client any representation inconsistent with the provisions of this paragraph.

ii
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WHO MAY INVEST

The offer and sale of Notes is being made in reliance on an exemption from the registration requirements of
the Securities Act. Accordingly, distribution of the Memorandum is strictly limited to persons who meet the
requirements and make the representations set forth below. The Company reserves the right to declare any
prospective Noteholder ineligible to purchase Notes based upon any information which may become known or
available to the Company concerning the suitability of such prospective Investor, for any other reason or for no
reason, in the Company’s sole discretion.

The Notes are highly speculative, involve a very high risk, and are suitable only for persons of substantial
financial means who have no need for liquidity in this investment. Notes will be sold only to prospective Noteholders

who:

M

@)

3)

purchase a minimum of $50,000 in Notes unless the Company, at its sole discretion, waives the
minimum purchase requirement;

represent in writing that they are “Accredited Investors” (as defined by Rule 501 of Regulation D
under the Securities Act); and

satisfy the investor suitability requirements established by the Company and as may be required
under federal or state law.

Each prospective Noteholder must represent in writing that he meets, among others, ALL of the following

requirements:

(2)

(b)

©

(d)

©
®

(®

He has received, read and fully understands this Memorandum, he is basing his decision to invest on
this Memorandum, he has relied on the information contained in this Memorandum, and he has not
relied upon any representations made by any other person;

He understands that an investment in the Notes involves substantial risks and he is fully cognizant
of, and understands, all of the risk factors relating to an investment in the Notes, including, without
limitation, those risks set forth in the section of this Memorandum entitled “Risk Factors”;

His overall commitment to investments that are not readily marketable is not disproportionate to his
individual net worth, and his investment in the Notes will not cause such overall commitment to
become excessive;

He has adequate means of providing for his financial requirements, both current and anticipated, and
has no need for liquidity in this investment;

He can bear, and is willing to accept, the economic risk of losing his entire investment in the Notes;
He is acquiring the Notes for his own account and for investment purposes only and has no present
intention, agreement or arrangement for the distribution, transfer, assignment, resale or subdivision

of the Notes; and

He is an Accredited Investor as defined in Rule 501 of Regulation D under the Securities Act.

In addition to certain institutional investors, a prospective Noteholder who meets one of the following tests
will qualify as an “Accredited Investor:”

(1

@

the prospective Noteholder is a natural person who had individual income in excess of $200,000 in
each of the two most recent years, or joint income with that person’s spouse in excess of $300,000
in each of these years, and has a reasonable expectation of reaching the same income level in the
current year;

the prospective Noteholder is a natural person whose individual net worth, or joint net worth with
that person’s spouse, exceeds $1,000,000 at the time of his investment in the Notes;
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(€))] the prospective Noteholder is an organization described under Section 501(c)(3) of the Code, a
corporation, Massachusetts or similar business trust, or a partnership not formed for the specific
purpose of acquiring the Notes, with total assets in excess of $5,000,000;

©)] the prospective Noteholder is an entity (including an IRA) in which all of the equity owners are
Accredited Investors as defined in subparagraphs (1) and (2) above;

5 the prospective Noteholder is a trust with total assets in excess of $5,000,000, not formed for the
specific purpose of acquiring the Notes, the purchase of which is directed by a “sophisticated
person” as defined in Rule 506(b)(2)(ii) of Regulation D under the Securities Act; or

(6) the prospective Noteholder is an employee benefit plan within the meaning of ERISA in which the
investment decision is made by a plan fiduciary (as defined in Section 3(21) of ERISA) which is
either a bank, savings and loan association, insurance company, or registered investment adviser; or
the employee benefit plan has total assets in excess of $5,000,000; or it is a self-directed plan in
which investment decisions are made solely by persons who are Accredited Investors.

“Net worth” is defined as the difference between total assets and total liabilities, including home, home
furnishings and personal automobiles. In the case of fiduciary accounts, the net worth and/or income suitability
requirements must be satisfied by the beneficiary of the account, or by the fiduciary, if the fiduciary directly or

_indirectly provides funds for the purchase of the Notes.

Representations with respect to the foregoing and certain other matters will be made by each prospective
Noteholder in the Subscription Agreement. The Company will rely on the accuracy of such representations and may
require additional evidence that the prospective Noteholder satisfies the applicable standards at any time prior to
acceptance. Prospective Noteholders are not obligated to supply any information so requested by the Company, but
the Company may reject a Subscription Agreement from any prospective Noteholder who fails to supply any
information so requested. Prospective Noteholders who are unable or unwilling to make the foregoing representations
may not purchase Notes.

The investor suitability requirements stated above represent minimum suitability requirements established by
the Company for prospective Noteholders. However, satisfaction of these requirements will not necessarily mean that
Notes are a suitable investment for the prospective Noteholder, or that the Company will accept the prospective
Noteholder’s Subscription Agreement. Furthermore, the Company, as appropriate, may modify such requirements at
its sole discretion, and such modifications may raise the suitability requirements for prospective Noteholders.

No person has been authorized by the Company to make any representations or furnish any information with
respect to the Company or the Notes other than as set forth in this Memorandum or other documents or information
furnished by the Company upon request as described herein. This Memorandum contains summaries of certain other
documents, which summaries are believed to be accurate, but reference is hereby made to the full text of the actual
documents for complete information concerning the rights and obligations of the parties thereto. Such information
necessarily incorporates significant assumptions, as well as factual matters. All documents relating to this Offering
and related documents and agreements, if readily available to the Company, will be made available to a prospective
Noteholder or representatives upon request to the Company. During the course of this Offering and prior to sale, each
prospective Noteholder is invited to ask questions of and obtain additional information from the Company concerning
the terms and conditions of this Offering, the Company, the Notes and any other relevant matters, including, but not
limited to, additional information necessary or desirable to verify the accuracy of the information set forth in this
Memorandum. The Company will provide the information to the extent it possesses such information or can obtain it
without unreasonable effort or expense.

This Memorandum constitutes an offer only to the offeree whose name appears in the appropriate space on
the cover page. Furthermore, this Memorandum does not constitute an offer or solicitation to anyone in any
jurisdiction in which such an offer or solicitation is not authorized. This Memorandum has been prepared solely for
the benefit of persons interested in the proposed private placement of the Notes offered hereby. Any reproduction or
distribution of this Memorandum, in whole or in part, or the disclosure of any of its contents without the prior written
consent of the Company is expressly prohibited. The recipient, by accepting delivery of this Memorandum, agrees to
return this Memorandum and all documents furnished herewith to the Company or its representatives immediately
upon request if the recipient does not purchase any Notes, or if this Offering is withdrawn or terminated.
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The Notes are not suitable investments for a qualified plan, an IRA or other tax exempt entity. Therefore,

this Memorandum does not discuss risks that may be associated with an investment in the Notes by a qualified plan,
an IRA or other tax exempt entity.

If you do not meet the requirements described above, do not read further and immediately return this

Memorandum to the Company. In the event you do not meet such requirements, this Memorandum does not
constitute an offer to sell Notes to you.

Restrictions Imposed by the USA PATRIOT Act and Related Acts

The Notes may not be offered, sold, transferred or delivered, directly or indirectly, to any “Unacceptable
Investor.” “Unacceptable Investor” means any person who is a:

Person or entity who is a “designated national,” “specially designated national,” “specially designated
terrorist,” “specially designated global terrorist,” “foreign terrorist organization,” or “blocked person” within
the definitions set forth in the Foreign Assets Control Regulations of the U.S. Treasury Department;

Person acting on behalf of, or any entity owned or controlled by, any government against whom the U.S.
maintains economic sanctions or embargoes under the Regulations of the U.S. Treasury Department —
including, but not limited to the “Government of Sudan,” the “Government of Iran,” the “Government of
Libya,” and the “Government of Syria”;

Person or entity who is within the scope of Executive Order 13224-Blocking Property and Prohibiting
Transactions with Persons who Commit, Threaten to Commit, or Support Terrorism, effective September 24,
2001; or

Person or entity subject to additional restrictions imposed by the following statutes or regulations and
executive orders issued thereunder: the Trading with the Enemy Act, the Iraq Sanctions Act, the National
Emergencies Act, the Antiterrorism and Effective Death Penalty Act of 1996, the International Emergency
Economic Powers Act, the United Nations Participation Act, the International Security and Development
Cooperation Act, the Nuclear Proliferation Prevent Act of 1994, the Foreign Narcotics Kingpin Designation
Act, the Iran and Libya Sanctions Act of 1996, the Cuban Democracy Act, the Cuban Liberty and
Democratic Solidarity Act and the Foreign Operation, Export Financing and Related Programs
Appropriations Act or any other law of similar import as to any non-U.S. Country, as each such act or law
has been or may be amended, adjusted, modified or reviewed from time to time.
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HOW TO SUBSCRIBE

If, after carefully reading the entire Memorandum, obtaining any other information available and being fully
satisfied with the results of pre-investment due diligence activities, a prospective Noteholder would like to purchase
Notes, a prospective Noteholder should complete and sign the attached Subscription Agreement. The full purchase
price for the Notes must be paid by check upon submission of the Subscription Agreement for the Notes. The
minimum purchase amount is $50,000, although the Company may lower the minimum purchase requirement at its
sole discretion.

Instructions for subscribing for the Notes are in the Subscription Agreement. Pending receipt and acceptance
of subscriptions for the Minimum Offering Amount, all subscription payments received for Notes will be deposited in
the escrow account at Home Federal Bank no later than the next business day after receipt by the Company. If the
Minimum Offering Amount has not been received and accepted by December 31, 2008 (which may be extended to
June 30, 2009 in the Company’s sole discretion), none of the Notes will be sold and the amount each prospective
Noteholder paid will be promptly returned to in full.

Subscription Agreements and all attachments should be mailed or delivered to the Company at:

Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC
1300 E. State Street, Suite 103
Eagle, ID 83616
Atin: Don Steeves

All funds should be mailed, delivered or wired to:

Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC
1300 E. State Street, Suite 103
Eagle, ID 83616
Attn: Don Steeves

Wire Instructions:
Account Number: 1001001602349
Routing/ABA Number: 324170140
Account Name: Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC

Upon receipt of the signed Subscription Agreement, verification of the prospective Noteholder’s investment
qualifications, and acceptance of the prospective Noteholder’s subscription by the Company (in the Company’s sole
discretion), the Company will notify each prospective Noteholder of receipt and acceptance of the subscription. In the
event the Company does not accept a prospective Noteholder’s subscription for the Notes for any reason, the
Company will promptly direct Home Federal Bank to return or cause to be returned the escrowed funds to such
subscriber.

An escrow account at Home Federal Bank will be established to hold the proceeds of this Offering. Home
Federal Bank has not recommended nor provided any advice in connection with the purchase of the Notes. Upon
written instruction by the Company and upon obtaining the Minimum Offering Amount, the funds in the escrow
account will be released to the operating account of the Company. For purposes of calculating whether the Minimum
Offering Amount has been reached, Notes sold at a discount will be considered sold at the full purchase price of
$50,000.

Acceptance of Subscriptions
The Company may, at its sole discretion, accept or reject any Subscription Agreement, in whole or in part,
for a period of 30 days after receipt of the Subscription Agreement. Any Subscription Agreement not accepted within

30 days of receipt shall be deemed rejected. The Company may terminate this Offering at any time, for any reason or
no reason, at its sole discretion.
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OFFERING SUMMARY

The following summary provides certain limited information about the Company, the Notes and this
Offering. It should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in its entirety by, the detailed information appearing
elsewhere in this Memorandum. You are required to read this entire Memorandum and whatever additional
information you request before making an investment in the Notes.

The Offering

Securities Offered:

Use of Proceeds:

Guaranty:

Investor Suitability Requirements:

Minimum Purchase:

Minimum Offering Amount:

Offering Termination Date:

Risks:

The securities being offered hereby are debt investments issued by the
Company. The Company is offering $20,000,000 aggregate principal
amount of 9.0% Notes due December 31, 2015, subject to increase to
$40,000,000 the sole discretion of the Company. The Notes will be
obligations of the Company the principal of which will be guaranteed by
RE Capital Investments, LLC. See “Description of the Notes.”

The Company will use the proceeds from the offering of the Notes to
provide secured financing for real estate acquisition and development
projects undertaken by Clearwater REI, LLC, an Idaho limited liability
company, its Affiliates and other borrowers who satisfy the lending
criteria established by the Company. Such projects may include, without
limitation, acquisition, entitlement, and development of and construction
on undeveloped real property and purchase or refinance of existing real
estate assets. See “Estimated Use of Proceeds” and “Business Plan.”

The repayment of the principal amount of the Notes (which principal
includes re-invested interest) will be guaranteed by RE Capital
Investments, LLC. See the Guaranty attached hereto as Exhibit D,
“Description of the Notes.”

This Offering is strictly limited to Accredited Investors (as defined under
Rule 501 of Regulation D under the Securities Act) who meet certain
minimum financial and other requirements. Purchasers residing in
certain states may need to meet additional standards. The Company at its
sole and absolute discretion reserves the right to approve or disapprove
each prospective Noteholder. See “Who May Invest.”

The Notes are being issued with a minimum investment of $50,000 and
in additional denominations of $1,000; however, smaller investments
may be available at the sole discretion of the Company. See “Plan of
Distribution.”

The Minimum Offering Amount of the Notes is $1,000,000. If the
Minimum Offering Amount has not been raised by December 31, 2008
(which may be extended to June 30, 2009 at the sole discretion of the
Company), none of the Notes will be sold and the amount you paid will
be promptly returned to you in full. See “Plan of Distribution — The
Offering.”

The Company will offer Notes until the earlier of the date on which the
Maximum Offering Amount has been raised or December 31, 2008,
which may be extended to June 30, 2009 at the sole discretion of the
Company.

An investment in Notes is highly speculative and involves substantial
risks. See “Risk Factors” beginning on page 9 for a complete discussion
of the risks, including, but not limited to, the following:
e there is no certainty as to an investment in Notes being profitable;
o underlying risks inherent to the individual real estate projects for
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The Company
Organization:

Manager:

Interest Reinvestment Program:

Interest Payments:

Debt Obligations:

Callability:

which the proceeds are used, including the risks associated with
residential and commercial development;

e risks of national, regional, and local economic downturn;

o the Notes are not a diversified investment; and

e there are various conflicts of interest among the Company, the
Manager and their Affiliates.

The Company is a newly-formed Idaho limited liability company. The
Company will use the proceeds from the sale of the Notes to provide
secured financing for various real estate acquisition and development
projects. See “Business Plan” and “Management of the Company.”

Clearwater REI, LLC, an Idaho limited liability company, will act as the
Manager. The Manager’s address is 1300 E. State Street, Suite 103,
Eagle, Idaho 83616, and its telephone number is (208) 639-4488. See
“The Manager.”

Noteholders may choose one of two options for the interest earned on
their Notes:

o Interest Payment: Noteholders may elect to receive monthly
interest payments in an amount equal to 9.0% simple interest on
their principal investment. All distributions will paid in arrears
on the fifteenth day of each month, beginning with the month
following the month in which the Notes are issued.

o Interest Reinvestment Program (IRP): By giving written notice
to the Company of their desire to do so not later than November
30, Noteholders may elect to have their interest reinvested and
compounded monthly beginning on the first day of the year
immediately following the date on which such notice was
received by the Company. Reinvested interest will be
compounded at the annual rate of 9.0%. Interest that is
reinvested will be added to and considered part of the principal
amount of the Note at the end of each calendar month.

The Company intends to: (a) pay simple or compound interest at the
annual rate of 9.0% which interest will accrue at the end of each month
during the term of the Notes and will be distributed or reinvested
depending on the elections of the Noteholders; and (b) by

December 31,2015 return the principal amount plus all accrued but
unpaid interest thereon to the Noteholders. There is no assurance that
these objectives will be achieved. See “Description of the Notes.”

Payment of all interest and return of the principal amount to Noteholders
is the obligation of the Company. RE Capital Investments, LLC will
guarantee repayment of the original principal amount of the Notes.
Interest on the Notes will accrue at the end of each month during the term
of the Notes and will be distributed or reinvested depending on the
elections of the Noteholders. See “Clearwater REI, LLC.” and
“Description of the Notes.”

Beginning December 31, 2011, the Company, at is sole discretion, may
call all or any portion of the Notes, at any time, for 100% of the original
principal amount of such Notes, plus accrued but unpaid interest, upon
90 days written notice to the Noteholders, without penalty.
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Liquidity:

Reports:

Federal Tax Consequences:

Beginning December 31, 2010 and once annually thereafter, Notes
representing up to 10% of the original principal amount may be called by
the Noteholders upon not less than 90 days written notice to the
Company.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, upon the death of a Noteholder, the
personal representative of such Noteholder may call the Note of such
Noteholder and will receive the principal amount of such note, plus all
accrued but unpaid principal thereon by giving written notice to the
Company not less than 90 days following the date of death of such
Noteholder. Interest will be payable through the date on which the
principal is received by the Noteholder’s personal representative and all
principal and interest will be paid by the Company not later than 30 days
following receipt of such notice.

Annual audited financial and operational reports and annual tax
information of the Company will be provided to the Noteholders. See
“Reports to Noteholders.”

It is anticipated that any and all federally taxable income resulting from

an investment in Notes will be taxable at ordinary income tax rates and
not at capital gains tax rates. See “Federal Income Tax Consequences.”
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RISK RELATING TO FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain matters discussed in this Memorandum, are forward-looking statements. The Company has based
these forward-looking statements on its current expectations and projections about future events. These forward-
looking statements are subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions about the secured financings and other
investment made by the Company, including, among other things, factors discussed under the heading “Risk Factors”
in this Memorandum and the following:

economic outlook;

capital expenditures;

cost reduction;

cash flow;

financing activities; and

related industry developments, including trends affecting the Company’s financial condition and results
of operations.

The Company intends to identify forward-looking statements in this Memorandum by using words or phrases
such as “anticipates,” “believes,” “estimates,” “expects,” “intends,” “objective,” “plan,” “predict,” “project” and “will
be” and similar words or phrases, or the negative thereof or other variations thereof or comparable terminology. All
forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which may cause the
actual transactions, results, performance or achievements of the Company to be materially different from any future
transactions, results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. The
cautionary statements set forth under the caption “Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this Memorandum identify
important factors with respect to such forward-looking statements, including the following factors that could affect
such forward-looking statements:

¢ national and local economic and business conditions that, among other things, will affect demand for
properties and the availability and terms of financing;

o underlying real estate investment risks;

+ the availability of debt and equity capital; and
governmental approvals, actions and initiatives, including the need for compliance with environmental
and safety requirements, and changes in laws and regulations or the interpretation thereof.

Although the Company believes the expectations reflected in such forward-looking statements are based
upon reasonable assumptions, there is no assurance that the Company’s expectations will be attained or that any
deviations will not be material. The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly release the result of any revisions
to these forward-looking statements that may be made to reflect any future events or circumstances.

In addition, any projections and representations, written or oral, which do not conform to the
projections contained in this Memorandum, must be disregarded, and their use is a violation of law. The
projections contained in or referenced by this Memorandum are based upon specified assumptions. If these
assumptions are incorrect, the projections also would be incorrect. No representation or warranty can be given
that the estimates, opinions or assumptions made in or referenced by this Memorandum will prove to be
accurate. Prospective Noteholders should carefully review the assumptions set forth in or referenced by this
Memorandum.
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RISK FACTORS

An investment in the Notes is highly speculative and is suitable only for persons who are able to
evaluate the risks of the investment. An investment in the Notes should be made only by persons able to bear
the risk of and to withstand the total loss of their investment. In addition to the factors set forth elsewhere in
this Memorandum and general investment risks, prospective Noteholders should consider the following risks
before making a decision to purchase the Notes.

General Risks

Risks of No Guaranteed Return. There is no assurance or guarantee that the cash flow, profits or capital of
the Company will be sufficient to pay all interest and repay principal on the Notes. Although RE Capital Investments,
LLC will guarantee the Company’s obligation to repay the original principal amount of the Notes there is no
assurance that RE Capital Investments, LLC will be able to satisfy its obligations pursuant to such guaranty.

Risks Regarding the Manager. The Manager and Affiliates control other real estate development projects.
The Manager and Affiliates may, in the future, become involved in other real estate development projects and may
guarantee other equity or debt offerings to finance current or future development projects, which may have risk
associated with those projects. If the Manager is required to support future guarantees on other debt obligations or
otherwise, the Manager may not have sufficient funds or resources to assist the Company and perform its duties as the
Manager.

New Venture. The Company is a new entity with no operating history. The Company is subject to the risks
involved with any speculative new venture. No assurance can be given that the Company will be profitable.

Risk of Company’s Related Party Lending and Thin Capitalization. The Company is a newly formed
Idaho limited liability company formed to issue the Notes and provide secured financing for investments in real estate
with a focus on development projects primarily to Affiliates of the Company. Since the Company is newly formed, it
is thinly capitalized. Because of the thin capitalization, the Company will not have sufficient assets beyond its interest
in the secured loans it makes, if any, to make payments on the Notes.

Speculative Investment; No Control of Possible Offering Expansion. The Company’s goals are highly
speculative, and there is no assurance that the Company will be able to meet any of its goals. Noteholders should be
aware that they may not earn a substantial return on their investment and may, in fact, lose their entire investment.

Reliance on Management. All decisions regarding management of the Company’s affairs will be made
exclusively by the Manager and not by any of the Noteholders. Accordingly, you should not buy Notes unless you are
willing to entrust all aspects of management to the Manager or its successor(s). You should carefully evaluate the
personal experience and business performance of the Company, Manager and its principals and the financial condition
of the Manager. See “The Manager” below. The Manager may retain independent contractors to provide various
services to the Company. The independent contractors will have no fiduciary duty to the Noteholders, and may not
perform as expected.

Absence of Note Rating. The Company has not applied and does not intend to apply to any creditworthiness
rating agency for a rating on the Notes. Therefore, any comparison made or conclusion drawn regarding the nature
and type of the Notes, as opposed to a rated debt obligation, would be at the risk of the individual prospective
Investor.

Absence of Public Market; Nonliquidity; Market Value. The Notes will not be listed on any national
securities exchange or included for quotation through an inter-dealer quotation system of a registered national
securities association. The Notes constitute new issues of securities with no established trading market. Furthermore,
it is not anticipated that there will be any regular secondary market following the completion of the offering of the .
Notes. Therefore, an investment in the Notes should be considered nonliquid. In addition, even in the unlikely event
that a secondary market for the Notes were to develop, no assurance can be given that the initial offering prices for the
Notes will continue for any period of time. The market value of the Notes might be discounted from their initial
offering prices, depending on prevailing interest rates, the market for similar securities, and other factors.
Accordingly, the Notes should be purchased for their projected returns only and not for any resale potential, which
may or may not exist.
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Absence of Third-Party Registrar and Trustee. The Company, as the designated Registrar, will maintain
the Note Register and record all transfers of Notes. The Company may have a conflict of interest in serving as the
Registrar, and the absence of a third-party Registrar may result in less protection to Noteholders than might be
provided by a third-party Registrar. There will also not be any third-party trustee for the Notes. Noteholders will rely
upon the Company, its officers, and its Affiliates to invest the Note proceeds wisely and profitably.

Conflicts of Interest. Conflicts of interest between the Company and the various roles, activities and duties
of the Manager and its Affiliates may occur from time to time. The principals of the Manager and its Affiliates are
employed independently of the Company and will engage in other activities, some of which may compete with the
Company. The Manager will have conflicts of interest in allocating management time, services and functions between
the Company and other current and future activities. The Manager believes that it will have sufficient staff,
consultants, independent contractors and business and property managers to perform adequately its duties. The
Noteholders will not have any interest in any future entities or business ventures formed or developed by the Manager
or any of its Affiliates. Any conflict of interest may result in the rights of the Company not being adequately
protected to the detriment of its Noteholders. None of the agreements or arrangements, including those relating to
compensation, between the Company, the Manager or their Affiliates, are the result of arm’s-length negotiations. See
“Conflicts of Interest” below.

There are general risks of investment in the portfolio properties. The economic success of an investment
in the Notes will depend upon the results of operations of the properties that secure the Company’s loans, which will
be subject to those risks typically associated with investments in real estate. Fluctuations in vacancy rates, rent
schedules and operating expenses can adversely affect operating results or render the sale or refinancing of a portfolio
property difficult or unattractive. No assurance can be given that certain assumptions as to the future levels of
occupancy of the properties, cost of tenant improvements or future costs of operating a portfolio property will be
accurate since such matters will depend on events and factors beyond the control of the Manager. Such factors
include continued validity and enforceability of the leases, vacancy rates for properties similar to the portfolio
properties, financial resources of tenants and rent levels near the portfolio properties, adverse changes in local
population trends, market conditions, neighborhood values, local economic and social conditions, supply and demand
for property such as the portfolio properties, competition from similar properties, interest rates and real estate tax
rates, governmental rules, regulations and fiscal policies, the enactment of unfavorable real estate, rent control,
environmental or zoning law, and hazardous material law, uninsured losses, effects of inflation, and other risks.

A general economic downturn or regional economic softness could adversely affect the economic
performance of the Company’s loans. Prospective Noteholders should be aware that periods of weak economic
performance in the United States could adversely affect the properties that secure the Company’s loans. In addition,
softness in a regional or state economy could materially and adversely impact the actual or projected rental rates and
operations of properties in that area and therefore the ability to sell these properties on favorable terms.

Properties securing the Company’s loans may not meet projected occupancy. If the tenants in the
properties securing the Company’s loans do not renew or extend their leases or if tenants terminate their leases, the
operating results of the properties could be substantially and adversely affected by the loss of revenue and possible
increase in operating expenses not reimbursed by the tenants. There can be no assurance that the properties will be
substantially occupied at projected rents. The Company anticipates a minimum occupancy rate for the properties, but
there can be no assurance that the properties will maintain the minimum occupancy rate or meet the Company’s
anticipated lease-up schedule. In addition, lease-up of the unoccupied space may be achievable only at rental rates
less than those anticipated by the Company.

Properties securing the Company’s loans may contain toxic and hazardous materials. Federal, state and
local laws impose liability on a landowner for releases or the otherwise improper presence on the premises of
hazardous substances. This liability is without regard to fault for, or knowledge of, the presence of such substances. A
landowner may be held liable for hazardous materials brought onto the property before it acquired title and for
hazardous materials that are not discovered until after it sells the property. Similar liability may occur under
applicable state law. If any hazardous materials are found within a property in violation of law at any tinie, the owner
may be liable for all cleanup costs, fines, penalties and other costs. This potential liability will continue after the
owner sells the property and may apply to hazardous materials present within the property before the owner acquired
the property. If losses arise from hazardous substance contamination which cannot be recovered from a responsible
party, the financial viability of that property may be substantially affected. It is possible that the property securing a
loan made by the Company will have known or unknown environmental problems which may adversely affect the
Company.
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Properties securing the Company’s loans may contain mold. Mold contamination has been linked to a
number of health problems, resulting in recent litigation by tenants seeking various remedies, including damages and
ability to terminate their leases. Originally occurring in residential property, mold claims have recently begun to
appear in commercial properties as well. Several insurance companies have reported a substantial increase in mold-
related claims, causing a growing concern that real estate owners might be subject to increasing lawsuits regarding
mold contamination. No assurance can be given that a mold condition will not exist at one or more of the properties
securing the Company’s loans, with the risk of substantial damages, legal fees and possibly loss of tenants. It is
unclear whether such mold claims would be covered by the customary insurance policies to be obtained for the
owners of the properties.

The owners of the properties securing the Company’s loans will receive limited representations and
warranties from the seller. The properties will generally be acquired with limited representations and warranties
from the sellers regarding the condition of the property, the status of leases, the presence of hazardous substances, the
status of governmental approvals and entitlements and other significant matters affecting the use, ownership and
enjoyment of the property. As a result, if defects in the property or other matters adversely affecting the property are
discovered, the owner may not be able to pursue a claim for damages against the seller of the property. The extent of
damages that the owner may incur as a result of such matters cannot be predicted, but potentially could result in a
significant adverse affect on the owner’s ability to pay the Company and the value of the collateral.

Private Offering and Liquidity Risks

Maximum Proceeds May Not Be Raised. The Company is seeking gross proceeds from this Offering of a
minimum of $1,000,000 and up to a maximum of $20,000,000, subject to increase to $40,000,000 at the sole
discretion of the Company. There can be no assurances that the Maximum Offering Amount will be raised. The
Company may terminate the Offering at any time at its sole discretion.

Determination of Note Price. The purchase price of the Notes has been arbitrarily determined and is not the
result of arm’s-length negotiations. The price of the Notes was determined primarily by the capital needs of the
Company and bears no relationship to any established criteria of value such as book value or earnings per share of the
Company, or any combination thereof. Further, the price of the Notes is not based on past earnings of the Company.
No valuation or appraisal of the Company’s potential business has been prepared.

Limited Transferability of Notes. To buy Notes prospective Noteholders must represent that they are
acquiring the Notes for investment and not with a view to distribution or resale, that potential Noteholders understand
the Notes are not freely transferable and, in any event, that they must bear the economic risk of investment in the
Notes for an indefinite period of time because the Notes have not been registered under the Securities Act or
applicable state “Blue Sky” or securities laws; and the Notes cannot be sold unless they are subsequently registered or
an exemption from such registration is available and unless you comply with the other applicable provisions of the
Note, this Memorandum and any subscription documents. There is no public or other trading market for the Notes,
and it is highly unlikely that any market will develop. Thus, except for the limited provision for liquidity, prospective
Noteholders cannot expect to be able to liquidate their investments. Further, the sale of the Notes may have adverse
federal income tax consequences. The transfer of Notes requires the prior written consent of the Manager. There is
no guarantee that the Manager will consent to any transfer.

Unregistered Offerings. The offering of the Notes will not be registered with the SEC under the Securities
Act or with the securities agency of any state. The Notes are being offered in reliance on an exemption from the
registration provisions of the Securities Act and state securities laws applicable to offers and sales to investors meeting
the investor suitability requirements set forth herein. See “Who May Invest.” If the Manager, the Company, or the
members of the Selling Group should fail to comply with the requirements of such exemption, Noteholders may have
the right to rescind their purchase of the Notes. This might also occur under the applicable state securities or “Blue
Sky” laws and regulations in states where the Notes will be offered without registration or qualification pursuant to a
private offering or other exemption. If a number of Noteholders were successful in seeking rescission, the Company
and the Manager would face severe financial demands that would adversely affect the Company as a whole and, thus,
the investment in the Notes by the remaining Noteholders.
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Lack of Agency Review. Since the offering of the Notes is a private offering and, as such, is not registered
under federal or state securities laws, prospective Noteholders do not have the benefit of review of this Memorandum
by the SEC or any state securities commission. The terms and conditions of the Offering may not comply with the
guidelines and regulations established for real estate programs that are required to be registered and qualified with
those agencies.

Purchase of Notes by the Manager and/or its Affiliates. The Manager and/or its Affiliates may, in their
sole discretion, buy Notes for any reason deemed appropriate by them. However, they will not acquire Notes prior to
the Minimum Offering Amount having been sold. Any purchase of Notes by the Manager or its Affiliates will be on
the same terms as other investors, except that it may be made net of commissions. Upon any such acquisition of
Notes, the Manager or its Affiliates will have the same rights as other Noteholders, including the right to vote on all
matters subject to the vote of Noteholders. The Manager and its Affiliates will acquire any Notes for their own
accounts and not with a view towards the resale or distribution of such Notes. The Manager and its Affiliates will not
acquire Notes until the Minimum Offering Amount has been reached.

No Legal Representation of Noteholders. Each Noteholder acknowledges and agrees that Counsel
representing the Company, the Manager and their Affiliates, does not represent and shall not be deemed under the
applicable codes of professional responsibility to have represented or to be representing any or all of the Noteholders
in any respect.

Investment by Tax-Exempt Noteholders. In considering an investment in the Notes of a portion of the
assets of a trust of a pension or profit-sharing plan qualified under Section 401(a) of the Code and exempt from tax
under Section 501(a), a fiduciary should consider if: (a) the investment satisfies the diversification requirements of
Section 404 of ERISA; (b) the investment is prudent, since the Notes are not freely transferable and there may not be a
market created in which the fiduciary can sell or otherwise dispose of the Notes; and (c) the Notes or the underlying
assets owned by the Company are “plan assets” under ERISA. See “Investment by Qualified Plans and IRAs” below.

Loss on Dissolution and Termination. In the event of dissolution or termination of the Company as
provided in the operating agreement of the Company, the proceeds realized from the liquidation of the Company’s
assets will be distributed among the Noteholders, members and certain amounts owed to the Manager, or its Affiliates,
but only after the satisfaction of the claims of third-party creditors of the Company. The ability of a Noteholder to
recover all or any portion of the investment under such circumstances will, accordingly, depend on the amount of net
proceeds realized from the liquidation and the amount of claims to be satisfied therefrom. There can be no assurance
that the Company will recognize any gains or realize net proceeds on liquidation.

Limitation of Liability/Indemnification of the Manager. The Manager and its attorneys, agents and
employees may not be liable to the Company or the Members for errors of judgment and other acts or omissions not
constituting gross negligence or willful malfeasance as a result of certain indemnification provisions in the operating
agreement of the Company. A successful claim for indemnification would deplete the Company’s assets by the
amount paid.

Risks Relating to Conflicts of Interest

Loans to Affiliates. Most, if not all, of the loans to be made by the Company with the proceeds of this
Offering will be made to Affiliates of the Company and the Manager. The interests of the Noteholders and the
borrowers may differ materially with respect to the repayment of the Notes, and the Manager will be in a position to
make decisions that could potentially be adverse to the Noteholders’ interests in the Notes.

Activities outside of the Company that could cause conflicts of interest. The principals of the Manager
and its Affiliates are employed independently of the Company and are engaged in activities other than this Offering.
The Company and Affiliates will have conflicts of interest in allocating time, services and functions between various
existing and future enterprises. The Manager’s Affiliates may organize other business ventures that may compete
directly with the Company. Further, the Company and its Affiliates have common ownership and management
personnel which may result in material conflicts of interest to the possible detriment of the Noteholders. See
“Conflicts of Interest.”

Common ownership among the Manager and its Affiliates. The Manager and its Affiliates share common
management. This may lead to a conflict of interest between their various roles as owners or officers of the Manager
and its Affiliates. See “Conflicts of Interest.”
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The Company, the Manager and their Affiliates will receive compensation. The Company, the Manager
and their Affiliates are entitled to receive certain significant fees and other significant compensation, payments and
reimbursements from the sale of the Notes. See “Compensation of the Company, the Manager and their Affiliates.”
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The estimated sources and uses of funds in the Offering are as follows:

Increased
Minimum Offering Maximum Offering Offering Amount
Amount Percent  Amount Percent  Amount Percent

SOURCE OF FUNDS
Gross Proceeds $ 1,000,000 100.00% $ 20,000,000 100.00% $ 40,000,000 100.00%
USE OF FUNDS $ 1,000,000 100.00% $ 20,000,000 100.00% $ 40,000,000 100.00%
Offering Expenses

Selling Commissions(" $ 93,000 9.30% $ 1,860,000 930% $ 3,720,000 9.30%

Organization and Offering®  § 4,000 040% $ 80,000 040% $ 160,000  0.40%

Sponsor Compensation $ 25,500 255% $ 510,000 2.55% $ 1,020,000 2.55%
Net Proceeds $ 877,500 87.75% $ 17,550,000 87.75% $ 35,100,000 87.75%

M (1) Notes will be offered and sold on a “best efforts” basis by broker-dealers who are members of FINRA. The members of the Selling
Group will receive selling commissions of up to 7.0% of the Gross Proceeds. The amount of Selling Commissions may be reduced, however,
if a lower commission rate is negotiated with a member of the Selling Group. The Managing Broker-Dealer will receive up to 2.3% of the
Gross Proceeds as compensation and reimbursement for due diligence and marketing expenses up to 1.0% of which may be re-allowed to
members of the Selling Group for marketing and due diligence expenses. The aggregate amount of Selling Commissions and Expense
Reimbursements paid to members of the Selling Group will not exceed 9.3% of the Gross Proceeds. See “Use of Proceeds™ Affiliates of the
Company may receive Selling Commissions in connection with the sale of Notes. See “Conflicts of Interest.” The Company, in its discretion,
may accept purchases of Notes net of all or an agreed portion of the Selling Commissions from subscribers purchasing through a registered
investment advisor, from subscribers for Notes who are affiliates of the Company or a member of the Selling Group.

@ Organization and Offering includes, but is not limited to, expense reimbursements, legal fees, printing and sales and marketing fees.
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BUSINESS PLAN

The Company will use the proceeds from the offering of Notes to provide first mortgage financing for real
estate acquisition and development projects undertaken by Clearwater REI, LLC, its Affiliates and other borrowers
who satisfy the lending criteria established by the Company. Such projects may include, without limitation;
acquisition, entitlement, and development of and construction on undeveloped real property and purchase or refinance
of existing real estate assets. The Company’s loans will be collateralized by a first position mortgage or first deed of
trust only. The Company expects that most, if not all, loans will be made to its Affiliates for projects located in Idaho,
Arizona, California, and Nevada although the Company reserves the right, at its sole discretion, to make loans outside
of those areas.

Real estate opportunities often do not allow time to secure bank or other financing. The Company will use
the proceeds from the offering of Notes to provide the capital required in lieu of bank or other financing. Following
closing, the Company intends to put permanent debt or equity in place following the acquisition or development
and/or the properties will be sold making the Company’s note funds revolving,

Investment Committee

Each proposed loan will be evaluated by a five member Investment Committee. The Investment Committee
will apply the criteria detailed below in making a decision about whether to fund any proposed loan. No loan will be
made by the Company without the prior approval of the Investment Committee. See “Management of the Company —
The Manager — Investment Committee.”

Investment Criteria

In order to qualify for loans from the Company, each borrowing entity will be required to provide a loan
request detailing their needs and additionally will be required to satisfy additional requirements. The primary
financial requirement is that the maximum loan to value, at the time of each loan is made, is no greater than the
following:

e  The loan to value ratio for pre-entitled land will not exceed 65%.

e  The loan to value ratio will not exceed 75% for entitled land.

e The loan to value ratio will not exceed 80% for construction and existing commercial or residential
structures.

The loan to value ratio will be defined by an MAI appraisal. In absence of an MAI appraisal, the loan to
value ratio will be evidenced by a broker’s opinion of value or by the Company’s determination of value through the
utilization of industry acceptable valuation methods. Other requirements that must be met by each borrowing entity
will be at the discretion of the Investment Committee. The loan will be secured as a First Mortgage or First Deed of
Trust on real property.

Documentation Required

The Investment Committee will require the following documentation at a minimum:

7
°

Borrower Financial Statements

Budgets or Proforma

Projections

Operating Statements

Title & Survey

Phase I, environmental questionnaire, or soils report (Investment Committee’s discretion)
Appraisal or Opinion of Value (Investment Committee’s discretion)
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Loan Process & Life Cycle

The following chart depicts the life cycle of loans made by the Company.
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Loan Payoff

MANAGEMENT OF THE COMPANY
General

The Manager is Clearwater REI, LLC, an Idaho limited liability company. As discussed below, the key
corporate officers of the Manager have extensive business experience, including real estate acquisition, development,
construction, financing and management.

The principal executive offices of the Company and the Manager are located at 1300 E. State Street, Suite
103, Eagle, ID 83616. The Company’s and Manager’s telephone number at such address is (208) 639-4488.

Experience

Clearwater REIL, LLC and its Affiliates have current and completed investment holdings in California, Idaho,
Arizona and Nevada. Projects include raw land, entitlement, improvements, construction and sale of subdivisions,
industrial, office, hotel, condo and master planned communities. The Manager and its Affiliates have completed
projects having an aggregate value of $40,136,000 to date. The Manager and its Affiliates have demonstrated the
ability to complete projects in a timely and efficient manner with strong returns being provided to investors from these
projects. The Manager and its Affiliates have current projects in various stages of completion having an approximate
aggregate value of $476,158,120. With 20 years of experience, the principals of the Company have a proven track
record of providing strong risk adjusted returns thereby creating lasting value for their investors and partners alike. In
conjunction with their priority of always keeping the investor first, their detailed approach in sourcing projects which
stand alone in quality has ensured equity preservation and unlimited growth potential.

Principal Officers
RON MEYER, Chief Development Officer

Ron Meyer brings over 25 years of successful real estate and business experience including real estate
investments, brokerage operations and mortgage lending. He has significant experience with respect to identifying
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and negotiating real estate development opportunities. Mr. Meyer exhibits extensive knowledge of land acquisition
and land entitlement, single-family home building, commercial land development and low-income housing
development. He currently has projects in California, Nevada, Idaho and Arizona. Additionally, he has founded over
75 different business ventures with aggregate gross values in excess of §1 Billion.

CHRISTOPHER BENAK, Chief Development Officer

Chris Benak has 18 years experience in strategic business development, executive sales management, real
estate development, property acquisition/disposition, and project management. Mr. Benak currently divides his time
between (1) dealing with a project’s acquisition, the initial management processes, including regulatory processes
with city, county and state agencies and (2) ensuring project quality and delivery. He interfaces regularly with project
managers, reviewing project timelines and cost analysis. Mr. Benak also secures strategic development partnerships,
manages private investor funds and utilizes access to strategic market resources and networks to pursue competitive
and cost-effective project deliverables.

DON STEEVES, National Sales Director & Broker-Dealer Relations

Don Steeves is directly responsible for interacting with legal, accounting and tax professionals in order to
bring equity and debt offerings to the broker-dealer community. Mr. Steeves has been directly involved in debt
offerings, tenant in common offerings and property acquisitions that exceeded $300 million. In these capacities, Mr.
Steeves has had substantial experience in real estate and other investments. Mr. Steeves has spent time as a consultant
in assisting in the acquisition and syndication in commercial property tenant-in-common owners and single buyers.
He has also held several positions at various companies including Chief Financial Officer, Director of Marketing
Operations, Director of Tax and Investor Relations, and Controller. Mr. Steeves is a Certified Public Accountant and
a Financial Operations Principal with FINRA and holds Series 22, 28 and 63 licenses with FINRA.

BART COCHRAN, Vice President of Acquisitions & Operations

Bart Cochran maintains a very expansive book of nationwide lending relationships and he has extensive
experience in the placement, processing, and closing of commercial financing in excess of $200 million in property
acquisition and refinances. Much of this work was primarily done with secondary market lending sources, insurance
companies, and portfolio lenders. Mr. Cochran has successfully negotiated large scale affiliate relationships which
have allowed him to successfully place debt as a direct lender. This has provided Mr. Cochran with a significant
competitive edge in the market. He also has experience in tenancy in common financial structuring, sales
coordination, and one-off specialty transactions. Mr. Cochran is also a licensed real estate agent in the State of Idaho.

CHAD HANSEN, Vice President of Finance

Chad Hansen has a successful track record in the commercial real estate industry in placing and closing
financing on various property types ranging from acquisitions to refinances. He currently maintains relationships with
numerous conduit lenders, insurance companies, portfolio lenders, investment banks and private lenders that provide
access to competitive terms. Mr. Hansen has been directly involved in tenant-in-common financial structuring and
tenant-in-common permanent debt for multiple past offerings. Mr. Hansen has been involved in the placement and
closing of over $200 million in commercial real estate financing with much of this directly related to the permanent
debt secured on tenant-in-common offerings.

Investment Committee
The Investment Committee will include, but not be limited to the following principals:

Ron Meyer, Chief Development Officer

Chris Benak, Chief Development Officer

Don Steeves, National Sales Director & Broker-Dealer Relations
Bart Cochran, Vice President of Acquisitions & Operations
Chad Hansen, Vice President of Finance.

The Investment Committee will, at its discretion, take into consideration the opinions and recommendations of the
Company’s employees for further insight if need be. The purpose of such decision is to ensure that all lending
decisions are based on the collective knowledge and insight on such property or market. .-
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Guaranty

RE Capital Investments, LLC will guarantee the repayment of the original principal amount of the Notes.
See Exhibit C, Balance Sheet of RE Capital Investments, LLC as of July 31, 2008 and Exhibit D, Guaranty.

CLEARWATER REL LLC
General |

Clearwater REI, LLC acquires projects ranging from raw land to institutional grade commercial real estate
across the United States. The company structures its offerings to afford accredited investors participation in
investments proven to maximize returns while managing risk. The Company is committed to providing lasting value
to its investor clients and seeks to create a partnership of trust with each investment instead of merely providing a
simple investment solution. This is evidenced by the fact that the Company stands behind its offerings and intends to
maintain a fractional interest in every investment offered thus sharing in the investment and demonstrating its absolute
confidence in each offering.

Key Management

RON MEYER, Chief Development Officer

CHRIS BENAK, Chief Development Officer

DON STEEVES, National Sales Director & Broker-Dealer Relations
BART COCHRAN, Vice President of Acquisitions & Operations
CHAD HANSEN, Vice President of Finance

See “Management of the Company — Principal Officers.”
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. COMPENSATION OF THE COMPANY, THE MANAGER AND THEIR AFFILIATES

The following is a description of the compensation that the Company, the Manager and their Affiliates may
receive in connection with this Offering. The compensation arrangements described below have been established by
the Manager and are not the result of arm’s-length negotiations. See “Conflicts of Interests.” Unless otherwise
indicated, all Offering and acquisition related amounts assume the Maximum Offering Amount is raised and will be
reduced proportionately should a lesser amount be raised.

Description of Compensation and Entity Estimated Amount of Compensation
Form of Compensation Receiving

Offering and
Organization Stage:

Sponsor Compensation: The Manager or its Affiliates will Approximately $510,000 for the
receive a fee equal to 2.55% of the Maximum Offering Amount
Gross Proceeds. (81,020,000 if increased to
$40,000,000).
Organization and Offering: The Company will receive up to 0.40% Approximately $80,000 for the
of the Gross Proceeds. Maximum Offering Amount
($160,000 if increased to
$40,000,000).

DESCRIPTION OF THE NOTES

The Notes are issued pursuant to and evidenced by the Note Register and will be held in “book-entry” on the
Note Register by the Company. The offering of Notes by the Company will be limited to $20,000,000 in aggregate
principal amount, subject to increase to $40,000,000 at the sole discretion of the Company. The Company intends to:
(a) pay simple or compound interest at the annual rate of 9.0% which interest will accrue at the end of each month
during the term of the Notes and will be distributed or reinvested depending on the elections of the Noteholders; and
(b) by December 31, 2015 return the original principal amount plus all accrued but unpaid interest thereon to the
Noteholders. There is no assurance that these objectives will be achieved.

Interest Reinvestment Program
Noteholders may choose one of two options for the interest earned on their Notes:

Interest Payment: Noteholders may elect to receive monthly interest payments in an amount equal to 9.0%
simple interest on their principal investment. All distributions will paid in arrears on the fifteenth day of each month,
beginning with the month following the month in which the Notes are issued.

Interest Reinvestment Program (IRP): By giving written notice to the Company of their desire to do so not
later than November 30, Noteholders may elect to have their interest reinvested and compounded monthly beginning
on the first day of the year immediately following the date on which such notice was received by the Company.
Reinvested interest will be compounded at the annual rate of 9.0%. Interest that is reinvested will be added to and
considered part of the principal amount of the Note at the end of each calendar month.

Liquidity; Callability

The Notes are issued with a minimum purchase of $50,000 and in additional denominations of $1,000;
however, smaller purchases are available at the sole discretion of the Company. Notes will be issued and will begin
accruing interest on the first day immediately following the day on which the investment proceeds therefore are
received by the Company. Beginning December 31, 2011, the Company, at is sole discretion, may call all or any
portion of the Notes, at any time, for 100% of the original principal amount of such Notes, plus accrued but unpaid
interest, upon 90 days written notice to the Noteholders, without penalty. Beginning December 31,2010 and once
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annually thereafter, Notes representing up to 10% of the original principal amount may be called by the Noteholders
upon not less than 90 days written notice to the Company. See “Description of the Notes.” Capitalized terms not
otherwise defined herein have the meanings given to them in the Glossary.

Guaranty

The Notes will be obligations of the Company the principal of which will be guaranteed by RE Capital
Investments, LLC; however, they will not be secured by collateral.

Transfer and Exchange of Notes

Generally, the Notes will be non-transferable except in very limited circumstances. If a transfer is permitted
by the Company, the transfer of Notes may be effected only by the registered owner thereof, at the Company’s
principal executive office in Eagle, Idaho. Substantial restrictions apply to the transfer of the Notes. The Notes have
not been registered under the Securities Act, and therefore, cannot be sold or transferred unless they are subsequently
registered under the Securities Act or an exemption from such registration is available. A Noteholder may, under
certain circumstances, be permitted to transfer the Notes, but only to persons who meet certain suitability standards
and the Company may require assurances that such standards are met before agreeing to any transfer of the Notes.
Additionally, the Company may charge an administrative fee to effectuate any such transfer or exchange.

Death of Noteholder

Upon the death of a Noteholder, the personal representative of such Noteholder may call the Note of such
Noteholder and will receive the principal amount of such note, plus all accrued but unpaid principal thereon by giving
written notice to the Company not less than 90 days following the date of death of such Noteholder. Interest will be
payable through the date of which the principal is received by the Noteholder’s personal representative and all
principal and interest will be paid by the Company not later than 30 days following receipt of such notice.

CAPITALIZATION

The following table sets forth as of December 31, 2008, the expected capitalization of the Company and
capitalization as adjusted to give effect to the issuance and sale by the Company of the Maximum Offering Amount of
the Notes offered hereby. ’

As Adjusted“)
Maximum
Long-Term Debt:
Notes $20.000,000
Total funded long-term debt $20,000.000
Members’ Equity:
100% Membership Interest: $1.000
Total Members’ equity $1.000

M As adjusted to reflect the Offering of $20,000,000, which is subject to increase to $40,000,000 at the sole discretion
of the Company.

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION
The Offering

The Company is offering up to $20,000,000 (subject to increase to $40,000,000 at the sole discretion of the
Company) aggregate principal amount of Notes due December 31, 2015, to prospective Noteholders who are
Accredited Investors and who meet any additional requirements imposed by certain states or by the Company itself.
The Notes are issued with a minimum purchase of $50,000 and in additional denominations of $1,000. However, a
purchase for less than $50,000 may be accepted at the sole discretion of the Company. Persons desiring to purchase
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Notes should follow the procedure described in “How to Subscribe.” Certain Noteholders, including but not limited
to, selling agents, if allowed by their broker-dealer, employees of the Company or Affiliates, and any other
Noteholders at the sole discretion of the Company may buy Notes at a discount or net of selling commissions and
expense reimbursements, reflecting, without limitation, the reduction in the broker-dealer commission payable by the
Company on their purchase. The Company, at its sole discretion, may reject any subscription in whole or in part.
Such rejection may be made for any reason. If the Minimum Offering Amount has not been reached and accepted by
December 31, 2008 (which may be extended to June 30, 2009 in the Company’s sole discretion), none of the Notes
will be sold.

Notes will be offered and sold on a “best efforts” basis by broker-dealers who are members of FINRA. The
members of the Selling Group will receive selling commissions of up to 7.0% of the Gross Proceeds. The amount of
Selling Commissions may be reduced, however, if a lower commission rate is negotiated with a member of the Selling
Group. The Managing Broker-Dealer will receive up to 2.3% of the Gross Proceeds as compensation and
reimbursement for due diligence and marketing expenses up to 1.0% of which may be re-allowed to members of the
Selling Group for marketing and due diligence expenses. The aggregate amount of Selling Commissions and Expense
Reimbursements paid to members of the Selling Group will not exceed 9.3% of the Gross Proceeds. See “Use of
Proceeds” Affiliates of the Company may receive Selling Commissions in connection with the sale of Notes. See
“Conflicts of Interest.” The Company, in its discretion, may accept purchases of Notes net of all or an agreed portion
of the Selling Commissions from subscribers purchasing through a registered investment advisor, from subscribers for
Notes who are affiliates of the Company or a member of the Selling Group.

The selling agreements to be entered into by the Company with the members of the Selling Group and RIA’s
contain provisions for indemnity from the Company with respect to liabilities, including certain civil liabilities under
the Securities Act, which may arise from the use of this Memorandum in connection with the offering of the Notes. A
successful claim by members of the Selling Group for indemnification could result in a reduction in the Company’s
assets. In the opinion of the Securities and Exchange Commission, indemnification for liabilities under the Securities
Act is against public policy and therefore unenforceable.

Suitability Requirements for Noteholders

Purchase of the Notes is suitable only for persons of adequate financial means who have no need for liquidity
with respect to this investment. There will not be any public market for the Notes and they should be considered
illiquid.

Notes will be sold only to prospective Noteholders, or fiduciaries representing them, who represent in writing
that they meet certain standards. See “Who May Invest.” Prospective Noteholders residing in certain states may need
to meet additional standards.

Prospective Noteholders should be aware that the Notes have not been registered under the Securities Act
and therefore cannot be sold or transferred unless they are subsequently registered under the Securities Act or an
exemption from such registration is available; accordingly, a Noteholder must bear the economic risk of the
investment in the Notes for an indefinite time. Under certain very limited circumstances, a Noteholder may be
permitted to transfer Notes, but then only to persons who meet certain suitability standards, and the Company will
require assurances that such standards are met before agreeing to any transfer of the Notes.

Documents to be Completed by Noteholders

Each prospective Noteholder desiring to subscribe for the Notes must complete and sign the Subscription
Agreement and Investor Instructions attached to this Memorandum (or separate copy thereof) and return them to the
Company.

In the Subscription Agreement and Investor Instructions each prospective Noteholder will acknowledge,
among other things that he or she: (1) is purchasing the Notes for investment only and not with any intention of
reselling or distributing all or any portion thereof to others; (2) is able to bear the economic risk of investment in the
Notes; and (3) has provided complete and accurate information to the Company concerning their status as an
Accredited Investor and other relevant data. This Offering is intended to be a private offering exempt from the
securities registration requirements of the Securities Act, by virtue of compliance with Regulation D promulgated
under the Securities Act. Accordingly, the Notes offered hereby are not, and will not, be registered with the Securities
and Exchange Commission or with any state securities commission.
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FEDERAL INCOME TAX MATTERS

Circular 230 Notice: Nothing contained in this Memorandum is intended or written by the Company
or any of its advisors to be used, and it cannot be used, by any potential Noteholder or other person for the
purpose of avoiding penalties that may be imposed under federal income tax law. This Memorandum was
written to support the promotion or marketing of the Notes and offered by the Company and other matters addressed
in this Memorandum. Each potential Noteholder should seek advice concerning the tax aspects of and tax
considerations involved in an investment in the Notes from an independent tax adviser.

General

The following is a general discussion of certain federal income tax consequences of the purchase,
ownership and disposition of the Notes based upon the relevant provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986,
as amended (the “Code™), the regulations thereunder, existing judicial decisions and published rulings. Future
legislative, judicial or administrative changes or interpretations, which may or may not be retroactive, could affect
the federal income tax consequences to the Noteholders or The Company. The discussion below does not purport to
deal with the federal income tax consequences applicable to all categories of investors, some of which may be
subject to special rules. The discussion focuses primarily upon investors who will hold the Notes as “capital assets”
(generally, Notes held for investment) within the meaning of the Code, you are advised to consult your own tax
advisors with regard to the federal income tax consequences of acquiring, holding and disposing of the Notes, as
well as state, local and other tax consequences resulting from an investment in the Notes.

If it were determined that the Notes should be treated for federal income tax purposes as an equity
investment in the Company instead of as indebtedness, the changes in the tax consequences to Noteholders might be
significant and adverse. If the Notes were treated as equity for tax purposes, Noteholders would be taxed as owners
of the Company for tax purposes. The tax treatment of owners of a limited liability company is substantially
different than the tax treatment of lenders to a limited liability company. If the Noteholders were treated as owners,
their income might be significantly different in amount and character than the interest income on the Notes.

The following discussion is based on the assumption that the Notes will be treated in their entirety as
indebtedness and not as an equity investment in the Company.

Interest paid or accrued on the Notes will be treated as ordinary income to the Noteholders. Interest paid to
Noteholders will generally be taxable to them when received, but interest paid to Noteholders who report their income
on the accrual method will be taxable to them when accrued, if earlier, regardless of when such interest is actually
paid. The Company will report quarterly to the IRS and to the Noteholders of record interest paid or accrued on the
Notes.

Market Discount

Noteholders who acquire Notes at a discount from the aggregate principal amount of the Notes generally will
also be required to: (a) treat a portion of any gain realized on a sale, exchange, redemption or certain other
dispositions (e.g., a gift) of the Notes as ordinary income to the extent of the accrued market discount and defer, until
disposition of the Notes, all or a portion of the interest deductions attributable to any indebtedness incurred or
continued to purchase or carry the Notes issued with market discount in the event such interest exceeds the interest
on the Notes includable in the Noteholder’s income or (b) elect to include such market discount in income as it
accrues on all market discount instruments held by such Noteholder. It should be noted that market discount will be
deemed to be zero if the amount allocable to each Note is less than one-quarter of one percent of the stated
redemption price at maturity of such Notes times the number of complete years to its maturity remaining after the
date of purchase.

Sale or Exchange of Notes

Upon a sale, exchange or redemption of a Note, the Noteholder will recognize gain or loss equal to the
difference between the amount realized on such sale, exchange or redemption and his or her adjusted basis in the
Notes. Such adjusted basis generally will equal the cost of the Notes to such Noteholder (increased by market
discount if the election described above is made) included in his or her gross income with respect to such Notes and
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reduced by any basis in the Notes previously allocated to payments on the Notes received by such Noteholder.
Similarly, a Noteholder who receives a principal payment with respect to the Notes will recognize gain or loss equal to
the difference between the amount of the payment and his or her adjusted basis in the Notes or portions thereof that are
satisfied by such payment. Except as discussed above with respect to market discount, any such gain or loss will be
capital gain or loss (provided the Notes are held as a capital asset) and will be long-term or short-term depending on
whether the Notes have been held for more than one year. You should realize that the Notes are subject to
restrictions on transferability. See “Risk Factors—Restrictions on Transfer.”

Backup Withholding

A Noteholder may, under certain circumstances, be subject to “backup withholding” with respect to
“reportable payments.” This withholding generally applies if a Noteholder: () fails to furnish the Company with its
taxpayer identification number (“TIN™); (b) furnishes the Company an incorrect TIN; (c) fails to report properly
interest, dividends or other “reportable payments™ as defined in the Code; or (d) under certain circumstances, fails to
provide the Company with a certified statement, signed under penalty of perjury, that the TIN provided is its correct
number and that the Noteholder is not subject to backup withholding. Backup withholding will not apply, however,
with respect to certain payments made to Noteholders, including payments to certain exempt recipients (suchas
exempt organizations) and to certain foreign investors. Noteholders should consult their tax advisers as to their
qualification for exemption from backup withholding and the procedure for obtaining the exemption.

State Income Tax Consequences

You should also consider the state income tax consequences of the acquisition, ownership, and disposition of
the Notes. State income tax law may differ substantially from the corresponding federal law, and this discussion
does not purport to describe any aspect of the income tax laws of any state. Therefore, you should consult your
own tax advisors with respect to the various state tax consequences of an investment in the Notes.

INVESTMENTS BY QUALIFIED PLANS AND INDIVIDUAL RETIREMENT ACCOUNTS

In considering an investment in the Notes of any assets of a qualified plan, a fiduciary, taking into account
the facts and circumstances of such qualified plan, should consider, among other things:

0] whether the investment is in accordance with the documents and instruments governing such qualified plan;
) the definition of plan assets under ERISA (“Plan Assets™);
?3) whether the investment satisfies the diversification requirements of Section 404(a)(1)(C) of ERISA;

C)) whether, under Section 404(a)(1)(B) of ERISA, the investment is prudent considering the nature of an
investment in the Notes and the fact that there is not expected to be a market created in which the fiduciary
can sell or otherwise dispose of the Notes;

&) whether the Company, the Manager or any of their Affiliates is a fiduciary or a party in interest to the
qualified plan; and

6) whether an investment in Notes may cause the qualified plan to recognize UBTI.

With respect to item (6) above, the Company’s management believes that the payment of interest to
Noteholders pursuant to this Offering will not, standing alone, result in the recognition of UBTI by tax-exempt
investors. The prudence of a particular investment must be determined by the responsible fiduciary (usually the
trustee, plan administrator or investment manager) with respect to each qualified plan, taking into account all of the
facts and circumstances of the investment.

ERISA provides that Notes may not be purchased by a qualified plan if the Company, the Manager or any of
their Affiliates is a fiduciary or party in interest (as defined in Sections 3(21) and 3(14) of ERISA) to the plan unless
such purchase is exempt from the prohibited transaction provisions of Section 406 of ERISA. Under ERISA, it is the
responsibility of the fiduciary responsible for purchasing Notes not to engage in such transactions. Section 4975 of
the Code has similar restrictions applicable to transactions between disqualified persons and qualified plans or
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individual retirement accounts, which could result in the imposition of excise taxes on the Company, unless and until
such a prohibited transaction is corrected.

In the case of an IRA, if the Company, the Manager or any of their Affiliates is a disqualified person with
respect to the IRA, the purchase of Notes by the IRA could instead cause the entire value of the IRA to be taxable to
the IRA sponsor. .

Section 406 of ERISA and Code Section 4975 also prohibit qualified plans from engaging in certain
transactions with specified parties involving Plan Assets. Code Section 4975 also prevents IRAs from engaging in
such transactions. One of the transactions prohibited is the furnishing of services between a plan and a “party in
interest” or a “disqualified person.” Included in the definition of “party in interest” under Section 3(14) of ERISA and
the definition of “disqualified person” in Code Section 4975(e)(2) are “persons providing services to the plan.” If the
Company, the Manager or certain entities and individuals related to them have previously provided services to a
benefit plan investor, then the Company, or the Manager could be characterized as a “party in interest” under ERISA
and/or a “disqualified person” under the Code with respect to such benefit plan investor. If such a relationship exists,
it could be argued that the Affiliate of the Company, or the Manager is being compensated directly out of Plan Assets
for the provision of services, i.e., establishment of the Offering and making it available as an investment to the
qualified plan. If this were the case, absent a specific exemption applicable to the transaction, a prohibited transaction
could be determined to have occurred between the qualified plan and the Affiliate of the Company, or the Manager.

Another type of transaction prohibited by ERISA and the Code is one in which fiduciaries of a qualified plan
or the person who establishes an individual retirement account engage in self-dealing or in co-investment with the
plan or account. Accordingly, Affiliates of the Company and the Manager are not permitted to purchase Notes with
assets of any benefit plan investor if they: (2) have investment discretion with respect to such assets or (b) regularly
give individualized investment advice which serves as the primary basis for the investment decisions made with
respect to such assets. In addition, no fiduciary of a qualified plan or'owner of an individual retirement account
should purchase Notes both individually and with assets of the benefit plan investor.

With respect to an investing IRA, the tax-exempt status of the account could be lost if the investment
constitutes a prohibited transaction under Code Section 408(e)(2) by reason of the Affiliate of the Company or the
Manager engaging in the prohibited transaction with the IRA or the individual who established the IRA or his
beneficiary. If the IRA were to lose its tax-exempt status, the entire value of the IRA would be considered to be
distributed and taxable to the IRA sponsor.

REPORTS
The Company will furnish the following reports, statements, and tax information to each Noteholder:

Confirmation of Notes. Upon acceptance of the Subscription Agreement, each Noteholder will receive a
confirmation of the amount of the denomination of his purchase. Although the Notes will be “book-entry” on the
Note Register, Noteholders will receive a note evidencing the Company’s indebtedness to the Noteholders.

Annual Report. Within 120 days after the end of each calendar year, the Company will send to each
Noteholder of record during the previous year: (a) an audited balance sheet for the Company as of the end of such
fiscal year and (b) an audited statement of the Company’s earnings for such fiscal year, along with a year-end status
report.

Tax Information. Within 60 days after the end of each fiscal year, the Company will send to each
Noteholder such tax information as shall be necessary for the preparation of federal income tax returns and state
income and other tax returns with regard to the applicable jurisdictions.

RATING

The Company will not request a rating from Standard and Poor’s Corporation, Moody’s Investor’s Service,
or any other or similar rating company. The Company believes that the benefits of a rating do not justify the costs
associated with a rating for the Notes issued by a new company with no established operating history.
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LITIGATION

There is no action, suit, or proceeding known to be pending or threatened restraining or enjoining the
execution or delivery of the Notes or in any way contesting or affecting the validity of the Notes.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

The Company will answer inquiries from subscribers concerning the Notes, the Company and other matters
relating to the offer and sale of Notes, and the Company will afford subscribers the opportunity to obtain any
additional information to the extent the Company possesses such information or can acquire such information without
unreasonable effort or expense that is necessary to verify the information in this Memorandum.

Subscribers are entitled to review copies of other material contracts relating to the Notes described in this
Memorandum. In the Subscription Agreement, you will represent that you are completely satisfied with the results of
your pre-investment due diligence activities.

GLOSSARY
The definitions of certain terms used in this Memorandum are set forth below:

“Accredited Investor” means, in addition to certain institutional investors, an investor who meets one of the
following tests in which case such investor should qualify as an Accredited Investor:

)] the investor is a natural person who had individual income in excess of $200,000 in each of the two
most recent years, or joint income with that person’s spouse in excess of $300,000 in each of these
years, and has a reasonable expectation of reaching the same income level in the current year; or

)] the investor is a natural person whose individual Net Worth, or joint Net Worth with that person’s
spouse, exceeds $1,000,000 at the time of purchase of the Notes; or

3) the investor is an organization described under Section 501(c)(3) of the Code, a corporation,
Massachusetts or similar business trust or a partnership, not formed for the specific purpose of
acquiring the Notes, with total assets in excess of $5,000,000; or

@ the investor is an entity (including an Individual Retirement Account trust) in which each of the
equity owners is an Accredited Investor as defined above in subparagraphs (1) and (2) above; or

(5) the investor is a trust with total assets in excess of $5,000,000, not formed for the specific purpose
of acquiring the Notes, whose purchase is directed by a “sophisticated person” as defined in Rule
506(b)(2)(ii) of Regulation D under the Securities Act; or

(6) the investor is an employee benefit plan within the meaning of ERISA in which the investment
decision is made by a plan fiduciary (as defined in Section 3(21) of ERISA) which is either a bank,
savings and loan association, insurance company, or registered investment adviser; or the employee
benefit plan has total assets in excess of $5,000,000; or it is a self-directed plan in which investment
decisions are made solely by persons who are Accredited Investors.

“Affiliate(s)” means: (a) any person directly or indirectly controlling, controlled by or under common
control with another person; (b) a person owning or controlling 10% or more of the outstanding voting securities of
such other person; (¢) any officer, director or partner of such other person; and (d) if such other person is an officer,
director or partner, any company for which such person acts in any capacity. The term “person” shall include any
natural person, corporation, partnership, trust, unincorporated association or other legal entity.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

“Company” means Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC, an Idaho limited liability company.
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“Counsel” means Hirschler Fleischer, A Professional Corporation, located in Richmond, Virginia.
“DOL Regulations” means 29 C.F.R. Section 2510.3-101.
“ERISA” means the U.S. federal Employment Rights and Income Security Act, U.S.C. Title 29, Section 18.

“Escrow Agent” means a bank or other financial institutions that satisfies the requirements of Rule 15¢2-4
promulgated under the Exchange Act, as the same is interpreted by FINRA from time to time.

“Event of Default” refers to the occurrence of any of the following: (a) failure to pay the principal on the
Notes when due at maturity, or upon any earlier due date, or upon mandatory redemption at the option of Noteholder,
(b) failure to pay any interest on the Notes for ten days after notice of such default to the Company; (c) failure to
perform any other covenant for ten days after receipt of written notice specifying the default and requiring the
Company to remedy such default; or (c) events of insolvency, receivership, conservatorship or reorganization of the
Company.

“Exhibits” means the exhibits attached to this Memorandum and incorporated herein by this reference.

“FINRA” means the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, Inc.

“Gross Proceeds” means the sum of all money raised by the Company through the sale of Notes pursuant to
this Memorandum.

“IRA” means an Individual Retirement Account.
“IRS” means the Internal Revenue Service.

“Manager” refers to Clearwater REI, LLC. The Manager is sole owner and the initial manager of the
Company. The term shall also refer to any successor or additional Manager, who is properly designated as a Manager.

“Managing Broker-Dealer” means Select Capital Corporation.

“Maximum Offering Amount” means $20,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of Notes, subject to
increase to $40,000,000 at the sole discretion of the Company.

“Memorandum” means this Confidential Private Placement Memorandum and the Exhibits hereto dated
August 29, 2008, as amended or supplemented, pursuant to which the Company is offering the Notes.

“Minimum Offering Amount” means $1,000,000.

“Noteholders” means purchasers of Notes.

“Notes” means the $20,000,000 aggregate principal amount of 9.0% notes due December 31, 2015, subject to
increase to $40,000,000 at the sole discretion of the Company, which will be obligations of the Company the principal
of which will be guaranteed by RE Capital Investments, LLC; however, the Notes will not be secured by collateral.

“Note Register” means the records and documentation retained to track the ownership interest of the Notes.

“Offering” means the offering of Notes by the Company pursuant to the terms and conditions described in
the Memorandum.

“Registrar’” means the Company, which is responsible for keeping track of the Noteholders and maintaining
the Note Register.

“RIA” refers to Registered Investment Advisers.

“Securities Act” means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and the rules and regulation promulgated
thereunder.

“Selling Group” means broker-dealers selected by the Company who are members of the FINRA and who
offer and sell Notes on a “best efforts” basis.

Lo
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“Treasury Regulations” means the United States Treasury Regulations promulgated pursuant to the Code.

“UBTI” means unrelated business taxable income.
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EXHIBIT A

INSTRUCTIONS TO INVESTORS

Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LL.C
9.0% Notes Due December 31, 2015

Please read carefully the Private Placement Memorandum dated August 18, 2008 for the sale of $20,000,000
(subject to. increase to $40,000,000) in aggregate principal amount of 9.0% Notes due December 31, 2015 (“Notes™)
issued by Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC, an Idaho limited liability company (“Company™), as supplemented
from time to time, and all Exhibits thereto (collectively, the “Memorandum”), before deciding to subscribe.
Capitalized terms not defined herein have the meanings set forth in the Memorandum.

Each prospective investor in Notes should examine the suitability of this type of investment in the
context of his/her own needs, investment objectives and financial capabilities and should make his/her own
independent investigation and decision as to suitability and as to the risk and potential gain involved. Also,
each prospective investor in Notes is encouraged to consult with his/her attorney, accountant, financial
consultant or other business or tax advisor regarding the risks and merits of the proposed investment.

This Offering is limited to investors who certify that they meet all of the qualifications set forth in the
Memorandum for the purchase of Notes.

If you meet these qualifications and desire to purchase Notes, then please complete, execute and deliver the
attached Subscription Agreement along with your check, payable to “Home Federal Bank, as Escrow Agent for
Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC” in the amount of the Subscription Payment.

Subscription Agreements and all attachments should be mailed or delivered to the Company at:

Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC
1300 E. State Street, Suite 103
Eagle, ID 83616
Attn: Don Steeves

All funds should be mailed, delivered or wired to:

Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC
1300 E. State Street, Suite 103
Eagle, ID 83616
Attn: Don Steeves

Wire Instructions:
Account Number: 1001001602349
Routing/ABA Number: 324170140
Account Name: Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LL.C

Upon receipt of this signed Subscription Agreement, verification of your investment qualifications and
acceptance of your subscription by the Company (the Company reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to accept or
reject a subscription for any or no reason whatsoever), the Company will notify you of receipt and acceptance of your
subscription.

Important Note: The person or entity actually making the decision to invest in Notes should complete
and execute this Subscription Agreement. For example, retirement plans often hold certain investments in
trust for their beneficiaries, but the beneficiaries may maintain investment control and discretion. In such a
situation, the beneficiary with investment control must complete and execute this Subscription Agreement (this
also applies to trusts, custodial accounts and similar arrangements).
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SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT

Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC
9.0% Notes Due December 31, 2015

This is the offer and agreement (“Subscription Agreement™) of the undersigned to purchase $

(850,000 minimum investment) in principal amount of 9.0% Notes due December 31, 2015 (“Notes”) to be issued
by Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC, an Idaho limited liability company (the “Company™) (“Subscription
Price™), subject to the terms, conditions, acknowledgments, representations and warranties stated herein and in the
Confidential Private Placement Memorandum relating to the offer of up to $20,000,000 (subject to increase to
$40,000,000) in aggregate principal amount in Notes dated August 29, 2008, as supplemented from time to time (the
“Memorandum™). I am including with this Subscription Agreement a check payable to the order of “Home Federal
Bank, as Escrow Agent for Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC” in the amount of § , representing the
Subscription Price for the Notes I am purchasing. All terms utilized herein shall have the same meaning as set forth
in the Memorandum.

In order to induce the Company to accept this Subscription Agreement for Notes and as further
consideration for such acceptance, I hereby make the following acknowledgments, representations and warranties
with the full knowledge that the Company will expressly rely thereon in making a decision to accept or reject this
Subscription Agreement:

1. [ hereby adopt, confirm and agree to all of the covenants, representations and warranties set out in
this Subscription Agreement.

2. My primary state of residence is:

3. My date of birth is: .

4. If 1 am a natural person, I hereby represent and warrant that (check as appropriate):
(@ [, together with my spouse, have a net worth, inclusive of home, home furnishings

and personal automobiles, in excess of $1,000,000; or

(b) I have individual income in excess of $200,000, or joint income with my spouse,

in excess of $300,000, in each of the two most recent years, and I reasonably expect
individual or joint income in excess of that amount in the current year.

5. If other than a natural person, such entity represents and warrants that (check as appropriate):
it is an “accredited investor” as defined in Regulation D promulgated under the Securities
Act of 1933, as amended.
6. If other than a natural person, is such entity a benefit plan qualified under Code Section 401(a), a

benefit plan subject to ERISA, an individual retirement account or arrangement under Code
Section 408 or any other company sponsored employee benefit plan or program?

Yes. No.
7. Neither [ nor any subsidiary, affiliate, owner, shareholder, partner, member, indemnitor, guarantor
or related person or entity:
(a) is a Sanctioned Person (as defined below);
(b) has more than 15% of its assets in Sanctioned Countries (as defined below); or
(c) derives more than 15% of its operating income from investments in, or transactions with

Sanctioned Persons or Sanctioned Countries.

For purposes of the foregoing, a “Sanctioned Person” shall mean (a) a person named on the list of
“specially designated nationals™ or “blocked persons” maintained by the U.S. Office of Foreign
Assets Control (“OFAC™) at http.//www.treas.gov/offices/eotffc/ofac/sdn/index. html, or as
otherwise published from time to time, or (b) (1) an agency of the government of a Sanctioned
Country, (2) an organization controlled by a Sanctioned Country, or (3) a person resident in a
Sanctioned Country, to the extent subject to a sanctions program administered by OFAC. A
“Sanctioned Country” shall mean a country subject to a sanctions program identified on the list
maintained by OFAC and available at
http./fwww.treas.gov/offices/eotfic/ofac/sanctions/index. html, or as otherwise published from time
to time.

8. Under penalties of perjury, [ certify (a) that the number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer
identification number and (b) that I am not subject to backup withholding, either because I have
not been notified that I am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all
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interest or dividends or the Internal Revenue Service has notified me that I am no longer subject to

backup withholding. (Please strike out the language certifying that you are not subject to

backup withholding due to notified payee under-reporting if you have been notified that you

are subject to backup withholding due to notified payee under-reporting, and you have not

received a notice from the Internal Revenue Service advising you that backup withholding
~ has terminated.)

9. I further represent and warrant that such investment is not disproportionate to my income or
available liquid funds and that I further have the capacity to protect my interests in connection
with the purchase of the Notes.

10. 1 (we) wish to own my (our) Notes as follows (check one):

@ Separate or individual property. (In community property states, if the
purchaser is married, his (her) spouse must submit written consent if community
funds will be used to purchase the Notes.)

(b) Husband and Wife as community property. (Community property
states only. Husband and Wife should both sign all required documents unless
advised by their attorney that one signature is sufficient.)

(© Joint Tenants with right of survivorship. (Both parties must sign all
required documents unless advised by their attorneys that one signature is
sufficient.)

(d) Tenants in Common. (Both parties must sign all required documents.)
(e) Trust. (Attach copy of trust instrument and include name of trust, name
of trustee and date trust was formed.)

® Partnership or Limited Liability Company. (Attach copy of articles or
certificate, if any, and partnership agreement or operating agreement and include
evidence of authority for person who executes required documents.)

€3] Husband and Wife with right of survivorship. (Husband and wife
should sign all documents unless other advised by their attorney.)

(h) IRA or Qualified Plan:

@) Other (indicate):

11. If the owner of Notes is an entity (trust, LLC, Partnership, etc.) my relationship to the owning
entity is (trustee, owner, partner, etc.)

Subscriber’s Signature: X Date: _,200_

Subscriber’s Signature: X Date: _ ,200_

1. I understand that in the event this Subscription Agreement is not accepted or, if accepted, the Offering is
subsequently terminated or cancelled then the funds transmitted herewith shall be returned to the undersigned and this
Subscription Agreement shall be terminated and of no further effect. RE Capital, LLC has agreed to guarantee the repayment of
principal under the Notes. By executing this Subscription Agreement, each prospective investor of Notes approves the foregoing,
acknowledges the risks described in the section of the Memorandum entitled “Risk Factors,” and waives those provisions of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, generally governing funds held in escrow prior to closing an offering,

2, I acknowledge that I have received, read and fully understand the Memorandum. I acknowledge that I am
basing my decision to invest in Notes on the Memorandum and I have relied only on the information contained in said materials
and have not relied upon any representations made by any other person. I recognize that an investment in Notes involves
substantial risk and I am fully cognizant of and understand all of the risk factors related to the purchase of Notes, including, but
not limited to, those risks set forth in the sections of the Memorandum entitled “Risk Factors.”

3. My overall commitment to investments that are not readily marketable is not disproportionate to my
individual net worth, and my investment in Notes will not cause such overall commitment to become excessive. I have adequate
means of providing for my financial requirements, both current and anticipated, and have no need for liquidity in this investment.
I can bear and am willing to accept the economic risk of losing my entire investment in Notes.

4. I acknowledge that the sale of Notes has not been accompanied by the publication of any advertisement, any
general solicitation or as the direct result of an investment seminar sponsored by the Company or any of its Affiliates.
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5. All information that I have provided to the Company herein concerning my suitability to invest in Notes is
complete, accurate and correct as of the date of my signature on the last page of this Subscription Agreement. I hereby agree to
notify the Company immediately of any material change in any such information occurring prior to the acceptance of this
Subscription Agreement, including any information about changes concerning my net worth and financial position.

6. I have had the opportunity to ask questions of, and receive answers from, the Company and the Manager
concerning the Company, the creation or operation of the Company or terms and conditions of the offering of Notes, and to
obtain any additional information deemed necessary to verify the accuracy of the information contained in the Memorandum. I
have been provided with all materials and information requested by either me or others representing me, including any
information requested to verify any information furnished to me.

7. I am purchasing Notes for my own account and for investment purposes only and have no present intention,
understanding or arrangement for the distribution, transfer, assignment, resale or subdivision of Notes. I understand that, due to
the restrictions referred to in Paragraph 8 below, and the lack of any market existing or to exist for Notes, my investment in the
Company will be highly illiquid and may have to be held indefinitely.

8. I am fully aware that Notes subscribed for hereunder have not been registered with the Securities and
Exchange Commission in reliance on an exemption specified in Regulation D under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
which reliance is based in part upon my representations set forth herein. I understand that Notes subscribed for herein have not
been registered under applicable state securities laws and are being offered and sold pursuant to the exemptions specified in said
laws, and unless they are registered, they may not be re-offered for sale or resold except in a transaction or as a security exempt
under those laws. 1 further understand that the specific approval of such resales by the state securities administrator may be
required in some states. Notes have not been approved or disapproved by the United States Securities and Exchange
Commission or other regulatory authority, nor have any of the foregoing authorities passed upon or endorsed the merits
of this Offering or the accuracy or adequacy of the Memorandum. Any representation to the contrary is unlawful.

9. I acknowledge that Home Federal Bank is acting solely as escrow holder in connection with the Offering of
Notes, and makes no recommendations with respect thereto. I understand that Home Federal Bank has made no investigation
regarding the Offering, Notes, the Company, the Manager, their Affiliates or their officers and directors, or any other person or
entity involved in the Offering.

10. This Subscription Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of
Idaho without regard to its choice of law provisions.
1. I hereby covenant and agree that any dispute, controversy or other claim arising under, out of or relating to

this Agreement or any of the transactions contemplated hereby, or any amendment thereof, or the breach or interpretation hereof
or thereof, shall be determined and settled in binding arbitration in Boise, Idaho, in accordance with applicable Idaho law, and
with the rules and procedures of The American Arbitration Association. The prevailing party shall be entitled to an award of its
reasonable costs and expenses, including, but not limited to, attorneys’ fees, in addition to any other available remedies. Any
award rendered therein shall be final and binding on each and all of the parties thereto and their personal representatives, and
judgment may be entered thereon in any court of competent jurisdiction. BY EXECUTING THIS AGREEMENT, YOU ARE
AGREEING TO HAVE ALL DISPUTES DECIDED BY NEUTRAL ARBITRATION, YOU ARE GIVING UP ANY
RIGHTS YOU MIGHT POSSESS TO HAVE SUCH DISPUTES LITIGATED IN A COURT OR JURY TRIAL, AND
YOU ARE GIVING UP YOUR JUDICIAL RIGHTS TO DISCOVERY AND APPEAL. IF YOU REFUSE TO SUBMIT
TO ARBITRATION AFTER AGREEING TO THIS PROVISION, YOU MAY BE COMPELLED TO ARBITRATE.
BY EXECUTING THIS AGREEMENT, YOU HEREBY CONFIRM THAT YOUR AGREEMENTS TO THIS
ARBITRATION PROVISION IS YOLUNTARY. .

12. I hereby agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Company, the Manager, their Affiliates and
all of their members, managers, shareholders, officers, employees, affiliates and advisors, from any and all damages,
losses, liabilities, costs and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs) that they may incur by reason of my
failure to fulfill all of the terms and conditions of this Subscription Agreement or by reason of the untruth or inaccuracy
of any of the representations, warranties or agreements contained herein or in any other documents I have furnished to
any of the foregoing in connection with this transaction. This indemnification includes, but is not limited to, any damages,
losses, liabilities, costs and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs) incurred by the Company, the
Manager, their Affiliates and any of their members, managers, shareholders, directors, officers, employees, affiliates or
advisors, defending against any alleged violation of federal or state securities laws which is based upon or related to any
untruth or inaccuracy of any of the representations, warranties or agreements contained herein or in any other
documents I have furnished in connection with this transaction.

13. I hereby acknowledge and agree that : (a) I may not transfer or assign this Subscription Agreement, or any
interest herein, and any purported transfer shall be void; (b) except as specifically described herein, I am not entitled to cancel,
terminate or revoke this Subscription Agreement and that this Subscription Agreement will be binding on my heirs, successors
and personal representatives; provided, however, that if the Company rejects this Subscription Agreement, this Subscription
Agreement shall be automatically canceled, terminated and revoked; (c) this Subscription Agreement and the Memorandum,
together with all attachments and exhibits thereto, constitute the entire agreement among the parties hereto with respect to the
sale of Notes and may be amended, modified or terminated only by a writing executed by all parties (except as provided herein
with respect to rejection of this Subscription Agreement by the Company); (d) within two days after receipt of a written request
from the Company, the undersigned agrees to provide such information and to execute and deliver such documents as may be
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necessary to comply with any and all laws and regulations to which the Company is subject; and (e) the representations and
warranties of the undersigned set forth herein shall survive the sale of Notes pursuant to this Subscription Agreement.
14. I am not making this investment in any manner as a representative of a charitable remainder unitrust or a

charitable remainder trust.

Initial Here Initial Here

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]
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(SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS: In all cases, the person/entity making the investment decision to purchase Notes must complete
and sign the Subscription Agreement. For example, if the form of ownership designated above is a retirement plan for which
investments are directed or made by a third party trustee, then that third party trustee must complete this Subscription
Agreement rather than the beneficiaries under the retirement plan. Investors must list their principal place of residence rather
than their office or other address on the signature page so that the Company can confirm compliance with appropriate
securities laws. If you wish correspondence sent to some address other than your principal residence, please provide a mailing
address in the blank provided below. Additionally, in an attempt to expedite the delivery of material information, the Company
asks (but does not require) that you list a secondary contact source that may be able to reach you, if you are unavailable
through any other reasonable means listed below.)

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I (we) has executed this Subscription Agreement this day of ,200__

A. REGISTRATION Please print the exact name (registration) investor desires on account:
INFORMATION

or
CUSTODIAN
INFORMATION
(if applicable)
Send ALL paperwork directly  Mailing address:
to the custodian

E-mail address:

B. INVESTOR Please send all investor correspondence to the following:
INFORMATION
Name:

Address:
Investor Phone: Business ( ) Home: ( ).
Investor Fax: Business () Home: ()

Primary State of Residence:

Social Security or Federal Tax ID Number:

C. SECONDARY If the Company is unable to contact the Subscriber directly through any reasonable means
CONTACT provided by the Subscriber hereby, please contact the following individual who will be instructed
INFORMATION by Subscriber to inform him/her that Subscriber should contact the Company as expeditiously as
(OPTIONAL) possible:

Secondary Contact Name:

Secondary Contact Address:

Secondary Contact Phone: Business (__) Home: ()
Secondary Contact Fax: Business (__) Home: (__)

D. ELECTION TO If you wish to participate in the Interest Reinvestment Program, please initial here:

PARTICIPATE IN

INTEREST If you wish to receive monthly distributions of interest, please initial here:

REINVESTMENT

PROGRAM You will have the opportunity twice annually (January 15® and July 15™) to change your election
by giving written notice thereof to the Company not less than 30 days prior to the date on which
the election may be changed.

D. SIGNATURES THE UNDERSIGNED HAS THE AUTHORITY TO ENTER INTO THIS SUBSCRIPTION
ASSE/IISSMENT ON BEHALF OF THE PERSON(S) OR ENTITY REGISTERED IN A.
A .

Executed this day of ,200_, at
X

Signature (Investor, or authorized signatd‘ry)

X

Signature (Investor, or authorized signatory)
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E. SUBMIT Mail the executed Subscription Agreement to:
SUBSCRIPTION
Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC
1300 E. State Street, Suite 103
Eagle, ID 83616
Attn: Don Steeves

The check (make payable to “Home Federal Bank, as Escrow Agent for Clearwater 2008 Note
Program, LL.C”) or funds should be wired, mailed or delivered to:

All funds should be delivered or wired to: Wire Instructions:
Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC Account Number: 1001001602349
1300 E. State Street, Suite 103 Routing/ABA Number: 324170140
Eagle, ID 83616 Account Name: Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC

Attn: Don Steeves
Subscription Accepted:
Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC
By: Clearwater REI, LLC

an Idaho limited liability company
Its: Manager

By: Date:
Name:
Its:
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BROKER/DEALER REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

Purchaser suitability requirements have been established by “Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC” (the “Project™) and
fully disclosed in its Private Placement Memorandum dated August 29, 2008 (the “Memorandum) under “Who May Invest.”
Before recommending purchase of membership interests in the Project being offered pursuant to the Memorandum (the
“Interests™), we have reasonable grounds to believe, on the basis of information supplied by the subscriber concerning his, her or its
investment objectives, other investments, financial situation and needs, and other pertinent information that: (i) the subscriber is an
accredited investor as defined in Section 501(a) of Regulation D and meets the investor suitability requirements set forth in the
Memorandum; (ii) the subscriber has a net worth and income sufficient to sustain the risks inherent in the Interests, including loss
of investment and lack of liquidity; and (iii) the Interests are otherwise a suitable investment for the subscriber. We will maintain in
our files documents disclosing the basis upon which the suitability of this subscriber was determined.

We verify that the above subscription either does not involve a discretionary account or, if so, that the subscriber’s prior
written approval was obtained relating to the liquidity and marketability of the Interests during the term of the purchase.

Broker/Dealer Firm Name

Registered Representative Name

Registered Representative’s BRANCH ADDRESS

Representative Phone Number
Representative Facsimile Number
Representative Email Address:

Broker/Dealer Firm BRANCH Phone Number:
Broker/DealAer Firm BRANCH Facsimile Number:

The Registered Representative Firm is licensed in the state in which the investor resides: Yes /No

Registered Representative Signature

Broker Dealer Authorized Principal

Print Name
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EXHIBIT B

Balance Sheet of Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC
as of
December 31, 2008
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Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC
Balance Sheet
as of 8/15/2008

ASSETS

CASH $1,000

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY

Common stock - $1 par value; 100 shares authorized; $100
100 shares issued and outstanding

Additional Paid-in Capital $300

$1,000
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EXHIBIT C

Balance Sheet of RE Capital Investments, LLC
as of
July 31,2008
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9:01 PM

08/25/08
Accrual Basis

RE Capital Investments, LLC

Balance Sheet
As of July 31, 2008

Jul 31,08
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings .
Bank of America Checking - 357 3,144.28
Cash Reserve 250,000.00
US Bank 104,029.29
Total Checking/Savings 357,173.57
Total Current Assets 357,173:57
Fixed Assets ‘
Long Term Assets
Investments - Partnerships 25,500,000.00
Land Investments (net of 3rd pa 2,000,000.00 ‘
Total Long Term Assets 27,500,000.00
Total Fixed Assets 27,500,000.00
Other Assets
Investment
CCS Trop-215,LLC 1,600,000.00
Horseshoe Bend 400 (Program 1) 6,400,000.00
ICP - Serene Meadows (20%) 1,600,000.00 1
Idaho Partners (Baymont) 105,000.00
New Meadows 6,400,000.00 '
Sangerll 2,640,000.00
Silver Mountain LL.C (30%) 480,000.00
Tres Rios Equity Partne (64.4%) 2,640,000.00
WhiteCloud / New Meadow (62%) 1,984,000.00
Total Investment 23,849,000.00
Note Receivables ‘
Clearwater - Bunker Hill 436,831.04
Clearwater - MAC 73,500.00
Clearwater Lodging
Additional Capital Interest 25,000.00
Initial Capital Interest 400,000.00
Clearwater Lodging - Other 1,540,000.00
Total Clearwater Lodging 1,965,000.00 ,
Clearwater REI LLC 458,763.00 ;
Cude-Barnett 80,000.00
Heritage Lands LLC -Future Inte 342,357.96
Horseshoe Bend - 3200 Acres 465,209.16
ldaho Capital Partners LLC 250,000.00
Sandpoint Condos 56,000.00
Silver Mountain LLC 300,000.00
Tres Rios Equity Partners 516,334.00
Trop-215 Developer LLC 485,171.17
Total Note Receivables 5,429,166.33
Total Other Assets 29,278,166.33
TOTAL ASSETS

57,135,339.90

C-2
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9:01 PM

Balance Sheet
As of July 31, 2008

08/25/08
Accrual Basis

RE Capital Investments,

LLC

Jul 31, 08
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Long Term Liabilities
Notes Payable
DH 300,000.00
Diamond B Asset Management 568,650.19
Heritage Lands LLC 2,375,000.00
Interest Payable 46,763.00
Terron Investments Inc. 569,000.00
TH 300,000.00 :
Total Notes Payable 4,159,413.19
Total Long Term Liabilities 4,159,413.19
Total Liabilities 4,159,413.19
Equity
Land Equity 12,840,000.00
Partnership Equity 40,454,000.00
Retained Earnings -314,176.01
Net Income -3,897.28
Total Equity 52,975,926.71
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 57,135,339.90
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EXHIBITD

Gusaranty

In order to induce each prospective purchaser (each a “Noteholder” and collectively the “Noteholders”) of
9.0% Notes due December 31, 2015 (each a “Note” and collectively the ‘“Notes”) issued by Clearwater 2008 Note
Program, LLC (the “Company”) to purchase the Notes, the Guarantor hereby unconditionally guarantees the payment
of the original principal amount of the Notes as provided therein. This Guaranty shall remain in full force throughout
the term of the Notes.

Guarantor hereby waives notice of acceptance of this Guaranty and all other notices in connection herewith
or in conhection with the liabilities, obligations and duties guaranteed hereby, including notices fo them of default by
the Company under the Notes.

The Guarantor shall operate its business in a manner that, in light of its business judgment, maximizes its
ability to perform its obligations under this Guaranty. The Guarantor’s net worth will at all times during the term of
the Guaranty be niaintained at $54,000,000 subject te increase in pro rata up to $78,000,000 if the Company increases
the offering amount of Notes.

Guarantor further agrees to the extent permitted by law, to pay any costs or expenses, including the
reasonable fees of an attorney, incutred by the Noteholders in enforcing this Guaranty.

Guarantor acknowledges that the Noteholders may, by simple majority vote or consent, appoint one of them
or a third-party attorney or agent, to prosecute the Noteholders’ rights hereunder and such party shall be entitled to
bring any suit, action or procceding against the undersigned for the enforcement of any provision of this Guaranty on
behalf of all Noteholders and it shall not be necessary in any such suit, action or proceeding to make each Noteholder
a party thereto.

This Guaranty is not assignable, and shall be binding upon Guarantor, its legal representatives, permitted
successors and assigns, and shall inure to the benefit of each Noteholder and its successors and assigns on a pro rata
basis, calculated upon each Noteholder’s share of the Notes. This Guaranty shall be governed by and construed and
enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Idaho,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Guarantor has caused this Guaranty to be executed as follows:
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No dealer, salesman or any other person has been
authorized to give any information or to make any
representations other than the information and
representations contained in this Memorandum in
connection with the offer made hereby, and, if given
or made, such information and representations must
not be relied upon as having been authorized by the
Company. This Memorandum does not constitute an
offer to sell, or a solicitation of an offer to buy, any of
the Notes offered hereby to any person in any
Jurisdiction in which such offer or solicitation would
be unlawful. Neither the delivery of this
Memorandum nor any sale made hereunder shall,
under any circumstances, create any implication that
there has been no change in the affairs of the
Company since any of the dates as of which
information is furnished herein or since the date
hereof.
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SECOND SUPPLEMENT TO

CONFIDENTIAL PRIVATE PLACEMENT MEMORANDUM

CLEARWATER 2008 NOTE PROGRAM, LLC
$20,000,000 9.0% Notes
(Subject to increase to $40,000,000)

Minimum Investment: $50,000
Minimum Offering Amount: $1,000,000
Maximum Offering Amount: $20,000,000 (Subject to increase to $40,000,000)

Dated: June 30, 2009

: This Second Supplement (the “Second Supplement”) is designed to update, through June 30, 2009, the information previously
provided in the Confidential Private Placement Memorandum dated August 29, 2008 (the “Memorandum”), which described the Offering
by Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC (the “Company”) of up to $20,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of 9.0% Notes due
December 31, 2015, subject to increase to $40,000,000, and the First Supplement to the Memorandum dated October 3, 2008 (the “First
Supplement”) (as so supplemented, with all Exhibits to the Memorandum and the First Supplement, the “Offering Memorandum”).
Capitalized terms used herein without definition shall have the meaning ascribed to them in the Offering Memorandum.,

This Second Supplement is being furnished for your information on a confidential basis so that you may consider an investment
in the Notes described in the Offering Memorandum and herein and should be read together with the Offering Memorandum. This Second
Supplement is not to be reproduced or used for any other purpose. No person has been authorized to make any statement concerning the
Offering other than as set forth in the Offering Memorandum and herein, and any such statement, if made, should not be relied upon. The
Notes will not be registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), or any other securities laws. Notes will
be offered for investment purposes only pursuant to exemptions from the registration provisions provided under Regulation D of the
Securities Act. There will be no public market for the Notes. There are significant risks associated with the Offering. See the Section
entitled “Risk Factors” in the Offering Memorandum, as supplemented by this Second Supplement.

The Offering Memorandum, as supplemented by this Second Supplement, is not an offer to sell, or a solicitation of an offer to
purchase Notes, and no Notes shall be offered or sold to any person in any jurisdiction in which such offer, solicitation, purchase or sale
would be unlawful under the securities laws of such jurisdiction. The Offering Memorandum, -as supplemented by this Second
Supplement, has not been filed with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”), any securities administrator under
state securities laws or any other governmental or self-regulatory authority. None of the SEC, any state securities administrators or
governmental or self-regulatory authorities have passed on the merits of the Offering or the adequacy of the Offering Memorandum as
supplemented by this Second Supplement. Any representation to the contrary is unlawful.

This Second Supplement describes updated information and should be read in its entirety by each investor.

[BALANCE OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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OFFERING MEMORANDUM

w

The following information described in the Offerﬁlg Memorandum is hereby modified and supplemented as follows:

(@ The Balance Sheet of RE Capital Investments, LLC as of July 31, 2008 attached to the Memorandum as Exhibit C has
been updated through December 31, 2008. The Balance Sheet of RE Capital Investments, LLC as of December 31, 2008 is attached to
this Second Supplement as Exhibit A

®) As of the date of this Second Supplement, the Company has made three loans using proceeds of the Offering: Certain of
the terms of those loans are as follows:

Property: Florence Hospital Legends 19 North Seattle Condos
Location: Florence, AZ ‘ Raymore, MO Kenmore, WA

Loan Amount: $6,160,000 $1,562,000 $3,745,740

Loan Date: * , February 6, 2009 March 5, 2009 June 29, 2009
Appraised Value: $10,995,000 (As Is) $2,296,000 $8,000,000

Loan to-Value (LTV)  56.03% 65.19% 46.82%

Interest Rate: 14% 14% . 14%

Origination Fee: 4% 4% . 4%

Term: 12 months 4 months 6 months

(©) The relationship of the Company, the Manager and RE Capital Investments, LLC to each other, and their respective
owners, is as follows: .

¢ RE Capital Investments, LLC owns 55.84% of Clearwater
*  Ronald D. Meyer owns 100% of Terron Investments, Inc., which owns 50% of RE Capital Investments, LLC

»  Christopher J. Benak owns 100% of Diamond B- Asset Management, Inc., which owns the other 50% of RE
Capital Investments, LLC

e Barton Cole Cochran owns 100% of Leap, Inc., which owns 19 58% of Clearwater
e Chad J ames Hansen owns 100% of Green Jacket Investments, Inc which owns 19.58% of Clearwater
¢ A former employee of Clearwater owns the remaining 5% of Clearwater

@ On September 4, 2008, an investor in several real estate development projects, including a project located in California
and managed by Ronald Meyer, filed a complaint and statement of claim in arbitration in the Superior Court of the State of California
against several individual and corporate defendants, including Mr. Meyer. The allegations in the complaint include claims of state law
corporate securities fraud, breach of fiduciary duty, conversion, intentional misrepresentation, negligent misrepresentation and unfair
business practices, among other claims, in connection with Mr. Meyer’s involvement in, and alleged representations with respect
to, certain real estate projects, as well as the activities of other defendants with respect to projects unrelated to Mr. Meyer. The claimant is
seeking money damages, in addition to other remedies. Mr. Meyer and the other named defendants believe the lawsuit is without any
merit and fully deny and are vigorously defending the claimant’s allegations. Mr. Meyer believes that he will be successful in defending
the lawsuit. The court has not made any ruling on the merits of the claimant's complaint.

(e) Bart Cochran, who was formerly the Company s Vice President of Acquisitions & Operations, is now the Company’s
President. Chad Hansen, who was formerly the Company’s Vice President of Finance, is now the Company’s Chief Financial Officer.

® The Offering Termination Date is hereby extended to December 31, 2009. The Manager reserves the right to further
extend the Offering for an additional 12 months to December 31, 2010 in its sole discretion. '

The information in this Second Supplement supersedes any information to the contrary provided in the Offering Memorandum.

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - The Private Placement Memorandum for the Offering of Notes consists of this sticker,
the Memorandum dated August 29, 2008, the First Supplement to the Memorandum dated QOctober 3, 2008 and this'Second Supplement
dated June 30, 2009, which supplements, modifies, and supersedes some of the information contained in the Memorandum and the First

Supplement. 000114
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" Accrual Basis

EXHIBIT A

RE Capital Investments, LLC

Balance Sheet

As of December 31, 2008

ASSETS
Current Assets -
Checking/Savings
Bank of America Checklng 357
Cash Reserve
US Bank

Total Checking/Savings

Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets
Long Term Assets .
Investments ~ Partnerships
Land Investments (net of 3rd pa

Total Long Term Assets

Total Fixed Assets

Other Assets
Investment
CCS Trop-215, LLC
Clearwater REIl (Star)
Horseshoe Bend 400 (Program 1)
ICP - Serene Meadows (20%)
ldaho Partners (Baymont)
" New Meadows-
Sangerll -
Silver Mountain LLC (30%)
Tres Rios Equity Partne (64.4%)

WhiteCloud / New Meadow (62%) -

. Total Investment

" Note Receivables
Clearwater - Bunker Hill
Clearwater - MAC
Clearwater Lodging
Additional Capital Interest
- Initlal Capital Interest
Clearwater Lodging - Other

Total Glearwaterl.odging

Clearwater REI LLC

Cude-Barnett .

Heritage Lands LLC -Future Inte
. Horseshoe Bend ~ 3200 Acres

{daho Capital Partners LLC

Sandpoint Condos )

Siiver Mountaln LLC

Tres Rios Equity Partners

Trop-215 Developer LLC °

Total Note Recelvables
Total Other Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Long Term Liabilities
Notes Payable
Clearwater REI (Star)

2nd Supplement - 3

Dec 31, 08

-1,950.66

250,000.00
3,679.38

251,728.72 °

261,728.72

25,500,000.00
2,000,000.00

27,500,000.00

27,500,000.00

1,600,000.00
3,375,000.00
6,400,000.00
1,600,00000 -
105,000.00

6,400,000.00
2,640,000.00

- 480,000.00
2,640,000.00
1;984,000.00

27,224,000.00

436,831.04
73,500.00

'25,000,00
400,000.00
1,540,000,00

1,965,000.00

458,763.00
80,000,00
342,357.96
465,200.16
350,040.00
56,000.00

. 300,000.00
516,334.00
48517117

5,529,206.33

32,753,206.33

60,504,935.05

2,335,000.00
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EXHIBIT A (Continued) -

‘AccrualBasis ..~ REGapital Investments, LLG

Balance Sheet
As of December 31, 2008

DH

. Dec 31,08

Diamond B Asset Management

Heritage Lands LLC
Interest Payable

Terron Investments Inc. .

TH
Total Notes Payable

Total Long Term Liabllities

Tot_al Liabilities

Equity -

Land Equity
Partnership Equity
Retained Earnings

" NetlIncome

Total Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY -

*300,000.00
434,650.19
2,475,000.00
48,763.00
619,000.00
300,000.00

- 6,510,413.19

6,510,413.19

6,510,413.19

12,840,000.00
41,494,000.00
-314,176.01
-25,302.13

" 53,094,521.86 -

60,504,935.05

2nd Supplement - 4
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FIRST SUPPLEMENT TO

CONFIDENTIAL PRIVATE PLACEMENT MEMORANDUM

CLEARWATER 2008 NOTE PROGRAM, LLC
$20,000,000 9.0% Notes
(Subject to increase to $40,000,000)

Minimum Investment: $50,000
Minimum Offering Amount: $1,000,000
Maximum Offering Amount: $20,000,000 (Subject to increase to $40,000,000)

Dated: October 3, 2008

This First Supplement (the “First Supplement”) is designed to update, through October 3, 2008, the information previously
provided in the Confidential Private Placement Memorandum dated August 29, 2008 (the “Memorandum™), which described the Offering
by Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC (the “Company™) of up to $20,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of 9.0% Notes due
December 31, 2015, subject to increase to $40,000,000 (as so supplemented, with all Exhibits to the Memorandum and the Addendum,
the “Offering Memorandum”). Capitalized terms used herein without definition shall have the meaning ascribed to them in the Offering
Memorandum.

This First Supplement is being furnished for your information on a confidential basis so that you may consider an investment in
the Notes described herein and in the Memorandum and should be read together with the Memorandum. This First Supplement is not to
be reproduced or used for any other purpose. No person has been authorized to make any statement concerning the Offering other than as
set forth in the Memorandum, and any such statement, if made, should not be relied upon. The Notes will not be registered under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), or any other securities laws. Notes will be offered for investment purposes
only pursuant to exemptions from the registration provisions provided under Regulation D of the Securities Act. There will be no public
market for the Notes. There are significant risks associated with the Offering. See the Section entitled “Risk Factors” in the
Memorandum, as supplemented by this First Supplement.

The Memorandum is not an offer to sell, or a solicitation of an offer to purchase, and no Notes shall be offered or sold to any
person in any jurisdiction in which such offer, solicitation, purchase or sale would be unlawful under the securities laws of such
jurisdiction. The Offering Memorandum has not been filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, any securities administrator
under state securities laws or any other governmental or self-regulatory authority. None of the SEC, any securities administrators or
governmental or self-regulatory authority have passed on the merits of the Offering or the adequacy of the Offering Memorandum. Any
representation to the contrary is unlawful.

This First Supplement describes updated information and should be read in its entirety by each investor.

[BALANCE OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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OFFERING MEMORANDUM

The following information described in the Offering Memorandum is hereby modified and supplemented as follows:

The Company will hold all proceeds of the Offering and all principal amounts repaid to the Company during the term of the
program in a bank control account for the benefit of the Noteholders. Funds will be released from the bank control account only upon
receipt by bank of approval of a loan from the Company’s Investment Committee in accordance with the requirements described in the
Memorandum, upon receipt of notice of demand for liquidation of a Noteholder’s Note pursuant to the Memorandum, upon receipt of
notice that the Company is exercising its right to prepay all or some portion of the Notes, upon receipt of notice that the Company is
transferring the proceeds held in the bank control account from the bank to an alternative and more stable financial institution, or upon
the maturity of the Notes.

The first paragraph on page 3 of the Memorandum is deleted in its entirety and is replaced with the following:

This Memorandum contains a limited discussion of tax issues that may be associated with an
investment in the Notes by a qualified plan, an IRA or other tax exempt entity. See “INVESTMENT BY
QUALIFIED PLANS AND INDIVIDUAL RETIREMENT ACCOUNTS.”

The Company intends to provide Noteholders with the information described in the section of the Memorandum entitled
“Reports — Annual Report” within 60 days following the end of each calendar year. The Company will provide Noteholders with the
information described in the section of the Memorandum entitled “Reports — Tax Information” within the time periods mandated for the
delivery of such information by the relevant taxing authority (i.e., 1099s will be delivered not later than January 31). Any and all
statements that are inconsistent with the foregoing, and in particular the statements to the contrary contained in the sections of the
Memorandum entitled “Reports — Annual Report” and “Reports — Tax Information” are superseded hereby.

Peter Cooper, Senior Vice President of Sales will assume the role of Director of Sales and Broker Dealer Relations for
Clearwater REI, LLC. Mr. Cooper has thirty years of experience in the securities industry and long-term relationships with key industry
contacts. Don Steeves, former National Sales Director and Director of Broker Dealer Relations, concluded his employment with
Clearwater REI, LL.C and is pursuing other opportunities within the real estate and securities industry.

The section of the Memorandum entitled Business Plan is hereby deleted in its entirety and superseded by the following:

The Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC was organized to offer 9% Notes due December 31, 2015, in an
aggregate principal amount up to $20,000,000, which amount may be increased to $40,000,000 at the sole
discretion of the Company. The net proceeds from the investment monies will be placed in a bank control
account. The Company will use said proceeds from the offering of Notes to provide first mortgage financing
for real estate acquisition and development projects undertaken by Clearwater REI, LLC, its Affiliates and
other borrowers who satisfy the lending criteria established by the Company. Such projects may include,
without limitation, acquisition, entitlement, and development of, and construction on, undeveloped real
property, and the purchase or refinance of existing real estate assets. It is anticipated that the average overall
investment breakdown of the proceeds during the life of the program will be in the following ranges, subject
to a combined cap of an average of 100%.

Opportunistic Purchases:

30% - 50% will be lent to Affiliates to purchase undervalued real estate in today’s current market. These
opportunities will be purchased from banks’ real estate holdings, distressed sellers, and large development
portfolios. The Company is already being presented with numerous opportunities.

Affiliate Loans (RE Capital):

10% - 20% into new projects or construction/development of existing affiliate projects. Note funds will not
be used for the refinance of existing affiliate projects. Though we are proud of the projects that have been
completed or are in the process of being completed, the Company commits that all funds raised in this
program will be going to new projects or the construction/development of existing projects that the principals
of the Company will invest in personally.

1st Supplement - 2
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Loans to 3rd Parties:

10% - 20% of the 2008 note funds will be used to provide short term lending to 3" Parties. These loans will
be short in maturity and target diverse property types. Opportunities frequently arise with unrelated parties
that own real estate projects that banks are unwilling to finance because of the current debt market. With this
note program, the Company may make loans secured by such properties to 3" parties.

Debt Purchases:

30% - 50% in debt purchases from portfolios, banks, and the FDIC. These loans will retain original
borrowers, guarantors, terms and remain fully enforceable. The purchase of existing debt from institutions
allows us to “cherry pick” performing and discounted face value loans from groups looking to sell such loans
and remove them from their balance sheets. The current regulatory market has put immense pressure on
local, regional, and national banks to sell off existing real estate mortgages to increase liquidity. Additionally,
our relationship with large mortgage portfolio buyers and hedge funds allows us to select a handful of assets
without being burdened with the mixed bag that usually is included in these mortgage sales. This opportunity
also allows for the Company to diversify the note program holdings.

Clearwater 2008 Note Program LLC

R RE Capital
Debt Purchases Fund Allocation j
{portfolios & failed (n(:u;_prof: -
" efinance,
anks) development &
construction)

Opportunistic
Loans to 3rd Parties Purchases
{small, short term {deeply discounted
loans) real estate)

The Company’s loans will be collateralized by a first position Mortgage or first Deed of Trust only. The
Company expects that loans will be diversified around the country though most opportunities will be in the
West since that is where the Company is headquartered.

Some attractive real estate investment opportunities require that the transaction be closed within a timeframe
shorter than that typically required to secure bank or other forms of financing. The Company may use the
proceeds from the offering of Notes to provide the capital required in lieu of bank or other financing.
Following closing, the Company intends to put permanent debt or equity in place following the acquisition or
development and/or the properties will be soid making the Company’s note funds revolving.

Investment Committee

Each proposed loan will be evaluated by a four member Investment Committee. The four member Investment
Committee now consists of current principal members of Clearwater REI, LLC, namely: Ron Meyer, Chris
Benak, Bart Cochran and Chad Hansen. The Investment Committee will apply the criteria detailed below in
making a decision about whether to fund any proposed loan. No loan will be made by the Company without
the prior approval of the Investment Committee. See the “Management of the Company — The Manager —
Investment Committee™ section in the PPM.

1st Supplement - 3
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Investment Criteria
In order to qualify for loans from the Company, each borrowing entity will be required to provide a loan
request detailing its needs, and will be required to satisfy additional requirements.

The primary financial requirement is that the maximum loan to value, at the time that each loan is made, is no
greater than the following:

=  Pre-entitled land/raw ground — LTV not to exceed 65%
= Entitled land — LTV not to exceed 75%
»  Construction and existing commercial or residential structures — LTV not to exceed 80%

The loan to value ratio will be defined by an MAI appraisal. In the absence of an MAI appraisal, the loan to
value ratio will be evidenced by a broker’s opinion of value or by the Company’s determination of value
through the utilization of industry acceptable valuation methods. Other requirements that must be met by
each borrowing entity will be at the discretion of the Investment Committee. The loan will be secured as a
first position Mortgage or first position Deed of Trust on real property.

Documentation Required
The Investment Committee will require, at a minimum, the following documentation:

Phase I, environmental questionnaire, or soils report (Investment Committee’s discretion)
Appraisal or Opinion of Value (Investment Committee’s discretion)

= Borrower Financial Statements
»  Budgets or Pro-forma

=  Projections

= Operating Statements

= Title & Survey

L]

[ ]

Construction & Development Lending

According to the Investment Criteria, construction and development lending will have a maximum of 80%
loan to value. This metric is to be kept at all times during the construction process. An appraisal will be
completed prior to the funding of the project to determine the “as completed” value of the property. Funds
will be released only as the construction process moves forward - no funds will be pre-drawn.

Committed development funds will be held in an escrow account to be disbursed once the following has been
completed:

*  Draw request form has been completed

= Lien Waivers from all vendors have been executed

»  Construction inspection has been made by Clearwater verifying draw request and percentage
completion.

1st Supplement - 4
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Loan Process & Life C,..e
The following chart depicts the life cycle of loans made by the Company.

Investment deposited in
bank controt account

AN

Clearwater 2008 Note Program h tnvestment Committee

FirstDeed of Trust
LTV < 65%: pre-entitied land
LTV < 75%: entitled land
« LTV < 80%: constructionand
% % existing commercial

Loan Payoff

The information in this First Supplement supersedes any information to the contrary provided in the Offering Memorandum.

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - The Private Placement Memorandum for the Offering of Notes consists of this sticker,
the Memorandum dated August 29, 2008 and this First Supplement dated October 3, 2008, which supplements, modifies, and supersedes
some of the information contained in the Memorandum.

#2207310v4  033853.00025
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. 1300 E. STATE STREET, STE 103
CLEARWATER A o 1208 094488

- Ph (208) 639-4488
/‘_\(o—ﬁ ) ) (866} 217-4906

REAL ESTATE IN\'ESTMENT:S L) . Fox {208) $39-143)

www _clecrwaterrei.com

February 01, 2010

RE: Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC (PPM Kit)
Dear Mark Boling:

Enclosed, please find the Private Placement Memorandum (PPM) for the Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC.

The Clearwater 2008 Note Program offers investors predictable monthly income with an option to reinvest their
interest thereby compounding their return. Some of the differences between the Clearwater 2008 Note Program
and other fixed income type investments include but are not limited to the following:

» 9% Annual interest (paid monthly)

» All Note proceeds used to make loans are collateralized by First Mortgages/Deeds of Trust

» Guarantor: RE Capital Investments, LLC (120% net asset coverage on the Principal Only Corporate

Guaranty)

» Annual audits by independent CPA firm

» Reinvestment Option (interest compounded monthly)

» Liquidity: Annually, limited to 10% of offering proceeds

» Suitable for Qualified Plans (No UBTI)

» Suitability: Accredited Investors Only

If you should have any questions or need assistance with the enclosed information, please feel free to contact
your wholes_ale representative using the information provided below and they will gladly assist you.

Thanks for your consideration to Clearwater and we look forward to serving you and your valued clients.

Sincerely, )
Clearwater Real Estate Investments

REAL ESTATE INVESTMENTS

Q ) CLEARWATER

Rob Ruebel

- Regional Vice President of Sales

Office: 208.639.4493
Mobile: 208.407.5881
rob@clearwaterrei.com
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Clearwater Real Estate Investments

1300 E State Street | Eagle, Idaho 83616 Clearwater )08 Note Program

866.217.4506 | www.clearwaterrei.com

D) Investment Summary ACCREDITED INVESTORS ONLY

» Overview

The Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC (the “Company”) primary THHAL OFFERING

business strategy is to use the net proceeds from the offering of the Notes $ 2 0 000 000
to provide first mortgage financing for real estate acquisition and
development projects undertaken by Clearwater REI, LLC, its Affiliates and IR
other borrowers who satisfy the lending criteria established by the $50 ,000
Company. The Notes are backed by first liens and also include a corporate ANNUAL INTEREST RATE
guaranty. As additional safeguards to preserve investor capital, this
program is governed by strict guidelines set forth in the third party escrow 9.0(%)

control agreement and undergoes an annual audit by a reputable DISTRIBUTION PERIOD

Monthly

MATURITY DATE ™

independent CPA firm.

» Investment Highlights
» 9% Annual interest (paid monthly) 12/31/2015 =

» All Note proceeds used to make loans are collateralized by First
Mortgages/Deeds of Trust

» Guarantor: RE Capital Investments, LLC (120% net asset coverage on the
Principal Only Corporate Guaranty)

» Annual audits by independent CPA firm

» Reinvestment Option (interest compounded monthly)

» Liquidity: Annually, limited to 10% of offering proceeds beginning 12/31/2010
» Suitable for Qualified Plans (No UBT]I)

» Suitability: Accredited Investors Only

Manager

Clearwater:Real’ Estate tnvestmnts has Ieveraged its ralabonshlp with its affiliates to acc:eSS a portfolio. of over $1.billion of
commercial and rpsldenbal projects located in California, Idaho, Nevada and Arizona. The Principals have over 20 years of real
| estate expenen - broven track: record_ which includes raw land, entitlements, improvements,- oonstrucnon and sale of
| residential subdwlsio : mduslnal oﬂice hotel, .condo. and master planned commumties

Ciearwater’s afﬁhates cun’enﬁy control over 544 thousand square feet in mmmermal reai &state and have 264 ras.ldentla{ :and office
condominium units, own. and operate 3 hotels with 31 7 rooms and have a management contract with a resort and golf club.

In fotal, the Compang and lts_alﬁitatas have current proje_cts in various stages of mplehon valued at approximately $410 million.

Securities offered through Select Capital Corporation Member FINRA/SIPC /—\ f"...-..") CLEAR‘,\ I’XTER
3070 Bristol Street, Ste 500, Costa Mesa, CA 52626 | 8566.699.5338 \_/(_/_ rear cWQUOOEZ4 vesruexts




Clearwater Real Estate Investments

1300 E State Street | Eagle, Idaho 83616 Cleal‘wal 2008 Note Pr ogram

866.217.4906 | www.clearwaterrei.com

» Investment Summary ACCREDITED INVESTORS ONL

thly tadmterastwilbegrntoaccmemterestasofns
paymeni dats nd wﬂ! be aompoundad at the-annual rate of 9 0%.

Annual Annual Annual C;:::::Ld Annual $ Cumulative $
Principal Dollar Cumulative Principal Interest Rate  Avallable for Amount
Year Amount ~ Rate Return - Dollar Return | Year  Amount 3 ___Reinvestment _ Reinvested
1~ $100000.  900% =  $9000 .  $6,000 L1 100,000  9.38% . $9,381 $9.381
2 $100,000 9. $9,000 S‘IB 000 2 ~$100,000 10.26% $10,261  $19,641
3 $100,000 ‘39000 $37.000 3 $100000 - 11.22% $11,223 $30,865
B $100,000 $9,000  $36,000 4 $100,000 12.28% $12,276 $43,141
5 $100,000 $9,000 . $45000 5 $100000.  13.43% $13.428 $56,568
6 $100,000 9.00% $9,000 $54,000 6 $100,000 14.69% $14,687 $71,255
7 $100,000 900%  $9,000  $63.000 7 $100,000  16.06% $16,065 $87,320
Avg Annual Return: 9.00% Total: $63,000 Avg Annual Return: 12.47% Total: $87,320

To Achieve Projections Above:

(1) Assumes investment is held for entire projected term. Interest rate of 9.0% is cumulative, non-compounding annual interest rate.

(2) Assumes investment is held for entire projected term. Compounded rate calculated as a percent return based on original investment amount and averaged over each
additional year.

(3) Rate based on original investment and compounded monthly. Rate represents entire 12-month compounded annual return.

IMPORTANT DISCLAIMER:

The information contained herein is for informational purposes only about a potential investment that may or may not be offered at a later date
pursuant to the terms of the Private Placement Memorandum. This material contains projections and assumptions based on current information
and may change af a later date. This material does not constitute an offer to sell nor a solicitation to buy any security. Such offers can be made only
by the Confidential Private Placement Memorandum. This material cannot and does not replace the Confidential Private Placement Memorandum.

These investments invoive a high degree of risk and are highly speculative; investors should refer to the "Risk Factors® of the Memorandum. There

is no_assurance or. guaramee that the Gash flow, proﬁfs or capltal of the Company will be sulﬁmanl to pay all interest and repay principal on the
Notes. AT : ;

RISKFACTORS: /- 1 a1 S s S0

» there is no cenam}y astomvash'nemm Notqs bemgpmf&able

» undaﬂymgrlsksmhefenttothemdmtiw!real st pirqéc:sforwnmumpmeedaareusad including the risks associated with residential and
commerua{davelopmem; : 7 T

» risks of national, Tegional, andbca!eoonomtodmnh:m

» the Notesarenotadworsdiad investment; ancl :

» there are various emﬂrctsoflnteras!amongm Company the Manager and their Affiliates.

3070 Bristol Street, Ste 500, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 | 866.699.5338

ReaQOO125 'xvEsTuME
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Who We Are

What We Do

Experience

Benefits of Clearwa

ter

Real Estale investments

CLEARWATER
N e
g" = _0'00':[2'6'_'.""'_ ==

866.217.4906 toll-free | www.clearwaterrei.com




Barton C. Cochran

Chad J. Hansen

Ronald D. Meyer

NS A Y SR

866.217.4906 toll-free | www.clearwaterrei.com




A Legacy of Success

fn,collaboration with-our partners and affiliates, Clearwater Real
Estate Investments has access {o a premier portfolio of
commercial and residential projects located in California, idaho,
Arizona, Utah, Kansas City, Missouri and Texas, Our products

COMPLETED PROJECTS:

offen lead the market through innovation and creativity. Our Location
Principals have over 20 years of combined real estate experience Custom Home Projects 1-4 Custom Project Los Altos, CA
with a focus on land acquisition, eptitlement and development. Custom Home Projects 5-10 Custom Project Morro Bay, CA
s affii E industrial retail Villa Mira 1 Subdivision Sanger, CA
Clearwater's a '1_na§e5 qurren! ' ! ave access to industrial, retai Viile Mirs 2 Subdivision Sanger, CA
and restaurants in‘various stages of entitlement, improvement, . )
design, build, sale or lease. They also own and operate a number Villa Mira 3 Subdivision Sanger. CA
of residential and office condominium units and have Villa Mira 4 Subdivision Sanger. CA
management contracts with resort and golf clubs. Currently, they Vintage Square PUD Sanger, CA
havf,- more ‘Eh_af‘ 3,500 acres in the entitlement process for single Sanger Land Unimproved Land Sanger, CA
family subdivision and master planned communities Sheridan Place Subdivision Mesidian. 1D
These affiliates have a proven track record of providing Shefwoad Meatiows Subevalon: Namps, 1D
impressive returns to their investor clients on past projects and Buellton Industrial 1 Office/Industrial Buellton, CA
always seek to warrant the confidence and trust an investor Bueliton Industrial 2 Office/Industrial Buellton, CA
places in them. The Idaho Club Resort/Golf Coeur d'Alene, ID
- Baymont Hotel Hotel Kellogg, I1D
PROJECT HISTORY
; ACTIVE PROJECTS:

Project Type Location

Madera Ranch Subdivision Madera, CA

Ahwahnee Preserve Equestrian, SFR Ahwahnee, CA

Jade Commercial Land Meridian, ID

Hope Ridge Estates Subdivision Star, ID

Sundance Ranch Estates Equestrian Community Kuna, ID

Montour Valley Ranch 1 Subdivision Horseshoe Bend, ID

Riverbend Estates Subdivision Horseshoe Bend, ID

Eagle Ridge Estates Subdivision Horseshoe Bend, ID

Horseshoe Bend Commercial Horseshoe Bend, ID

Horseshoe Bend

Master Plan Community

Horseshoe Bend, ID

Preserve Town Center Commercial Horseshoe Bend, ID
Sandpoint Condos Condominiums Sandpoint, ID
Bunker Hill Condominiums Condominiums Kellogg, ID
Woodsman Condo-Hotel Condo, Hotel/Retail McCall, ID
New Meadows Master Plan Subdivision New Meadows, ID
Greenfield Terrace Equestrian Community Boise, ID
Tres Rios Condos Condominiums Avondale, AZ
Tres Rios Retail PADD Avondale, AZ
i Avondale Office Condos Office Condos Avondale, AZ
S gl ;M Glendale Commercial Restaurants Glendale, AZ
: Bank Building Bank Avondale, AZ
] Glendale Office Condos Office Condos Glendale, AZ
Office Building Office Glendale, AZ
Aloft Hotel "Starwood Product” Hotel Glendale, AZ
Radisson Hotel Hotel Glendale, AZ
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Cur Social and Environmental Responsibility Commitment

“The confidence to believe that
we can change the worid...
locally and giobaliy.”

== CLEARWATER
@ L opi2e

866.217.4906 toll-free | www.clearwaterrei.com




000130



__PPM K NUMBER,

e . 08Note-A238

INSTRUCTIONS TO INVESTORS: R —
Clearvwater 2008 Note Program, LLC . . .
" 9:0%:Notes Due December 31,2015 L R

Plesse read corefiily ihe Privaté Placement Memoraidum dated Aupust I8, 2008 for the wale'of $20,000,000
{subject 1o increasc (o $40,000,000) in egpregate prncipal amount of 9.0% Notes dise Deceraber 31, 2015 (“Notes™)
issued by Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC, an Ydaho Tintited lability coripany (“*Company"), as supplementsd
from time to fime, and sl Exhibits therslo -(collectively, the “Memurandin®}, before deciding to subscribe.
Capifatized ienms not defined herein have the meanings sei forth in the Memorasdum.

Each prospective juvestor n Notes should examing the suitabiiity of (his {ype of investment in the
context of his/her own iecds, lnvestmeat objectives and flanncial capabilities and shonld make hisfher qwn -
- independent investigation and decision.ss to'sultability and 8§ 0 tlis #isk-and potentiol galn Involved. .Ajso;
-each prospective Investor- in Nates |y encoiicaged.1d. consult. with Hili/hier’ atfovney; sccosntant; finaucial
consullant or other bustngss or: tax adviser regavding thie tisks and merlts of thié propored Inyestoicnt.

. “Thip Offering i Yimfied to investprs: who ceriify ibat: they meet all of the:qualifications set forfh in thio
Meworaiidu for the'purchase-of Notes.- ' :

1f you meet thése qualifications and desiré:to purchiase Notes, iien please complete, execnts-and deliver the
aftashed Subscription Agreement slong with your check, payable-to “Hoane Federal Bank, as Escrow Agent for
Cleanwater 2008 Nots Program, LLC" int the smoust of the Subscription Payment.

Subscription Agreemnsnts and alf adachmgnts should be mailed or delivered to the Company at;

Cleanwater 2008 Note Program, 1L.C
1300 B. Stato Street, Suitg 103
Eaple; ID 83616

Atg:. Subscriplion Services

Alifunds should be mailed, délivered or wied to:

‘Cleativiiter 2008 Noté Piogram, LLC
1300:B. State Straet; Suiie 103
Eagle, ID 83616
Afta: Subscription Serviges

Wire Instructions:
Account Number:
Routing/ABA Number: [INEENNNNN
Account Name: Clearwater 2008 Note Progrom; LLC

Upon. receipt of this signéd Spbscripfion Agreemint, verification bf your fvestinent qualificalicns and.
acceplanee-of your-subsédiplion by-the Company {the-Company reserves:the right, in it sole discretion, 10 8céept-or
: i{lséi::? 's‘;g')_scupﬂ_d_n'm[ ary of noreasoi winlsosver); the Company will nolify you of receipt ond scceptende of your*
. 0 .np .n- . N . . M R
M‘M’Ex The person-or. eitity setually maliliig the desisfon to Invest in Notes shontd :
and exceute tlils Subscripiion Apgrecment; For -e_xam’;:i‘e, r:etinghe.ht plans oftén hold w‘t?ln hlzvnggzgswi:
trust for thelr beneliclaries; but the benefitiaries may maintaln Investment control and distéretion. Yo such &
situation, the beneficlary with investment conirol must complete and execnte this Sibscription Agreement (ih‘ll
also applies to trusts, custodial accounts and gimiler srraungements). .
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SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT

Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC
9.0% Notes Due December 31, 2015

This is the offer and agreement (“Subscription Agreement™) of the undersigned to purchase 35 Dg 00002
(850,000 minimum investment) in principal amount of 9.0% Notes due December 31, 2015 (“Notes”) to be issued by
Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC, an Idaho limited liability company (the “Company”) (“Subscription Price”),
subject to the terms, conditions, acknowledgments representations and warranties stated herein and in the
Confidential Private Placement Memorandum relating to the offer of up to $20,000,000 (subject fo increase to
$40,000,000) in aggregate principal amount in Notes dated August 29, 2008, as supplemented from time to time (the
“Memorandum™). I am including with this Subscription Agreement a check payable to the order of “Home Federal
Bank, as Escrow Agent for Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC” in the amount of $-52,200 : 60
representmg the Subscription Price for the Notes 1 am purchasing. All terms utilized herein shall have the same
meaning as set forth in the Memorandum.

n order to induce the Company to accept this Subscription Agreement for Notes and as further consideration
for such acceptance, I hereby make the following acknowledgments, representations and warranties with the full
knowledge that the Company will expressly rely thereon in making a decision to accept or reject this Subscription
Apgreement:

1. I hereby adopt, confirm and agree to all of the covenants, representations and warranties set out in

this Subscnpnon Agreement. . \
2. My primary state of 1o
3. My date of birth is: .
4. If 1 am a natyral person, I hereby represent and warrant that (check as appropriate):

(a) 1, together with my spouse, have a net worth, inclusive of home, home fumishings
and personal automobiles, in excess of $1,000,000; or
{b) I have individual income in excess of $200,000, or joint income with my spouse, in
excess of $300,000, in each of the two most recent years, and I reasonably expect
individual or joint income in excess of that amount in the current year.
5. if other than a natural person, such enhty represents and warrants that (check as appropriate):
it is an “accredited investor” as defined in Regulation D promulgated under the Securities Act
of 1933, as amended.
6. If other than a natural person, is such entity a benefit plan qualified under Code Section 401(2), a
benefit plan subject to ERISA, an individual retirement account or arrangement under Code Section
408 or any other company sponsored employee benefit plan or program?

Yes. No.
7. Neither I nor any subsidiary, affiliate, owner, shareholder, pariner, member, indemnitor, guarantor
or related person or entity:
@ is & Sanctioned Person (as defined below);
) has more than 15% of its assets in Sanctioned Countries (as defined below); or
(© derives more than 15% of its operating income from investments in, or transactions with

Sanctioned Persons or Sanctioned Couniries.
For purposes of the foregoing, a “Sanctioned Person” shall mean (a) a person named on the list of
“specially designated nationals” or “blocked persons” maintained by the U.S. Office of Foreign
Assets Control (“OFAC”) at htip:/Avww.treas.gov/offices/eotfic/ofac/sdn/index.htnil, or as otherwise
published from time to time, or (b) (1) an agency of the government of a Sanctioned Couniry, (2) an
organization controlled by a Sanctioned Country, or (3) a person resident in a Sanctioned Country,
to the extent subject to a sanctions program administered by OFAC. A “Sanctioned Country” shall
mean a country subject to a sanctions program identified on the list maintained by OFAC and
available at Jittp:/Avwiv.lreas.gov/offices/eotfie/ofac/sanctions/index.html, or as otherwise published
from time to time,

8. Under penalties of perjury, I certify (2) that the number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer
identification number and (b) that I am not subject to backup withholding, either because I have not
been notified that I am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or
dividends or the Internal Revenue Service has notified me that T am no longer subject to backup
withholding. (Please strike out the language certifying that you are not subject to backup
withhelding due to notified payee under-reporting if you have been notified that you are
subject to backup withholding due to nofified payee under-reporting, and you have not
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received a notice from the Internal Revenue Service advising you that backup withhelding has
terminated,)

9. 1 further represent and warrant that such invesiment is not disproportionate to my income or
available liquid funds and that I further have the capacity to protect my interests in connection with
the purchase of the Notes.

10 1(we) wish to own my (our) Notes as follows (check one):

}2 @ Separate or individual property. (In community property states, if the
purchaser is married, his (her) spouse must submit written consent if community
funds will be used to purchase the Notes.)
®) Husband and Wife as community property. {Community property states
only. Husband and Wife should both sign all required decuments unless advised
by their attorney that one signature is sufficient.)

(c) Joint Tenants with right of survivorship. (Both parties must sign all
required documents unless advised by their attorneys that one sigpature is
sufficient.}

()] Tenants in Common. (Both parties must sign all required documents.)
©)] Trust. (Afttach copy of trust instrument and include name of trust, name
of trustee and date trust was formed.)

® Partnership or Limited Liability Company. (Attach copy of articles or
cerlificate, if any, and partnership agreement or operating agreement and include
evidence of authority for person who executes required documents.)

(8 Husband and Wife with ripht of survivorship, (Husband and wife should
sign all documents unless other advised by their attorney.)

(h) IRA or Qualified Plan;

@ Other (indicate);

11, If the owner of Notes is an entity (trust, LLC, Partnership, etc.) my relationship to the owning entity

is (trustee, owner, partner, etc.)
Subscriber’s Signature: X W W Date: Lr/ / 7’/ /o
Subscriber’s Signature: X Date:
1. T understand that in the event this Subscription Agreement is not accepted ‘or, if accepted, the Offering is

subsequently terminated or cancelled then the funds transmitted herewith shall be retumed to the undersigned and this Subscription
Agreement shall be terminated and of no further effect. RE Capital, LLC has sgreed to guarantee the repayment of principal under
the Notes, By executing this Subscription Agreement, each prospective investor of Notes approves the foregoing, acknowledges
the risks described in the section of the Memorandum entitled “Risk Factors,” and waives those provisions of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, generally governing funds held in escrow prior to closing an offering,

2, I acknowledge that I have received, read and fully understand the Memorandum, I acknowledge that I am
basing my decision to invest in Notes on the Memorandum and 1 have relied only on the information contained in said materials
and have ‘not relied upon any representations made by any other person. I recognize that an investment in Notes involyes
substantial risk end T am fully cognizant of and understand all of the risk factors related to the purchase of Notes, including, but not
limited to, those risks set forth in the sections of the Memorandum entitled “Risk Factors.”

3. My overall commitment to investments that are not readily marketable is not disproportionate to ry individual
net worth, and my investment in Notes will not cause such overall commitment to become excessive, 1 have adequate means of
providing for my financial requirements, both current and anticipated, and have no need for liquidity in this investment, I can bear
and am willing to accept the economic risk of losing my entire investment in Notes.

4. T acknowledge that the sale of Notes has not been accompanied by the publication of any advertisement, any
general solicitation or as the direct result of an investment seminar sponsored by the Company or any of its Affiliates.
5. All information that I have provided to the Company herein conceming my suitability to invest in Notes is

complete, accurate and correct as of the date of my signature on the last page of this Subscripﬁon Agrecmeut. I hereby agree to
notify the Company immediately of any material change in any such information occurring prior to the acceptance of this
Subscription Agreement, including any information about changes concerning my net worth and financial position.

6. I bave had the opportunity to ask questions of, and receive answers from, the Company and the Managex
concerning the Company, the creation or operation of the Company or terms and conditions of the offering of Notes, and to obtain
any additional information deemed necessary to verify the accuracy of the information contained in the Memorandum. 1have been

3
000133



provided with all materials and information requested by either me or others representing me, including any information requested
to verify any information furnished to me.

7. 1 am purchasing Notes for my own account and for investment purposes only and have no present intention,
understanding or arrangement for the distribution, transfer, assignment, resale or subdivision of Notes. Iunderstand that, due to the
restrictions referred to in Paragraph 8 below, and the lack of any market existing or to exist for Notes, my investment in the
Company will be highly illiquid and may have to be held indefinitely.

I am fully aware that Notes subscribed for hereunder have not been registered with the Securities and Exchange
Comunsswn in reliance on an exemption specified in Regulation D under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, which reliance is
based in part upon my representations set forth herein. I understand that Notes subscribed for herein have not been registered under
applicable state securities laws and are being offered and sold pursuant to the exemptions specified in said laws, and unless they are
registered, they may not be re-offered for sale or resold except in a transaction or as a security exempt under those laws. I further
understand that the specific approval of such resales by the state securities administrator may be required in some states. Notes
have not been approved or disapproved by the United States Securities and Exchange Commission or other regulatory
authority, nor have any of the foregoing authorities passed upon or endorsed the merits of this Offering or the accuracy or
adequacy of the Memorandum, Any representation to the contrary is unlawful,

9. I acknowledge that Home Federal Bank is acting solely as escrow holder in connection with the Offering of
Notes, and makes no recommendations with respect thereto. I understand that Home Federal Bank has made no investigation
regarding the Offering, Notes, the Company, the Manager, their Affiliates or their officers and directors, or any other person or
entity involved in the Offering,

10. This Subscription Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and govemed by the laws of the State of
Tdaho without regard to its choice of law provisions.
11. 1 hereby covenant and agree that any dispute, controversy or other claim arising under, out of or relating to this

Agreement or any of the transactions contemplated hereby, or any amendment thereof, or the breach or interpretation hereof or
thereof, shall be determined and settled in binding arbitration in Boise, Idaho, in accordance with applicable Idaho law, and with
the rules and procedures of The American Arbitration Association, The prevailing party shell be entitled to an award of its
reasonable costs and expenses, including, but not limited to, attomneys’ fees, in addition to any other available remedies, Any
award rendered therein shall be final and binding on each and all of the parties thereto and their personal representatives, and
judgment may be entered thereon in any court of competent jurisdiction. BY EXECUTING THIS AGREEMENT, YOU ARE
AGREEING TO HAVE ALL DISPUTES DECIDED BY NEUTRAL ARBITRATION, YOU ARE GIVING UP ANY
RIGHTS YOU MIGHT POSSESS TO HAVE SUCH DISPUTES LITIGATED IN A COURT OR JURY TRIAL, AND
YOU ARE GIVING UP YOUR JUDICIAL RIGHTS TO DISCOVERY AND APPEAL, IF YOU REFUSE TO SUBMIT
TO ARBITRATION AFTER AGREEING TO THIS PROVISION, YOU MAY BE COMPELLED TO ARBITRATE, BY
EXECUTING THIS AGREEMENT, YOU HEREBY CONFIRM THAT YOUR AGREEMENTS TO THIS
ARBITRATION PROVISION IS VOLUNTARY.

12, I hereby agree to indemnify, defend and held harmless the Company, the Manager, their Affiliates and
all of their members, nianagers, shareholders, officers, employees, affiliates and advisors, from any and all damages, Josses,
liabilities, costs and expenses {including reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs) that they may incur by reason of my failure to
fulfill all of the terms and conditions of this Subscription Agreement or by reason of the untruth or inaccuracy of any of the
representations, warranties or agreements contained herein or in any other documents I have furnished te any of the
foregoing in connection with this transaction. This indemnification includes, but is not limited to, any damages, losses,
liabilities, costs and expenses (including reasonable attorneys® fees and costs) incurred by the Company, the Manager, their
Affiliates and any of their members, managers, sharcholders, directors, officers, employees, affiliates or advisors, defending
against any alleged violation of federal or state securities laws which is based upon or related to any untruth or inaccuracy
of any of the representations, warranties or agreements contained herein or in any other documents I have furpished in
connection with this transaction,

13. I hereby acknowledge and agree that ; (a) I may not transfer or assign this Subscription Agreement, or any
interest herein, and any purported transfer shall be void; (b) except as specifically described herein, I am not entitled to cancel,
terminate or revoke this Subscription Agreement and that this Subscription Agreement will be binding on my heirs, successors and
personal representatives; provided, however, that if the Company rejects this Subscription Agreement, this Subscription Agreement
shall be automatically canceled, terminated and revoked; (c) this Subscription Agreement and the Memorandum, together with all
attachments and exhibits thereto, constitute the entire agreement among the parties hereto with respect to the sale of Notes and may
be amended, modified or terminated only by a writing executed by all parties (except as provided herein with respect to rejection of
this Subscription Agreement by the Company); (d) within two days after receipt of a written request from the Company, the
undersigned agrees to provide such information and to exccute and deliver such documents as may be necessary to comply with
any and all laws end regulations to which the Company is subject; and (e) the representations and warranties of the undersigned set
forth herein shall survive the sale of Notes pursuant to this Subscription Agreement.

14. I am not making this investment in any manner as a representative of a charitable remainder unitrust or a
charitable remainder trust.
Initial Here Injtial Here
4
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(SPECIAL INSTRUCIIONS: In all cases, tbepamu/ L] the invesonant declilen fo purchiasa Notes mmku

the Sebscripfion Agreement. Farm g'mem deslgnared lmlu retiremend

gmw‘m dinaal' or mads 9 ird ﬁ%, then 1t third parly trustes mun aie ths a{pdan
&3 M rathe

ratier thewt the e e nﬂrmmﬂm Inmcnz;nww thelr mquum
thdr &ffice or ulm on re page 5o thot m G
secnrites faws. Ifyox wish correspoudence sent to sams aldress sther ralltno7 uudﬂag
n‘m:lnd &lml- wded belovn Additlon lnumwmmﬂk ths lerial
mawa&mk’;‘ ghmuwnnu&‘ihndnrymuwfhum ebuamcbwu.(fpamum
through anp oiher reasonable means lisi 20(b
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I (we) hias executed this Subseription Agreemest this {2 dqof&" reavt a0z

A, REGISTRATION memmMmm(mnm)hwmwmmm

or TION JW“‘LABg!”\!l

ﬂ lmmu}"ﬂ) Mailing dmﬂizé'_é:xﬁt_('w
s _Llake Errest, LA 91630
Bmait address: Ana Yo | wy @ eartiline . net
B. NVESTOR Please sind al} investor carrespondease to the followlng:

FoRMATION Namee_JUA ¥ Baling
Address; 20984, ca%ﬁ ﬁﬁi ﬁm FovesTy CA 42030
Svestor Phoas: Busnes sane; () I
tovestor Pax: Bustoess (L TN oo G RN __
Primary SttoafResidence: Caltformie.

&ﬁnsm&yurmmmm«;_

¢ SNty Y o “m’s-hbwhmy eummmwm %‘3 will bs inerectnd
INFORMATION mﬂ?%wmmwﬂﬁmm % expeditionshy a5

Seeonda;yComuNm: Patvicsa Pho colla
. Secondacy Contaot Addresi 21296 Coyemao Lone, lake Fovest, A 42432

Secondary Coutuct Phons: Business{__ ) ey, N
Sccondary Contact Fax: Business ( ). Home: m

D. ELECTIONTO If'you wish to participats in the Interest Relavesanent Program, plesss itla] bors:

PARTICIPATE IN .

INTEREST IF you wish to recelvs mantbly distributions of icteres, please initial beve: VYW

REINVESTMENT

PROGRAM You will have the opportunity once writien nolice
thereof'to mn?mhgtmmw&sw ywpdnrhthe&

B. SIGNATURES THE UNDERSIGNED HAS THE AUTHORITY TO ENTERIN‘TOTH]SSUBSCRM'ION
. AGREEMENT ON BEHALF OF THE PERSON(S) OR ENTITY REGISTERED IN A,

Execuedttls | _anyof February .m__,uLaMFM{f, ¢k

X
. v Sigasturs {Tavertor, or abocied Sgmataryy
Signature (lavestor, or auihorized signatocy)

X
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F. ig'és_ o Mail the exeented Subscription Agreement to:
' Cleagwater 2008 Note Program, 110
1300 B. Stato Strect, Suits 103
. Esgle, ID §3616
Atin: Scbseription Services

The check {maks payable to “Homs Feden! Bank, as Bscrow Agent for Clearwater 2008 Note

Program, LLC") or fiuds should be wired, madled or detiveredto: -

All fands should be delivered or wired to: ‘Wire Instructions:

Clearwater 2008 Note Progmam, LEC* Account Number:
1300 B, Stete Strest, Suito 103 Routing/ABA Number:
Eagle, ID 83516 Accouat Nams: Clearwaler 2008 Nots Progmum, LLC
Atty; Subscription Secvices .
Subseription Accepted:
 Clearwater 2008 Nats Program, LLC
By: cxem:mur.uc,
an Idako limited Fiabiti any
Its: Mamager e :
By: \ (A o _2f3efee
Namo: J&..P (.o.; bv” o
J
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1300 E. STATE STREET, STE 103
=53\ CLEARWATER
72 - : Ph (208) 6394488
Q-—_, (866) 217-4906
REAL ESTATE INVESTMENTS

Fox (208) 939-143)
www.clegrwaoterei.com

March 1, 2010

To: Mark Boling
21986 Cayuga Lane
Lake Forest, CA 92630

Re: Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC
Dear Valued Investor,
Thank you fdr choosing Clearwater Real Estate Investments (Clearwater) and allowing us to assist you with your investment

goals. The purpose of this letter is to notify and confirm your subscription has been received and accepted. Please note your
investment information below.

Investment Information

Owner: Mark Boling

Offering Name: Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC
Custodian Acct Number: n/a

Certificate Number: ) 08-470

Principal Amount: . $ 50,000.00

Effective Date: ) 2/27/10

Account Statements

As a Clearwater client, you will receive regular updates of your account activity on account statements.
Also, please find the following documents to keep for your records:

1) Certificate
2) Instructions to Investors & Subscription Agreement (signed accepted copy)
3) Master Note (signed copy)

For your convenience, please find a Direct Deposit Request Form enclosed hereto. If you would like to receive your monthly
distributions via ACH direct deposit, simply complete the form and attach a voided check and return as indicated on the form.
Note: If you have (i) elected to participate in the Interest Reinvestment Plan (IRP), (ii) already submitted a direct deposit
request form or (iii) your investment involves a custodial account please ignore this form.

Clearwater is dedicated to providing the highest level of service and seeks to always warrant the trust and confidence you
“have placed in us. Please call us toll-free at (866) 217-4906 or you can send us an email at

InvestorServices(@elearwaterrel.com for any questions/assistance regarding your investment(s) with us.
Sincerely,

Investor Services
Toll-free: (866) 217-4906
InvestorServices@clearwaterrei.com

Enclosure(s)
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CLEARWATER

REAL ESTATE INVESTMENTS

Certificate

~

CLEARWATER 2008 NOTE PROGRAM, LLC

Certffteate N, 08-470 Snoans $ 50,000.00

Mark Boling

2/27/10
n/a

Bart Cochran, Manager
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NOTICE: THIS NOTE HAS NOT BEEN REGISTERED PURSUANT TO ANY FEDERAL OR
STATE SECURITIES LAW. THIS NOTE MAY NOT BE TRANSFERRED OR RESOLD,
EXCEPT AS PERMITTED UNDER (A) THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, AND
APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS, PURSUANT TO REGISTRATION OR
EXEMPTION THEREFROM, AND (B) THE RESTRICTIONS OF SECTION 10 HEREOF.

'NOTE

$20,000,000 (subject to increase to $40,000,000) August 29, 2008

FOR VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, the receipt, adequacy and sufficiency of which are
hereby acknowledged, Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC, an Idaho limited liability company
(“Maker”), promises to pay to the parties listed on Exhibit A attached hereto (the “Noteholders”), the
aggregate principal amount of Twenty Million and 00/100 Dollars ($20,000,000) with the option to
increase to Forty Million and 00/100 Dollars ($40,000,000), together with interest, late charges, costs and
expenses, and all other amounts described below in accordance with the following terms and provisions:

Section 1. Definitions. Unless the context expressly or by necessary implication otherwise
requires, (a) in addition to any terms defined elsewhere in this Note, the capitalized terms defined in this
Section 1 shall, for the purposes of this Note, have the meanings set forth below and (b) except as
otherwise defined or limited herein, terms defined in the Memorandum when used herein shall have the
respective meanings assigned to them in the Memorandum

‘Funding Date” shall mean the date on which the proceeds from the Maker’ s sale of Notes to
Note Holders are released from escrow as descrlbed in the Memorandum.

“Interest” shall mean, collectively, the per annum interest payable on the outstanding principal
hereof under Section 2 hereof.

“Maturity Date” shall mean December 31, 2015.

“Memorandum” shall mean Maker’s Confidential Private Placement Memorandum dated
August 18, 2008, as amended or supplemented from time to time, relating to the offer and sale by the
Maker of up to $20,000,000 of Notes (subject to increase to $40,000,000).

“Noteholder” shall mean any person or entity hereafter purchasing a Note in accordance with the
Memorandum, subject to the provisions -of the Transaction Documents applicable thereto, and any

successor or assign thereof or other or entity acquiring an interest herein at any time.

“Transaction Documents” shall mean this Note, the Subscription Agreement and the
Memorandum.

Section 2. Interest.

Section 2.1 Fixed Interest. Commencing on the date hereof and continuing until
December 31, 2015, the outstanding principal hereunder shall bear interest at a fixed annual rate of 9.0%.

Section 2.2. Computation. Interest shall be computed on the basis of a.year of 360 days
prorated for the actual number of days occurring in the period for which such Interest is payable.
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Section 3. Payments; Accrual. Commencing on the fifteenth day of the month next following
the Funding Date and continuing on the fifteenth day of each month thereafter until the outstanding
principal hereof is paid in full, Maker shall pay to, or accrue and compound for the benefit of, the
Noteholders all unpaid Interest in an amount equal to the product of the principal amount hereunder and
that fraction the numerator of which is a Noteholder’s principal investment and the denominator of which
is the principal amount hereunder. If not sooner paid, Maker shall pay the principal balance hereof in full
on the Maturity Date, together with all unpaid accrued Interest. Maker shall make all payments of
Interest, late charges, and principal to the Noteholders at their respective addresses on file with the Maker
as of the day which is ten days prior to the due date of such payment, on or before the date when due,
without notice, deduction or offset. All payments hereunder shall be made in lawful money of the United
States of America.

Section 4. Prepayment. Maker shall have the right to prepay this Note at any time after
December 31, 2011 without penalty or premium upon payment to the Noteholders of the outstanding
principal balance of the Note and accrued unpaid Interest.

Section 5. Put Rights. Beginning December 31, 2010 and once annually thereafter, up to 10% of
the original principal amount may be called by the Noteholders upon not less than 30 days written notice
to the Maker. .

Notwithstanding the foregoing, upon the death of a Noteholder, the personal representative of
such Noteholder may call the Note of such Noteholder and will receive the principal amount of such note,
plus all accrued but unpaid principal thereon by giving written notice to the Company not less than 6
months following the date of death of such Noteholder. Interest will be payable through the date of which
the notice is received by the Company and all principal and interest will be paid by the Company not later
than 30 days following receipt of such notice.

Section 6. Late Charges. Maker recognizes that a default by Maker in making, when due, any
of the payments required under this Note will result in the Noteholders incutring additional expenses,
including by way of illustration, additional expenses in connection with sending notices of default, loss to
the Noteholders of the use of the money due, and frustration to the Noteholders in meeting their other
financial commitments. If, for any reason, Maker fails to fully pay any installment of Interest or principal
plus Interest when due under this Note, whether or not any notice that such payments are due and payable
is given, the Noteholders shall be entitled to damages for the detriment caused thereby. Because it is
extremely difficult and impractical to ascertain the extent of such damages, Maker therefore agrees that a
late charge equal to 5% of each payment of Interest or principal that is not paid within 10 days after its
due date is a reasonable estimate of the fair compensation for the loss and damages the Noteholders will
suffer. Further, Maker hereby agrees that such amount shall be presumed to be the amount of damages
sustained by Noteholders in such case, and such sum shall be added to amount then due and payable.

Section 7. Liability. This Note is an obligation of Maker solely, is not an obligation of any of
Maker’s members, managers, or affiliates, and is unsecured; however, the repayment of the principal
amount here of is guaranteed pursuant to that certain Guaranty a copy of which is attached to the
Memorandum.. The Noteholders shall look exclusively to Maker and not to any such member, manager,
or affiliate or the assets thereof for satisfaction of all such obligations and shall not seek to enforce any
deficiency for payment thereof against any such member or manager in any capacity whatsoever or seek
to collect payment thereof directly from any such member or manager whatsoever.
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Section 8. Events of Default and Remedies.

Section 8.1. Events of Default. Any of the followmg occurrences shall constitute an
“Event of Default” under this Note: :

(a) failure by Maker to make any payment of Tnterest on or principal of this
Note on or before the twenty-fifth (25%) day of the month first becoming due in accordance with the terms
of this Note, without any notice or demand for payment (a “Payment Default”);
t

(b) occurrence of any breach or default (including a Payment Default) by

Maker under this Note or any other. Transaction Document, and the continuation of any such breach or’

default for thirty (30) days after written notice of such breach or default is given to Maker by the
Noteholders (“Curable Default”); however, if such Curable Default is not reasonably susceptible of cure
within thirty (30) days with the exercise of due diligence, then Maker shall have an additional period of
time, not to exceed one hundred and twenty (120) ddys, to complete the cure without such breach or
default constituting an Event of Default, provided Maker is diligently and in good faith pursuing a cure;
or- g

(c) dissolution or termination of the existence of Maker, the commencement
by Maker of a voluntary case under the federal bankruptcy laws, the entry of a decree or order for relief
against Maker in an involuntary case under the federal bankruptcy laws, the appointment or the consent
by Maker to the appointment of a receiver, trustee, or custodian of Maker or for Maker, or an assignment
for the benefit of creditors by Maker. :

Section 8.2, Remedies. Upon any Event of Default under this Note and the expiration of
any applicable notice and cure periods:

(@ the entire unpaid principal balance hereof, any accrued but unpaid
Interest, late charges, and all other amounts owing under this Note, shall, at the option of Noteholders,
without further notice or demand of any kind to Maker or any other person, become immediately due and
payable; and

®) Noteholders shall have and may exercise any and all rights and remedies
available at law, by statute, or in equity.

The remedies of the Noteholder, as provided in this Note, shall be cumulative and concurrent and may be
exercised singularly, successively, or together, at the sole discretion of the Noteholders, as often as
occasion therefor shall arise. No act of omission or commission of the Noteholders, including specifically
any failure to exercise any right, remedy or recourse, shall be deemed to be a waiver or release of any
right, remedy, or recourse to collateral, such waiver or release to be effected only through a written
document executed by the Noteholders. A waiver or release with reference to any one event shall not be
construed as continuing, as a bar to, or as a waiver or release of, any subsequent right, remedy, or
recourse to collateral as to any subsequent event.

Section 9. Legal Limits. All agreements between Maker and the Noteholders are hereby
expressly limited so that in no event whatsoever, whether by reason of deferment or under any agreement
or by virtue of acceleration of maturity of the indebtedness evidenced hereby, or otherwise, shall the
amount paid or agreed to be paid to the Noteholders, for the loan, use, forbearance or detention of the
money to be loaned under this Note, including, but not limited to, any Interest due hereunder, or to
compensate the Noteholders for damages to be suffered by reason of a late payment or default under this
Note, exceed the maximum permissible under applicable law. If, for any reason, fulfillment of any

3
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provisions of this Note, at the time performance of such provision shall be due, would result in exceeding
the limit of validity prescribed by law, the obligations to be fulfilled shall be reduced to the limit of such
validity. In the event any payment is made by Maker or received by the Noteholders which exceeds the
limit of validity prescribed by law, as amended from time to time, such excess sum shall be credited as a
payment of principal under this Note, unless Maker shall notify the Noteholders in writing that Maker
elects to have such excess returned to it. This provision shall never be superseded or waived and shall
control every other provision of all agreements between Maker and the Noteholders with respect to the
loan memorialized by this Note. '

Section 10. Transfers. No Noteholder shall have any right to assign, grant participations in, or
otherwise transfer all or any part of this Note without the express prior written consent of Maker, which
consent may be withheld in the sole discretion of Maker. Without limiting the generality of the preceding
sentence, Maker may withhold consent to a proposed transfer unless Maker determines that such transfer
is exempt from federal and state securities registration and that the transferee and transferor have satisfied
all the other conditions, including by way of illustration, but not limitation, the following conditions, to
the satisfaction of Maker:

(@) Such transferor and transferee shall execute an approved form of assignment and
prepay all costs to be incurred by Maker in connection with such transfer, including attorneys’ fees and
costs.

(b)  Such transferee shall execute a subscription agreement and purchaser
questionnaire to verify that the proposed transferee satisfies the suitability requirements set forth in the
“WHO MAY INVEST” section of the Memorandum, to represent that such proposed transferee has read
the Memorandum, all subsequent reports of Maker and Maker’s financial statements, and is aware of, and
assumes the risks of, investing in the Notes as summarized in the “RISK FACTORS” section of the
Memorandum.

(© Maker shall have received, if Maker so requests, an opinion of legal counsel,
satisfactory to Maker, in Maker’s sole discretion, confirming that the proposed transfer is exempt from
securities registration and the assignment is in proper legal form and enforceable against the proposed
transferee.

An approved transferee shall take the place of the transferor on the effective date of the transfer, as
determined by the Maker and, thereafter, the transferee shall be treated as a Noteholder and owner of the
Note transferred for all purposes of this Note and the other Transaction Documents.

Section 11. Notices. All payments of Maker and any notice, report, or writing required or
permitted to be given hereunder shall be in writing and shall be delivered in the manner set forth in the
Memorandum.

Section 12. Waiver. Maker, for itself and for its successors, transferees, assigns, endorsers, and
signers, hereby waives all valuation and appraisement privilege, presentment and demand for payment,
protest, dishonor and notice of dishonor, bringing of suit, lack of diligence and delays in collection or
enforcement of this Note and notice of the intention to accelerate, the release of any party liable and the
release of any security for the debt, the taking of any additional security and any other indulgence or
forbearance. This Note may be extended or renewed from time to time without in any way affecting or
diminishing Maker’s liability under this Note,
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Section 13. Headings. The subject headings or titles of paragraphs or sections of this Note are
included for purposes of convenience of reference only and shall not affect the meaning, construction, or
effect of any of its provisions.

Section 14. Purpose of Loan. Maker hereby represents and warrants that the loan evidenced by
this Note is for commercial, business, and investment use only, and Maker acknowledges that the
Noteholders are relying upon this representation and warranty in making the loan evidenced by this Note.

Section 15. Governing Law and Severability. This Note is made pursuant to, and shall be
construed and governed by, the laws of the State of Idaho, and all rules and regulations promulgated
thereunder, excluding the conflicts of laws provisions thereof. If any provision of this Note is construed
or interpreted by a court of competent jurisdiction to be void, invalid or unenforceable, such construction
or interpretation shall affect only those provisions so construed or interpreted and shall not affect the
remaining provisions of this Note.

Section 16. Jury Trial; Jurisdiction; Venue. Jurisdiction and venue for, and waiyer of jury trial
in respect of, any action, suit or other proceeding arising out of, under or in connection with this Note or
any other Transaction Document or any course of conduct, course of dealing, statements (verbal or
written) or action of any party thereto, whether in connection with any Transaction Document or the
making of the loan evidenced by this Note, or otherwise are controlled by the appropriate laws of the
State of Idaho. .

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, this Note has been duly executed and delivered by Maker as of the
first date set forth above.

MAKER: CLEARWATER 2008 NOTE PROGRAM, LLC
By:  Clearwater REL LLC
i Its: /Sge Member
By: 7€ (f X—

Bart Cochran, Manager

#2116008 v2  033853.00025
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Dear Investors:

The purpose of this letter is to keep you informed about the status of the 2008 9% Note Program (the “Note Program”). 2009 was a very
difficult year for most companies across the globe including Clearwater. The current economic environment is requiring that we be
nimble and creative in order to preserve investor capital and drive above average returns. The 2008 Note Program has made
adjustments to the take out plan for a few of the loans as a result of the current economic environment. As of 12/31/09, $18,075,410 has
been raised from investors and $17,700,000 has been deployed into five portfolio loans that have in excess of $34,000,000 collateralized
by First Deeds of Trust. (Please refer to your fourth quarter statement previously sent)

It should be noted that as the financial crisis continues to work itself out, Clearwater is seeing more and more attractive opportunities for
the Note Program in arenas such as distressed debt. These opportunities will provide the Note Program with significant profit potential
and allow us to continue to make profitable investments with the note proceeds. The discussion below outlines our analysis of each of
the five portfolio loans.

Healthcare of Florence
(Non Affiliate loan)

Description: This loan is secured by a First Deed of Trust (FDOT) on a 90,000 SF general hospital and long term care facility. The
facility is located in one of the most underserved healthcare markets in the nation.

Original Takeout Plan. Upon completion of the renovations, the loan would be paid off through a refinance with an outside lender.

Update: Renovations are currently ongoing with an estimated completion date in the first half of 2010, 75% completion walkthroughs
have been completed. During the renovation process the borrower encountered some cost overruns and delays and it was determined
that some additional upgrades should be made for the environmental sustainability and operational efficiencies of the building. Due to
these upgrades we have extended the loan amount by $2,000,000 and the term for six months to allow for the additional construction
time needed. This extension also provides the loan the ability to be extended for up to five years assuming no default by the borrower.
Clearwater feels very comfortable with the extension because of the abundance of collateral the Note Program has with this loan, the
appraisal was updated as of 12/31/09 and it shows an “as-is” value of $16,400,000 (49.8% LTV) a “value at completion” of $23,285,000
(35% LTV) and a value as a “going concern” of $39,595,000 (20.6% LTV)

Current Strategy: Our strategy for this loan has not materially changed since origination. Timelines have been pushed back and costs
have marginally increased but this is to be expected with a renovation project of this scope and scale. Clearwater, along with the
borrower, continue to work with potential bridge lenders (immediate takeout) and permanent lenders (takeout at completion once
operating). Due to this project's extremely attractive collateral position, property type (healthcare), and market, we are working with
several interested lenders and expect to be refinanced out of this loan before the end of the term and current interest reserve.

If for some unforeseen circumstances the refinance does not become available, the hospital is expected to be able to service the Note
Program’s loan until the credit markets recover.

Investors should understand that due to conservative underwriting they remain in a secure position even in this extremely difficult
economic climate, and that Clearwater is taking all necessary steps to have the loan repaid in a way that continues to allow the
Clearwater 2008 Note Program meet its obligation to its investors.

North Seattle Condos
(Affiliate loan)

Description: This loan is secured by a FDOT on 33 condominium units located in Kenmore, WA (Seattle).

Original Takeout Plan: Clearwater originally purchased this loan at a distressed debt auction for a significant discount. The note was
non-performing at the time and because of the large amount of equity in the deal ($8,000,000 “as-is” appraised value at closing)
Clearwater's business plan was to foreclose on the property and liquidate the assets, secure a work out with the borrower or have the
debt repaid.

Update: Even during these extremely difficult economic times units continue to sell, eight units have sold since we acquired the note
and the net proceeds are averaging in excess of $200,000 per unit. In addition there are currently four units under contract.

Current Strategy: Clearwater is currently working with its local counsel to remove the property from the bankruptcy court jurisdiction, if
successful, Clearwater will be able to proceed with the foreclosure sale as planned.
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2009 YEAR-END UPDATE
CLEARWATER 2008 NOTE PROGRAM March 19, 2010

If able to proceed to foreclosure, there are two possible outcomes. Each of these potential outcomes has varying degrees of profitability
for Clearwater; however, they all align with the preservation of the Note Program’s capital.

Legends 19 - Townhomes

Raymore, MO
{Non affiliate loan)

Description: This loan is secured by a FDOT on 18 Townhomes in Raymore, MO (Kansas City).
Original Takeout Plan: Primary, refinance through a traditional lender, secondary, foreclosure and liquidation.

Update: Due to the deepening credit crisis the borrower was unable to refinance the property. Clearwater is currently going through the
foreclosure process with the sale scheduled for the first week of May pending court approval. Rents are being collected by the court and
placed in a lock box; rents will be available to the Note Program once the foreclosure is finalized.

Current Strategy: Clearwater is proceeding with the foreclosure; upon the foreclosure, the Note Program anticipates collecting all back
rents and a bond posted by the borrower in the amount of $150,000. Clearwater will continue to collect rents and begin liquidating
townhomes. A unit sold for $131,500 in October of 2009 (equates to an extrapolated gross sales proceeds of $2,498,500), the Note
Program can expect that this loan should remain profitable due to the continued cash flow and collateral position of this asset.

Coastal Gables - (1) Horizontal Loan; (2) Vertical Loan

Bay St. Louis, MS
{Non affiliate loan)

Description:
(1) Horizontal Loan - This loan is secured by a FDOT on a 143 lot, 286 unit duplex community located in Bay St. Louis,
Mississippi. Proceeds will be used for horizontal development.
(2) Vertical Loan - This loan is secured by a FDOT on phase one (consisting of 18 buildings and 36 units) of a 142 building, 284
unit duplex community located in Bay St. Louis, Mississippi which is part of the Biloxi-Gulfport MSA.

Original Takeout Plan:
(1) Horizontal Loan - Lot releases upon commencement of vertical construction.
(2) Vertical Loan - Sales of individual units to investors looking to take advantage of numerous available incentives, and a strong
housing market, in the GO Zone.

Update: There have been some delays in the entitlement process; however, all entittement and permitting should be officially
completed shortly (greatly adding to the collateral’s value) and construction will commence in earnest. The project is estimated to be
13% complete at this point.

Current Strategy: Clearwater's strategy has not changed materially from when this loan was originated. The entitlement delays are
frustrating but do not materially affect the viability of the project or the performance of the Note Program's loan. Clearwater is lending its
extensive development and entitliement expertise to this project and assisting in/monitoring the borrower’s progress. Clearwater is
confident that all delays are soon to be overcome and the project is expected to be back on schedule shortly. Investors remain interested
in purchasing finished units and will be purchasing units as soon as they become available.

Current Liquidity - $750,000

In addition to the assets presented above the Note Program has approximately $750,000 in liquid assets that are ready to deploy. The
continuing turmoil the real estate and credit markets has presented Clearwater with increasingly attractive investment opportunities into
which Clearwater will be able to deploy these funds at very attractive risk adjusted rates of return.

As traditional credit sources have dried up we are finding credit worthy borrowers and assets that are good candidates for Note Program
funds. Additionally, as banks experience increased regulatory pressure we are beginning to see an opportunity to purchase distressed
debt at levels that are beginning to make sense in today's environment.

Again, Clearwater remains optimistic that the work out strategies presented above will allow the 2008 Note Program to meet its
obligations to its investors. In summary, we at Clearwater feel that, in spite of the economic problems, we are on top of each of our
investments in the 2008 Note Program and continue to meet all obligations to investors. The collateral coverage of underlying loans and
the assets of RE Capital, the guarantor, are béing maintained at sufficient levels to allow us to meet our obligations. Please contact our
Investor Services Department, if you have any questions.

Sincerely,

Clearwater Real Estate Investments

This document does not constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to purchase securities. Any such offer shali be made solely pursuant to the
Private Placement Memorandum to Accredited Investors. All investment strategies have risks. Past performance and/or forward stalements are never an
assurance of future resuits. Only the Private Placement Memorandum or Prospectus is controliing.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members
Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LL.C
Eagle, Idaho

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC (the
Company) as of December 31, 2009, and the related statements of operations, member’s equity
(deficit), and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility
of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. The financial statements of Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC
as of December 31, 2008, were audited by other auditors whose report dated April 6, 2009,
expressed an unqualified opinion on those statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC as of December 31, 2009, and the
results of its operations and its cash flows for the period then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Wm Mm £ep

Spokane, Washington
June 17, 2010 .
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CLEARWATER 2000 .~-OTE PROGRAM, LLC
BALANCE SHEET

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash
Interest receivable
Real estate loans receivable
Current portion of related party receivables

Total current assets

OTHER ASSETS
Related party receivables, long-term
Deferred loan costs, net

December 31,

2009 2008
$ 1,261,964  $ 4,539,915
42,699 -
15,641,771 -
535,576 -
17,482,010 4,539,915
73,799 -
1,710,569 513,771

$ 19,266,378

$ 5,053,686

LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S DEFICIT

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accrued interest payable
Unearned interest income reserves
Current portion of notes payable

Total current liabilities

LONG-TERM DEBT
Notes payable, less current portion
Related party payable

MEMBER'S DEFICIT
Membership units
Membership units subscription receivable
Member's deficit

$ 109,157 $ 62,010
664,155 -
1,907,541 -
2,680,853 62,010
17,405,780 5,160,427
- 41,263
20,086,633 5,263,700
1,000 1,000
(1,000) (1,000)
(820,255) (210,014)
(820,255) (210,014)

$ 19,266,378

$ 5,053,686

See accompanying nofes.
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CLEARWATER 2008 NOTE PROGRAM, LLC
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31,
2009 2008
REVENUE
Real estate loan interest $ 846,313 § -
Other interest 81,562 14,561
927,875 14,561
EXPENSES
Interest 1,207,864 88,454
Marketing 149,783 91,748
General and administrative 180,469 44,373
1,538,116 224,575
NET LOSS ' $ (610,241) $ (210,014)

See accompanying notes. ma e
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CLEARWATER 2008 NOTE PROGRAM, LLC
STATEMENT OF MEMBER’S EQUITY (DEFICIT)

Membership
Units
Membership  Subscriptions =~ Member's
Units Receivable Deficit Total

Balance, January 1, 2008 $ - $ - $ - $ -

Owner contribution 1,000 (1,000) - -

Net loss - - (210,014) (210,014)
Balance, December 31, 2008 1,000 (1,000) (210,014) (210,014)

Net loss - - (610,241) (610,241)

Balance, December 31, 2009 $ 1,000 § (1,000) $ (820,255) $ (820,255)

4 See accompanying nates




CLEARWATER 2008 NOTE PROGRAM, LLC
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used
by operating activities:
Amortization of deferred loan costs.(included as
interest expense)
Reinvested interest expense
Changes in assets and liabilities
Interest receivable
Related party receivables
Deferred loan costs
Accrued interest payable
Unearned interest income reserves
Related party payable

Net cash used by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Real estate loans funded
Purchase of real estate loan
Principal payments received on real estate loans receivable

Net cash used by investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from notes payable

NET CHANGE IN CASH
Cash, beginning of year

Cash, end of year

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION
Interest paid

NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Reinvested interest on notes payable

See accompanying notes.

Year Ended December 31,

2009

2008

$  (610,241)

158,627
220,369

(42,699)
(609,375)
(1,355,425)
47,147
664,155
(41,263)

$  (210,014)

8,735
17,709

41,263

62,010

(1,568,705)

(80,297)

(14,203,271)
(1,525,000)
86,500

(15,641,771)

13,932,525

4,620,212

(3,277,951)

4,539,915

4,539,915

$ 1,261,964

$ 4,539,915

5 781,721

$ 220,369

$ 17,709
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CLEARWATER 2008 NOTE PROGRAM, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization:

Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC (the Company), formed August 8, 2008, is solely owned by
Clearwater REI, LLC. The Company acquires and holds interests in acquisition and development
loans, secured by real property, that are undertaken by affiliates of Clearwater REI, LLC, and
other borrowers who satisfy the lending criteria established by the Company. The Company’s
operations are funded by the proceeds from the issuance of notes payable, due at various dates
through 2015.

Basis of accounting:

The Company’s prepares its financial statements on the accrual basis of accounting in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(USGAAP). '

Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with USGAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. On an on-going basis,
management evaluates its estimates, including those related to the adequacy of the allowance for
loan losses as well as contingencies. Management bases its estimates on historical experience
and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates under different assumptions or conditions. The valuation estimates for the allowance
for loan losses are accounting estimates that can have material affects on the financial
statements.

. Cash equivalents:
Cash equivalents include any short-term, highly liquid investments with an original maturity of
three months or less. The Company has no cash equivalents at December 31, 2009 and 2008.

Real estate loans receivable:
The Company has both the intent and ability to hold real estate loans until maturity and

therefore, real estate loans receivable are classified and accounted for as held for investment and
carried at face value. |

The Company considers a loan impaired when it becomes probable that interest and principal
payments are uncollectible according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement, which is
generally the earlier of when a principal or interest payment becomes 90 days past due, or when
foreclosure proceedings have been initiated. Loans that become 90 days past due or for which

foreclosure proceedings have been initiated subsequent to year end are classified as impaired as
of year end (see Note 3).
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CLEARWATER 2000 NOTE PROGRAM, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Real estate loans receivable (continued):

The Company measures impaired loans by either taking the present value of expected future cash
flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate or by assessing the loan’s observable market
price or the fair value of the collateral, if the loan is collateral dependent. As of December 31,
2009 and 2008, all of the Company’s loans are collateralized by real property secured by first
deed of trust. Management generally obtains a third-party appraisal or other valuation on the
underlying collateral for impaired loans to determine the amount of impairment, if any.

The Company only recognizes interest income on loans determined to be impaired when it is
probable the outstanding principal and interest will be collected from the borrower. The
"Company makes such a determination usually after considering third-party valuation of the
underlying collateral. Cash receipts for interest payments are allocated to interest income, except -
when such payments are specifically designated as principal reduction or when management
does not believe the Company’s investment in the loan is fully recoverable.

Allowance for loan losses:

The Company maintains an allowance for loan losses on real estate loans receivable. Additions
to the allowance are based on an assessment of certain factors including, but not limited to,
review of collateral values, borrower payment ability, and general economic conditions.
Evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses is based primarily on management’s
periodic assessment and risk rating of the loan portfolio. Additional factors considered by
management include the consideration of past loan loss experience, trends in past due and
nonperforming loans, risk characteristics of the various classifications of loans, the fair value of
underlying collateral, and agreements in place to purchase or sell property. While management
uses available information to recognize losses on loans, future adjustments to the allowance for
loan losses may be necessary based on changes in economic conditions and the impact of such
changes on the Company’s borrowers.

As described in Note 3, management has determined that no allowance for loan losses is
necessary for the year ended December 31, 2009.

Deferred loan costs:

The Company capitalizes direct costs incurred in issuing notes payable and amortizes those costs
on a straight-line basis over the related contractual life of the notes. If notes payable are paid in
full prior to contractual maturity, then corresponding deferred loan costs are expensed
immediately.

Unearned interest income reserves:
Unearned interest income is recorded as revenue by the Company when the corresponding

interest charge has been incurred by the borrower, in accordance with each respective real estate
loan.
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CLEARWATER 2008 NOTE PROGRAM, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition:

Revenue is recognized on performing loans when interest has been earned according to the terms
of the loans. However, interest is no longer recognized when a loan has become 90 days
delinquent based on the terms of the loan agreement or when foreclosure proceedings have been
initiated, whichever event occurs first. Loan origination fees earned by the Company are
deferred and amortized by the effective interest method over the contractual life of the loan, or
fully recognized at the time of loan prepayment.

Marketing costs:
The Company expenses marketing costs as they are incurred. Total marketing costs for the years
ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, were $149,783 and $91,748, respectively.

Income taxes:

The Company has elected to be taxed as a partnership. Accordingly, under federal and state
income tax regulations, any income or loss of the Company flows through to the member and is
reported on the member’s tax returns. Therefore, no provision for taxes has been recorded in the
accompanying financial statements.

As of January 1, 2009, the Company adopted authoritative guidance, which clarifies the
accounting for uncertain income tax positions by prescribing a minimum probability threshold
that a tax position must meet before a financial statement benefit is recognized. The minimum
threshold is defined by the guidance as a tax position that is more likely than not to be sustained
upon examination by the applicable taxing authority, including resolution of any related appeals
or litigation processes, based on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefit to be
recognized is measured as the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being
realized upon ultimate settlement.

The Company has evaluated its tax positions and does not believe it has any uncertain tax
positions.

Subsequent events:

During 2009, the Company adopted general standards on accounting for and disclosure of events
that occur after the balance sheet date but before the financial statements are issued or are
available to be issued. These standards are effective for interim or fiscal periods ended after
June 15, 2009. The adoption of this guidance did not materially impact the Company’s financial
statements. In preparing the financial statements, the Company evaluated subsequent events
occurring through June 17, 2010, the date these financial statements were available to be issued,
and provided disclosures in Note 6.

Reclassifications:

Certain reclassifications were made to the 2008 financial statements to conform to the current
year presentation. The reclassifications have no effect on previously reported net results of
operations or member’s deficit.
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CLEARWATER 2008 ~OTE PROGRAM, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2 - Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments with concentrations of credit and market risk include cash and cash
equivalents and real estate loans receivable.

The Company maintains cash deposit accounts in banks, which, at times, may exceed federally
insured limits. The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts and performs due
diligence on the banks where deposits are held to assess their stability.

The loans funded by the Company are fixed rate loans secured by a first deed of trust on land and
commercial and residential properties.

The Company has a geographic concentration of real estate loans in the state of Miésissippi of
approximately 27% as of December 31, 2009. As such, the Company may be adversely affected
by periods of economic decline within that geographic area.

Concentration of real estate loan products exist primarily in land and development loans. As
such, the Company has a significant product concentration of credit risk that may be adversely
affected by periods of economic decline. The following table illustrates the concentration
percentages by product fype as of December 31, 2009:

Amount Percent
Residential development $ 9,481,771 60.6%
Commercial land 6,160,000 39.4%

$ 15,641,771 100.0%

All of the Company’s real estate loans will require the borrower to make a balloon payment of
the principal at maturity. To the extent that a borrower has an obligation to pay a real estate loan
in a large lump-sum payment, its ability to satisfy this obligation may be dependent upon its
ability to sell the property, refinance, or raise a substantial amount of cash. An increase in
interest rates over the rate applicable at the time of origination of the loan or decrease in real
estate valuations may have an adverse effect on the borrower’s ability to refinance the loan and,
accordingly, could cause the Company to incur additional credit losses.

The Company has one real estate loan receivable totaling approximately $3.7 million that is due
from an entity related through common ownership.
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CLEARWATER 2008 NOTE PROGRAM, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 3 - Real Estate Loans Receivable

The Company had no loans outstanding as of December 31, 2008. Loans outstanding as of
December 31, 2009, consist of the following:

Note receivable with Healthcare of Florence, LLC, bearing interest at 14%,

with monthly interest only payments. Principal is due in a lump sum payment

upon maturity. Collateralized by real property is Florence, Arizona

guaranteed by Healthcare of Florence, LLC and due February 6, 2010. $ 6,160,000

Note receivable with Steelhead Townhomes, LLC, bearing interest at 14%,

with monthly interest only payments. Principal is due in a lump sum payment

upon maturity. Collateralized by 18 townhome units in Raymore, Missouri,

guaranteed personally by the LLC members, and originally due on July 5, 2009. 1,514,074

Note receivable with CREI Seaside LLC, an entity related through

common ownership, bearing interest at 14%, with monthly interest only

payments. Principal is due in a lump sum payment upon maturity.

Collateralized by 41 condo units in Kenmore, Washington, and due

on June 24, 2010. 3,742,697

Note receivable with Chapman Road Development, LLC, bearing interest

at 14%, with monthly interest only payments. Principal is due in a lump sum

payment upon maturity. Collateralized by 18 duplex lots in Bay St. Louis,

Mississippi, guaranteed personally by the LLC members, and due on

May 31, 2010. 2,700,000

Note receivable with Chapman Road Development, LLC, bearing interest

at 14%, with monthly interest only payments. Principal is due in a lump sum

payment upon maturity. Collateralized by approximately 35 acres of entitled

land in Bay St. Louis, Mississippi, guaranteed personally by the LLC

members, and due on June 7, 2010. 1,525,000

$ 15,641,771

All of the Company’s real estate loans receivable outstanding at December 31, 2009, have an
original maturity of one year or less. At December 31, 2009, the Company was not committed to
fund any additional loan amounts.

10
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CLEARWATER 2008 .xOTE PROGRAM, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 3 - Real Estate Loans Receivable (Continued)

Delinquent and impaired loans:

In accordance with its loan accounting policy, one of the Company’s loans outstanding
amounting to $1,514,074 was considered impaired at December 31, 2009. The Company is in
the process of foreclosing on the underlying collateral of the impaired loan. Interest earned on
impaired loans for the year ended December 31, 2009, totaled approximately $43,000, all of
which has been accrued as a receivable as of the balance sheet date. In accordance with its
revenue recognition policy, the Company will continue to accrue interest income on each
delinquent loan until the earlier of (1) the loan becoming 90 days past due or (2) a foreclosure is
initiated. Accrued interest recorded remains accrued if management determines that either the
underlying collateral or discounted future cash flows of the loan support recovery of principal
and accrued interest.

The Company sets aside an allowance for loan losses through periodic charges to earnings.
While there exists probable asset quality problems in the loan portfolio due to impaired loans,
management has not recorded an allowance for impaired loan losses as of December 31, 2009,
due to the Company’s assessment of the collateral value supporting the amount of loans
outstanding.

Note 4 - Notes Payable

Notes payable (the notes) were issued during 2008 and 2009 pursuant to a private placement to
offer up to $20,000,000 of secured investment notes at a rate of 9.50% per annum and
guaranteed by RE Capital Investments, LLC, an entity related to the Company through common
ownership. Commissions were charged for the notes sold and are included in deferred loan costs,
which are amortized over the contractual life. Interest is payable monthly, with principal and
unpaid accrued interest due at maturity in 2015. Note holders may elect to have interest
reinvested and compounded monthly. An option is available to issue up to $40,000,000 in total
secured investment notes, at the sole discretion of the Company.

Beginning December 31, 2010, and once annually on that date thereafter, the Company will
redeem up to one-tenth of the outstanding principal amount of the notes at par plus accrued but
unpaid interest, at the request of note holders upon at least 30 days prior written notice. The
Company may also receive redemption requests upon death of a note holder with payment due
180 days after written notice is received. Redemptions, to the extent of the annual limit, will be
honored in the order that requests are received. At December 31, 2009, the current portion of
notes payable is one-tenth of the outstanding principal amount, or $1,907,411.

On December 31, 2011, the notes are callable, in whole or in part, at the Company’s sole option
and demand upon ninety days written notice. All notes mature during 2015.
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CLEARWATER 2008 .+oTE PROGRAM, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 4 - Notes Payable (Continued)

Notes payable consist of the following at December 31, 2009:

2009 2008
Notes payable $ 19,075,243 § 5,142,718
Reinvested interest 238,078 17,709
19,313,321 5,160,427
Less current portion of notes payable (1,907,541) -

$ 17,405,780 § 5,160,427

Future minimum principal payments due under the notes payable subsequent to December 31,
2009, are as follows:

2010 $ 1,907,541
2011 1,716,787
2012 1,545,108
2013 1,390,597
2014 1,251,538
Thereafter 11,501,750
_$19313,31

Note S - Related Party Transactions

The Company has entered into an operating agreement with its parent company, Clearwater REI,
LLC (the Manager), to handle the day-to-day operations of the Company and perform services
and activities relating to the assets and operations of the Company. Under the terms of the
agreement, the Manager may be paid reasonable compensation for services, as determined by the
Company. During 2009, the Company paid no compensation to the Manager. Expenses incurred
by the Manager on behalf of the Company were reimbursed to the Manager.
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CLEARWATER 200, .<OTE PROGRAM, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 5 - Related Party Transactig

Transactions between the Compan

s (Continued)

y and the Manager consist of the following, which make up

the balance of the long-term related party receivable:

Balance at January 1
Salary and overhead allocations
Professional fees
Reimbursement of costs to raise
Cash advances to Manager
Accrued commissions

Balance at December 31

Under the terms of its loans receiv

2009 2008
$ (41263) $ -
(319,004) (136,121)
(11,250) -
capital 389,649 113,234
86,700 2,081
(31,033) (20,457)
$ 73,799 $ (41,263)

able, the Company retains an interest reserve for payments to

be made on behalf of the borrowers to the Company. Clearwater Asset Management, LLC

(CRAM), a related party through

common ownership, is responsible for holding the interest

reserves and processing interest pgyments to the Company on the loans receivable. CRAM also
processes interest payments to the Company’s note holders. CRAM recorded the following

transactions on behalf of the Comp

Interest income received
Interest payments made

any:
2009 2008
$ 803,614 -
(1,049,237) (79,719)

As of December 31, 2009, CRAM held $535,576 of cash on behalf of the Company, which is
included in related party receivables. The balance of interest reserves held by CRAM as of

December 31, 2009, was $664,155

In December 2009, the Company
common ownership totaling $1,523
Mississippi.

Note 6 - Subsequent Events

Subsequent to year end, the Comj
with Healthcare of Florence, LLC.
loan increased to ~$9.8M and is du

The Company has two loans outst
in May and June 2010. The log
Mississippi and due to delays in p
time of maturity. The Company is
agreements.

purchased a loan at face value from an entity related through
,000, secured by a first deed of trust in entitled land located in

pany extended and modified the terms of its loan agreement
Under the terms of the extended agreement the amount of the
e in October 2010.

anding with Chapman Road Development, LLC that matured
ins were issued to develop residential land and homes in
ermitting the borrower had not completed development at the
currently in the process of negotiating extensions for the loan
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Dear Investor:

The purpose of this letter is to keep you informed of the status of the Clearwater 2008 Note Program (the “Note
Program”). 2010 was a difficult year for most companies across the globe including the Note Program. The current
economic environment is requiring strategic adjustments to preserve investor capital and drive above average returns.
The 2008 Note Program has made adjustments to the take out plan for a few of the loans as a result of the current
economic environment. As of May 2010, $21,900,000 has been raised from investors and $18,429,697 has been
deployed into five portfolio loans which are secured by real property with combined appraised values totaling $28,282,361
(based on the most recent appraisals). These assets are either directly owned by the Note Program or collateralized by
first deeds of trust.

As the global financial crisis continues to work itself out, Clearwater is seeing more and more attractive opportunities for
the Note Program. The following information outlines our analysis of each of the five portfolio loans.

Healthcare of Florence
(Non Affiliate loan)

Description: This loan is secured by a First Deed of Trust (FDOT) on a 90,000 SF general hospital and long term care
facility. The facility is located in one of the most underserved healthcare markets in the nation.

Original Takeout Plan: Upon completion of the renovations, the loan was to be paid off through a refinance with an
outside lender.

Update: The renovations are now complete and the hospital has been operational since July, 2010. The loan has
matured and the borrowers have been unable to refinance the note due to the difficulties facing the financial markets and
delays in the stabilization of the asset. However, the borrower has continued to make interest payments. A forbearance
agreement is currently being negotiated with the borrowers. There are parties interested in either purchasing the facility
(including a large hospital system operator) or refinancing the real estate.

The appraisal was updated as of 1/19/11 and it shows a “as-is” value of $20,385,000 (48.07% LTV) and a value at “full
stabilization” of $21,500,000 (45.58% LTV).

Current Strategy: Although, the loan is in default, our strategy for this loan has not materially changed since origination.
The Note Program, along with the borrower, continue to work with potential bridge lenders (immediate takeout) and
permanent lenders (takeout upon stabilization ). The borrower is working with interested lenders and expects to
successfully refinance the project thereby providing a payoff to the Note Program. If for some unforeseen circumstances
the refinance does not become available, the hospital is projected to be able to service the Note Program's loan until the
credit markets recover.

North Seattle Condos
(Affiliate loan)

Description: This loan is secured by a FDOT on 21 (20 of 41 original units have sold) condominium units located in
Kenmore, WA (Seattle).

Original Takeout Plan: The borrower originally purchased this loan at a distressed debt auction for a discount. The note
was non-performing at the time and because of the large amount of equity in the deal ($8,000,000 “as-is” appraised value
at closing). The Note Program’s business plan was to foreclose on the property and liquidate the assets, secure a work
out with the borrower or have the debt repaid.

Update: Even during these difficult economic times units continue to sell. Twenty units have sold since we acquired the
note, however, the property remains in bankruptcy and proceeds have been used to protect the Note Program’s collateral
position in the asset.

Clearwater Real Estate Investments 000167
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2010 YEAR-END UPDATE
CLEARWATER 2008 NOTE PROGRAM March 24, 2011

Current Strategy: The Note Program is currently appealing a bankruptcy court ruling. The Note Program is at the mercy
of the bankruptcy court until such time that the court allows collateral to be released or unit sales resume.

Legends 19 - Townhomes
Raymore, MO
(Non Affiliate loan)

Description: Eighteen Townhomes in Raymore, MO (Kansas City) owned by the Note Program through foreclosure.
Original Takeout Plan: Primary, refinance through a traditional lender, secondary, foreclosure and liquidation.

Update: The Note Program has completed the foreclosure on this property and now owns this asset. Sixteen of the 18
units are currently leased at an average rate of $973 per month.

Current Strategy: As noted above the foreclosure of this property is now complete and the Note Program is managing
the asset. It is our intention to continue to lease units and collect the positive cash flow in order to meet the Note
Program’s obligations. As the real estate market recovers we will liquidate units. The Note Program expects this property
to continue to realize positive net operating income from this asset.

Coastal Gables - (1) Horizontal Loan; (2) Vertical L.oan
Bay St. Louis, MS
(Non Affiliate loan)

Description:
(1) Horizontal Loan - This loan is secured by a FDOT on 124 of 142 residential lots located in Bay St. Louis,
Mississippi. Proceeds were used for horizontal development.
(2) Vertical Loan - This loan is secured by a FDOT on phase one (consisting of 18, of 142, lots on which 36 units
were to be constructed utilizing the loan proceeds).

Original Takeout Plan:
(1) Horizontal Loan - Lot releases upon commencement of vertical construction.
(2) Vertical Loan - Sales of individual units to investors looking to take advantage of numerous available incentives,
and a strong housing market, in the Gulf Opportunity Zone (“GO Zone").

Update: The horizontal construction is substantially complete. Unfortunately, the borrower has lost the government
incentives that made this project attractive. The project is significantly behind schedule and. due to the lost incentives is
no longer economically viable in its current form.

Current Strategy: The Note Program is currently working with the borrower in an attempt to come to an acceptable work
out plan. If this effort is unsuccessful then the Note Program will be forced to foreclose and liquidate the asset (142
finished lots).

Again, the Note Program remains optimistic that the work out strategies presented above will allow the Note Program to
continue meeting its obligations to its investors. In summary, we at Clearwater believe that in spite of the economic
problems, we are actively protecting the assets in the Note Program.

Thank you for your continued patience as we work through these difficult economic times. Please contact our Investor
Services Department, if you have any questions.

Sincerely,
Clearwater Real Estate Investments

Toll-free (866) 217-4906
InvestorServices@clearwaterrei.com
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

To the Member
Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC
Eagle, Idaho

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC (the
Company) as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the related statements of operations, member’s deficit,
and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, An audit includes consideration of internal
control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the
results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As described in Note 7, during the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, the majority of the activity
and balances of Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC, except notes payable and interest expense,
involved related party transactions with entities that were under common Clearwater ownership.

Woce Adbme. L0P

San Francisco, California
August 19, 2011
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CLEARWATER 2008 NO. .. PROGRAM, LLC
BALANCE SHEET

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Interest receivable
Real estate loans receivable, net of allowance
for losses of $2,311,584 in 2010 and $-0- in 2009
Current portion of related party receivables

Total current assets

REAL ESTATE PROPERTY HELD FOR INVESTMENT
Land
Rental property
Accumulated depreciation

Total real estate property held for investment

OTHER ASSETS
Related party receivables, long-term
Deferred loan costs, net

December 31,
2010 2009
1,848,846 $ 1,261,964
150,271 42,699
13,567,103 15,641,771
212,191 535,576
15,778,411 17,482,010
360,000 -
1,167,374 -
(14,150) -
1,513,224 -
- 73,799
1,648,518 1,710,569

$ 18,940,153

$ 19,266,378

LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S DEFICIT

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued interest payable
Rental deposits
Unearned interest income reserves
Related party payable
Current portion of notes payable

Total current liabilities

LONG-TERM DEBT
Notes payable, less current portion

MEMBER'S DEFICIT
Membership units
Membership units subscription receivable
Member's deficit

14,200 $ -
130,592 109,157
8,168 -
- 664,155
3,544 -
- 1,907,541
156,504 2,680,853
22,487,335 17,405,780
22,643,839 20,086,633
1,000 1,000
(1,000) (1,000)
(3,703,686) (820,255)
(3,703,686) (820,255)
18,940,153  $ 19,266,378

See accompanying notes.

000173



CLEARWATER ..08 NOTE PROGRAM, LLC

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
Year Ended December 31,
2010 2009
REVENUE
Real estate loan interest $ 2,116,511 $ 846,313
Other interest 28,138 81,562
Rental income from real estate property held for investment 61,448 -
2,206,097 927,875
EXPENSES
Interest 2,300,471 1,207,864
Marketing - 149,783
General and administrative 291,152 180,469
Rental expenses 25,071 -
Depreciation 14,150 -
Provision for loan losses 2,458,684 -
5,089,528 1,538,116
NET LOSS $ (2,883,431) $ (610,241)
See accompanying notes. 3
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CLEARWATER 2008 NOTE PROGRAM, LLC

STATEMENT OF MEMBER’S DEFICIT

Balance, December 31, 2008
Net loss
Balance, December 31, 2009

Net loss

Balance, December 31, 2010

Units Units Deficit Total
§ 1,000 $ (1,000) $ (210,014) § (210,014)
- - (610,241) (610,241)
1,000 (1,000) (820,255) (820,255)
- - (2,883,431) (2,883,431)
$ 1,000 § (1,000) $ (3,703,686) $ (3,703,686)

See accompanying notes.

00075



CLEARWATER _..8 NOTE PROGRAM, LLC
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash
from operating activities:
Amortization of deferred loan costs (included as
interest expense)
Depreciation
Reinvested interest expense
Provision for loan losses
Changes in assets and liabilities
Interest receivable
Related party receivables/payables
Deferred loan costs
Accounts payable
Accrued interest payable
Rental deposits
Unearned interest income reserves
Related party payable

Net cash from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Real estate loans funded
Purchase of real estate loan
Principal payments received on real estate loans receivable

Net cash from investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from notes payable
Payments on notes payable

Net cash from financing activities
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION
Interest paid

NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Reinvested interest on notes payable
Foreclosure of loan receivable to real estate property
held for investment:
Real estate property held for investment
Real estate loan receivable
Interest receivable

See accompanying notes.

Year Ended December 31,
2010 2009
$ (2.883,431) $  (610,241)
333,079 158,627
14,150 -
436,288 220,369
2,458,684 -
(306,546) (42,699)
400,728 (609,375)
(271,028) (1,355,425)
14,200 -
21,435 47,147
8,168 -
(664,155) 664,155
- (41,263)
(438,428) (1,568,705)
(3,640,000) (14,203,271)
- (1,525,000)
1,927,584 86,500
(1,712,416) (15,641,771)
2,828,898 13,932,525
(91,172) -
2,737,726 13,932,525
586,882 (3,277,951)
1,261,964 4,539,915
$ 1,848,846 $ 1,261,964
$ 1,509,669 $ 781,721
$ 436,288 $ 220,369
$ 1,527,374 $ -
$ (1,475,500) $ -
$ (51,874) $ -




CLEARWATER 2008 Nu1 e PROGRAM, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization:

Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC (the Company), formed August 8, 2008, is solely owned by
Clearwater REI, LLC (the Manager). The Company acquires and holds interests in acquisition and
development loans, secured by real property, that are undertaken by affiliates of Clearwater REI, LLC,
and other borrowers who satisfy the lending criteria established by the Company. The Company’s
operations are funded by the proceeds from the issuance of notes payable, due at various dates through
2015. In 2010, the Company foreclosed on a loan and now owns and operates an 18 unit town-home
community located in Raymore, Missouri (see Note 5).

Basis of accounting:
The Company prepares its financial statements on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (USGAAP).

Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with USGAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. On an on-going basis, management evaluates its
estimates, including those related to the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses and value of real estate
held for investment as well as contingencies. Management bases its estimates on historical experience and
on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different
assumptions or conditions. The valuation estimates for the allowance for loan losses and value of real
estate held for investment and the fair values for impaired loans are accounting estimates that can have
material affects on the financial statements.

Cash equivalents:
Cash equivalents include any short-term, highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three
months or less.

Real estate loans receivable:

The Company has both the intent and ability to hold real estate loans until maturity and therefore, real
estate loans receivable are classified and accounted for as held for investment and carried at face value, if
not impaired. All loans are originated directly by the Company.

The Company considers a loan impaired when it becomes probable that interest and principal payments
are uncollectible according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement, which is generally the earlier
of when a principal or interest payment becomes 90 days past due, or when foreclosure proceedings have
been initiated. Loans that become 90 days past due or for which foreclosure proceedings have been
initiated subsequent to year end are classified as impaired as of year end (see Note 4).
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CLEARWATER __08 NOTE PROGRAM, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Real estate loans receivable (continued):

The Company measures impaired loans by either taking the present value of expected future cash flows
discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate or by assessing the loan’s observable market price or the
fair value of the collateral, if the loan is collateral dependent. As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, all of
the Company’s loans are collateralized by real property secured by first deeds of trust. Management
generally obtains a third-party appraisal or other valuation on the underlying collateral for impaired loans
to determine the amount of impairment, if any.

The Company only recognizes interest income on loans determined to be impaired when it is probable the
outstanding principal and interest will be collected from the borrower. The Company makes such a
determination usually after considering third-party valuation of the underlying collateral. Cash receipts
for interest payments are allocated to interest income, except when such payments are specifically
designated as principal reduction or when management does not believe the Company’s investment in the
loan is fully recoverable.

Allowance for loan losses:

The Company maintains an allowance for loan losses on real estate loans receivable. Additions to the
allowance are based on an assessment of certain factors including, but not limited to, review of collateral
values, borrower payment ability, and general economic conditions. Evaluation of the adequacy of the
allowance for loan losses is based primarily on management’s periodic assessment and risk rating of the
loan portfolio. Additional factors considered by management include the consideration of past loan loss
experience, trends in past due and nonperforming loans, risk characteristics of the various classifications
of loans, the fair value of underlying collateral, and agreements in place to purchase or sell property.
While management uses available information to recognize losses on loans, future adjustments to the

allowance for loan losses may be necessary based on changes in economic conditions and the impact of
such changes on the Company’s borrowers.

The Company maintains a separate allowance for each loan receivable. The allowance for loan losses
attributable to each applicable loan is combined to determine the Company’s overall allowance, which is
included on the balance sheet. At December 31, 2010, the Company has an allowance for losses of
$2,311,584. No such allowances were recorded in 2009.

Real estate property held for investment:
Real estate property held for investment is carried at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and net of
impairment losses, if any, and depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives.

Maintenance, repairs, and replacements of fixtures are charged to expense as incurred. The estimated
useful life of the rental property is 27.5 years.
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CLEARWATER 2008 NO 1 . PROGRAM, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Real estate property held for investment (continued):

The Company reviews its long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate the carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverable. If the carrying amount of the asset
exceeds its estimated undiscounted future net cash flows, before interest, the Company would recognize
an impairment loss equal to the difference between its carrying amount and its estimated fair value. If an
impairment loss was recognized, the reduced carrying amount of the asset would be accounted for as its
new cost. For a depreciable asset, the new cost would be depreciated over the asset’s remaining useful
life. Generally, fair values are estimated using a discounted cash flow, direct capitalization, or market
comparison analysis. The process of evaluating for impairment requires estimates as to future events and
conditions, which are subject to varying market and economic factors. Therefore, it is reasonably possible
that a change in estimates resulting from judgments as to future events could occur that would affect the
recorded amounts of the property. No impairment loss was necessary for the year ended December 31,
2010.

Deferred loan costs:

The Company capitalizes direct costs incurred in issuing notes payable and amortizes those costs on a
straight-line basis over the related contractual life of the notes. If notes payable are paid in full prior to
contractual maturity, then corresponding deferred loan costs are expensed immediately.

Unearned interest income reserves:
Unearned interest income is recorded as revenue by the Company when the corresponding interest charge
has been incurred by the borrower, in accordance with each respective real estate loan.

Revenue recognition:

Revenue is recognized on performing loans when interest has been earned according to the terms of the
loans. However, interest is no longer recognized when a loan has become 90 days delinquent based on
the terms of the loan agreement or when foreclosure proceedings have been initiated, whichever event
occurs first. Loan origination fees earned by the Company are deferred and amortized by the effective
interest method over the contractual life of the loan, or fully recognized at the time of loan prepayment.

Rental income consists of leasing town-home units. Rental income is recognized on a straight-line basis
over the lives of the related leases when collectability is reasonably assured. The lease terms are generally
for periods of one year or less. Differences between the rental income recognized and amount due under
the respective lease agreements are determined to be immaterial. Ongoing credit evaluations are
performed and no allowance for potential credit losses were provided against the portion of accounts
receivable that is estimated to be uncollectible.

Marketing costs:

The Company expenses marketing costs as they are incurred. Total marketing costs for the years ended
December 31, 2010 and 2009, were $-0- and $149,783, respectively.

Income taxes:
The Company has elected to be taxed as a partnership. Accordingly, under federal and state income tax
regulations, any income or loss of the Company flows through to the member and is reported on the

member’s tax returns. Therefore, no provision for taxes has been recorded in the accompanying financial
statements.
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CLEARWATER ...8 NOTE PROGRAM, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Income taxes (continued):

As of January 1, 2009, the Company adopted authoritative guidance that clarifies the accounting for
uncertain income tax positions by prescribing a minimum probability threshold that a tax position must
meet before a financial statement benefit is recognized. The minimum threshold is defined by the
guidance as a tax position that is more likely than not to be sustained upon examination by the applicable
taxing authority, including resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical
merits of the position. The tax benefit to be recognized is measured as the largest amount of benefit that is
greater than 50% likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement. The Company recognizes interest and
penalties related to income tax matters in operating expenses.

The Cbmpany has evaluated its tax positions and does not believe it has any uncertain tax positions.

Subsequent events:

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the balance sheet date but before the
financial statements are issued. The Company recognizes in the financial statements the effects of all
subsequent events that provide additional evidence about conditions that existed at the date of the balance
sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the financial statements. The
Company’s financial statements do not recognize subsequent events that provide evidence about
conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance sheet, but arose after the balance sheet date and
before the financial statements were available to be issued.

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through August 19, 2011, which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued, in accordance with the Company’s policy related to disclosures of
subsequent events, and has not identified any material events that should be disclosed.

Note 2 - Fair Value Measurements

The Company utilizes fair value measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain assets and
liabilities. Current accounting standards clarify the definition of fair value, describe methods generally
used to appropriately measure fair value in accordance with USGAAP and expand fair value disclosure
requirements. Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
hierarchy under current accounting guidance prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to
measure fair value into three broad levels. The hierarchy is measured in three levels based on the
reliability of inputs:

Level 1 Quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets.

Level 2 Quoted prices for similar instruments in active’ markets; quoted prices for identical or
similar instruments in markets that are not active; model-derived valuations in which all
significant inputs and significant value drivers are observable in active markets.

Level 3 Valuations derived from valuation techniques in which one or more significant inputs or
significant value drivers are unobservable.
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CLEARWATER 2008 NO 1 . PROGRAM, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2 - Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

This hierarchy requires the Company to maximize the use of observable market data, when available, and
to minimize the use of unobservable inputs when determining fair value. The Company is required to take
into account its own credit risk when measuring the fair value of liabilities. Fair value is best determined
based upon quoted market prices. However, in many instances, there are no quoted market prices for
various financial instruments. In cases where quoted market prices are not available, fair values are based
on estimates using present value and other valuation techniques. Those techniques are significantly
affected by assumptions used, including the discount rate, estimates of future cash flows and the
realization of collateral values. Accordingly, the fair value estimates may not be realized in an immediate
settlement of the instrument. '

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for instruments measured at fair value
on a recurring basis and nonrecurring basis and recognized in the balance sheet, as well as the general
classification of such instruments pursuant to the valuation hierarchy.

Impaired loans:

The Company does not record loans at fair value on a recurring basis. However, from time to time, a loan
is considered impaired and an allowance for loan losses is established. A loan is considered impaired
when, based on current information and events, it is probable the Company will be unable to collect all
amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement or when monthly payments are
delinquent greater than 90 days. Once a loan is identified as impaired, management generally measures
impairment at fair value when the impaired loans observable market price is available or at the value of
the underlying collateral when the impaired loan is collateral dependent. The fair value of the loan’s
collateral is determined by third party appraisals. Those impaired loans not requiring an allowance
represent loans for which the fair value of the collateral or observable market price exceed the recorded
investments in such loans. For such impaired loans, they are not measured at fair value. At December 31,
2010 and 2009, substantially all of the impaired loans were evaluated based on the fair value of the
collateral.

Impaired loans where an allowance is established based on the fair value of collateral require
classification in the fair value hierarchy. When the fair value of the collateral is based on an observable
market price or is determined utilizing an income or market valuation approach based on an appraisal
conducted by an independent, licensed appraiser using observable market data, the Company records the
impaired loan using Level 3 inputs. When management determines the fair value of the collateral is
further impaired below the appraised value or there is no observable market data included in a current
appraisal, the Company also records the impaired loan using Level 3 inputs.

The following table presents the fair value measurements of assets and Jiabilities recognized in the
accompanying balance sheet measured at fair value on a recurring and nonrecurring basis and the level
within the fair value hierarchy in which the fair value measurements fall at December 31, 2010 (there
were no fair value measurements at December 31, 2009):

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Nonrecurring
Impaired loans $ - $ - $ 1913416 $ 1,913,416
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CLEARWATER ...08 NOTE PROGRAM, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 3 - Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments with concentrations of credit and market risk include cash and cash equivalents and
real estate loans receivable.

The Company maintains cash deposit accounts in banks, which, at times, may exceed federally insured
limits. The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts and performs due diligence on the
banks where deposits are held to assess their stability.

The loans funded by the Company are fixed rate loans secured by a first deed of trust on land and
commercial and residential properties.

The Company has a geographic concentration of real estate loans in the state of Mississippi of
approximately 27% as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. As such, the Company may be
adversely affected by periods of economic decline within that geographic area.

The Company has a geographic concentration of real estate loans in the state of Arizona of appfoximately
62% and 39% as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. As such, the Company may be adversely
affected by periods of economic declme within that geographic area.

Concentration of real estate loan products exist primarily in land and development loans. The following
table illustrates the concentration percentages by product type as of December 31:

2010 2009
Amount ‘Percent Amount Percent
Residential development $ 3,767,103 27.8% $ 9,481,771 60.6%
Commercial land 9,800,000 72.2% 6,160,000 39.4%
$ 13,567,103 100.0% $ 15,641,771 100.0%

All of the Company’s real estate loans will require the borrower to make a balloon payment of the
principal at maturity. To the extent that a borrower has an obligation to pay a real estate loan in a large
lump-sum payment, its ability to satisfy this obligation may be dependent upon its ability to sell the
property, refinance, or raise a substantial amount of cash. An increase in interest rates over the rate
applicable at the time of origination of the loan or decrease in real estate valuations may have an adverse

effect on the borrower’s ability to refinance the loan and, accordingly, could cause the Company to incur
additional credit losses.

The Company has one real estate loan receivable totaling approximately $1,853,687 and $3,742,697 as of
December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, that is due from an entity related through common ownership.

11
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CLEARWATER 2008 NO'1 . PROGRAM, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 4 - Real Estate Loans Receivable

Loans outstanding as of December 31 consist of the following:

2010

2009

Note receivable with Healthcare of Florence, LLC, bearing interest at
14%, with monthly interest-only payments. Principal is due in a lump
sum payment upon maturity. Collateralized by real property in
Florence, Arizona, guaranteed by Healthcare of Florence, LLC and
due October 6, 2010. Loan is in default accruing interest at the
effective rate, plus the default rate (14% + 5%) and is due on demand.

Note receivable with Steelhead Townhomes, LLC, bearing interest at
14%, with monthly interest-only payments. Principal is due in a lump
sum payment upon maturity. Collateralized by 18 townhome units in
Raymore, Missouri, guaranteed personally by the LLC members, and
originally due on July 5, 2009. Property was foreclosed on in 2010 and
as a result, the Company has obtained the townhomes.

Note receivable with CREI Seaside LLC, an entity related through
common ownership, bearing interest at 14%, with monthly interest-
only payments. Principal is due in a lump sum payment upon
maturity. Collateralized by 41 condo units in Kenmore, Washington,
and due on June 24, 2010. Loan is in default accruing interest at the
effective rate, plus the default rate (14% + 5%) and is due on demand.

Note receivable with Chapman Road Development, LLC, bearing
interest at 14%, with monthly interest-only payments. Principal is due
in a lump sum payment upon maturity. Collateralized by 18 duplex
lots in Bay St. Louis, Mississippi, guaranteed personally by the LLC
members, and due on May 31, 2010. Loan is in default accruing
interest at the effective rate, plus the default rate (14% + 5%) and is
due on demand. During 2010, an allowance of $1,769,328 was
recorded.

Note receivable with Chapman Road Development, LLC, bearing
interest at 14%, with monthly interest-only payments. Principal is due
in a lump sum payment upon maturity. Collateralized by
approximately 35 acres of entitled land in Bay St. Louis, Mississippi,
guaranteed personally by the LLC members, and due on June 7, 2010.
Loan is in default accruing interest at the effective rate, plus the
default rate (14% + 5%) and is due on demand. During 2010, an
allowance of $542,256 was recorded.
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$ 9,800,000

1,853,687

930,672

982,744

$ 6,160,000

1,514,074

3,742,697

2,700,000

1,525,000

$ 13,567,103

$ 15,641,771
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CLEARWATER ....8 NOTE PROGRAM, LLC .
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 4 - Real Estate Loans Receivable (Continued)

All of the Company’s real estate loans receivable outstanding at December 31, 2010, have an original
maturity of one year or less. At December 31, 2010, the Company was not committed to fund any
additional loan amounts.

Interest receivable and impaired loans: .

In accordance with its loan accounting policy, two of the Company’s loans outstanding amounting to
$1,913,416 were considered impaired at December 31, 2010. At December 31, 2009, one of the
Company’s loans outstanding amounting to $1,514,074 was considered impaired. In accordance with its
revenue recognition policy, the Company no longer accrues interest income on all loans that are 90 days
past due. As of December 31, 2010, all outstanding loans with the exception of the loan due from
Healthcare of Florence, LLC are 90 days past due. The Company is in the process of foreclosing on the
underlying collateral of the impaired loans. Interest earned on impaired loans for the years ended
December 31, 2010 and 2009, totaled approximately $-0- and $43,000, respectively, all of which has been
accrued as a receivable as of the balance sheet date. Recorded accrued interest remains accrued if
management determines that either the underlying collateral or discounted future cash flows of the loan
support recovery of principal and accrued interest. During 2010, interest receivable of $147,100 was
written off related to allowances for loan losses. This amount is included in the provision for loan losses
line item on the statements of operations.

The following table presents a rollforward of the allowance for loan loss:

Balance at January 1, 2010 $ -
Provision for loan losses 2,458,684
Less interest receivable charge-offs from impaired loans (147,100)

Balance at December 31, 2010 $ 2,311,584

Note 5 - Real Estate Property Held for Investment

On July 27, 2010, the Company foreclosed on an 18 unit townhome community located in Raymore,
Missouri, which collateralized the loan receivable from a borrower. The property is recorded at cost as of
December 31, 2010, net of accumulated depreciation. The original loan was recorded at $1,562,000, The
estimated value of the property at the time of foreclosure, was $1,651,200. As the estimated value of the
collateral was greater than the Company’s recorded investment in the loan, the real estate was brought
onto the Company’s accounting records at the loan’s recorded investment of $1,527,374. At
December 31, 2010, the carrying cost of the real estate is $1,513,224, including accumulated depreciation
of $14,150. It is the Company’s intent to sell this property, but the expected sale is not probable to occur
within the next year.
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CLEARWATER 2008 NOTE PROGRAM, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 6 - Notes Payable

Notes payable (the notes) were issued during 2008 and 2009 pursuant to a private placement to offer up to
$20,000,000 of secured investment notes at a rate of 9.50% per annum and guaranteed by RE Capital
Investments, LLC, an entity related to the Company through common ownership. Commissions were
charged for the notes sold and are included in deferred loan costs, which are amortized over the
contractual life. Interest is payable monthly, with principal and unpaid accrued interest due at maturity in
2015. Note holders may elect to have interest reinvested and compounded monthly. An option is
available to issue up to $40,000,000 in total secured investment notes, at the sole discretion of the
Company.

Beginning December 31, 2010, and once annually on that date thereafter, the Company will redeem up to
one-tenth of the outstanding principal amount of the notes at par plus accrued but unpaid interest, at the
request of note holders upon at least 30 days prior written notice. The Company may also receive
redemption requests upon death of a note holder with payment due 180 days after written notice is

received. Redemptions, to the extent of the annual limit, will be honored in the order that requests are
received.

In 2010, the Company suspended early redemption requests. During 2010, $91,172 in redemptions were
honored relating to the death of the note holder.

On December 31, 2011, the notes are callable, in whole or in part, at the Company’s sole option and
demand upon 90 days written notice. All notes mature during 2015.

Notes payable consist of the following at December 31:

2010 2009
Notes payable $ 21,904,141 $ 19,075,243
Reinvested interest 674,366 238,078
Principal payments (91,172) -
22,487,335 19,313,321
Less current portion of notes payable - (1,907,541)

$ 22487335 $ 17405780

Future minimum principal payments due under the notes payable subsequent to December 31, 2010, are
as follows:

2011 $
2012
2013
2014 -

2015 22,487,335

$ 22,487,335
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CLEARWATER .u08 NOTE PROGRAM, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 7 - Related Party Transactions

The Company has entered into an operating agreement with its parent company, Clearwater REI, LLC, to
handle the day-to-day operations of the Company and perform services and activities relating to the assets
and operations of the Company. Under the terms of the agreement, the Manager may be paid reasonable
compensation for services, as determined by the Company. During 2010 and 2009, the Company paid no
compensation to the Manager. Expenses incurred by the Manager on behalf of the Company were
reimbursed to the Manager. In addition, the Manager received loan origination fees charged to borrowers
for and upon origination and extension of loans up to 4% of the loan balance. Loan fees received by the
Manager directly from borrowers related to loans outstanding in the Company were $145,600 and
$654,588 for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Transactions between the Company and the Manager consist of the following, which make up the balance
of the long-term related party payable at December 31, 2010, and receivable at December 31, 2009:

2010 2009
Balance at January 1 $ 73,799 $  (41,263)
Salary and overhead allocations (175,555) (319,004)
Professional fees (6,591) (11,250)
Reimbursement of costs to raise capital (271,028) 389,649
Cash advances to Manager - 86,700
Commissions paid 375,831 (31,033)
Balance at December 31 $ (3,544 $ 73,799

Under the terms of its loans receivable, the Company retains an interest reserve for payments to be made
on behalf of the borrowers to the Company. Clearwater Asset Management, LLC (CRAM), a related party
through common ownership, is responsible for holding the interest reserves and processing interest
payments to the Company on the loans receivable. CRAM also processes interest payments to the
Company’s note holders. CRAM recorded the following transactions on behalf of the Company:

2010 2009
Interest income received $ 1,144377 $ 803,614
Interest payments made (1,506,332) (1,049,237)
Miscellaneous income 4,570 4,267
Amounts transferred to CRAM 34,000 776,932

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, CRAM held $212,191 and $535,576 of cash on behalf of the
Company, which is included in related party receivables. :

In December 2009, the Company purchased a loan at face value from an entity related through common
ownership totaling $1,525,000, secured by a first deed of trust in entitled land located in Mississippi.

15
UUULob




CLEARWATER 2008 NOTE PROGRAM, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 8 - Contingency
The Company is a defendant in a lawsuit filed by one of its customers for alleged breach of contract. The

suit asks for actual and punitive damages but has not yet specified the amounts sought. The Company
believes the suit is completely without merit and intends to vigorously defend its position.
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Clearwater Real Estate Investments N OtiCG tO NOte HOId@I’ S

1300 E State Street, Ste 103

Fagle,|dsho 89518 Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC

October 26, 2011

*MPORTANT PLEASE OPEN IMMEDIATELY**

Mark Boling
21986 Cayuga Lane
Lake Forest, CA 92630

Dear Note Holder:

It has been over three years since the Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC (the “Note Program”) first began offering Notes on
August 29, 2008. Over the course of those three years, the Note Program has consistently delivered payments in the aggregate
- amount of $3,045,180 to its Note Holders resuiting in a 9.0% average annual returh on‘investéd principal. ~

This return has been realized amidst what many deem as the most severe economic downturn our economy has experienced in
decades. All the while, the Note Program has sought to maintain its conservative guidelines to preserve value for its Note Holders.

Note Holders can be optimistic of the collateral position of the Note Program today. As shown in the following table, because of
conservative underwriting, the loans made by the Note Program continue to be secured by the following collateral.

Principal Most Recent Date of
Description of 1st Deed Collateral Loan Amount Valuation Valuation
Healthcare of Florence $ 9,800,000 $ 21,500,000 1/19/2011
Legends 19 — Townhomes $ 1,475,500 $1,720,000 9/15/2010
(1) Coastal Gables - Horizontal Loan (Infrastructure Development) $1,525000  $ 1,554,400 9/21/2011
(2) Coastal Gables - Vertical Loan (Construction - 18 Duplexes) $ 2,063,977 $ 345,600 9/21/2011
TOTALS $ 14,864,477 $ 25,120,000

M |ncludes additional collateral

**DISCLOSURE: The valuations provided above reflect the appraised values at the date referenced above and may differ from the current
value.”™

**The Promissory Note made to Trailwalk, LLC which was secured by the first deed of trust on property located in Seattle, WA has paid in
full and the deed of trust has been released. Litigation regarding the Promissory Note secured by the second deed of trust continues and is
subject to the appellate court decision.**

Loan Portiolio Update -

The following information provides detailed updates for each of the four portfolio loans and the current strategies being undertaken
to preserve and maximize value for the Note Holders.

Healthcare of Florence
Florence, AZ
{Non Affiliate loan)

Description: This loan is secured by a First Deed of Trust (“FDOT") on a 90,000 SF general hospital and long term care facility.
The facility is located in one of the most underserved healthcare markets in the nation.

Original Takeout Plan: Upon completion of the renovations and stabilization the loan was to be paid off through a refinance with
an outside lender.

Update: The loan has matured and the borrowers have been unabie to refinance the note due to the difficulties facing the financial
markets and delays in the stabilization of the asset. The borrower has made interest payments as they have had the ability to do
so; however, as of July 31, 2011 they have fallen behind by $454,955.42. The Note Program is currently in loan work out
negotiations with the Borrower.
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Notice to Note Holders
Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC

The appraisal was updated as of 1/19/11 and it shows a “as-is” value of $20,385,000 (48.07% LTV) and a value at “full stabilization”
of $21,500,000 (45.58% LTV).

Current Strategy: Healthcare of Florence management expects that when the Operating Rooms become fully operational that the
hospital should reach profitability. Delays in reaching stabilization have been caused by receivable collection difficulties, slow
operating room ramp up, and delays in obtaining the critical access hospital (CAH) designation. However, the CAH designation was
received recently in October. The Note Program is considering a loan workout with the Borrower to allow the hospital the time
needed to reach profitability after which the hospital- would have to start-making full interest payments or repay the ioan in full
through a refinance. If the borrower is unable to do so within the time allotted for the loan workout the Note Program maybe forced
to pursue its rights under the deed of trust.

Legends 19 - Townhomes
Raymore, MO
(Non Affiliate loan)

Description: Eighteen Townhomes in Raymore, MO (Kansas City) owned by the Note Program through foreclosure.
Original Takeout Plan: Primary, refinance through a traditional lender, secondary, foreclosure and liquidation.

Update: The Note Program has "édmpl’etéd the foreclosure on this property and now'owns this asset. The Note Program has
stabilized the asset and occupancy is currently at 94.44% (17 of 18). The average lease rate is $962.65 per month.

Current Strategy: As noted above the foreclosure of this property is now complete and the Note Program is managing the asset. it
is our intention to continue to lease units and collect the positive cash flow in order to assist in meeting the Note Program’s
obligations. As the real estate market recovers we will liquidate units. There is still some outstanding litigation related to the
foreclosure that is clouding title and hindering the sale of units and a trial date has been set for 2012.

Coastal Gables - (1) Horizontal Loan; (2) Vertical Loan
Bay St. Louis, MS
(Non Affiliate loan)

Description:
(1) Horizontal Loan - This loan is secured by a FDOT on 113 duplex residential lots located in Bay St. Louis, Mississippi.
Proceeds were used for horizontal development.
{2) Vertical Loan - This loan is secured by a FDOT on phase one (consisting of 18 duplex lots).

Original Takeout Plan: ;
(1) Horizontal Loan - Lot releases upon commencement of vertical construction.
(2) Vertical Loan - Sales of individual units to investors looking to take advantage of numerous available incentives, and a
strong housing market, in the Gulf Opportunity Zone (*GO Zone").

Update: The horizontal construction is substantially complete. Unfortunately, the borrower has lost the government incentives that
made this project attractive. The project is significantly behind schedule and due to the lost incentives is no longer economically
viable in its current form. The Note Program has initiated foreclosure.

Current Strategy: The Note Program is working diligently to foreclose in order to liquidate the asset.

The Note Program’s business plan involves financing real estate acquisition and development projects. Unfortunately, the Note
Program has not been immune to the recent downtum. Its borrowers have experienced significant challenges in realizing their exit
strategies which has hindered their ability to meet their obligations to the Note Program and in turn the Note Program’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Note Holders. After careful consideration, the Manager has determined that it's in the best interest of the
Note Program’s long-term preservation and continuity to discontinue interest payments to the Note Holders for the time being,
however the Note Holders’ interest will continue to accrue at the same rate.

Accordingly, please be advised that until further notice, all distributions beginning October 15, 2011, will be as follows:

testpayiments): 5&% bR

Oct 15, 2011 100% of the monthly interest will be distributed. Interest will be reinvested as it did prior to this |
! {No Mcdification) notice. . g
1 H i
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Notice to Note Holders
Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC

| Nov 15, 2011 i 50% of the monthly interest will be distributed and f Interest will be reinvested as it did prior to this
' ’. 50% will accrue and compound for the benefitof : notice.
! ; the Noteholders in accordance with Section 3 of
; | the Note dated August 29, 2008.
| |
; Dec 15,2011 | 25% of the monthly interest will be distributed and | Interest will be reinvested as it did prior to this
. 1 75% will accrue and compound for the benefit of notice. .
; | the Noteholders in accordance with Section 3 of
; | the Note dated August 29, 2008.
: i
Jan 15, 2012 il 25% of the monthly interest will be distributed and | Interest will be reinvested as it did prior to this
} 75% will accrue and compound for the benefit of ; notice.
; the Noteholders in accordance with Section 3 of !
: i the Note dated August 29, 2008. !
i
|
' Feb 15,2012 *@ The Note Program cash assets will be The Note Program cash assets will be
| reassessed at this time to determine if and at reassessed at this time to determine if and at
! what level the program is able to distribute what level the program Is able to distribute
: J..monthly interest payments. - . monthly interest payments.
i : ;
ii
i

m Interest Distributed

Interest Accrued The chart to the left illustrates the above mentioned
interest distribution schedule for Note Holders currently
receiving monthly interest distributions.

NOTE: Investors currently participating in the
Interest Reinvestment Plan, currently reinvest their
interest distributions rather than receive payments
each month, accordingly there is NO change to the
Interest Reinvestment Plan.

Nov DEC JAN
2011 2011 2012

In conclusion, we would like to extend our sincerest gratitude and reaffirm our pledge to you to continue to provide the highest level
of service and transparent communication to our vaiued Note Holders. We want to assure you that our primary focus is to preserve
and return your valued principal and we are committed to work diligently in hopes of providing the highest possible return in today’s
environment. Your patience as we work through these challenges is greatly appreciated.

If you have any-questions regarding this correspondence, please send us an email at InvestorServices @ ClearwaterREl.com and we
will respond in a timely manner. .

Sincerely,
Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC

Clearwater Real Estate Investments 000191 4
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Mark Boling

From: Mark Boling [maboling@earthlink.net]
Sent: Thursday, February 02,2012 11:42 AM
To: 'Ross Farris'

Subject: Clearwater 2008 Note Program

Mr. Farris,

As a follow-up to today’s previous email correspondence, to the extent that no notice of default or breach is
required by the Transaction Documents for the Company’s failure to timely pay full interest and/or suspension
of the principal redemption, I request and demand full payment of my unpaid principal balance and accrued, but
unpaid, interest to the date of full payment is made.

If a notice and cure period for the defaults or breaches previously set forth is necessary, I hereby request and
demand that the stated defaults or breaches be timely cured. And if not timely cured, immediately thereafter I
request and demand full payment of my unpaid principal balance and accrued, but unpaid, interest to the date of
full payment is made.

Should any of the aforementioned notices of default or breach sent to you on this date be deemed premature,
please consider the two (2) email correspondences sent to you on this date as sufficient notice and demand, if
necessary, as of the date when my claim(s) accrues.

Sincerely,

Mark Boling
Cert. #08-470

From: Mark Boling [ mailto:maboling@earthlink.net]
Sent: Thursday, February 02, 2012 10:29 AM

To: 'Ross Farris'

Subject: Clearwater 2008 Note Program

Mzr. Farris,

This email will confirm our telephone conversation today, wherein you informed me that the Company has
chosen to accrue my interest payments pursuant to Section 3 of the Note. You will be sending me a copy of
Exhibit A to the Note, which I have not previously received and an explanation of why I was not provided a
copy of the Note before submitting my Subscription Agreement.

Based on the Company’s failure to fully pay interest payments under the Note for November 2011, December
2011 and January 2012, please consider this email correspondence as sufficient written Notice of Default on
Interest Payments under the Transaction Documents.

Based on the Company’s suspension of liquidation requests, please consider this email correspondence as
sufficient Notice of Default on my right to Principal Liquidation under the Transaction Documents.
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Sincerely,

Mark Boling
Cert. #08-470

From: Ross Farris [mailto:ross@clearwaterrei.com]
Sent: Wednesday, January 18, 2012 1:06 PM

To: maboling@earthlink.net

Subject: RE: Clearwater 2008 Note Program

Mr. Boling,

Sorry for the confusion. The correspondence you received is not in reference to your lasted correspondence. It is merely
a notice for all Noteholders that requested a liquidation in 2011. | have been notified that you can expect a response to
your latest inquiry in the near term.

Thank you for your patience.

Kind regards,

Ross Farris

Director of Marketing & Investor Relations
Clearwater Real Estate Investments

{208) 639-4486 office

{866) 217-4906 toll-free

{208} 939-1431 fax

B% Please consider the environment before printing this email.

This emall message is for the sole use of the intended reciplent(s) and may contain confidential and privileged information. Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure or
distribution is prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender by reply mail and destroy all copies and the original message. This material does not
constitute an offer 10 sell or a solicitation of an offer to purchase securities. Any such offer shall be made scolely pursuant 1o the Private Placement Memorandum. All
investment strategles have risks. Past perforinance and/or forward statements are never an assurance of future results. Only the Private Placement Memorandum or
Prospectus is cantrolling,

From: Mark Boling [mailto:maboling@earthlink.net]
Sent: Tuesday, January 17, 2012 7:10 PM

To: Ross Farris

Subject: Clearwater 2008 Note Program

Mr. Farris,

I have received a letter dated January 12, 2012 regarding 2011 Liquidation Notification. Said letter does not
address the issues presented in my previous email correspondence to Investor Services dated December 20,
2011 below. Please consult with Investor Services and the management of your company and respond in full to
my inquiries and request that my subscription be immediately rescinded and the total principal amount of my
note be restored.

Thank you.
Sincerely,

Mark Boling
Cert. #08-470
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From: Ross Farris [mailto:ross@clearwaterrei.com]
Sent: Wednesday, December 21, 2011 1:45 PM
To: maboling@earthlink.net

Subject: RE: Clearwater 2008 Note Program

Mr. Boling,
We will work on responses to your inquiries and provide responses as soon as we are able. As we are short staffed over
the holiday season, we appreciate your patience in advance.

Thank you,

Ross Farris

Director of Marketing & Investor Relations
Clearwater Real Estate investments

{208) 639-4486 office

(866) 217-4906 toll-free

(208} 939-1431 fax

b% Please consider the environment before printing this email.

This email messaga is for the sole use of the intended recipient{s) and may contain confidential and privileged information. Any unautharized review, use, disclosure or
distribution is prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender by reply mail and destroy all copies and the original message. This material does not
constitute an offer to sell or a selicitation of an offar to purchase securities. Any such offer shall be made solely pursuant to the Private Placement Memorandum. All
investment strategles have risks. Past performance andfor forward staternents are never an assurance of future results. Only the Private Placement Memorandum or
Prospectus is contrailing,

From: Mark Boling [mailto:maboling@earthlink.net]
Sent: Tuesday, December 20, 2011 11:41 AM

To: InvestorServices

Cc: Ross Farris

Subject: Clearwater 2008 Note Program

To whom it may concern,

I received a letter dated December 14,2011 (“12/14/11 letter”) from someone in “Investor Services.” Thank
you for your responses to my previous inquiries.

1) As the author of the letter, please provide me with your name and job position with the company, so I
may be assured that the content of my inquiries are being provided to, understood and responded to by the
management of the Company.

2) Attached to the 12/14/11 letter was a form letter dated March 24, 2011 that purports to provide
instructions on how to review 2010 audited financials. I was informed by Laurie Fischer, Controller for
Clearwater Investments that the 2010 audited financials for the Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC were not
however available until August 19, 2011.

3) In the section of the 12/14/11 letter regarding Callability, your response to the inquiry regarding this
term was identical to Mr. Farris’ previous email response dated 12/1/11 regarding Liquidity, to wit:

“Liquidity - The objective of the 2008 Note Program continues to be the return of the principal
investment and interest payments to each Note Holder. The Note Program has a duty to ALL Note
Holders to make reasonable business decisions and protect its assets to reach this objective and as such
cannot honor the liquidation requests of a few Note Holders at the expense of the other Note Holders.
The Note Program, must continue to restrict its interest payments and hold all liquidation requests until
such time that the liquidation requests will not be at parity with the Company's overall indebtedness to
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all of its Note Holders. We continue to work diligently, to ease the cwu.ent financial restrictions and will
continue to honor the order in which your liquidation request was received. We appreciate your
continued patience and understanding and will let you know as soon as we are able to once again honor
the liquidation requests.”

My reading of the “Liquidity; Callability” section of the PPM does not reflect any discretion by the Company to
prioritize and/or suspend liquidation requests made by the Noteholders. This term was a material consideration
that I relied upon in my purchasing a subscription to the note program. The Company’s position that it “cannot
honor the liquidation requests of a few Note Holders at the expense of the other Note Holders” is unsupported
by the PPM or the supplements thereto. Please identify the specific language in the PPM or supplements that
creates the Company’s contractual authority to prioritize and/or suspend all liquidation requests made by the
Noteholders, which would be in direct contradiction to the expressed and unconditional language set forth in the
“Liquidity; Callability” section of the PPM.

If the Company maintains now and at the time of the initial PPM that it can alter or over-ride this expressed
term regarding Callability on the basis that it has an obligation to ALL Note holders allowing the Company not
to abide by this expressed term, then I would request that my subscription be immediately rescinded and the
total principal amount of my note be restored.

4) Pursuant to the Guaranty for the Clearwater 2008 Note Program, attached as Exhibit D to the PPM dated
August 8, 2008, RE Capital Investments, LLC “unconditionally guarantees the payment of the original principal
amount of the Notes as provided therein.” The section entitled “Liquidity: Callability” in the PPM for the
Clearwater 2008 Note Program and the 3™ Supplement thereto provides that Notes representing up to 10% of
the original principal amount may be called annually by the Noteholders. These are the provisions of the Note.
No expressed discretion is given to the Company or Manager in the PPM to prioritize, suspend or refuse such
timely payments. If the Company intends not to timely repay a portion of the original principal amount to the
Noteholder under the “Liquidity: Callability” section of the PPM, why isn’t the Guarantor required to
immediately pay such original principal amounts to the Noteholder under the unconditional guaranty?

5) When the initial PPM dated August 8, 2008 was disclosed, a recent balance sheet as of July 31, 2008 by
the Guarantor, RE Capital Investments, LLC, was attached. During the subscription period when the 3™
Supplement to the PPM dated January 20, 2010 was disclosed, another recent balance sheet as of December 31,
2009, by the Guarantor, RE Capital Investments, LLC, was attached. In the 3" Supplement to the PPM, the
Company acknowledged that the Guarantor had insufficient net worth under the Guaranty. After that the
subscription period has ended and the note program has been funded, approximately two years later with the on-
going serious financial condition of the Clearwater 2008 Note Program, the Company and Manager have not
been able to secure a current balance sheet from the Guarantor, whose officers are inter-related to the Company
and Manager. Please explain how this failure to timely secure a current balance sheet from the Guarantor is not
tantamount to gross negligence or intentional malfeasance on the part of the Company and/or the Manager to
protect the interests and principal investment amounts of the Noteholders when the need to look to the
Guarantor exists to exercise the Callability term by the Noteholders?

Thank you in advance for your continued cooperation in attempting to resolve these issues.
Sincerely,

Mark Boling
Cert. #08-470
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From: Ross Farris [mailto:ross@clearwaterrei.com]
Sent: Tuesday, December 13, 2011 12:33 PM

To: maboling@earthlink.net
Subject: RE: Clearwater 2008 Note Program

Mr. Boling,
| just wanted to follow up and let you know that your latest email has been sent to compliance and you can expect a
response in the near term. Thank you for your patience.

Kind regards,
Ross Farris

From: Mark Boling [ mailto:maboling@earthlink.net]
Sent: Wednesday, December 07, 2011 6:52 PM
To: Ross Farris

Subject: Clearwater 2008 Note Program

Mr. Farris,

I reviewed your most recent voicemail message sent to me today requesting that I call you. Notwithstanding the
need for you to check with the company’s Compliance, and for the sake of clarity, I would prefer that you
respond to my questions via this email string. Thank you.

Mark Boling

From: Mark Boling [mailto:maboling@earthlink.net]
Sent: Wednesday, December 07, 2011 8:23 AM
To: 'ross@clearwaterrei.com'

Subject: Clearwater 2008 Note Program

Mr. Farris,

I reviewed your voicemail message yesterday evening requesting that I call you. For expediency and clarity, I
would prefer you respond to my questions via this email string. Thank you.

Mark Boling

From: Mark Boling [mailto:maboling@earthlink.net]
Sent: Thursday, December 01, 2011 4:22 PM

To: 'ross@clearwaterrei.com'
Subject: Clearwater 2008 Note Program

Mr. Farris,
I am in receipt of your email correspondence dated December 1, 2011. Unfortunately, your response did not
provide specific information to many of my questions sent to you by email transmission on November 10, 2010.

In particular,

Inquiry re: October 26, 2011 — Notice to Note Holders
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1) What is the estimated cost o. appraisal, by project, for the Healthcare of Florence and Legends 19
projects?

Your response has not specifically addressed this question.

2) While I understand that it would purportedly be costly to obtain appraisals every 60 days, does the
Company consider the “Notice to Note Holder” dated October 26, 2011 to be a significant
communication on the status of the Clearwater 2008 Note Program that would warrant a current
valuation of all significant projects?

If the notice is significant, why wasn’t a current appraisal provided as a good faith effort on the
part of the Company to inform the Note Holders of the most accurate valuation of the Healthcare of
Florence and Legends 19 projects?

If the notice is not considered significant, why was this unexpected interim notice sent to the
Noteholders? ‘

Your response has not specifically addressed these questions.

3) Other than costs, did the Company have any other reason in not providing a current valuation for all
major projects in this “Notice to Note Holder” communication? If so, what were the reasons?
Your response has not specifically addressed this question.

4) Why are the loan amounts and valuations totaled (and stated in bold) as if cross-collateralization
agreements existed between the project loans?

For instance, will the security of the Healthcare of Florence project, which value exceeds that
project’s principal loan amount, secure the Coastal Gables — Vertical Loan, which is extremely under-
secured?

Your response has not specifically addressed this question.

If not, are the total of the loan amounts and valuations as a comparison likely to mislead the
Noteholders?

5) Since the additional collateral, consisting of 14 acres of land located in Waveland, Mississippi, has an
appraised value of $640,000, does that mean that the valuation of the 113 duplex residential lots in Bay
St. Louis, MS is $914,400 ($1,554,400 - $640,000) for the Coastal Gables — Horizontal Loan?

6) Is this additional collateral, consisting of 14 acres of land located in Waveland, Mississippi, for the
Coastal Gables — Horizontal Loan secured by a FDOT?

What efforts, if any, have been made to foreclose on this additional collateral?

Your response has not specifically addressed these questions.

7) Prior to lending money to the borrower in the Coastal Gables project, what due diligence was performed
by the Company to confirm that the government incentives that made the project attractive to the
borrower were intact and what conditions needed to exist for the borrower to lose those incentives?
Your response has not specifically addressed this question.

Private Placement Memorandum (Book No. 08Note-A238) [“PPM’]:

1) The PPM sets forth on page 24 that “[w]ithin 120 days after the end of each calendar year, the
Company will send to each Noteholder of record during the previous year: (a) an audited balance sheet
for the Company as of the end of such fiscal year and (b) an audited statement of the Company’s
earnings for such fiscal year, along with a year-end status report.” The audited financial documents for
the years ending December 31, 2009 and 2010 from Moss Adams LLP that you attached to your last
email showing a date of August 19, 2011 was first provided to me in your email.

Based on your reading of the content of the PPM, would these disclosures be considered timely?
Your response attaches a generic cover letter. Please provide sufficient documentation to establish that
(a) an audited balance sheet for the Company as of the end of such fiscal year and (b) an audited statement of
the Company s earnings for such fiscal year was sent to me within 120 days after the end of the 2010 and 2011
calendar years.
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2)

3)

Please provide a copy of the .ast Balance Sheet that reflects RE Capi.... Investments, LLC’s net worth
received by the Company.

What date was this document received by the Company?
Please provide sufficient documentation to establish that the last Balance Sheet for RE Capital
Investments, LL.C was sent to me in February 2010.
Based on the facts that 1) Ronald D. Meyer owns 100% of Terron Investments, Inc., which owns 50% of
RE Capital Investments, LLC, and 2) Mr. Meyer is the Chief Development Officer of the Company,
wouldn’t the Company have a significant and constant inside contact with RE Capital Investments, LLC
to timely acquire any necessary financial information that would continually assess the viability of the
guaranty?

Are there any overlapping officers and/or directors between the Company and RE Capital

Investments, LLC?

If so, please state the names and positions with each business entity.
Your response has not specifically addressed these questions. The 2" supplement does not fully satisfy

the inquiries made.

4)

What is reason, if any, given by RE Capital Investments for any delay in the Company obtaining a
recent Balance Sheet that reflects RE Capital Investments, LLC’s net worth?

Has the credibility of the reason been verified by the Company? How?
Your response has not specifically addressed these questions.

Liquidity — Callibility:

1)

2)

Due to the untimely disclosure of the audited financial documents to the Noteholders for the years
ending December 31, 2009 and 2010, I must object to the 11/7/11 priority date given to my request for
liquidation and request that the notice date be set at May 1, 2010 for the year 2010 and May 1, 2011 for
the year 2011 and thereafter, which are the dates that the audited financial documents were required to
be disclosed to the Noteholders.

My reading of the “Liquidity; Callability” section of the PPM does not reflect any discretion by the
Company to prioritize and/or suspend liquidation requests made by the Noteholders. Please identify the
specific language in the PPM that creates the Company’s contractual authority to prioritize and/or
suspend all liquidation requests made by the Noteholders, which would be in direct contradiction to the
expressed language set forth in the “Liquidity; Callability” section of the PPM.

Your response has not specifically addressed this question.

Thank you for your kind attention to these matters.

Mark Boling

From: Mark Boling [mailto: maboling@earthlink.net]
Sent: Thursday, November 10, 2011 5:50 PM

To: 'Ross Farris'

Subject: Clearwater 2008 Note Program

Mr. Farris,

Thank you for responding to my email and invitation for other questions. Your responses have raised some
additional concerns regarding the Clearwater 2008 Note Program.

Inquiry re: October 26, 2011 — Notice to Note Holders
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8) What is the estimated cost v. appraisal, by project, for the Healthcare of Florence and Legends 19
projects?

9) While I understand that it would purportedly be costly to obtain appraisals every 60 days, does the
Company consider the “Notice to Note Holder” dated October 26, 2011 to be a significant
communication on the status of the Clearwater 2008 Note Program that would warrant a current
valuation of all significant projects?

If the notice is significant, why wasn’t a current appraisal provided as a good faith effort on the
part of the Company to inform the Note Holders of the most accurate valuation of the Healthcare of
Florence and Legends 19 projects?

If the notice is not considered significant, why was this unexpected interim notice sent to the
Noteholders?

10) Other than costs, did the Company have any other reason in not providing a current valuation for all
major projects in this “Notice to Note Holder” communication? If so, what were the reasons?

11) Why are the loan amounts and valuations totaled (and stated in bold) as if cross-collateralization
agreements existed between the project loans?

For instance, will the security of the Healthcare of Florence project, which value exceeds that
project’s principal loan amount, secure the Coastal Gables — Vertical Loan, which is extremely under-
secured?

If not, are the total of the loan amounts and valuations as a comparison likely to mislead the
Noteholders?

12) Since the additional collateral, consisting of 14 acres of land located in Waveland, Mississippi, has an
appraised value of $640,000, does that mean that the valuation of the 113 duplex residential lots in Bay
St. Louis, MS is $914,400 ($1,554,400 - $640,000) for the Coastal Gables — Horizontal Loan?

13)Is this additional collateral for the Coastal Gables — Horizontal Loan secured by a FDOT?

What efforts, if any, have been made to foreclose on this additional collateral?

14) Prior to lending money to the borrower in the Coastal Gables project, what due diligence was performed
by the Company to confirm that the government incentives that made the project attractive to the
borrower were intact and what conditions needed to exist for the borrower to lose those incentives?

Private Placement Memorandum (Book No. 08Note-A238) [“PPM’]:

5) The PPM sets forth on page 24 that “[w]ithin 120 days after the end of each calendar year, the
Company will send to each Noteholder of record during the previous year: (a) an audited balance sheet
for the Company as of the end of such fiscal year and (b) an audited statement of the Company’s
earnings for such fiscal year, along with a year-end status report.” The audited financial documents for
the years ending December 31, 2009 and 2010 from Moss Adams LLP that you attached to your last
email showing a date of August 19, 2011 was first provided to me in your email.

Based on your reading of the content of the PPM, would these disclosures be considered timely?
If so, why?

6) Please provide a copy of the last Balance Sheet that reflects RE Capital Investments, LLC’s net worth
received by the Company.

What date was this document received by the Company?

7) Based on the facts that 1) Ronald D. Meyer owns 100% of Terron Investments, Inc., which owns 50% of
RE Capital Investments, LLC, and 2) Mr. Meyer is the Chief Development Officer of the Company,
wouldn’t the Company have a significant and constant inside contact with RE Capital Investments, LLC
to timely acquire any necessary financial information that would continually assess the viability of the
guaranty?

Are there any overlapping officers and/or directors between the Company and RE Capital
Investments, LLC?
If so, please state the names and positions with each business entity.
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8) What is reason, if any, given vy RE Capital Investments for any delay .n the Company obtaining a
recent Balance Sheet that reflects RE Capital Investments, LLC’s net worth?
Has the credibility of the reason been verified by the Company? How?

Liquidity — Callibility:

3) Due to the untimely disclosure of the audited financial documents to the Noteholders for the years
ending December 31, 2009 and 2010, I must object to the 11/7/11 priority date given to my request for
liquidation and request that the notice date be set at May 1, 2010 for the year 2010 and May 1, 2011 for
the year 2011 and thereafter, which are the dates that the audited financial documents were required to
be disclosed to the Noteholders.

4) My reading of the “Liquidity; Callability” section of the PPM does not reflect any discretion by the
Company to prioritize and/or suspend liquidation requests made by the Noteholders. Please identify the
specific language in the PPM that creates the Company’s contractual authority to prioritize and/or
suspend all liquidation requests made by the Noteholders, which would be in direct contradiction to the
expressed language set forth in the “Liquidity; Callability” section of the PPM.

Thank you for your kind attention to these matters.

Mark Boling

From: Ross Farris [mailto:ross@clearwaterrei.com]
Sent: Thursday, November 10, 2011 2:15 PM

To: maboling@earthlink.net
Subject: FW: Clearwater 2008 Note Program

Sorry about that, | forgot to add the attachments... see attached hereto.

Thanks,

Ross Farris

Director of Marketing & Investor Relations
Clearwater Real Estate Investments

{208) 639-4486 office

{866) 217-4906 toll-free

{208} 939-1431 fax

5% Please consider the environment before printing this email.

This email message is for the sole use of the intended recipient{s} and may contsin confidential and privileged information. Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure or
distribution is prohibited. if you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender by reply mail and destioy all coples and the original meassage. This material does not
constitute an offer to self or a soficitation of an offer to purchase securities. Any such offer shall be made solely pursuant to the Private Placement Memorandum. All
investment strategies have risks, Past performance and/or forward statements are never an assurance of future results. Only the Private Placement Memicrandum or
Prospectus is controlling. '

From: Ross Farris

Sent: Thursday, November 10, 2011 3:10 PM
To: 'maboling@earthlink.net'

Subject: RE: Clearwater 2008 Note Program

Dear Mr. Boling
Thank you for you email. We apologize for the somewhat delayed response. We have been dealing with a high volume
of inquiries and have provided responses to your questions below in blue.

9
000201



Inquiry re: October 26, 2011 — No...e to Note Holders

1)  Please provide me with an explanation of why a valuation for the Healthcare of Florence has not been

updated to reflect a current (last 60 day) valuation and what efforts are being made to do so. A: It would be very
cost prohibitive to pay for appraisals every 60 days on every asset within the program.

2)  Please provide me with an explanation of why a valuation for the Legends 19 — Townhomes has not been

updated to reflect a current (last 60 day) valuation and what efforts are being made to do so. A: See previous
response.

3)  Please provide me with the details and amounts of the “additional collateral” that exists for the Coastal

Gables — Horizontal Loan. A: The additional collateral includes 14 acres of land located in Waveland, Mississippi.
Based on the most recent appraisal dated 9/21/11 the property appraises at $640,000.

4)  Please provide me, according to each government incentive, a) the details of the incentive, b) when the
borrower lost the government incentive and ¢) why the borrower lost the government incentive that made the

Coastal Gables project attractive. A: Once the asset is foreclosed upon by the 2008 Note Program, Clearwater will be
able to investigate the loss of government incentives by the borrower with the Mississippi Development Authority to
determine the details of why and how this occurred. What we do know is that the government incentive was known as
the SRAP Program (Small Rental Assistance Program) and was administered by the Mississippi Development Authority.
This SRAP incentive was an approximately $30,000 per unit 5 year forgivable loan.

5)  Please provide me with the percentage of completion for the Coastal Gables project as of October 26,

2011. A: The infrastructure of the project (no buildings) is substantially complete with the exception of the final layer of
asphalt on the roads.

PPM:

1)  Please provide me with the Company’s 2010 Annual Report. A: Attached is the 2010 Year-end update that
was previously mailed to you as well as the 2010 Audited Financials that are available via the investor online portal.

2)  Please provide me with a recent Balance Sheet that reflects RE Capital Investments, LLC’s net worth

(difference between total assets and total liabilities). A: Clearwater has made multiple attempts to get updated

financials from RE Capital and we have received word that we should have updated financials no later than year end
2011.

Liquidity — Callibility:

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that I hereby seek to call 10% of the original principal amount of my Certificate
#08-470 pursuant to the Private Placement Memorandum (Book No. 08Note-A238), plus all additional amounts
due and owing under the corresponding Note. This email correspondence shall constitute sufficient written
notice of callibility for the calendar year 2010 and each consecutive calendar year thereafter until the principal

amount of said certificate is paid in full. A: Your request to liquidate your note is acknowledged and has been
recorded with a request date of 11/7/2011. You will be added to the liquidation request list with your request date serving
as your priority date. However, all liquidation requests have been suspended until such time that the liquidation requests
will not be at parity with the Company's overall indebtedness to all of its Note Holders. The objective of the 2008 Note
Program continues to be the return of the principal investment and interest payments to each investor. The Note Program
has a duty to all investors to make reasonable business decisions and protect its assets to reach this objective and as
such cannot honor the liquidation requests of a few Note Holders at the expense of the other Note Holders.

Thank you.

Mark Boling
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Please let us know if you have any other questions.

Sincerely,

Ross Farris

Director of Marketing & Investor Relations
Clearwater Real Estate Investments

(208) 639-4486 office

{866) 217-4906 toli-free

{208) 939-1431 fax

5% Please consider the environment before printing this email.

This emall message is for the sole use of the intended reciplentis) and may contain confidential and privileged information. Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure or
distnibution is prohibited. 1f you are not the intendad recipient, piease contact the sender by reply mail and destroy ail copies and the original message. This material dees not
constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to purchase securities. Any such offer shall be made solely pursuant to the Private Placement Memorandum. All
investment strategies have risks. Past performance and/or forward statements are never an assurance of future results. Only the Private Placement Memcranduin or
Prospectus is controlling.

From: Mark Boling [mailto:maboling@earthlink.net]
Sent: Sunday, November 06, 2011 3:10 PM

To: InvestorServices

Subject: Clearwater 2008 Note Program

Inquiry re: October 26, 2011 — Notice to Note Holders

1)  Please provide me with an explanation of why a valuation for the Healthcare of Florence has not been
updated to reflect a current (last 60 day) valuation and what efforts are being made to do so.

2)  Please provide me with an explanation of why a valuation for the Legends 19 — Townhomes has not been
updated to reflect a current (last 60 day) valuation and what efforts are being made to do so.

3) Please provide me with the details and amounts of the “additional collateral” that exists for the Coastal
Gables — Horizontal Loan.

4)  Please provide me, according to each government incentive, a) the details of the incentive, b) when the
borrower lost the government incentive and c¢) why the borrower lost the government incentive that made the

Coastal Gables project attractive.

5) Please provide me with the percentage of completion for the Coastal Gables project as of October 26,
2011.

PPM:
1)  Please provide me with the Company’s 2010 Annual Report.

2)  Please provide me with a recent Balance Sheet that reflects RE Capital Investments, LLC’s net worth
(difference between total assets and total liabilities).

Liquidity — Callibility:

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that I hereby seek to call 10% of the original principal amount of my Certificate
#08-470 pursuant to the Private Placement Memorandum (Book No. 08Note-A238), plus all additional amounts

11
000203



due and owing under the correspo.....ng Note. This email correspondence s...... constitute sufficient written
notice of callibility for the calendar year 2010 and each consecutive calendar year thereafter until the principal
amount of said certificate is paid in full.

Thank you.

Mark Boling

Cert. #08-470

IS1G:4£162a0676755568219935!
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CLEARWATER

n REAL ESTATE l!}'_\"ES_TMENT.S

1300 E. STATE STREET, STE 103
EAGLE, IDAHO 83616

Ph {208) 639-4488

{866) 217-4906

Fax {208) 939-1431

www clearwatemrei.com

December 14, 2011

Mark Boling-
21986 Cayuga Lane
- Lake Forest, CA 92630

Dear Mr. Boling,

We have received your emails dated November 6, November 10, December 1, and December 7, 2011, which outline your
numerous follow up questions to the October 26, 2011 Notice to Noteholders. We have attempted to contact you by phone
and are including your broker dealer and reglstered representatlve of your questions so they are mformed of your mqulnes
and can prov1de additional assistance to you in answering many of your questions.

I. DEBT INVESTMENT

On February 27, 2010, you purchased a debt investment through Marna Hart, your registered representative, in the amount
of $50,000.00 and became one of the Noteholders of that certain Promissory Note by and between the Noteholders and
Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC (the “Company”) dated August 29, 2008.

As part of this investment you received a Private Placement Memorandum dated August 29, 2008 (“PPM”). . As you have
noticed, this PPM discusses the offering in great detail, please contact your registered representatlve regarding your
investment questions and they should also be available to answer many of your questions.

1L RESP‘ONSES TO YOUR EMAIL DATED NOVEMBER 10, 2011.
The responses below are numbered in accordance with your email dated November 10, 2011.

Response to Question 1. The cost of appraisals vary and the Manager has no way of knowing the costs of appraisals until
a bid is received from the appraiser.

Response to Question 2. The information contained in the notice to Noteholders was the most recent information available
to the Manager. In honoring our continued commitment to the Noteholders we will continue to provide you with updated
information regarding the collateral as it becomes available.

Response to Question 3. One of the items discussed in the PPM is that all decision regarding management of the
Company’s affairs are to be made exclusively by the Manager and not by the Noteholders. As such information regarding
how much to pay for appraisals and when they are ordered are determined exclusively by the Manager.

Additionally, appraisals can only be relied upon by the “authorized user.” Clearwater 2008.Note Program, LLC is the
authorized user of the appraisals and the Noteholders may not rely on the information contained in the appraisals.
However, Noteholder’s can be assured that the Company will continue to define loan to value ratios with MAI appraisals
and/or broker’s opinions.

Response to Question 4. The Company’s loans were for various projects and were made to different borrowers; therefore
the loans are not cross collateralized. The totaled amounts in the Notice that your email were to simply show the total
appraised value of collateral.

Response to Question 5. According to the most recent appraisal, the 113 residential duplex lots in Bay St., Louis,
Mississippi are cumulative valued of $1,260,000 and the addmonal 14 acres of land located in Waveland, MlSSlSSlppl has
an appraised value of $640,000.

Response to Question 6. All of the Company’s loans are collateralized by a first position mortgage or first deed of trust,
including the additional collateral in Waveland, Mississippi. The foreclosure of the additional collateral Bno}yﬂféand,



Mississippi was completed on November 10, 2011, with the exception of 2 lots, which are currently protected by a
bankruptcy stay. The Company has retained counsel to request relief-from the bankruptcy stay so that the foreclosure of the
remaining 2 lots can be completed.

Response to Question 7. The Company’s :affairs are to be made exclusively by the Manager and not by the Noteholders,
including the due diligence of projects. The Noteholders can be assured that the required documentation was obtained by
the Investment Committee.

Private Placement Memorandum Questions.

Response to Question 1. The Company timely provided you with the 2010 year-end report on March 24, 2010. The
enclosed cover letter that accompanied this report notified you of the availability of the audited financials via the online
portal or by request as of May 1, 2010. We have enclosed a copy of the letter that was mailed to you and the address that
the letter was mailed to. Additionally, your registered representative would have also received a copy of the year-end
report.

Response to Question 2. The balance sheet for RE Capital Investments, LLC was provided to you and was included in the
Private Placement Memorandum (“PPM™) kit that was provided to you by your registered representative prior to your
subscription. It was included as Supplement No. 3 which included the 2009 balance sheet for RE Capital Investments,
LLC. Our records indicate your PPM kit riimber to be 08Note-A238 which would have included the 3" Supplement to the
PPM. .

Response to Question 3. The Company provided the requested information in the PPM beginning on page 16 and in the
Second Supplement dated June 30, 2009.

Response to Question 4. The Company has requested a final 2010 balance sheet from RE Capital.

Response to Question Regarding Callability. The objective of the 2008 Note Program continues to be the return of the
principal investment and interest payments to each Note Holder. The Note Program has a duty to ALL Note Holders to
make reasonable business decisions and protect its assets to reach this objective and as such cannot honor the liquidation
requests of a few Note Holders at the expense of the other Note Holders. The Note Program, must continue to restrict its
interest payments and hold all liquidation requests until such time that the liquidation requests will not be at parity with the
Company's overall indebtedness to all of its Note Holders. We continue to-work diligently, to ease the current financial
restrictions and will continue to honor the order in which your liquidation request was received. We appreciate your
continued patience and understanding and will let you know as soon as we are able to once again honor the liquidation
requests.

We will continue to answer any questions that you may have, and suggest that you also contact your registered

representative, Marna Hart who can be reached at (949) 859-7127 and can serve as an additional source for many of your
questions regarding your investment.

Sincerely,

Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC
(866) 217-4906
InvestorServices@Clearwaterrei.com

Cc: Marna Hart (Independent Financial Group)

Enclosure

000206



1300 E. STATE STREET, STE 103

CLEARWATER o

(866) 217-4906
Fox {208) 939-1431
www.clearwaterrei.com

REAL ESTATE INYESTMENTS

March 24, 2011

Mark Boling
21986 Cayuga Lane
Lake Forest, CA 92630

RE: 2010 Year-End Update .
Clearwater 2008 Note Program
Dear Valued Investor,
Enclosed, please find the 2010 Year-End Update for the Clearwater 2008 Note Program.

Pursuant to the Private Placement Memorandum, the 2010 audited financials will be completed within 120 days of year’s end.
Beginning May 1st, Noteholders may access the 2010 audited financials by one of three methods:

L #E;."gq
:.:2 ~Em
K M-
Login to our online Investor Portal: Email your request to: Mail your request to:
1) Go to: www.ClearwaterREl.com InvestorServices@ClearwaterREl.com 1300 E State Street
2) Click on "Investors” Suite 103
3) Follow online instructions (Please include your Certificate Number) - Eagle, Idaho 83616
(A recent Quarterly Statement may be needed) - (Please include your Certificate Number)

Also, as a reminder, 1099-INT's were mailed in January. If you invested in the Clearwater 2008 Note Program through a
qualified plan (i.e. IRA, 401(k), SEP etc...), you should NOT have received a 1099-INT. However, if you have not received a
1099-INT and did not invest through a qualified plan, please contact us and we will gladly send you a copy immediately.

If you have any questions please contact us toll-free at (866) 217-4906 or by email at InvestorServices@clearwaterrei.com.
Thank you for choosing Clearwater and we look forward to serving you in 2011.

Sincerely, .

Investor Services

Clearwater Real Estate Investments

(866) 217-4906 toll-free
InvestorServices@clearwaterrei.com
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. 1300 E. STATE STREET, STE 103
=53 CLEARWATER
d ' : . Ph (208) 639-4488
-~ : (866)217-4906

REAL ESTATE INVESTMENTS

Fox (208) 939-1431
www .clearwaterei.com

January 25, 2012

Mark Boling
21986 Cayuga Lane
Lake Forest, CA 92630

Dear Mr. Boling,

We have received your latest email dated 12/20/2011. We have again notified your broker dealer and registered
representative of your questions so that they can be of further assistance to you- in answering many of your
questions. Please find the following additional information in response to your latest email.

Audited Financial Statement _
The Audited Financials were provided as soon as they were made available by the third party accounting firm,
Moss Adams. The time it takes the third party accounting firm is beyond the control of the Note Program.

Liquidity

The objective of the 2008 Note Program, LLC continues to be the return the principal investment and interest
payments to each investor. The Note Program has a duty to all investors to make reasonable business decisions
and protect its assets to reach this objective and as such cannot honor the liquidation requests of a few Note
Holders at the expense of the other Note Holders.

The 2008 Note Program, must continue to restrict its interest payments and hold all liquidation requests until
such time that the liquidation requests will not be at parity with the Company’s overall indebtedness to all of its
Note Holders. :

~
We continue to work diligently, to ease the current financial restrictions and will continue to honor the order in
which your liquidation request was received. We appreciate your continued patience and understanding and will
let you know as soon as we are able to once again honor the liquidation requests.

RE Capital
We have been in contact with RE Capital and are hopeful of receiving correspondence from them in the next 30
days.
Sincerely,
Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC
- (866)217-4906
InvestorServices@Clearwaterrei.com

Cc: Marna Hart (Independent Financial Group)
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Mark Boling

From: Ross Farris [ross@clearwaterrei.com]

Sent: Thursday, December 01, 2011 2:57 PM

To: maboling@earthlink.net

Ce: mhart@marnahart.com

Subject: Clearwater 2008 Note Program

Attachments: Cover Ltr 2010 Year End Update_08 NP. PDF 3rd Supplement Clearwater 2008
Note Program.pdf; Clearwater 2008 Note Program 2nd Supplement dated June 30,
2009.pdf

Dear Mr. Boling,
We are in receipt of your email dated November 10, 2011 and provide you with the following responses to your questions.

Appraisals - The investor notices you have received to date contain the most up to date appraised values that
Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC ("CREI") has. As new appraisals are received CREI will continue to update the
investors.

Coastal Gables - CREI was the successful bidder at the foreclosure sale and is now the owner of the Costal Gables real
property, excluding Lots 5 and 6 which are currently under the protection of a bankruptcy stay. CREI completed
commercially reasonable due diligence on the Coastal Gables property and is in the process of pursuing any additional
recourse it may have against the borrower.

Bay St. Louis, Mississippi - The most recent Bay St. Louis, Mississippi property appraisal indicates that the 131
residential duplex lots are valued at $9,600 per lot and the 14 acres of the Waveland, Mississippi property was valued at
$640,000.

Year End Reports - Our records indicate that CREI mailed the 2010 year end status report to you on March 24, 2010 and
that you were also notified in March of 2010 that the audited financials were available to you on May 1, 2010, through the
investors' online portal or via request. A copy of this notice is attached. Please let us know if we need to update your
contact information so that we can ensure that you are receiving updates at your most recent address.

RE Capital Investments, LLC (Guarantor) - Attached is the 3rd supplement to the PPM that was mailed to you in the
first week of Feb 2010 and was received by Clearwater a couple weeks prior to it being mailed to the Noteholders which
provides the financial information for the Guarantor. CREI continues to request the final 2010 financial statement from RE
Capital and will make it available upon receipt. Also, the attached 2™ supplement previously provided to you provides
information regarding officers of the Company and RE Capital Investments.

Liquidity - The objective of the 2008 Note Program continues to be the return of the principal investment and interest
payments to each Note Holder. The Note Program has a duty to ALL Note Holders to make reasonable business
decisions and protect its assets to reach this objective and as such cannot honor the liquidation requests of a few Note
Holders at the expense of the other Note Holders. The Note Program, must continue to restrict its interest payments and
hold all liquidation requests until such time that the liquidation requests will not be at parity with the Company's overall
indebtedness to all of its Note Holders. We continue to work diligently, to ease the current financial restrictions and will
continue to honor the order in which your liquidation request was received. We appreciate your continued patience and
understanding and will let you know as soon as we are able to once again honor the liquidation requests.

We have Cc’d your registered representative Marna Hart to this email as another valuable resource to you to answer
questions you may have regarding the Note Program. As always your questions are welcomed and we hope this
response has been beneficial to you.

Kind regards,

Ross Farris
Director of Marketing & Investor Relations
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Clearwater Real Estate Investments
(208) 639-4486 office

{866) 217-4906 toli-free

{208) 939-1431 fax

b% Please consider the environment before printing this email.

This emaii message is for the sole use of the intended recipienti(s) and may contain confidential and privileged information. Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure or
distribution is prohibited. if you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender by reply mail and destroy all copies and the original message. This material does not
constitute an offer 1o sell or a sclicitation of an offer to purchase securities. Any such offer shall be made solely pursuant 1o the Private Placement Memorandum. All

investnient strategies have risks. Past performance and/or forward statements are never an assurance of future results. Only the Private Placement Memorandum or
Prospectus is controlling.
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THIRD SUPPLEMENT TO

CONFIDENTIAL PRIVATE PLACEMENT MEMORANDUM

CLEARWATER 2008 NOTE PROGRAM, LLC
$20,000,000 9.0% Notes
(Subject to increase to $40,000,000)

Minimum Investment: $50,000
Minimum Offering Amount: $1,000,000
Maximum Offering Amount: $20,000,000'(Subject to increase to $40,000,000)

Dated: January 20,2010

This Third Supplement (the “Third Supplement”) is designed to update, through January 20, 2010, the information previously
provided in the Confidential Private Placement Memorandum dated August 29, 2008 (the “Memorandum”), which described the Offering
by Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC (the “Company”) of up to $20,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of 9.0% Notes due
December 31, 2015, subject to increase to $40,000,000, the First Supplement to the Memorandum dated October 3, 2008 (the “First
Supplement”), and the Second Supplement to the Memorandum dated June 16, 2009 (the “Second Supplement”) (as so supplemented,
with all Exhibits to the Memorandum, the First Supplement and the Second Supplement, the “Offering Memorandum”). Capitalized terms
used herein without definition shall have the meaning ascribed to them in the Offering Memorandum.

This Third Supplement is being furnished for your information on a confidential basis so that you may consider an investment in
the Notes described in the Offering Memorandum and herein and should be read together with the Offering Memorandum. This Third
Supplement is not to be reproduced or used for any other purpose. No person has been authorized to make any statement concerning the
Offering other than as set forth in the Offering Memorandum and herein, and any such statement, if made, should not be relied upon. The
Notes will not be registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), or any other securities laws. Notes will
be offered for investment purposes only pursuant to exemptions from the registration provisions provided under Regulation D of the
Securities Act. There will be no public market for the Notes. There are significant risks associated with the Offering. See the Ssction
entitled “Risk Factors” in the Offering Memorandum, as supplemented by this Third Supplement.

The Offering Memorandum, as supplemented by this Third Supplement, is not an offer to sell, or a solicitation of an offer to
purchase Notes, and no Notes shall be offered or sold to any person in any jurisdiction in which such offer, solicitation, purchase or sale
would be unlawful under the securities laws of such jurisdiction. The Offering Memorandum, as supplemented by this Third Supplement,
has not been filed with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”), any securities administrator under state securities
laws or any other governmental or self-regulatory authority. None of the SEC, any state securities administrators or governmental or self-
regulatory authorities has passed on the merits of the Offering or the adequacy of the Offering Memorandum as supplemented by this
Third Supplement. Any representation to the contrary is unlawful, '

This Third Supplement describes updated information and should be read in its entirety by each investor.

[BALANCE OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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QFFERING MEMORANDUM
The following information described in the Offering Memorandum is hereby updated, modified and supplemented as follows:

(@ The Manager of the Company has elected to extend the Offering Termination Date to December 31, 2010, and in
connection with this extension, is increasing the Maximum Offering Amount of the Notes to $21,900,000.

(b) The Balance Sheet of RE Capital Investments, LLC (the “Guarantor”) as of December 31, 2009 is attached to this
Third Supplement as Exhibit A. Although the Guarantor’s net worth of approximately $53.4 million is lower than the net worth of $54
million it has covenanted to maintain under the Guaranty based on a Maximum Offering Amount of $20,000,000, in the event that the
increased Maximum Offering Amount of $21,900,000 is attained, the Guarantor’s net worth does provide a principal coverage ratio of: (a)
1.2x, if a portion of the Guarantor’s net worth is reserved to provide 1.5x coverage over principal amounts outstanding under the notes
issued by Clearwater 2007 Note Program, LLC (the “2007 Notes Program”) (accounting for liquidations of $2,000,000 in principal
amount of notes issued by the 2007 Notes Program as of December 31, 2009, with $18,000,000 remaining outstanding), and (b) 2.44x, if
this reserve is not made (the Guarantor is not required to make this reserve).

© As of the date of this Third Supplement, the Company has added a fourth loan and a fifth loan to its portfolio using
proceeds of the Offering. Certain of the terms of those loans are as follows:

Property: Coastal Gables Horizontal Development Coastal Gables Vertical Development
Location: Bay St. Louis, MS Bay St. Louis, MS

Loan Amount; $1,525,000 ‘ $2,700,000

Loan Origination Date: ~ June 8, 2009 September 28, 2009

Appraised Value: $3,197,000 $4,176,000* (As-completed)

Loan to Value (LTV): 48% 65%

Interest Rate: 14% 14%

Loan Fees: Origination (4.0%); Exit (4%) Origination (5.5%); Exit (4%)

Term: 12 Months 9 Months

@ The sentence in the paragraph under the heading “Liquidity; Callability” within the section entitled “DESCRIPTION
OF THE NOTES” on pages 19 and 20 of the Memorandum which reads “Beginning December 31, 2010 and once annually thereafter,
Notes representing up to 10% of the original principal amount may be called by the Noteholders upon not less than 90 days written notice
to the Company” is deleted in its entirety and is replaced with the following:

Beginning December 31, 2010 and once annually thereafter, Notes representing up to 10% of the original principal amount and
which have been outstanding for a minimum of 12 months may be called by the Noteholders upon not less than 90 days written
notice to the Company. The 12 month-minimum holding restriction only applies to Notes purchased on or after January 1, 2010.

The information in this Third Supplement supersedes any information to the contrary provided in the Offering Memorandum.,

©) The Company has terminated its managing broker-dealer agreement with Select Capital Corporation, or Select, subject
to the continuing rights and obligations of the Company and Select surviving termination of the agreement. Following the termination, the
Company engaged Richfield Orion International, Inc., 2 member of FINRA, or Richfield Orion, to provide managing broker-dealer
services on the same terms and conditions as it had engaged Select under the previous managing broker-dealer agreement.  Selling
compensation will be payable to Richfield Orion in the same manner and under the same conditions as such amounts would have been
payable to Select. The Memorandum, including the sections entitled “Offering Summary - Plan of Distribution,” “Plan of Distribution,”
“Glossary” and the footnotes to the commissions table and use of proceeds table, is hereby modified to reflect the replacement of Select
with Richfield Orion.

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - The Private Placement Memorandum for the Offering of Notes consists of this sticker,
the Memorandum dated August 29, 2008, the First Supplement to the Memorandum dated October 3, 2008, the Second Supplement dated
June 16, 2009, and this Third Supplement dated January 20, 2010, which supplements, modifies, and supersedes some of the information
contained in the Memorandum, the First Supplement and the Second Supplement.
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EXHIBIT A

RE Capital Investments, LLC

Balance Sheet

As of December 31, 2009

ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
Bank of America Checking - 357

Total Checking/Savings

Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets
Long Term Assets
Investments - Partnerships
Land Investments (net of 3rd pa

Total Long Term Assets

Total Fixed Assets

Other Assets
Investment
CCS Trop-215, LLC
Clearwater REI (Star)
Horseshoe Bend - 30 Acres Comme
Horseshoe Bend 400 {Program 1)
IGP - Serene Meadows (20%)
New Meadows
Silver Mountaln LLC (30%) .
WhiteCloud / New Meadow (62%)

Total Investment

Note Receivables
Clearwater - Bunker Hill
Clearwater - MAC
Clearwater Lodging
Additional Capltal Interest
Initial Capital Interest
Clearwater Lodglng - Other

Total Clearwater Lodging

Clearwater REI LLC

Cude-Barnett

Heritage Lands LLC -Future Inte
Horseshoe Bend - 3200 Acres
Idaho Capital Partners LLG

Real Seed Capital

Silver Mountain LLC

Trop-216 Developer LLC

Total Note Recelvables
Total Other Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Long Term Liabllities
Notes Payable
Clearwater REI (Star)
DH
Diamond B Asset Management
. Heritage Lands LLC
Interest Payable
McCall Real Estate
Terron Investments Inc.
TH

Total Notes Payable
Total Long Term Liabilitles

Total Liabilities

Equity -
Land Equity
Partnership Equity
Retalned Earnings
Net Income

Total Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

BPec 31, 09

28,076.68

28,076.68

28,076.68

25,500,000.00
2,000,000.00

27,500,000.00

27,500,000.00

1,600,000.00
3,375,000.00
5,700,000.00
6,400,000.00
1,600,000.00
6,400,000.00

480,000.00
1,984,000.00

27,539,000.00

436,831.04
73,500.00

25,000.00
400,000.00
1,540,000.00

. 1,965,000.00

458,763.00

80,000.00
342,357.96
465,209.16
400,040.00

225.00

300,000.00
48517117

5,007,097.33

32,546,097.33

£0,074,174.01

2,335,000.00
.300,000.00
554,557.19
2,530,000.00
46,763.00
25,000.00
600,000.00
300,000.00

6,691,320.19

6,691,320.19

6,691,320.19

*18,640,000.00
41,244,000.00
-339,478.14
-6,061,668.04

.53,382,853.82

60,074,174.01
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- 1300 E. STATE STREET, STE 103

=3 CLEARWATER T
' : ] ’ Ph (208) 639-4488
-~ - [866) 217-4904
" REAL EASTATE INVESTMENTS. . FCX(208]939-]43]

www .clearwaterrei.com

January 12, 2012

*IMPORTANT PLEASE READ**

Mark Boling
21986 Cayuga Lane
Lake Forest, CA 92630

RE: 2011 LIQUIDATION NOTIFICATION
‘Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC

Dear Noteholder, .
This correspondence is being sent to you in connectlon with your request to liquidate your Note held by the Clearwater 2008
Note Program (“Note Program”} in the 2011 liquidation year.

In our most recent correspondence and more specifically the “Notice to Noteholder's™ letter dated 10/26/2011, you were
notified of the need to modify the interest distributions due to cash flow and liquidity concerns within the Note Program.

In light of these cash flow and liquidity concerns and after careful consideration, the Manager has determined that in
the best interest of the Note Program's long-term preservation and continuity, the Note Program regrettably must
postpone all 2011 liquidation requests until further notice.

This difficult decision has been made due to multiple factors including, the uncertainty of the capital markets, a borrowers'
delay in the refinance of underlying asset in the Note Program and the Note Program’s capital needs for the upcoming year.
While we cannot say exactly when the liquidations will be reinstated, we can assure you that your priority date will be ’
maintained and as soon as management deems the program to be in a position to reinstate the liquidations you will be
liquidated according to your original priority date.

We are gratefu! for your investment in the Note Program and although we would like nothing more than to accommodate
liquidation requests at this time, we cannot since doing so would place the future stability of the Note Program at risk and we
cannot jeopardize the whole in favor of a few. We are requesting your patience as we work through this challenge.

We understand the impact this has on you as a Noteholder and we want to assure you that our primary focus is to preserve
and return your valued principal. Your patience as we work through this difficult real estate economy is greatly appreciated.

If you have any questions regarding this correspondence, please send us an email at InvestorServices@ClearwaterREl.com
and we will respond in a timely manner.

Sincerely,

Investor Services

Clearwater Real Estate Investments

(866) 217-4906 toll-free
InvestorServices@clearwaterrei.com
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Eagle, Idaho 83616 REAL ESTATE INVESTMENTS
(866) 217-4906

500 £ St et St 108 | Q = CLEARWATER

January 31, 2012

*{MPORTANT PLEASE READ**

Mark Boling
21986 Cayuga Lane
l.ake Forest, CA 92630

RE: CLEARWATER 2008 NOTE PROGRAM

Dear Noteholder:

In light of the challenges the Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC, (the “Note Program”) has faced over the past year and in
---an-effort-to.provide- more-regulas-communication to cur-valued-Noteho!ders-we are-providing-the-enclesed-update.- This-- - - o — e

update is designed to inform you not only as to updates on the program but also of ideas Management has been working on

to improve your position as i relates to your security in the Note Program. The enclosed update covers information on the

following topics.

1) Clearwater Update: Our Commitment

2) Real Estate Market Update: Stabilization

3) Asset Update: Florence, AZ

4) Asset Updates: Missouri, Mississippi, and Washington
5) Investment Update

In addition, and as a follow-up to our most recent correspondence, and more specifically the “Notice to Noteholders” letter
dated 10/26/2011, in which you may recall the necessary modifications implemented to the interest distributions through
January of this year due to delayed anticipated liquidity events. The reinstatement of the interest distributions was
dependent upon those liquidity events and to date, the Note Program has not experienced any such events.

Similar to December and January payments, the February payment will be 25% of the monthly interest distributed and 75%
of the interest will accrue and compound for the benefit of the Noteholders in accordance with Section 3 of the Note dated
August 29, 2008.

IMPORTANT: As of January 1, 2012 all Noteholders previously participating in the Interest Reinvestment Program
‘have been converted to récéive mofthly distributions of their interest. THIS changé Will permit only the Thterast ™ =~ ' T
reinvested and/or distributed to be included on your 1099-INT for the upcoming 2012 tax year. Please note, this

change will in no way affect the interest rate of your note. As of January 1, 2012 any unpaid interest will continue to

accrue and compound monthly at the annual rate of 9.0%.

.....................................................................................................................................

If you have any questions regarding this correspondence, please send us an email at InvestorServices@ClearwaterREl.com
and we wiil respond in a timely manner.

Thank you for your attention to this important information conceming your investment.

Sincerely,

Clearwater 2008 Note Program
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January Update

Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC

» Clearwater Update: Our Commitment

After over four years in business Clearwater is still here amidst a
devastating time for our industry. According to the Financial
Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA) over 500 member firns have
fallen by the wayside in that same time period.

Despite this challenging environment we would like to reaffirm our
commitment to you. We want to assure you that our primary focus
is to provide-the.highest possible retum .in today’s- envirorment.
Your continued patience as we work through these challenges is
greatly appreciated.

» Real Estate Market Update: Stabilization

Financlal services company Credit Suisse is telling investors
and asset managers to expect a bumpy stabilization in U.S.
residential home prices in 2012.

At Clearwater we strive to keep abreast of the latest real estate
data and trends. Below are some of the recent month’s data.

Real Estate values have fallen dramatically nationwide and the
banking industry has been shaken to its foundation. However,
many economists are now anticipating a gradual real estate
stabilization.

[’'U.S. homes now appear fairly valued compared with
median family income,” said Martin Berhard, Credit
Suisse global real estate analyst. "Furthermore, the
interest rate environment Is likely to remain

Any real estate stabilization will be rooted in the growth of the
overall economy; some recent data would seem to indicate that
US economic conditions are improving.

1) The unemployment rate fell from 9.8% in
November 2010 to 8.6% in November 2011.

2) GDP is expected to grow in 2012, - - -

There has also been some promising news in the housing
market. Housing is a leading indicator for the types of assets in
the Note Program because they are development properties.

[Joseph LaVorgna, chief U.S. economist for Deutsche
Bank, said "There has been a noticeable uptrend in
several key housing metrics in the back half of this year,
so even though we are downplaying the November data
to some degree, it does appear that residential
construction Is finally beginning to rise from its post-
recession lows..."]

Source: CNNMoney (12/20/2011) “Home Building Spikes Higher”
htip://money.cnn.com/2011/12/20/real_estate/construction_building_p
emits/index.htm

accommaodative for the foreseeable future. We
therefore expect housing demand to recover gradually
in2012.7

Source: HousingWire {12/14/2011)

"Credit Suisse expects home prices to stabilize in 2012"
hitp:/Aww.housingwire.com/201 1l12!14lcredlt-smsse-expects-home-
prices-to-stabilize-in-2012 .- .
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» Asset Update: Florence, AZ

The Florence Hospital foan continues to be In default and in a work out
situation. However, we are pleased to report that the hospital is currently in
negotiations with a healthcare real estate investment trust that is planning
on refinancing the 08 Note Program'’s position.

» Asset Updates: Missouri, Mississippi, and Washington

Raymore, Missouri

This asset has been fully leased and is performing well. All 18 units are currently leased at an average rate of $992 per
month. The property generated a positive Net Operating Income for 2011 and we expect that this level of performance will
continue and gradually improve. There is some pending legal action with the borrowers that is prohibiting the liquidation of
this asset. We are hopeful that this will be resolved bv the and of 2012.

Bay St. Louis, Mississippi

This asset consists of a residential subdivision and 14 additional acres that the 08 Note Program secured as additional
collateral. Both assets have now been removed from bankruptcy and the foreclosures have been completed, with the
exception of 2 parcels which the Note Program is attempting to remove from a bankruptcy stay. Both propertles are being
listed by a regional brokerage firm at their appraised values. We expect to begin entertaining offers in the coming months.

Kenmore, Washington
The Trall Walk Condominium first mortgage has been repaid. However, a deficiency remains due to the 08 Note Program
but we continue to pursue our fights under the second mortgage. We are hopeful to come to a solution on this property in

the coming year.

» Investment Update

The economic crisis has placed a heavy burden on the Noteholders
and Management has been working diligently to alleviate this pressurs.

As a Noteholder, you purchased an interest in an unsecured General
Promissory Note (“General Note"). The money raised from the
General Note was then redeployed by the Note Program into five
secured promissory notes.

As the picture (below) indicates, the Noteholders are currently

unsecured with the Note Program holding the actual secured
interest in the collateral; however, Management has been working
on creative ideas in an effort to better position its Noteholders as it
relates to your security in the underlying collateral.

Rest assured, your investment has always included 1 position
financing and includes a principal only corporate guaranty. This
illustration merely illustrates the unsecured interest in the collateral
which we would like to improve upon.

Cotporate
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G Loan

Purchase Note
**Unsecured™*

e:m#

Note Program

Note Holder Interest

Investment Committee
Approves Collateral/Loan Terms

oarn, 2 * R New Loan
Application el
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Loan Payoff

Revolving Funds
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- (1* Mortgage/Deed of Trust)
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CLEARWATER October 1 - December 31, 2011
REAI ESTATE INVESTMENTS QUARTERLY STATEMENT
Clearwater Real Estate Investment :
eig\c%elsr Sti?e StrZ:t, ';\428181; " Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC
Eagle, ID 83616

R
—

CERTIFICATE NUMBER 08-470
804 Q'.QQQOQQO'...'.MIXED AADC 836 CURRENT BALANCE 50,000-00
T LR 1 R 1 1 B 1 TE LR || L TR TR T
Mark Boling ’ ;" Have you signed up for E-Statements
21986 CAYUGA LN : It 3 :
LAKE FOREST CA 92630-2303 i »ltsaseasyast,2,3.. ;
5 1) Go to www.Clearwaterrei.com :
' 2) Click on “Investors™ :
‘\ 3) Follow Online Instructions _."
.CUSTOMER SERVICE . . . oo e o it e oo me . Ce S .
INVESTOR SERVICES: Toll-free (866) 217-4906 YOUR ADVISOR: Marna Hart
EMAIL: _ . InVestorServices@clearvv.aterrei.com l(zgggaesr?d-;r]\ﬁinancial Group
WEBSITE: www.clearwaterrei.com .
INVESTMENT INFORMATION
OWNER: Mark Boling
CERTIFICATE NUMBER:  08-470, CUSTODIAN ACCOUNT NUMBER: N/a
TYPE (QUALIFIED? Y/N): no EFFECTIVE DATE: 02/27/10
INVESTMENT ACTIVITY
Previous Activity Current Quarter Investment To Date
Inttial Investment 50,000.00 - 50,000.00
Additional Investments - - -
Reinvested Interest - - -
Accrued Interest . 470.16 470.16
Ending Balance [ 50,000.00 - 50,000.00 |
Interest Payments Disbursed [ 6,775.00 656.25 7.431.25 |
} COLLATERAL SUMMARY . __ . e e o e
Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC
Total Outstanding Principal Balance of Total Appraised Values of Collateral

Master Promissory Note to Investors

A iR i A R i

Collateral valuations dated Septerﬁber 15, 2010, January 19, 2011 and September 21,2011.

Questions about this report
This report contains important information about your investment. We encourage you to review the details in this report. If you do not understand any
of the information in this report, we encourage you to contact us by phone (866) 217-4906 or email at InvestorServices@clearwateé)EAR 2
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Clearwater REL LLC, et al. v. Boling, Case No. CV OC 1208669

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I am a resident of Orange County, State of California, over the age of eighteen
(18) years, and not a party to the above-entitled action.
I certify on June 25, 2012, I served the following document(s) in this action:

COUNTERCLAIM AND THIRD PARTY COMPLAINT FOR VIOLATIONS
OF THE L.C.P.A. AND BREACH OF GUARANTY
by sending a true copy thereof by ELECTRONIC SERVICE pursuant to

LR.C.P,Rule 5 (b) (E) addressed to the party(s) served as follows:

Rebecca A. Rainey — rar@raineylawoffice.com

Attorney for Plaintiffs and Cross-Defendants Clearwater REI, LLC,
Clearwater Real Estate Investments, LL.C aka Clearwater Real Estate
Investments, RE Capital Investments, LLC, Barton Cole Cochran, Chad James
Hansen, Ronald D. Meyer, Christopher J. Benak and Rob Ruebel. -

The transmission of said document(s) to each party served was reported as

complete and without error within a reasonable time after said transmission.

Dated: June 25, 2012 wlita W  —

PATRICIA MOCELLA

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE ~PAGE 1
000223



Rebecca A. Rainey, ISB No. 7525
RAINEY LAW QFFICE

910 W. Main St. Ste. 258

Boise, ID 83702" .

Phone: (208) 258-2061

Facsimile: (208) 473-2952
rar@raineylawoffice.com

Attorneys for Plaintiff

NO. e

AM F"‘ER,, 500

AUG 17 2012

CHRISTOPHER D. RICH, Clerk

By CHARLOTTE WATSON
DEPUTY

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF
THE STATE OF IDAHO, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF ADA

CLEARWATER RE], LLC, an Idaho
limited liability company; BARTON
COLE COCHRAN, an individual, CHAD
JAMES HANSEN, an individual;
RONDAL D. MEYER, an individual;
CHRISTOPHER J. BENAK, an
individual; RON RUEBEL, an individual;
RE CAPITAL INVESTMENTS, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company,

Plaintiffs/Counterdefendants, .

Vs,
MARK BOLING, an individual,

DéfendanUCounterclaimant.

MARK BOLING, an individual,
Third Party Plaintiff,

Vs.

CLEARWATER REAL ESTATE

INVESTMENTS, LLC, a Delaware

limited liability company

Third Party Defendant.

MOTION TO STAY ARBITRATION - 1

Case No.: CV OC 12-08669

MOTION TO STAY ARBITRATION

000224



COME NOW, the above named Plaintiffs/Petitioners,' Clearwater REL, LLC, Barton
Cole Cochran, an individual; Chad James Hansen, an individual, Ronald D. Meyer, an
individual; Christopher J. Benak, an individual; and Rob Ruebel, an individual, by and through
the undersigned counsel of record, and hereby file the following Motion to Stay Arbitration
under Idaho Code § 7-902(b), this motion is supported by a Memorandum in Support of Motion

to Stay Arbitration filed contemporaneously herewith.

DATED this 17th day of August, 2012.
RAINEY LAW OFFICE

Zéﬁ“%(

Rebecca A. Rainey —
Attorneys for
Plaintiff/Counterdefendants

! Plaintiff RE Capital filed for Chapter 7 bankruptcy on July 6, 2012.

MOTION TO STAY ARBITRATION -2
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that on the 17th day of August, 2012, I caused to be served a capy of the
foregoing MOTION TO STAY ARBITRATION on the following, in the manner indicated

below:

Mark Boling ( ) Via U.S. Mail
21986 Cayuga Lane ( ) Via Facsimile — 949-588-7078
Lake Forest, CA 92630 ( ) Via Overnight Mail

( ) Via Hand Delivery

£3-Via Email

/=€ g [
Rebecca A. Rainey Q

MOTION TO STAY ARBITRATION -3
000226
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Rebecca A. Rainey, 1SB No. 7525
RAINEY LAW OFFICE

910 W. Main St. Ste. 258

Boise, ID 83702

Phone: (208) 258-2061

Facsimile: (208) 473-2952
rar@raineylawoffice.com

Attorneys for Plaintiff

NO.

FILED

AM.

AUG 1

P.M.

7 2012

pIo)\]

CHRISTOPHER D. RICH, Clerk
By CHARLOTTE WATSON
DEPUTY

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF
THE STATE OF IDAHO, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF ADA

CLEARWATER REI, LLC, an Idaho
limited liability company; BARTON
COLE COCHRAN, an individual; CHAD
JAMES HANSEN, an individual;
RONDAL D. MEYER, an individual;
CHRISTOPHER J. BENAK, an '
individual; RON RUEBEL, an individual;
RE CAPITAL INVESTMENTS, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company,

Plaintiffs/Counterdefendants,
Vs,
MARK BOLING, an individual,

Defendant/Counterclaimant.

MARK BOLING, an individual,
Third Party Plaintiff,
VS.

CLEARWATER REAL ESTATE

" INVESTMENTS, LLC, a Delaware

limited liability company

Third Party Defendant.

Case No.: CV OC 12-08669

MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF
MOTION TO STAY ARBITRATION

MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF MOTION TO STAY ARBITRATION - 1
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COME NOW, the above named Plaintiffs/Petitioners,’ Clearwater REI, LLC; Barton
Cole Cochran, an individual; Chad James Hansen, an individual, Ronald D. Meyer, an
individual; Christépher J. Benak, an individual; and Rob Ruebel, an individual, by and through
the undersigned counsel of record, and hereby file the following memorandum in support of their
Motion to Stay Arbitration under Idaho Code § 7-902(b):

L INTRODUCTION

Plaintiffs/Petitioners seek an order staying arbitration proceedings against them on the
grounds that they are not parties to the Subscription Agreement containing the arbitration clause.
Accordingly, under Idaho law, they cannot be compelled to arbitration.

Io. FACTS

On February -12, 2010, Defendant Boling executed a Subscription Agreement with
Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC, an Idaho limited liability company. The Subscription
Agreement was signed by Defendant Boling and Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC, an Idaho
limited liability company, by and through its agent, Clearwater REI, LLC, an Idaho limited
liability company. See, Complaint and Application for Stay, Exhibit A.

The Subscription Agreement included an arbitration clause. Boling invoked the
arbitration clause by filing a demand for arbitration with the American Arbitration Association
on February 15, 2012. The demand properly named Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC, the
entity that is a .party to the Subscription Agreement, and improperly named several non-
signatories including, but not limited to, plaintiffs herein: Clearwater REI, LLC; RE Capital,
LLC, [a Delaware limited liability company]; Barton Cole Cochran, an individual; Chad James

Hansen, an individual; Ronald D. Meyer, an individual; Christopher J. Benak, an individual; and

! Plaintiff RE Capital filed for Chapter 7 bankrupicy on July 6, 2012.

MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF MOTION TO STAY ARBITRATION -2
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Rob Ruebel, an individual. See, Complaint and Application for Stay, Exhibit B. Because none
of the Plaintiffs are parties to the Subscription Agreement, all plaintiffs are entitled to orders
staying the arbitration as to them.
III. ARGUMENT

A. Standard of Review

The question of arbitrability is a question of law properly decided by the court.
Accomazzo v. Cedu Educ. Servs., 135 Idaho 145, 147, 15 P.3d 1153, 1155 (2000) (citing Local 2-
652 v. EG&G Idaho, Inc., 115 Idaho 671, 674, 769 P.2d 548, 551 (1989) and AT&T
Technologies, Inc. v. Communications Workers, 475 U.S. .643, 89 L. Ed. 2d 648, 106 S. Ct. 1415
(1986)). The determinations regarding whether the parties were bound to arbitrate, the
arbitrability of issues, and decisions surrounding motions to stay arbitration are within the
discretion of the trial court. /d. at 148, 15 P.3d at 1156.

B. Idaho’s Uniform Arbitration Act

Idaho’s Uniform Arbitration Act, Idaho Code § 7-901, et seq., provides for special
proceedings related to the remedy of arbitration. Pursuant to that act, litigants can invoke the
jurisdiction of a state court for the limited purposes of determining arbitrability and other specific
issues authorized by the Act. With respect to determining issues of arbitrability, the act
provides:

On application, the court may stay an arbitration proceeding
commenced or threatened on a showing that there is no agreement
to arbitrate. Such an issue, when in substantial and bona fide
dispute, shall be forthwith and summarily tried and the stay
ordered if found for the moving party. If found for the opposing
party, the court shall order the parties to proceed to arbitration.
Idaho Code § 7-902 (b). Accordingly, under Idaho’s arbitration act, this Court is required to

summarily try the issue of arbitrability and, if it is found that there is no agreement to arbitrate

MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF MOTION TO STAY ARBITRATION - 3
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between Boling and plaintiffs, shall stay the arbitration as to each of the named plaintiffs.

C. Where A Party Has Not Agreed to Arbitrate, Arbitration Should Be Stayed for
that Partv

Arbitration is strictly a matter of contract law. See Storey Constr., Inc. v. Hanks, 148
Idaho 401, 407, 224 P.3d 468, 474 (2009). If a contract is unambiguous and the persons at issue
are not named parties to the contract, those persons are not subject to the arbitration agreement.
Lewis v. Cedu Educ. Servs., Inc., 135 Idaho 139, 15 P.3d 1147 (2000), Rath v. Managed Health
Network, Inc., 123 Idaho 30, 844 P.2d 12 (1992). Thus, where one is not a party to a contract,
one cannot be forced to arbitrate under an arbitration clause of that contract. Id.

In this case, the uhdisputed facts are that the only parties to the Subscription Agreement
are Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC and Boling. There is no ambiguity within the
Subscription Agreement that suggests that non-parties can be compelled to arbitrate. Indeed, the
arbitration clause specifically states “BY EXECUTING THIS AGREEMENT YOU ARE
AGREEING TO HAVE ALL DISPUTES DECIDED BY NEUTRAL ARBITRATION....” This
language makes it clear that the agreement to arbitrate is made “by executing [the Subscription
Agreement].” Because plaintiffs have not executed the Subscription Agreement, plaintiffs have
not agreed to submit any disputes to arbitration. Thus, under Idaho law, the plaintiffs are not
bound by the arbitration clause in the Subscription Agreement and cannot, therefore, be forced to

arbitration.

MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF MOTION TO STAY ARBITRATION - 4
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IV. CONCLUSION
For the foregoing reasons, plaintiffs respectfully request that this Court enter an order

staying Boling from proceeding with arbitration against them.

DATED this 17th day of August, 2012.

RAINEY LAW OFFICE

RebeccaA Rainey — ;theg

Attorneys for
Plaintiff/Counterdefendants

MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF MOTION TO STAY ARBITRATION -5
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that on the 17th day of August, 2012, I caused to be served a copy of the
foregoing MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF MOTION TO STAY ARBITRATION on

the following, in the manner indicated below:

Mark Boling ( ) Via U.S. Mail
21986 Cayuga Lane ( ) Via Facsimile — 949-588-7078
Lake Forest, CA 92630 ( ) Via Overnight Mail

( ) Via Hand Delivery

©) Via Email

J— € A J—
QO

Rebecca A. Rainey

MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF MOTION TO STAY ARBITRATION - 6
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RECEIVED
AUG 2 3 2012

Ada County Clerk

Mark Boling

21986 Cayuga Lane
Lake Forest, CA 92630
(949) 588-9222

(949) 588-7078 [fax]
maboling@earthlink net

’;M-———'-__-__

AUG 2 3 2012

CHRISTOPHER D. RICH, Clerk

\THY BIEHL
By KADSW

Defendant/Counter-Claimant/Third Party Plaintiff, in pro per

IN THE DISTRICT COURT FOR THE FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT

FOR THE STATE OF IDAHO, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF ADA

CLEARWATER REI LLC, et al.

Plaintiffs/Counter-Defendants,

VS.
MARK BOLING,
Defendant/Counter-Claimant

MARK BOLING
Third Party Plaintiff,

Vvs.
CLEARWATER REAL ESTATE
INVESTMENTS, LLC.,

- Third Party Defendant.

11177

Case No.: CV OC 1208669

DEFENDANT/COUNTER-
CLAIMANT’S OPPOSITION TO
MOTION TO STAY
ARBITRATION

Date: September 12, 2012
Time: 3:00 p.m.

[Request for Telephonic
Appearance — LR.C.P., Rule 7 (b)
(4), if Oral Argument Granted]

OPPOSITION TO MOTION TO STAY ARBITRATION — Page i
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INTRODUCTION AND SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

This action arises out of conduct involving the purchase and performance of a
real estate investment with Defendant/Counter-Claimant Mark Boling (“Boling”) by
individuals employees and affiliated business entities of Clearwater Real Estate
Investments. All Plaintiffs have challenged Boling’s demand to arbitrate his claims for
Breach of Guaranty against Plaintiff RE Capital Investments, LLC and violations of the
Idaho Consumer Protection Act, I.C. §§ 48-601 — 48-619 (“ICPA”) against all
nonsignatory Plaintiffs under the agreement.

The right to arbitrate Boling’s Breach of Guaranty claim against the
nonsignatory Plaintiff RE Capital Investments, LLC exists because the Guaranty is part
of the entire agreement. Thus, the guarantor, Plaintiff RE Capital Investments, LLC, is
bound by the arbitration clause in the entire agreement. '

The right to arbitrate Boling’s ICPA claims against the nonsignatory Plaintiffs
exists because 1) Plaintiffs’ actionable conduct is inextricably interwoven with the
formation and performance of the entire agreement, 2) a benefit was conferred on the
nonsignatory Plaintiff(s) as a result of the agreement, making the nonsignatory
‘Plaintiff(s) a third party beneficiary of the arbitration agreement, 3) a preexisting
relationship existed between the nonsignatory Plaintiff(s) and Clearwater 2008 Note
Program, LLC (the “Company”), making it equitable to compel the nonsignatory
Plaintiff(s) to also be bound by the arbitration clause in the entire agreement, and/or 4)

mutuality of remedy under the arbitration clause makes it equitable to compel the

! Plaintiffs have represented in this action that the Guarantor, RE Capital has filed

bankruptcy on July 7, 2012. Therefore, this Breach of Guaranty claim for relief is
stayed during the pendency of said purported bankruptcy action.

OPPOSITION TO MOTION TO STAY ARBITRATION — Page 1
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nonsignatory Plaintiff(s) to also be bound by the arbitration clause in the entire
agreement.
STATEMENT OF FACTS®
A. Private Placement Memorandum, Supplements One and Two Thereto
and Guaranty

On or about February 4, 2010, Boling received an initial package from Rob
Ruebel, Regional Vice-President of Sales of Clearwater Real Estate Investments
consisting of A) a bound Confidential Private Placement Memorandum Book # 08Note-
A238 dated August 29, 2008 (Exh. 1), which included, inter alia, the Private Placement
Memorandum (Exh. 1A ,“PPM”), a Guaranty (Exh. 2), and Supplements One and Two
to the PPM (collectively, Exh. 3), and B) a cover letter dated February 1, 2010 and
miscellaneous sheets about Clearwater Real Estate Investments (collectively, Exh. 4).
Boling did not receive a copy of the Note dated August 29, 2008, the Third Supplement
to the PPM dated January 20, 2010, or the 2009 Year-End Update dated March 19, 2010
until after the submission and acceptance of his Subscription Agreement, infra.

The PPM sets forth the following:

Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC, an Idaho limited
liability company, was organized to offer up to
$20,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of 9.0% Notes
due December 31, 2015. The Company will use the
proceeds from the offering of the Notes to provide
secured financing for real estate acquisition and
development projects undertaken by Clearwater REI,
LLC, an Idaho limited liability company, its Affiliates and
other borrowers who satisfy the lending criteria

2 The statement of facts and all exhibits identified or referenced in this document

are taken from the allegations in and exhibits attached to Boling’s Counterclaim and
Third Party Complaint on file in this action, which Boling requests that the Court take
judicial notice of under ZR.E. 201 or in Boling’s declaration filed herewith.

OPPOSITION TO MOTION TO STAY ARBITRATION — Page 2
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established by the Company. * * * All loans made by the
Company will be collateralized by a first position
mortgage or deed of trust, as the case may be. [PPM,
Introduction. ]

Noteholders may elect, from time to time, to (a) receive
monthly distributions of simple interest at the annual rate
of 9.0%, or (b) re-invest accrued interest at a compounded
annual interest rate of 9.0%. [PPM, Introduction.]

The mailing address of the Company is c/o Clearwater
REIL LLC, 1300 E. State Street, Suite 103, Eagle, Idaho
83616. [PPM, Introduction.]

If, after carefully reading the entire Memorandum,
obtaining any other information available and being fully
satisfied with the results of pre-investment due diligence
activities, a prospective Noteholder would like to
purchase Notes, a prospective Noteholder should
complete and sign the attached Subscription Agreement.
The full purchase price for the Notes must be paid by
check upon submission of the Subscription Agreement for
the Notes. [PPM, p. 3.]

There are various conflicts of interest among the
Company, the Manager and their Affiliates. [PPM, p. 5.]

COMPANY’S PRINCIPAL OFFICERS [PPM, p. 17.]:

The Investment Committee will include, but not be

limited to the following principals:

* Ron Meyer, Chief Development Officer

» Chris Benak, Chief Development Officer ’
* Don Steeves, National Sales Director & Broker-Dealer

Relations

* Bart Cochran, Vice President of Acquisitions &
Operations

* Chad Hansen, Vice President of Finance. [PPM, p. 17.]

MANAGER’S KEY MANAGEMENT [PPM, p. 18.]:

* Ron Meyer, Chief Development Officer

» Chris Benak, Chief Development Officer

* Don Steeves, National Sales Director & Broker-Dealer
Relations

* Bart Cochran, Vice President Of Acquisitions &
Operations

* Chad Hansen, Vice President of Finance

OPPOSITION TO MOTION TO STAY ARBITRATION — Page 3
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Interest: Noteholders may elect to receive monthly
interest payments in an amount equal to 9.0% simple
interest on their principal investment. All distributions
will paid in arrears on the fifteenth day of each month,
beginning with the month following the month in which
the Notes are issued. [PPM, p. 19.]

Interest Reinvestment Program (IRP): By giving written
notice to the Company of their desire to do so not later
than November 30, Noteholders may elect to have their
interest reinvested and compounded monthly beginning
on the first day of the year immediately following the date
on which such notice was received by the Company.
Reinvested interest will be compounded at the annual rate
of 9.0%. Interest that is reinvested will be added to and
considered part of the principal amount of the Note at the
end of each calendar month. [PPM, p. 19.]

Liquidity; Callability: Beginning December 31, 2010 and
once annually thereafter, Notes representing up to 10% of
the original principal amount may be called by the
Noteholders upon not less than 90 days written notice to
the Company. [PPM, pp. 19-20.]

Guaranty: The Notes will be obligations of the Company
the principal of which will be guaranteed by RE Capital
Investments, LLC [PPM, p. 20.] The Guaranty is
attached to the PPM as Exhibit D.

Annual Report: Within 120 days after the end of each
calendar year, the Company will send to each

Noteholder of record during the previous year: (a) an
audited balance sheet for the Company as of the end of
such fiscal year and (b) an audited statement of the
Company’s earnings for such fiscal year, along with a
year-end status report. [PPM, p. 24.]

Definitions:

“Company” means Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC,
an Idaho limited liability company. [PPM, p. 25.]
“Manager” refers to Clearwater REI, LLC. The Manager
is sole owner and the initial manager of the Company.
[PPM, p. 26.]

“Noteholders™ means purchasers of Notes. [PPM, p. 26.]
“Notes” means the $20,000,000 aggregate principal
amount of 9.0% notes due December 31, 2015, subject to
increase to $40,000,000 at the sole discretion of the
Company, which will be obligations of the Company the
principal of which will be guaranteed by RE Capital
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Investments, LLC; however, the Notes will not be secured
by collateral. [PPM, p. 26.]

“Event of Default” refers to the occurrence of any of the
following: (a) failure to pay the principal on the Notes
when due at maturity, or upon any earlier due date, or
upon mandatory redemption at the option of Noteholder,
(b) failure to pay any interest on the Notes for ten days
after notice of such default to the Company; (c) failure to
perform any other covenant for ten days after receipt of
written notice specifying the default and requiring the
Company to remedy such default; or (c) events of
insolvency, receivership, conservatorship or
reorganization of the Company. [PPM, p. 26.] (Emphasis
added.)

Guarantor’s Balance Sheet dated July 31, 2008 — attached
Exhibit C to the PPM.

Guaranty dated July 31, 2008 — attached Exhibit D to the PPM, which was
signed on behalf of the Guarantor, RE Capital Investments, LLC, by its managing
member, Diamond B Asset Management.

The Guaranty states, inter alia:

“In order to induce each prospective purchaser (each a
“Noteholder” and collectively the “Noteholders™) of 9%
Notes due on December 31, 2015 (each a “Note” and
collectively the “Notes) issued by Clearwater 2008 Note
Program, LL.C (the “Company™) to purchase the Notes,
the Guarantor hereby unconditionally guarantees the
payment of the original principal amount of the Notes as
provided therein. This Guaranty shall remain in full force
throughout the terms of the Notes.”

“Guarantor hereby waives notice of acceptance of this
Guaranty and all other notices in connection herewith or
in connection with the liabilities, obligations and duties
guaranteed hereby, including notices to them of default by
the Company under the Notes.”

“The Guarantor’s net worth will at all times during the
term of the Guaranty be maintained at $54, 000.000
subject to increase in pro rata up to $78,000,000 if the
Company increases the offering of the Notes.”
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“Guarantor further agrees, to the extent permitted by law,
to pay any costs or expenses, including the reasonable
fees of an attorney, incurred by the Noteholders in
enforcing this Guaranty.”

First Supplement to PPM dated October 3, 2008:

Peter Cooper, Senior Vice-President of Sales will assume the role of Director of
Sales and Broker Dealer Relations for Clearwater REI, LLC. Don Steeves, former
National Sales Director and Director of Broker Relations, concluded his employment
with Clearwater REI, LLC. [1* Suppl., p. 2.]

The four member Investment Committee now consists of current principal
members of Clearwater REI, LLC, namely: Ron Meyer, Chris Benak, Bart Cochran and
Chad Hansen. No loan will be made by the Company without the prior approval of the
Investment Committee. [1% Suppl., p. 3.]

Second Supplement to PPM dated June 30, 2009:

The RELATIONSHIP of the Company (Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC),

the Manager (Clearwater REI, LLC) and the Guarantor (RE Capital Investments, LLC)
to each other, and their respective owners, is as follows [2nd Suppl., p.2]:
o RE Capital Investments, LLC owns 55.84% of Clearwater (Real Estate
Investments).
. Ronald D. Meyer owns 100% of Terron Investments, Inc., which
owns 50 % of RE Capital Investments, LLC.
. Christopher J. Benak owns 100% of Diamond B Asset
Management, Inc., which owns the other 50% of RE Capital Investments, LLC.
o Barton Cole Cochran 100% of Leap, Inc. which owns 19.58% of
Clearwater.

o Chad James Hansen owns 100% of Green Jackets Investments, Inc.,
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which owns 19.58% of Clearwater.

Bart Cochran, who was formerly the Company’s Vice-President of Acquisitions
& Operations, is now the Company’s President. Chad Hansen, who was formerly the
Company’s Vice-President of Finance, is now the Company’s Chief Financial Officer.
[2" Suppl., p.2]

Guarantor’s Balance Sheet dated December 31, 2008 — attached as Exhibit A to
the 2™ Suppl.

B. Subscription Agreement

On February 12, 2010, Boling executed and submitted a Subscription
Agreement (“SA”) (Exh. 5), and Boling paid the sum of $50,000 pursuant thereto as his
personal investment in the Company’s‘ Note Program without having previously
received a copy of the Note.

Subscription Agreement:

The SA is the offer and agreement of the Boling to purchase $50,000 in

principal of 9% Notes to be issued by the Company subject to the terms, conditions,
acknowledgments, representations and warranties stated herein and in the PPM, as
supplemented from time to time. [SA, p.2.]

RE Capital, LLC agreed to guarantee the repayment of principal under the
Notes. [SA, p.3., 1]

Pertinent portions of the SA are as follows:

“I acknowledge that I have received, read and fully
understand the Memorandum. I acknowledge that I am
basing my decision to invest in Notes on_ the
Memorandum and I have relied only on the information
contained in said materials and have not relied upon any
representations made by any other person.” [SA, p.3., 2]
(underline added)
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“I am purchasing Notes for my own account and for
investment purposes only.” [SA, p.4, §7.]

“This Subscription Agreement shall be construed in
accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of
Idaho without regard to its choice of law provisions.”
[SA, p.4, 910.]

[ARBITRATION CLAUSE]

“[A]ny dispute, controversy or other claim arising under,
out of or relating to this Agreement or any of the
transactions contemplated hereby, or any amendment
thereof, or the breach or interpretation hereof or thereof,
shall be determined and settled in binding arbitration in
Boise, Idaho, in accordance with applicable Idaho law,
and with the rules and procedures of The American
Arbitration Association. The prevailing party shall be
entitled to an award of its reasonable costs and expenses,
including, but not limited to, attorneys’ fees, in addition to
any other available remedies. Any award rendered therein
shall be final and binding on each and all of the parties
thereto and their personal representatives, and judgment
may be entered thereon in any court of competent
jurisdiction. BY EXECUTING THIS AGREEMENT,
YOU ARE AGREEING TO HAVE ALL DISPUTES
DECIDED BY NEUTRAL ARBITRATION, YOU ARE
GIVING UP ANY RIGHTS YOU MIGHT POSSESS TO
HAVE SUCH DISPUTES LITIGATED IN A COURT
OR JURY TRIAL, AND YOU ARE GIVING UP YOUR
JUDICIAL RIGHTS TO DISCOVERY AND APPEAL.
IF YOU REFUSE TO SUBMIT TO ARBITRATION
AFTER AGREEING TO THIS PROVISION, YOU
MAY BE COMPELLED TO ARBITRATE. BY
EXECUTING THIS AGREEMENT, YOU HEREBY
CONFIRM THAT YOUR AGREEMENTS TO THIS
ARBITRATION PROVISION IS VOLUNTARY.” [SA,

p4,911.]

“[TThis Subscription Agreement and the Memorandum,
together with all attachments and exhibits thereto,
constitute the entire agreement among the parties hereto
with respect to the sale of Notes and may be amended,
modified or terminated only by a writing executed by all
parties.” [SA, p.4, J13.]

C Acceptance of Subscription Agreement, Certificate and Note
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On or about March 6, 2010, Boling received a cover letter dated March 1, 2010
(Exh. 6), an Acceptance of the Subscription Agreement (Exh. 5), a Certificate with an
effective date of February 27, 2010 (Exh. 7), and a Note dated August 29, 2008 (Exh. 8)
from Clearwater Real Estate Investments.

Acceptance of Subscription Agreement:

On February 26, 2010, Bart Cochran signed the acceptance of the SA, as the
Manager for the Company.

Certificate:

Effective February 27, 2010, Certificate No 08-470 was signed by Bart Cochran
as the Manager for the Company and issued to Boling.

Note: |

A Note dated August 29, 2008, with the Company as the maker, was signed by
Bart Cochran as the sole member for the Manager. No Exhibit A, listing the names of
the Noteholders, including Boling, was attached or included with the Note that was
delivered to Boling.

Pertinent portions of the Note are as follows:

FOR VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, the receipt,
adequacy and sufficiency of which are hereby
acknowledged, Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC, an
Idaho limited liability company (“Maker”), promises to
pay to the parties listed on Exhibit A attached hereto (the
“Noteholders”), the aggregate principal amount of
Twenty Million and 00/100 Dollars ($20,000,000) with
the option to increase to Forty Million and 00/100 Dollars
($40,000,000), together with interest, late charges, costs
and expenses, and all other amounts described below in
accordance with the following terms and provisions:
Section 1 Definitions.

“Memorandum” shall mean Maker’s Confidential Private
Placement Memorandum dated August 18, 2008, as
amended or supplemented from time to time, relating to
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the offer and sale by the Maker of up to $20,000,000 of
Notes (subject to increase to $40,000,000).

“Noteholder” shall mean any person or entity hereafter
purchasing a Note in accordance with the Memorandum,
subject to the provisions of the Transaction Documents
applicable thereto, and any successor or assign thereof or
entity acquiring an interest herein at any time.

“Transaction Documents” shall mean this Note, the
Subscription Agreement and the Memorandum.

Section 2.1 Fixed Interest.

“Commencing on the date hereof and continuing until
December 31, 2015, the outstanding principal hereunder
shall bear interest at a fixed annual rate of 9%.”

Section 3 Payments; Accrual.

“Commencing on the fifteenth day of the month next
following the Funding Date and continuing on the
fifteenth day of the month thereafter until the outstanding
principal hereof is paid in full, Maker shall pay to, or
accrue and compound for the benefit of, the Noteholders
all unpaid Interest in an amount equal to the product of
the principal amount hereunder and that fraction the
numerator of which is the Noteholder’s principal
investment and the denominator of which is the principal
amount hereunder. If not sooner paid, Maker shall pay
the principal balance hereof in full on the Maturity Date,
together with all unpaid accrued interest. Maker shall
make all payments of Interest, late charges, and principal
to the Noteholders at their respective addresses on file
with the Maker as of the day which is ten days prior to the
due date of such payment, on or before the date when due,
without notice, deduction or offset. All payments shall be
made in lawful money of the United States of America.”

Section 5 Put Rights.

“Beginning December 31, 2010 and once annually
thereafter, up to 10% of the original principal amount may
be called by the Noteholders upon not less than 30 days
written notice to the Maker.”

Section 6 Late Charges.

«* % * Maker therefore agrees that a late
charge equal to 5% of each payment of Interest or
principal that is not paid within 10 days after its due date
is a reasonable estimate of fair compensation for the loss
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or damages to the Noteholders will suffer. Further,
Maker agrees that such amount shall be presumed to be
the amount of damages sustained by Noteholders in such
case, and such sum shall be added to amount then due and
payable.”

Section 8.1 Events of Default:

“Any of the following occurrences shall constitute an
“Event of Default” under this Note: (a) failure by Maker
to make any payment of Interest on or principal of this
Note on or before the twenty-fifth (25™) day of the month
first becoming due in accordance with the terms of this
Note, without any notice or demand for payment (a
“Payment Default”); * * *.”

Section 8.2 Remedies.

“Upon any Event of Default under this Note and the
expiration of any applicable notice or cure periods: (a)
the entire unpaid principal balance hereof , any accrued
but unpaid Interest, late charges, and all other amounts
owing under this Note, shall, at the option of the
Noteholders, without further notice or demand of any
kind to Maker or any other person, become immediately
due and payable; and (b) Noteholders shall have and may
exercise any and all rights and remedies available at law,
by statute, or in equity.

The remedies of the Noteholders, as provided in this
Note, shall be cumulative and concurrent and may be
exercised singularly, successively, or together, at the sole
discretion of the Noteholders, as often as occasion
therefor shall arise. No act of omission or commission by
the Noteholders, including specifically any failure to
exercise any right, remedy or recourse, shall be deemed a
waiver or release to be effected only through a written
documents executed by the Noteholders. A waiver or
release with reference to any one event shall not be
construed as continuing, as a bar to, or as a waiver or
release of, any subsequent right, remedy, or recourse to
collateral as to any subsequent event.”

D. Subsequent Communications to Boling
On or about March 19, 2010, Clearwater Real Estate Investments sent to the
Boling by mail a 2009 Year-End Update (Exh. 9) to keep the investors informed of the

status of the Note Program. The 2009 Year-End Update letter states, “the assets of RE
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Capital, the guarantor, are being maintained at sufficient levels to allow us to meet our
obligations.” This 2009 Year-End Update revealed information regarding the update
and current strategy of the various loans made by Plaintiffs prior to Boling’s
investment. Two of the four loan projects were in default and/or in bankruptcy. The
other two loan projects were having delays in the entitlement process.

On or about June 17, 2010, the Company disclosed its Independent Auditor’s
Report and Financial Statements for the calendar years 2008 and 2009 (Exh. 10).

‘ On or about March 24, 2011, Clearwater Real Estate Investments sent to the
Boling by mail a 2010 Year-End Update (Exhibit 11) to keep the investors informed of
the status of the Note Program. Now, all five (5) outstanding loans were in default.

On or about August 19, 2011, the Company disclosed its Independent Auditor’s
Report and Financial Statements for the calendar years 2009 and 2010 (Exh. 12). The
Company is solely owned by the Manager. The Company maintained a separate
allowance for each loan receivable. At December 31, 2010, the Company had an
allowance for losses of $2,311,584. In 2010, the Company suspended early redemption
requests.

On or about October 26, 2011, the Company sent by mail a Notice to Note
Holders (Exh. 13), which was received by Boling on November 4, 2011. The Notice
states, “Note Holders can be optimistic of the collateral position of the Note Program
today.” The Notice further states that the amount of the interest payment distribution
would be reduced for the months of November 2011, December 2011 and January 2012
and reassessed for February 2012.

On November 6, 2011, Boling sent th\e Company written notice to redeem 10%

of his principal amount under the Transaction Documents and requested a current
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Balance Sheet of the Guarantor (Exh. 14 — Email String/Letters). The last Balance
Sheet of the Guarantor disclosed to the Boling was dated December 31, 2008.

On November 10, 2011, Clearwater Real Estate Investments acknowledged
receipt of Boling’s liquidation request, placed Boling’s request on a priority list with an
acceptance date of November 7, 2011 and informed Boling that all liquidation requests
have been suspended (Exh. 14 — Email String/Letters). Clearwater Real Estate
Investments stated that it “has made multiple attempts to get updated financials from
RE Capital (Guarantor) and we have received word that we should have updated
financials no later than year end 2011.”

On December 1, 2011, Boling first obtained by email and reviewed a copy of the
Third Supplement to the PPM dated January 20, 2010 from Ross Farris, Director
Marketing and Investor Relations for Clearwater. (Exh. 15)

The Third Supplement to the PPM states, inter alia, “[a]lthough the

Guarantor’s net worth of approximately, $53.4 million is lower than the net worth of
$54 million it has covenanted to maintain under the Guaranty based on a Maximum
Offefing Amount of $20,000,000, in the event that the increased Maximum Amount of
$21,900,000 is attained, the Guarantor’s net worth does provide a principal coverage
ratio of: (a) 1.2x, if a portion of the Guarantor’s net worth is reserved to provide 1.5x
coverage over principal amounts outstanding under the notes issued by Clearwater 2007
Notes Program, LLC (the “2007 Notes Program”) (accounting for liquidation of
$2,000,000 in principal amounts of the notes issued by the 2007 Notes Program as of
December 31, 2009, with $18,000,000 remaining outstanding), and (b) 2.44x, if this

reserve is not made (the Guarantor is not required to make this reserve). Attached as
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Exhibit A to the Third Supplement to the PPM was the RE Capital Balance Sheet dated
December 31, 2009.

On December 14, 2011, Boling received a letter from the Company stating that
1) the security for the loans were not cross-collateralized, 2) the Manager decides
exclusively when to get appraisals for the Projects, 3) the 2010 Audited Report and
financials of the Company were purportedly first available on May 1, 2011, 4) the initial
PPM packet included the Third Supplement to the PPM, the Company has requested a
final 2010 Balance Sheet from the Guarantor, and 5) the Company “cannot honor the
liquidation requests of a few Note Holders at the expense of the other Note Holders.”
(Exh. 14 — Email String/Letters)

On December 20, 2011, Boling spoke by telephone with Lori Fischer, Controller
of Clearwater Investment, who informed Boling that the 2010 Audited Report and
financials of the Company were first available on or after August 29, 2011.

On December 20, 2011, Boling stated in an email to Clearwater Real Estate
Investments: “If the Company maintains now and at the time of the initial PPM that it
can alter or over-ride this expressed term regarding Callability on the basis that it has an
obligation to ALL Note holders allowing the Company not to abide by this expressed
term, then I would request that my subscription be immediately rescinded and the total
principal amount of my note be restored.” (Exh. 14 — Email String/Letters)

On or about January 12, 2012, Clearwater Real Estate Investments sent a letter
to Note Holders postponing all 2011 liquidation requests until further notice. (Exh. 16)

On or about January 25, 2012, the Company sent a letter to Boling stating that it
has “been in contact with RE Capital and are hopeful of receiving correspondence from

them in the next 30 days. (Exh. 14 — Email String/Letters)
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On February 2, 2012, Ross Farris, Director of Marketing and Investor Relations
informed Boling by telephone that the reduction of interest payment was made pursuant
to Section 3 of the Note and the suspension of liquidation rights was to protect all
Noteholders. Boling informed Mr. Farris that he never received a copy of the Note until
after submitting his Subscription Agreement and $50,000 payment to the Company.
Boling further requested a copy of Exhibit A to the Note. Mr. Farris responded that he
would obtain a copy of Exhibit A to the Note, but only with Boling’s name on it and not
the identity of all Noteholders. No Exhibit A to the Note was ever received by Boling.
Mr. Farris also stated that all the business decisions for the Note Program are made by
the management team of Clearwater REI, LLC.

On February 2, 2012, Boling sent to Clearwater by email a written Notice of
Default on Interest payments for November 2011, December 2011, and January 2011,
and a written Notice of Default on his liquidation rights and demanding that payment be
made immediately or after a cure period, if necessary. (Exh. 14 — Email String/Letters)

On February 6, 2012, Boling received from Clearwater a cover letter and
January Update dated January 31, 2012. (Exh. 17) The cover letter states: “the
February payment will be 25% of the monthly interest distributed.” The Update
acknowledges: “Real Estate values have fallen dramatically nationwide.”

On February 9, 2012, Boling received from Clearwater a Quarterly Statement
ending December 31, 2011 (Exh 18) that sets forth the “Total Outstanding Principal of
Master Promissory Note to Investors” as $21,810,000 and “Total Appraised Value of
Collateral” as $25,100,000 and “Collateral valuations dated September 15, 2010,
January 19,2011 and September 21, 2011.”
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If Boling was timely made aware of the aforementioned facts, Boling would not
have made his $50,000 investment in the Note Program.

On February 15, 2012 and out of abundance of caution, Boling filed a Demand
for .Commercial Arbitration with the American Arbitration Association (“AAA”)
against all named Cross-Defendants and the Company and served said parties therewith
regarding the acts and omissions set forth herein under the arbitration clause in the SA.

On or about March 8, 2012, Cross- Defendants filed with the AAA and served
their Answer Statement objecting to arbitrate the disputes set forth in the counterclaim
and third party complaint on behalf of all named Cross-Defendants, but not the
Company.

Boling has offered not to arbitrate his claims against Plaintiffs, if Plaintiffs allow
Boling to prosecute his claims in this lawsuit. Plaintiffs rejected Boling’s offer.

Based on Plaintiffs’ actionable conduct, Boling seeks monetary and/or equitable
relief in his counterclaim alleging 1) violations of the Idaho Consumer Protection Act
[{daho Code (“1.C.”) §§ 48-601 — 48-619 (“ICPA”)] against all Plaintiffs, and each of
them , and 3) Breach of Guaranty against the Plaintiff Clearwater REI, LLC.

RIGHT TO COMPEL ARBITRATION

“Arbitrability is a question of law to be decided by the court.” (emphasis added)

Mason v. State Farm Mut. Auto Ins. Co. (2007) 145 Idaho 197, 200. Once the Plaintiffs
obj eéted to the arbitration demand with the AAA on the basis of not being signatories to
the agreement containing an arbitration clause, the American Arbitration Association
did not have jurisdiction to arbitrate the matter as to the objecting Plaintiffs because the
issue is for the courts, and not the arbitrator, to decide whether Defendant Boling can

compel arbitration, which he did not. However, had Boling attempted to compel
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arbitration with the courts, which he does not intend to do if the Court allows Boling’s
counterclaims to be prosecuted in this lawsuit, Boling would bave prevailed and
Plaintiffs would not be entitled to their costs and possible attorney fees herein. 3

A strong public policy favors arbitration. See, e.g., Bingham County Comm'n v.
Interstate Elec. Co. (1983) 105 Idaho 36, 40. Agreements to arbitrate are encouraged
and given explicit recognition as effective means to resolve disputed issues. Loomis,
Inc. v. Cudahy (1983) 104 Idaho 106, 108. A court reviewing an arbitration clause will
order arbitration unless it may be said with positive assurance that the arbitration clause
is not susceptible of an interpretation that covers the asserted dispute. Doubts are to be
resolved in favor of coverage. See, Int'l Ass'n of Firefighters, Local No. 672 v. City of
Boise (2001) 136 Idaho 162, 168.

Whether an arbitration clause in a contract requires arbitration of a particular

dispute or claim depends upon its terms. Lovey v. Gregence BlueShield of Idaho (2003)

3 If the Court allows Boling’s counterclaims to be prosecuted in this lawsuit,

which all Plaintiffs/Counter-Defendants have been served with the counterclaims and
discovery is pending, then Defendant Boling accepts Plaintiffs’ objection to arbitrate
and decision not to arbitrate claims against Plaintiffs/Counter-Defendants. Judicial
intervention in this lawsuit is Boling’s preferred method to resolve his ICPA claims
because 1) it allows Boling the right to judicial discovery of information exclusively in
Plaintiffs/Counter-Defendants’ possession, which is denied by arbitration, 2) none of
the proposed arbitrators have any experience in handling unique ICPA claims or issues,
and 3) for judicial economy, the prosecution of the counterclaims is significantly
advance at this time.

Plaintiffs are judicially estopped from and have waived objecting to the
prosecution of Boling’s counterclaims in this lawsuit because of having filed their
complaint and application to stay arbitration, thus consenting to jurisdiction of having
such counterclaims proceed in this court. The fact that the issue of arbitration may be
summarily decided by the court does not preclude the filing of any counterclaims in the
same action. Plaintiffs present no legal authority otherwise.
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139 Idaho 37, 46. In the instant case, the arbitration clause in the 'Subscription
Agreement [SA, p.4, J11] covers “any dispute, controversy or other claim arising under,
out of or relating to this Agreement or any of the transactions contemplated hereby, or
any amendment thereof, or the breach or interpretation hereof or thereof. . . .” The
broad language of the arbitration clause would encompass Boling’s Breach of Guaranty
and ICPA violations claims against the nonsignatory Plaintiffs because these claims and
nonsignatory parties relate to the formation and performance of the entire agreement
that is in dispute. See, Dan Wiebold Ford, Inc. v. Universal Computer Consulting
Holding, Inc. (2005) 142 Idaho 235, 240 — “language is broad enough to include claims
under the ICPA .” (underline added)

Plaintiffs’ reliance on Lewis v. CEDU Educational Servs., Inc. (2000) 135 Idaho
139 and Rath v. Managed Health Network, Inc. (1992) 123 Idaho 30 is without merit
because the language of the arbitration clauses therein were limited to the parties.

In Lewis, the court held that the arbitration provision only applied to the
contracting parties, not the third party beneficiaries, because the narrow language of the
arbitration provision limited arbitration to “any controversy between the parties” and
“of the parties hereto.” Lewis, 135 Idaho at 143.

In Rath, the court held that although the Raths were third party beneficiaries to
the contract, the express language of the arbitration clause of the contract was limited to
“parties” to the agreement. Rath, 123 Idaho at 31. The court reasoned that to hold
otherwise would be “inapposite in the face of the language in the Agreement expressly
limiting the arbitration clause to the ‘parties' to the Agreement.” Ibid.

In the instant case, there is nothing in the entire agreement that expressly limits

the arbitration clause to the parties or excludes nonsignatory parties from arbitration.
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The Idaho Supreme Court has noted that the distinction between state and
federal substantive arbitration law is largely a distinction without a difference because
the applicable legal principles are one and the same. Mason v. State Farm Mut. Auto
Ins. Co. (2007) 145 Idaho 197, at 200 n.1.

The federal courts have identified five theories pursuant to which an arbitration
clause can be enforced by or against a nonsignatory: “1) incorporation by reference; 2)
assumption; 3) agency; 4) veil-piercing/alter ego; and 5) estoppel." Boucher v. Alliance
Title Co., Inc. (2005) 127 Cal.App.4th 262, 268, quoting Thomson-CSF, S.A. v.
American Arbitration Ass'n. (2nd Cir. 1995) 64 F.3d 773, 776.

With respect to the Breach of Guaranty claim, the Subscription Agreement

states: “this Subscription Agreement and the Memorandum, together with all

attachments and exhibits thereto, constitute the entire agreement among the parties

hereto with respect to the sale of Notes and may be amended, modified or terminated
only by a writing executed by all parties.” [SA, p.4, J13] The Guaranty is attached as
Exhibit D to the PPM and as incorporated by reference in the Subscription Agreement.
Thus, it becomes part of the entire agreement and the guarantor, Plaintiff RE Capital
Investments, LLC, is bound by the arbitration clause in the entire agreement.
Additionally, RE Capital Investments, LLC ( the Guarantor) is wholly-owned by
businesses whose sole ownership is either Plaintiffs Ron Meyer and Chris Benak, who
are also officers of the Company, As officers of the Company and the principals of the
Guarantor, the knowledge of Mssrs. Meyer and Benak that the Guaranty has been made
a part of the entire agreement, supra, is imputed to RE Capital Investments, LLC ( the
Guarantor). Thus, the Guarantor is bound by that knowledge and consents to the

arbitration clause contained in the Subscription Agreement.
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With respect to the ICPA violations claim, the focus of applying the arbitration
clause is because the nature of Boling’s ICPA claims against the nonsignatory Plaintiffs
is interwoven with Plaintiffs’ breach of their the duties and obligations under the entire
agreement, which includes the arbitration clause. See Sunkist Soft Drinks, Inc. v. Sunkist
Growers, Inc. (11th Cir. 1993) 10 F.3d 753, 757-758 — re equitable estoppel and claims
intertwined with contractual obligations. That the claims are cast in tort rather than
contract does not avoid the arbitration clause. (Sunkist, supra, 10 F.3d at p. 758.)

Also, the incestuous operation of the individual corporate officers and their web

of interlocking business entities under the umbrella of the “Clearwater” name creates an

oneness of activity to invoke the doctrine of equitable estoppel® and an agency

relationship® with respect to each significant business decision made by all Plaintiffs for

4 Under the doctrine of equitable estoppel, claims against the nonsignatory must

be dependent upon, or founded in and inextricably intertwined with, the underlying
contractual obligations of the agreement containing the arbitration clause. Molecular
Analytical Systems v. Ciphergen Biosystems, Inc. (2010)186 Cal.App.4th 696, 715 —
citing Goldman v. KPMG, LLP (2009) 173 Cal.App.4™ 209, 217-218.

3 When contracting parties agree to arbitrate all disputes “under or with respect
to” a contract (as they did here), they generally intend to include disputes about their
agents' actions because “[a]s a general rule, the actions of a corporate agent on behalf of
the corporation are deemed the corporation's acts.” If arbitration clauses only apply to
contractual signatories, then this intent can only be accomplished by having every
officer and agent (and every affiliate and its officers and agents) either sign the contract
or be listed as a third-party beneficiary. In re Merrill Lynch Trust Co. FSB (Tex., 2007)
235 S.W.3d 185, 189.

Rowe v. Exline (2007)153 Cal.App.4th 1276, 1285 - A nonsignatory who is the
agent of a signatory can even be compelled to arbitrate claims against his will. See also,
Dan Wiebold Ford, Inc. v. Universal Computer Consulting Holding, Inc. (2005) 142
Idaho 235, 241 - a signatory's agent was entitled to enforce an arbitration clause, citing
Westra v. Marcus & Millichap Real Estate Investment Brokerage Co., Inc. (2005) 129
Cal. App.4™ 759.
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the Note Program, the Company and the Manager under the entire agreement and to the
detriment of the Boling in violation of the ICPA. Thus, the nonsignatory parties are to
be bound by the broad arbitration clause in the entire agreement.

The ICPA is a remedial statute, and is to be construed liberally in order to deter
deceptive or unfair trade practices and to provide relief for consumers exposed to
proscribed practices. I.C. § 48-601%; In re Wiggins (2001) 273 B.R. 839, 855; In re
Edwards (1999) 233 B.R. 461, 470; Fenn v. Noah (2006) 142 Idaho 775, 780.” The |
ICPA is applicable to commercial transactions. Myers v. A.O. Smith Harvestore
Products, Inc. (1988) 114 Idaho 432, 441.

The following unfair methods of competition and unfair or deceptive acts or
practices in the conduct of any trade or commerce are hereby declared to be unlawful,
where a PERSON knows, or in the exercise of due care should know, that he has in the
past, or is: Obtaining the signature of the buyer to a contract when it contains blank
spaces to be filled in after it has been signed (I.C. § 48-603 (12)); Failing to deliver to

the consumer at the time of the consumer's signature a legible copy of the contract or of

6 The purpose of these Idaho consumer protection statutes are strikingly similar in

Legislative content with the California Consumer Legal Remedies Act [Cal. Civil Code
§1760].

7 It is the intent of the legislature that in construing this act due consideration and
great weight shall be given to the interpretation of the federal trade commission and the
federal courts relating to section 5(a)(1) of the federal trade commission act (15 U.S.C.
45(a)(1)), as from time to time amended. I.C. § 48-604 (1). Federal case law as it has
developed under Federal Trade Commission Act, although not binding, is_persuasive in
application of Idaho Consumer Protection Act. Federal Trade Commission Act, §§ 1 et
seq., 3(a)(1), 15 U.S.C.A. §§ 41 et seq.,45(a)(1); I.C. §§ 48-601 to 48-619. State ex rel.
Kidwell v. Master Distributors, Inc. (1980) 101 Idaho 447, 453.
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any other document which the seller or lender has required or requested the buyer to
sign, and which he has signed, during or after the contract negotiation (I.C. § 48-603
(13)); Engaging in any act or practice which is otherwise misleading, false, or deceptive
to the consumer. I.C. § 48-603 (17). The Plaintiffs/Counter-Defendants are allegedly
such persons.

Boling contends that 1) Plaintiffs violated I1.C. § 48-603 (17) based on their
initial failure to timely provide Boling with the Note, the Third Supplement to the PPM,
and the 2009 Year-End Update; 2) Plaintiffs violated I. C. § 48-603 (17) during the
course of the Note Program because the Plaintiffs’ failed to timely and conspicuously
disclose material facts as to the deteriorating financial condition of the Note Program’s
loan portfolio, the inability or refusal of the Company to pay interest or redeemable
principal, and the Guarantor’s unsatisfactory net worth and cash position; 3) Plaintiffs
violated I.C. §48-603 (17) based on their failure to timely provide the 2010 audited
reports and financials for the Company and Guarantor’s Balance Sheet for 2010 and
2011; 4) Plaintiffs violated I.C. § 48-603 (17) because the 10/26/11 Notice to Note
Holders (Exh. 13) had a tendency to mislead the Noteholders, including Boling; 5)
Plaintiffs violated I. C. § 48-603 (12) and/or (13) based on their failure to provide
Boling with a copy of the Note at the time of providing the PPM and/or Boling
submitting the executed Subscription Agreement; and/or 6) Plaintiffs violated I. C. §
48-603 (13) based on their failure to provide Boling with Exhibit A to the Note, which
was to list of all existing Noteholders, including Boling, at the time of providing the
Note. Evidence and further argument to support these contentions will be presented at
time of arbitration on the merits.

Boling’s claim for ICPA violations against all Plaintiffs are covered under the
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entire agreement, which includes the broad arbitration clause, because 1) Plaintiffs’

conduct is inextricably interwoven with the formation and performance of the entire
agreement, 2) a benefit was conferred on the nonsignatory Plaintiff(s) as a result of the
agreement based on the broad language of the arbitration clause to include all claims
“ariéing under, out of or relating to this Agreement or any of the transactions
contemplated hereby” and Plaintiffs accepting the fruits of the agreement, which are the
loan proceeds used in part to operate Plaintiffs’ related businesses and pay
compensation to the individual Plaintiffs, making the nonsignatory Plaintiff(s) a third
party beneficiary of the arbitration agreement,® 3) a preexisting relationship existed
between the nonsignatory Plaintiff(s) and the Company based on the individual
Plaintiffs acting in the capacity of agents, officers or employees of the Company and the
other business entity Plaintiffs acting as the agent for the Company, making it equitable
to compel the nonsignatory Plaintiff(s) to also be bound by the arbitration clause in the
entire agreement,’ and/or 4) a mutuality of remedy under the arbitration clause makes it
equitable to compel the nonsignatory Plaintiff(s) to also be bound by the arbitration

clause in the entire agreement. '°

8 “Most, if not all, of the loans to be made by the Company with the proceeds of

this Offering will be made to Affiliates of the Company and the Manager.” [PPM, p.12.]
“The Company, the Manager and their Affiliates are entitled to receive certain

significant fees and other significant compensation, payments and reimbursements from
the sale of the Notes.” [PPM, p.13.]

o A nonsignatory who is the agent of a signatory can even be compelled to
arbitrate claims against his will. Harris v. Superior Court (1986) 188 Cal.App.3d 475,
477-479.

10 "[T]f there were no mutuality of remedy requirement, the seller--which is usually
the offeree in the real estate sales context--would have absolutely no incentive to initial
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CONCLUSION
Based on the foregoing, Boling respectfully requests that the Court deny the
Motion to Stay Arbitrafion and disallow the recovery by Plaintiffs of any costs and
possible attorney fees in pursuing this matter. Additionally, if ‘the Court allows
Boling’s counterclaims to be prosecuted in this lawsuit, which all Plaintiffs/Counter-
Defendants have been served with the counterclaims and discovery is pending, Boling,

as the prevailing party, accepts Plaintiffs’ objection to arbitrate and decision not to

arbitrate claims against Plaintiffs/Counter-Defendants.

Dated: August 20, 2012 W/ M

MARK BOLING,
Defendant/Counter-Clalmant/Thlrd Party Plaintiff

the arbitration provision and thereby bind itself to arbitrate disputes." Marcus &
Millichap Real Estate Investment Brokerage Co. v. Hock Investment Co. (1998) 68
Cal.App.4" 83, 91, fn. 6.
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Clearwater REIL LLC, et al. v. Boling, Case No. CV OC 1208669
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I certify on August 20, 2012, I served the following document(s) in this action:

e DEFENDANT/COUNTER-CLAIMANT’S OPPOSITION TO MOTION

TO STAY ARBITRATION

e DECLARATION OF MARK BOLING IN SUPPORT OF
DEFENDANT/COUNTER-CLAIMANT’S OPPOSITION TO MOTION
TO STAY ARBITRATION

by sending a true copy thereof by ELECTRONIC SERVICE pursuant to
IR.C.P,Rule 5 (b) (E) addressed to the party(s) served as follows:

Rebecca A. Rainey — rar@raineylawoffice.com
Amy A. Lombardo - aal@raineylawoffice.com :

Attorney for Plaintiffs and Counter -Defendants Clearwater REI, LLC,
Barton Cole Cochran, Chad James Hansen, Ronald D. Meyer, Christopher J.
Benak and Rob Ruebel.

The transmission of said document(s) to each party served was reported as

complete and without error within a reasonable time after said transmission.

Dated: August 20, 2012 W W

MARK BOLING

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE -PAGE 1
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RECEIVED -~

\@/\Oc@,\\\"/ AUG 2 3 2012 o. “LE{’;.\q._..————-'\'\/

Ada County Clerk | AUG 23 201
Mark Boling H, Clerk
21986 Cayuga Lane CHR\STSVP&“ET&DQQEL i
Lake Forest, CA 92630 Dopsty

(949) 588-9222

(949) 588-7078 [fax]

maboling@earthlink.net

Defendant/Counter-Claimant/Third Party Plaintiff, in pro per

IN THE DISTRICT COURT FOR THE FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT

FOR THE STATE OF IDAHO, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF ADA

P
CLEARWATER REI LLC, et al. Case No.: CV OC 1208669 ’
Plaintiffs/Counter-Defendants, :
Vs. DECLARATION OF MARK '
MARK BOLING, BOLING IN SUPPORT OF
Defendant/Counter-Claimant DEFENDANT/COUNTER-
CLAIMANT’S OPPOSITION TO
MOTION TO STAY
MARK BOLING ARBITRATION
Third Party Plaintiff,
VS. Date: September 12, 2012
CLEARWATER REAL ESTATE Time: 3:00 p.m.
INVESTMENTS, LLC.,
Third Party Defendant.

I, Mark Boling, declare that:
1. I am the Defendant/Counter-Claimant/Third Party Plaintiff (“Boling”) in

the above-captioned matter. :

2 I make this declarati;)n based upon my own personal knowledge unless
otherwise indicated. If called upon as a witness, I could and would competently testify
to these matters.

3. For judicial economy, any and all exhibits identified herein are attached

N
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to Boling’s Counterclaim and Third Party Complaint on file in this acti‘on and
incorporated fully herein where referenced.

4. On or about February 4, 2010, Boling received an initial package from
Rob Ruebel, Regiona} Vice-President of Sales of Clearwater Real Estate Investments
c;)nsisting of A) a bound Confidential Private Placement Memorandum Book # 08Note-
A238 dated August 29, 2008 (Exh. 1), which included, inter alia, the Private Placement
Memorandum (Exh. 1A ,“PPM”), a Guaranty (Exh. 2), and Supplements One and Two
to the PPM (collectively, Exh. 3), and B) a cover letter dated February 1, 2010 and
miscellaneous sheets about Clearwater Real Estate Investments (collectively, Exh. 4).
Boling did not receive a copy of the Note dated August 29, 2008, the Third Supplement
to the PPM dated January 20, 2010, or the 2009 Year-End Update dated March 19, 2010
until after the submission and acceptance of his Subscription Agreement.

5. On or about March 6, 2010, Boling received a cover letter dated March
1, 2010 (Exh. 6), an Acceptance of the Subscription Agreement (Exh. 5), a Certificate
with an effective date of February 27, 2010 (Exh. 7), and a Note dated August 29, 2008
(Exh. 8) from Clearwater Real Estate Investments.

6. On or about March 19, 2010, Clearwater Real Estate Investments sent to
the Boling by mail a 2009 Year-End Update (Exh. 9) to keep the investors informed of
the status of the Note Program. Two of the four loan projects were in default and/or in
bankruptcy. The other two loan projects were having delays in the entitlemer;t process.

7. On or about June 17, 2010, the Company disclosed its Independent
Auditor’s Report and Financial Statements for the calendar years 2008 and 2009 (Exh.
10).

8. On or about March 24, 2011, Clearwater Real Estate Investments sent to
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the Boling by mail a 2010 Year-End Update (Exhibit 11) to keep the investors informed
of the status of the Note Program. Now, all five (5) outstanding loans were in default.

9. On or about August 19, 2011, the Company disclosed its Independent
Auditor’s Report and Financial Statements for the calendar years 2009 and 2010 (Exh.
12).

10.  On or about October 26, 2011, the Company sent by mail a Notice to
Note Holders (Exh. 13), which was received by Boling on November 4, 2011. The
Notice states, “Note Holders can be optimistic of the collateral position of the Note

‘Program today.” The Notice further states that the amount of the interest payment
distribution would be reduced for the months of November 2011, December 2011 and
January 2012 and reassessed for February 2012.

11.  On November 6, 2011, Boling sent the Company written notice to
redeem 10% of his principal amount under the Transaction Documents and requested a
current Balance Sheet of the Guarantor (Exh. 14 — Email String/Letters). The last
Balance Sheet of the Guarantor disclosed to the Boling was dated December 31, 2008.

12. On November 10, 2011, Clearwater Real Estate Investments
acknowledged receipt of Boling’s liquidation request, placed Boling’s request on a
priority list with an acceptance date of November 7, 2011 and informed Boling that all
liquidation requests have been suspended (Exh. 14 — Email String/Letters).

| 13. On December 1, 2011, Boling first obtained by email and reviewed a
copy of the Third Supplement to the PPM dated January 20, 2010 from Ross Farris,
Director Marketing and Investor Relations for Clearwater. (Exh. 15)

14.  The Third Supplement to the PPM states, inter alia, “[a]lthough the

Guarantor’s net worth of approximately, $53.4 million is lower than the net worth of
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$54 million it has covenanted to maintain under the Guaranty based on a Maximum
Offering Amount of $20,000,000, in the event that the increased Maximum Amount of
$21,900,000 is attained, the Guarantor’s net worth does provide a principal coverage
ratio of: (a) 1.2x, if a portion of the Guarantor’s net worth is reserved to provide 1.5x
coverage over principal amounts outstanding under the notes issued by Clearwater 2007
Notes Program, LLC (the “2007 Notes Program™) (accounting for liquidation of
$2,000,000 1n principal amounts of the notes issued by the 2007 Notes Program as of
December 31, 2009, with $18,000,000 remaining outstanding), and (b) 2.44x, if this
reserve is not made (the Guarantor is not required to make this reserve). Attached as
Exhibit A to the Third Supplement to the PPM was the RE Capital Balance Sheet dated
December 31, 2009.

15.  On December 14, 2011, Boling received a letter from the Company
confirming that 1) the security for the loans were not cross-collateralized, 2) the
Manager decides exclusively when to get appraisals for the Projects, 3) the 2010
Audited Report and financials of the Company were purportedly first available on May
1, 2011, 4) the initial PPM packet included the Third Supplement to the PPM, the
Company has requested a final 2010 Balance Sheet from the Guarantor, and 5) the
Company “cannot honor the liquidaﬁon requests of a few Note Holders at the expense
of thei other Note Holders.” (Exh. 14 — Email String/Letters) -

16.  On December 20, 2011, Boling spoke by telephone with Lori Fischer,
Controller of Clearwater Investment, who informed Boling that the 2010 Audited
Report and financials of the Company were first available on or after August 29, 2011.

17. On December 20, 2011, Boling stated in an email to Clearwater Real

Estate Investments: “If the Company maintains now and at the time of the initial PPM

DECLARATION OF BOLING — Page 4 :
000265



that it can alter or over-ride this expressed term regarding Callability on the basis that it
has an obligation to ALL Note holders allowing the Company not to abide by this
expressed term, then I would request that my subscription be immediately rescinded and
the total principal amount of my note be restored.” (Exh. 14 — Email String/Letters)

| 18. On or about January 12, 2012, Clearwater Real Estate Investments sent a
letter to Note Holders postponing all 2011 liquidation requests until further notice.
(Exh. 16)

19.  On or about January 25, 2012, the Company sent a letter to Boling
stating that it has “been in contact with RE Capital and are hopeful of receiving
correspondence from them in the next 30 days. (Exh. 14 — Email String/Letters)

20. On February 2, 2012, Ross Farris, Director of Marketing and Investor
Relations informed Boling by telephone that the reduction of interest payment was
made pursuant to Section 3 of the Note and the suspension of liquidation rights was to
protect all Noteholders. Boling informed Mr. Farris that he never received a copy of the
Note until after submitting his Subscription Agreement and $50,000 payment to the
Company. Boling further requested a copy of Exhibit A to the Note. Mr. Farris
responded that he would obtain a copy of Exhibit A to the Note, but only with Boling’s
name on it and not the identity of all Noteholders. No Exhibit A to the Note was ever
received by Boling. Mr. Farris also stated that all the business decisions are made by
the management team of Clearwater REI, LLC.

21.  On February 2, 2012, Boling sent to Clearwater by email a written
Notic;e of Default on Interest payments for November 2011, December 2011, and

January 2011, and a written Notice of Default on his liquidation rights and demanding
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that payment be made immediately or after a cure period, if necessary. (Exh. 14 —
Email String/Letters)

22.  On February 6, 2012, Boling received from Clearwater a cover letter and
January Update dated January 31, 2012. (Exh. 17) The cover letter states: “the
February payment will be 25% of the monthly interest distributed.” The Update
acknowledges: “Real Estate values have fallen dramatically nationwide.”

23.  On February 9, 2012, Boling received from Clearwater a Quarterly
Statement ending December 31, 2011 (Exh 18) that sets forth the “Total Outstanding
Principal of Master Promissory Note to Investors™ as $21,810,000 and “Total Appraised
Value of Collateral” as $25,100,000 and “Collateral valuations dated September 15,
2010, January 19, 2011 and September 21, 2011.”

24,  If before investing, Boling had been made aware of the aforementioned
facts, including but not limited to, 1) the Note’s contents that the purported accrual of
interest payments, as compared with the actual payment of interest as expressed in the
PPM, was to apply to his transaction with the Company, 2) the contents of the Third
Supplement to the PPM that a) further restrictions were place on the Noteholder’s right
to redeem principal, and b) the Guarantor’s net worth on December 31, 2009 was less
than the covenanted amount set forth in the Guaranty, 3) the Guarantor’s cash reserves
was depleted before Boling received the PPM, and/or 4) the Program’s unstable loan
portfolio as described in the 2009 Year-End Update, Boling would not have entered into
the Subscription Agreement and invested in the purchase of the Note.

25.  On February 15, 2012 and out of abundance of caution, Boling filed a
Demand for Commercial Arbitration with the American Arbitration Association

(“AAA”) against all named Counter-Defendants and the Company and served said
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parties therewith regarding the acts and omissions set forth herein under the arbitration
clause in the SA.

26. On or about March 8, 2012, Cross- Defendants filed with the AAA and
served their Answer Statement objecting to arbitrate the disputes set forth in the
counterclaim and third party complaint on behalf of all named Counter-Defendants, but
not the Company.

27.  Boling has sought no judicial intervention to compel arbitration against
Counter-Defendants.

28.  Boling has offered not to arbitrate his counterclaims against Plaintiffs, if
Plaintiffs allow Boling to prosecute his counterclaims in this lawsuit. Plaintiffs rejected
Boling’s offer.

29. Boling has served all Plaintiffs/Counter-Defendants with the
counterclaims and discovery on the counterclaims is pending in this lawsuit.

I declare under penalty of perjufy under laws of the states of California and
Idaho and the United States of America that the foregoing is true and correct and

executed on August 20, 2012 at Lake Forest, California.

MARK BOLING VUV
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\)’J Rebecca A. Rainey, ISB No. 7525 SE
Amy Lombardo, ISB No. 8646 o EP 07 20
RAINEY LAW OFFICE . R’SBTgﬁHER D. RICH, Clerk
910 W. Main St. Ste. 258 Y HRISTINE SweeT

Boise, ID 83702

Phone: (208) 258-2061
Facsimile: (208) 473-2952
rar@raineylawoffice.com
aal@raineylawoffice.com

Attorneys for Plaintiff

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF
THE STATE OF IDAHO, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF ADA

CLEARWATER RE]I, LLC, an Idaho

limited liability company; BARTON Case No.: CV OC 12-08669

COLE COCHRAN, an individual; CHAD

JAMES HANSEN, an individual; REPLY MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT
RONDAL D. MEYER, an individual; OF MOTION AND APPLICATION TO
CHRISTOPHER J. BENAK, an STAY ARBITRATION

individual; RON RUEBEL, an individual;
RE CAPITAL INVESTMENTS, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company,

Plaintiffs/Counterdefendants,
Vs.

MARK BOLING, an individual,

Defendant/Counterclaimant.
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MARK BOLING, an individual,
Third Party Plaintiff,

Vs.

CLEARWATER REAL ESTATE

INVESTMENTS, LLC, a Delaware
limited liability company

Third Party Defendant.

COME NOW, the above named Plaintiffs/Petitioners,' Clearwater REI, LLC; Barton
Cole Cochran, an individual; Chad James Hansen; an individual; Ronald D. Meyer, an
individual; Chﬁstopher J. Benak, an individual; and RoB Ruebel, an individual, by and through
the undersigned counsel of reéord, and hereby file the following reply brief in support of their
Motion to Stay Arbitration under Idaho Code § 7-902(b):

L INTRODUCTION

Plaintiff/Petitioners filed a Motion to Stay Arbitration on the grounds that they are not
parties to the subscription agreement which contains the arbitration provision. In his opposition,
defendant/respondent Mark Boling (“Boling”) concedes that he has not sought to compel
arbitration and, in fact, prefers to not arbitrate with the named parties. See, Boling Opposition at
16-17, n 3. Instead, he reiterates a prior argument that he seeks to proceed against the non-
signatory parties via his Counterclaim in the court system. However, Boling’s counterclaim is
impermissibly filed, and proceeding with it is inappropriate because I.C. § 7-901? et seq. and the

| petition and complaint filed herein, provide only limited jurisdiction.?

! Plaintiff RE Capital filed for Chapter 7 bankruptcy on July 6, 2012.
2 This issue has been fully and separately briefed. See, Plaintiff/Petitioners’ Memorandum, Motion to Dismiss, and
Reply.
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The‘argu,ment here, which Boling does not sufficiently counter, is that arbitration should
be stayed as to the noh-signatory parties.’ Because one who is not a signatory to an agreement to
arbitrate should not be required to submit to arbitration, and as the non-signatories here( do not
fall under one of the exceptions to the general rule, this motion to stay should be granted.

IL ARGUMENT

A. A Non-Signatory Party Cannot be Compelled to Arbitrate Under these Facts

The determination of whether or not a non-party can be forced to arbitrate is a question of
applicable state contract law. Arthur Andersen, LLP v. Carlisle, 556 U.S. 624, 129 S. Ct. 1896
(2009)(holding that under the Federal Arbitration Act the question of what is arbitrable and
whether a stay can be granted for non-signatory parties is a question of state law).

B'oling cites a Second Circuit decision which states that an arbitration clause can be
enforced by or against a non-signatory under five different theories, none of which apply here.
Boling brief at 19 (citing Boucher v. Alliance Title Co., Inc., 127 Cal. App. 4™ 262, 268), see
also, Arthur Andersen, LLP v. 'Carlisle, 556 U.S. 624, 631, 129 S. Ct. 1896, 1902 (2009) (stating
that because traditional principles of state law allow a contract to be enforced by or against
nonparties to the contract through assumption, piercing of the corporate veil, alter ego,
incorporation by reference, third-party beﬁeﬁciary theories, waiver and estoppel, it was error for
the Sixth Circuit to hold that nonparties to a contract are categorically barred from relief under

the federal arbitration act).

* Boling also argues that the particular issues of which he is seeking adjudication in the counterclaim, i.e. Breach of
Guarantee and relief under the Idaho Consumer Protection Act, should be addressed in arbitration. These
plaintiff/petitioners do not take a position here on what issues should legally be arbitrated, only that the parties are
not subject to arbitration. Any argument regarding whether or not the claims are arbitrable should be addressed
when the correct parties to the dispute are before the court.
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Incorporation by Reference

Boling does not describe or explain the basis for holding non-s.ignatory parties bound to
an arbitration agreement in this matter based upon a theory of incorporation by reference. The
doctrine éf ‘incorporation by referénce’ holds that when a writing is signed that references other,
unsigned documents, under certain circumstances parol evidence may be permitted to determine
which documents are included in the signed writing. 1 Williston on Contracts, sec. 581.
However, “what is essential is that the signature of the party to be charged shall authenticate the
whole of the writing.” Id. at 1121 (emphasis added). Here, assuming arguendo that any and all
of the documents referenced by Boling are considered together as one agreement, the signatures
to that agreement remain only those of Boling and Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC, by
Clearwater REI, LLC, and its manager Bart Cochran. See, Subscription Agreement, Exhibit A to
Petition and Complaint for Stay of Arbitration. Thus, even if the Subscription Agreement, the
Private Placement Memorandum (“PPM”), and the Guaranty are read together, there is‘ no
credence to the theory that incorporation by reference would bind the non-signatory
plaintiff/petitioners to the entire agreement to which they are not a party. The non-signatory
parties are not bound by the arbitration agreement under the incorporation by reference theory.

Boling similarly argues that if all of the documents including the Guaranty are
incorporated by refel}re:ncthhat the guarantor, RE Capital Investments, LLC, is bound by the
arbitration clause. However, all parties are in agreement that any action against RE Capital
Investments, LLC is stayed pending any bankruptcy proceedings. Thus, any arguments made by

Boling regarding RE Capital Investments, LLC are moot. See, Arthur Andersen, LLP v. Carlisle,
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556 U.S. 624, 627, 129 S. Ct. 1896, 1900 (2009)(stating that the district court denied as moot a
motion to stay by a party that filed bankruptcy while its motion was pending).

Assumption

There are no allegations here that there was any assumption of the contract by the third
party plaintiff/petitioners, and Boling does not argue that this exception is applicable.

Veil-Piercing/Alter Ego

Although Boling discusses a “web of interlocking business entities” in his allegations
directed at the plaintiff/petitioners, he does not specifically allege or demonstrate that an alter
ego situation exists, nor that the corporate veil of the 2008 Note Program should be pierced in
order to reach these non-signatory parties.

Under Idaho law, a party is permitted to pierce the corporate veil if it is clear that a
company is an alter ego for an individual. In order for a business entity to be an alter ego of an
individual, there must be (1) a unity of interest and ownership to a degree that the separate
personalities of the business entities and individuals no longer exist and (2) if the acts are treated
as acts of the business an inequitable result would follow. Vanderford Co., Inc. v. Knudson, 165
P. 3d 261, 270-71 (2007), citing Surety Life Ins. Co. v. Rose Chapel Mortuary, 95 Idaho 599,
601, 514 P.2d 594, 596 (1973).

Here, there is no evidence or showing of a unity of interest between the entities and
individuals that were included in the arbitration demand. The piercing the corporate veil

exception to the general rule does not apply to plaintiff/petitioners.
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Agency/Third Party Beneficiary

As previously stated in the Motion to Stay Arbitration, arbitration is strictly a matter of
contract iaw. See Storey Constr., Inc. v. Hanks, 148 Idaho 401, 407, 224 P.3d 468, 474 (2009).
If a contract is unambiguous and the persons at issue are not named parties to the contract, those
persons are not subject to the arbitration agreement. Lewis v. Cedu Educ. Servs., Inc., 135 Iciaho
139, 15 P.3d 1147 (2000), Rath v. Managed Health Network, Inc., 123 Idaho 30, 844 P.2d 12
(1992).

Generally, an agent of a disclosed principal, even one who negotiates and signs a contract
for a principal, does not become a party to the contract. Restatement (Second) of Agency § 320
(1958). Also under traditional agency principles, the only other way “that an agent can be bound
by the termé of a contract is if she is made a party to the contract by her principal acting on her
behalf with actual, implied, or apparent authority.” Bel-Ray Co. v. Chemrite Ltd., 181 F.3d 435,
445-446 (3" Cir. N.J. 1999).

Here, there has been no argument or evidence presented to show that under an agency or
third party beneficiary theory the plaintiff/petitioners should be subject to an arbitration
agreement to which they are not a party. Instead, the plaintiff/petitioners asserted in their motion
to stay that Idaho case law has specifically found that third party beneficiaries are not bound to
arbitrate under a contract from which they receive a benefit but are not a party. See, e.g., Lewis
v. Cedu' Educ. Servs., Inc., 135 Idaho 139, 15 P.3d 1147 (2000), Rath v. Managed Health
Network, Inc., 123 Idaho 30, 844 P.2d 12 (1992).

Furthermore, to the extent that Boling is alleging that individual parties who ére

non-signatories to the agreement are subject to arbitration, this argument also fails. Where a
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corporate entity is the signatory to the contract containing an arbitration agreement but a party
attempts to subject an individual defendant to arbitration, individuals who are not signatories are

not individually liable under the contract. Roe v. Ladymon, 318 S.W. 3d 502, 520 (2010).

Estoppél

Judicial estoppel arguments fail where no inconsistent position is taken by the party who
is attempting to stay the arbitration. D.K. Joint Venture 1 v. Weyand, 649 F.3d 310 (2011).
Similarly;, any argument that a party must be bound by arbitration when they have actively
participated in such arbitration without objection is not applicable here. See, e.g., Fortune
Alsweet & Eldridge, Inc. v. Daniel, 724 F.2d 1355 (O" Cir. 1983). Here, petitioners have
consistently objected to being subject to arbitration, and were proactive in filing this petition and
complaint to have the arbitration stayed as to them. They are not asserting any claim against
Boling under the subscription agreement.

Furthermore, although Boling cites to five potential theories under which an arbitration
clause can be enforced by or against a nonsignatory, he provides no authority to suggest that an
arbitration agreement can be enforced upbn a nonsignatory when the nonsignatory is not
affirmatively seeking to recovery under the contract. On the contrary, authority holds that a
party who has signed an arbitration agreement cannot compel a non-signatory party. “Refusing to
order arbitration of a dispute where one of the parties claims that it never signed the agreement,
and therefore never agreed to anything, is coﬁsistent with the Supreme Court's pronouncements

that arbitration ‘does not require parties to arbitrate when they have not agreed to do so,” and that
‘arbitration under the FAA is a matter of consent, not coercion.”” Will-Drill Res., Inc. v. Samson
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Res. Co., 352 F.3d 211, 216-217 (5th Cir. La. 2003) (citing EEOC v. Waffle House, Inc., 534
U.S. 279, 293-94, 122 S. Ct. 754 (2002) and Volt Info. Scis., Inc. v. Bd. of Trs., 489 U.S. 468,
478-79, 109 S. Ct. 1248 (1989)).

The U.S. Supreme Court has “made clear that arbitration is a matter of private contract,
and it goes without saying that a contract cannot bind a nonparty.” Id. (internal citations
omitted). Arbitration is a matter of contract whi=ch cannot be forced upon a party absent its
consent. Will-Drill Res., Inc. v. Samson Res. Co., 352 F.3d 211, 218 (5th Cir. La. 2003),
Thomson-CSF, S.A. v. American Arbitration Ass'n, 64 F.3d 773, 779 (2d Cir. N.Y. 1995) (stating
that where the situation is inverse, and a signatory seeks to compel a non-signatory, the
distinction is important because as a matter of contract, the courts have no authority to mandate
that a nonsignatory submit to arbitration when the party has not agreed to do so). Thus, “it
matters whether the party resisting arbitration is a signatory or not.” Covington v. Aban Ojjfsﬁore
Ltd., 650 F.3d 556, 561 (5™ Cir. Tex. 2011)

III. CONCLUSION

Therefore, for the foregoing reasons, the plaintiff/petitioners seek an order staying

arbitration as to them because they are not parties to the subscription agreement that contains the

arbitration clause.

DATED this 7th day of September, 2012.

EY LAW OFFIC

i)

Xmy A. LothbardoZ Of the Firm
Attorneys for Plaintiff/Cross-
Defendants
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that on the 7th day of September, I caused to be served a copy of the
foregoing REPLY MEMORANUM IN SUPPORT OF MOTION AND APPLICATION TO
STAY ARBITRATION on the following, in the manner indicated below:

Mark Boling ( ) Via U.S. Mail
21986 Cayuga Lane ( ) Via Facsimile — 949-588-7078
Lake Forest, CA 92630 ( ) Via Overnight Mail

( ) ViaHand Delivery,

( Vi -ma11

Aﬂr{y XVLontbardo
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CHRISTOPHER D. RICH, Clerk
By TARA THERRIEN

DEPUTY

THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF THE STATE OF
IDAHO, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF ADA

CLEARWATER RE], LLC., an Idaho limited ) Case No.: CV-OC 2012-08669
liability company; BARTON COLE
COCHRAN, an individual; CHAD JAMES
HANSEN, an individual; RONALD D.
MEYER, an individual, CHRISTOPHER J.
BENAK, an individual; RON RUEBEL, an
individual; RE CAPITAL INVESTMENTS,
LLC., a Delaware limited liability company,

Plaintiffs,

DECISION AND ORDER RE: MOTION TO
STAY ARBITRATION

VS.

MARK BOLING, an individual,

Defendant.

L/vvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvv

The plaintiffs filed this action on May 14, 2012 to stay arbitration on the grounds that |
they are not signatories to any arbitration agreement with the defendant. It is undisputed that the
defendant, Mark Boling, signed a Subscription Agreement for the Clearwater 2008 Note
Program LLC (Note Program LLC) with Clearwater REI, LLC acting as agents for the Note
Program LLC. The Subscription Agreement included an arbitration provision. On February 15, |
2012, Mark Boling filed a demand for arbitration with the American Arbitration Association.

The demand for arbitration listed Clearwater REI, LLC., Clearwater Real Estates Investments
LLC, RE Capital , LLC, Barton Cole Cochran, Chad James Hansen, Ronald D. Meyer,
Christopher Benak, and Ron Ruebel.! In addition to his Answer, the defendant also filed a
Counterclaim and Third Party Complaint. It should be noted that RE Capital has filed

bankruptcy so this Court will not address any issues related to it. The Court has previously

! All facts used in this Decision are those which were admitted by the defendant in the Answer.
1
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denied the plaintiffs’ motion to dismiss the Counterclaim pursuant to L.R.C.P. 12 (b)(1) since the
Court doés have subject matter jurisdiction over the types of claims raised by the defendant’s
pleadings. Borah v. McCandless, 147 Idaho 73, 205 P.3d 1209 (2009). The Court notes that the
relief sought by the plaintiffs is a determination that they are not subject to the requirement to
arbitrate contained in the Subscription Agreement—if their position is correct, that hardly gives a
basis for them to evade any direct liability they may have for consumer protection violations on
the record as it currently exists,” at a minimum, the Court could not address the merits of the
claim on this record.

The parties to the Subscription Agreement are Clearwater 2008 Note Program LLC, an
Idaho limited liability company, and Mark Boling. Until or unless additional evidence is
presented to the Court as provided for by LR.C.P. 43(e) that would warrant any other conclusion,
the only parties which are required to arbitrate are Clearwater 2008 Note Program LLC and
Mark Boling. The motion to stay arbitration as to Barton Cole Cochran, Chad James Hansen,
Ronald D. Meyer, Christopher Benak, and Ron Ruebel and Clearwater Real Estates Investments
LLC is granted.

It is so ordere

% The Idaho Rules of Civil Procedure do not recognize “Declarations.” Evidentiary submissions for motions are
required to be submitted under oath either by way of affidavits or depositions or oral testimony if permitted by the
Court or by stipulations of the parties. I.R.C.P. 43(e). The Counterclaim and Third Party Complaint are not
verified. Idaho Rule of Evidence 201 does not authorize the Court to take judicial notice of the attachments to the
Counterclaim or Third Party Complaint.
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Rebecca A. Rainey, ISB No. 7525
RAINEY LAW OFFICE

910 W. Main St. Ste. 258

Boise, ID 83702

Phone: (208) 258-2061

Facsimile: (208) 473-2952
rar@raineylawoffice.com

NO.
NOV 09 2012

GHRISTOPHER D. RICH, Clerk

By DAYSHA OSBORN
DEPUTY

Attorneys for Clearwater REI, LLC, Barton Cole Cochran, Chad James Hansen, Ronald D.

Meyer, Christopher J. Benak, and Ron Ruebel

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF
THE STATE OF IDAHO, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF ADA

CLEARWATER REIL LLC, an Idaho
limited liability company; BARTON
COLE COCHRAN, an individual; CHAD
JAMES HANSEN, an individual;
RONALD D. MEYER, an individual;
CHRISTOPHER J. BENAK, an
individual; RON RUEBEL, an individual;
RE CAPITAL INVESTMENTS, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company,

Plaintiffs/Counterdefendants,
vs.
MARK BOLING, an individual,

Defendant/Counterclaimant.

MARK BOLING, an individual,
Third Party Plaintiff,
Vvs.

CLEARWATER REAL ESTATE
INVESTMENTS, LLC, a Delaware
limited liability company

Third Party Defendant.
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COMES NOW Clearwater REI, LLC, Barton Cole Cochran, Chad James Hansen, Ronald D.
Meyer, Christopher J. Benak, and Ron Ruebel (“Counterdefendants”), by and through undersigned
counsel of record, and hereby answer defendant Mark Boling’s counterclaim as follows:

1. Answering paragraph 1 of the counterclaim, counterdefendants state that such
paragraph contains a statement of purpose for which no answer is required. To the extent that
‘such paragraph does contain facts that require an answer, counterclaimants deny the same.

2. Answering paragraph 2, counterdefendants claim that the documents attached to
the counterclaim as exhibits speak for themselves and defendants admit that such documents
appear to be true and correct copies. Counterdefendants reserve the right to challenge the

authenticity of any such exhibits if such good faith basis arises.

3. Counterdefendants admit the allegations contained in paragraph 3 of the
counterclaim.
4. Paragraph 4 of the Counterclaim does not contain statements readily capable of

being admitted or denied and, on that basis, counterdefendants deny the same.

5. Counterdefendants admit the factual allegations set forth in paragraph 5;
counterdefendants further state that they bear no relationship to Clearwater Real Estate
Investment, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company

6. Counterdefendants admit that, at all times material to the events set forth in the
Counterclaim, counterdefendant Clearwater REI, LLC and Clearwater 2008 Note Program,
LLC’s principal place of business was located at 1300 E. State Street, Eagle, ID 83616.

7. Answering paragraph 7 of the Complaint, counterdefendants admit only that
Clearwater REI, LLC is involved in real estate investments. To the extent that paragraph 7

contains additional factual allegations requiring a response, counterdefendants deny the same.
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8. Counterdefendants admit the allegations contained in paragraph 8.

9. Counterdefendants admit that the Individual Cross-Defendants are owners,
officers and/or employees of Clearwater REI, LLC.

10.  Counterdefendants are without information or knowledge sufficient to form a
belief as to the truthfulness of the facts alleged in paragraph 10 and on that basis, deny the same.

11.  Counterdefendants deny the allegations set forth in paragraph 11 of the
counterclaim.

12.  Counterdefendants deny the allegations set forth in paragraph 12 of the
counterclaim.

13.  Answering paragraph 13 of the counterclaim, counterdefendants admit that Mark
Boling is a California resident who purchased a Note in the amount of $50,000.00 from
Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC, through Mr. Boling’s registered broker dealer.
Counterdefendants are without information or knowledge sufficient to form a belief as to the
truthfulness of the remaining allegations contained in paragraph 13 and, on that basis, deny the
same.

14.  Counterdefendants deny paragraph 14 of the counterclaim.

15.  Answering paragraph 15 of the Complaint, counterdefendants admit that an initial
package was sent to counterclaimant on or about February 4, 2010. Counterdefendants deny that
such initial package did not contain the Third Supplement to the PPM dated January 20, 2010.
Counterdefendants admit that it did not contain the 2009 Year-End Update dated March 19,
2010, because such document was not yet in existence. Counterdefendants admit that a copy of

the Note dated August 29, 2008, was not included in the initial package.
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16.  Answering paragraph 16 of the counterclaim, counterdefendants state only that
the PPM speaks for itself.

17.  Answering paragraph 17 of the counterclaim, counterdefendants state only that
the Guaranty speaks for itself.

18.  Answering paragraph 18 of the counterclaim, counterdefendants state only that
the First Supplement to PPM speaks for itself.

19.  Answering paragraph 19 of the counterclaim, counterdefendants state only that
the First Supplement to PPM speaks for itself.

20.  Answering paragraph 20 of the counterclaim, counterdefendants state only that
the Second Supplement to PPM speaks for itself.

19.  (b)' Answering paragraph 19(b) of the counterclaim, counterdefendants admit
only that Boling executed and submitted a subscription agreement to the 2008 Note Program and
paid the sum of $50,000.00 to the 2008 Note Program. Counterdefendants are without
information or knowledge sufficient to form a belief as to the truthfulness of the remaining
allegations set forth in paragraph 19 of the counterclaim and, on that basis, deny the same.

20.  (b) Answering paragraph 20(b) of the counterclaim, counterdefendants state only
that the Subscription Agreement speaks for itself.

21.  Answering paragraph 21 of the counterclaim, counterdefendants state only that
the Subscription Agreement speaks for itself.

22.  Answering paragraph 22 of the counterclaim, counterdefendants state only that

the Subscription Agreement speaks for itself.

' Due to a scriveners error in the paragraphs numbered in the counterclaim the numbers 19 and 20 were
inadvertently duplicated. For ease of reference regarding answers to the remaining paragraphs of the complaint, the
scriveners error is duplicated herein with a (b) designation following the second use of each number.
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23.  Answering paragraph 23 of the counterclaim, counterdefendants state that the
PPM and cross-complainant’s acknowledgement under the Subscription Agreement speak for
themselves. Counterdefendants are without information or knowledge sufficient to form a belief
as to the truthfulness of the remaining allegations set forth in paragraph 23 and, on that basis,
deny the same.

24.  Counterdefendants admit that cross-complainant allegations set forth in paragraph
24 of the Counterclaim. To the extent that such paragraph indicates that an unrelated Deleware
entity provided such documents to plaintiff, Counterdefendants deny the same.

25.  Paragraph 25 calls for a legal conclusion to which no answer is required; to the
extent that paragraph 25 does contain factual allegations that require a legal conclusion,
counterdefendants are unable to parse them out from the legal conclusions made and, on that
basis, deny the same.

26.  Answering paragraph 26, counterdefendants state only that the Acceptance of
Subscription Agreement speaks for itself.

27.  Answering paragraph 27, counterdefendants state only that the Certificate speaks
for itself.

28.  Answering paragraph 28, counterdefendants state only that the Note speaks for
itself.

29.  Answering paragraph 29, counterdefendants state only that the Note speaks for
itself.

30.  Answering paragraph 30, counterdefendants state only that the Note and the PPM

speak for themselves.
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31. Paragraph 31 of the counterclaim calls for a legal conclusion to which no answer
is required. To the extent that paragraph 31 does contain factual allegations that require an
answer, counterdefendants are unable to parse them out from the legal conclusions made and, on
that basis, deny the same.

32.  Answering paragraph 32, counterdefendants state only that the PPM speaks for
itself.

33.  Answering paragraph 33, counterdefendants state that the Note speaks for itself.
To the extent that paragraph 33 contains legal conclusions to which no answer is required, no
answer is to be implied; to the extent that paragraph 33 contains factual allegations, that require
an answer, counterdefendants are unable to parse them from the legal conclusions state and, on
that basis, deny the same.

34.  Answering paragraph 34, counterdefendants state only that the documents
attached to the counterclaim as Exhibit 9 speak for themselves. To the extent that such
paragraph indicates that an unrelated Deleware entity provided such documents to plaintiff,
Counterdefendants deny the same.

35.  Answering paragraph 35, counterdefendants state only that the documents
attached to the counterclaim as Exhibit 10 speak for themselves.

36.  Answering paragraph 36, counterdefendants state only that the document attached
to the counterclaim as Exhibit 11 speaks for itself.

37.  Answering paragraph 37, counterdefendants state that the documents attached to
the counterclaim as Exhibit 12 speak for themselves.

38.  Counterdefendants admit that Clearwater 2008 Note Program, LLC is solely

owned by Clearwater REI, LLC.
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39.  Counterfendants are without information or knowledge sufficient to form a belief
as to the truthfulness of the allegations set forth in paragraph 39 of the Counterclaim and, on that
basis, deny the same.

40.  Counterdefendants admit the allegations set forth in paragraph 40 of the
Counterclaim. |

41.  Answering paragraph 41, counterdefendants state that the document attached to
the Counterclaim as Exhibit 13 speaks for itself.

42.  Answering paragraph 42, counterdefendants state that the document attached to
the counterclaim as Exhibit 13 speaks for itself.

43.  Answering paragraph 43 of the counterclaim, counterdefendants state that the
documents attached to the counterclaim as Exhibit 14 speak for themselves.

44.  Counterclaimants deny the allegations set forth in paragraph 44 of the
Counterclaim.

45.  Answering paragraph 45 of the counterclaim, counterdefendants state that the
documents attached to the counterclaim as Exhibit 14 speak for themselves. To the extent that
any statements contained in paragraph 45 draw legal conclusions to which no answer is required,
such legal conclusions are denied.

46.  Paragraph 46 of the counterclaim calls for a legal conclusion to which no answer
is required. To the extent that paragraph 46 does contain factual allegations that do require a
response, counterdefendants are unable to parse those factual allegations out from the legal

conclusions drawn and, on that basis, deny the same.
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47.  Counterclaimants are without information or knowledge sufficient to form a belief
as to the truthfulness of the allegations set forth in paragraph 47 of the Counterclaim and, on'that
basis, deny the same.

48.  Paragraph 48 of the counterclaim calls for a legal conclusion to which no answer
is required. To the extent that paragraph 48 does contain factual allegations that do require a
response, counterdefendants are unable to ascertain what those factual allegations are and, on
that basis, deny the same.

49.  Answering paragraph 49 of the counterclaim, counterdefendants state that the
Third Supplement to the PPM speaks for itself.

50.  Answering paragraph 50 of the counterclaim, counterdefendants state that the
documents attached as Exhibit 14 speak for themselves.

51.  Counterdefendants are without knowledge or information sufficient to form a
belief as to the truthfulness of the allegations set forth in paragraph 51 of the Counterclaim.

52.  Answering paragraph 52 of the counterclaim, counterdefendants state that the
documents attached as Exhibit 14 speak for themselves.

53.  Answering paragraph 53 of the counterclaim, counterdefendants state that the
documents attached as Exhibit 16 speak for themselves.

54.  Answering paragraph 54 of the counterclaim, counterdefendants state that the
documents attached as Exhibit 14 speak for themselves.

55. Answering paragraph 55 of the counterclaim, counterdefendants are without
information or knowledge sufficient to form a belief as to the truthfulness of the allegations set

forth therein and, on that basis, deny the same.
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56.  Answering paragraph 56 of the counterclaim, counterdefendants state that the
documents attached as Exhibit 14 speak for themselves.

57.  Paragraph 57 of the counterclaim contains a legal conclusion to which no answer
is required; to the extent that paragraph 57 contains factual allegations which do require an
answer, counterdefendants deny the same.

58.  Answering paragraph 58 of the counterclaim, counterdefendants state that the
documents attached as Exhibit 17 speak for themselves.

59.  Paragraph 59 of the counterclaim contains a legal conclusion to which no answer
is required; to the extent that paragraph 59 contains factual allegations which do require an
answer, counterdefendants deny the same.

60.  Answering paragraph 60 of the counterclaim, counterdefendants state that the
documents attached as Exhibit 18 speak for themselves.

61.  Counterdefendants admit the facts set forth in paragraph 61 of the counterclaim.

62.  Counterdefendants admit the facts set forth in paragraph 62 of the counterclaim.

63.  Answering paragraph 63 of the counterclaim, counterdefendants deny that
defendant was forced to file a demand for arbitration against Clearwater 2008 Note Program,
LLC and did so voluntarily; counterdefendants further deny that defendant had any contractual
right to file a demand for arbitration as to them and that such demand for arbitration was not filed
in good faith.

64.  Counterdefendants are without information or knowledge sufficient to form a
belief as to the truthfulness of the allegations set forth in paragraph 64 of the counterclaim and,

on that basis, deny the same.
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65.  Counterdefendants deny the allegations set forth in paragraph 65 of the
counterclaim.

66.  Counterdefendants deny the allegations set forth in paragraph 66 of the
counterclaim.

67.  Paragraph 67 of the counterclaim contains a legal conclusion to which no answer
is required; to the extent that paragraph 67 contains any factual allegations that do require an
answer, counterdefendants deny the same. |

68.  Counterdefendants incorporate and reallege paragraphs 1 — 67 as set forth herein.

69.  Paragraph 69 of the counterclaim contains a legal conclusion to which no answer
is required; to the extent that paragraph 69 does contain factual allegations that require an
answer, counterdefendants deny the same.

70.  Paragraph 70 of the counterclaim contains a legal conclusion to which no answer
is required; to the extent that paragraph 70 does contain factual allegations that require an
answer, and to the extent those factual allegations are not otherwise answered herein,
counterdefendants deny the same.

71.  Counterdefendants are without information or knowledge sufficient to form a
belief as to the truthfulness of the allegations set forth in paragraph 71 of the counterclaim and,
on that basis, deny the same.

72.  Counterdefendants are without information or knowledge sufficient to form a
belief as to the truthfulness of the allegations set forth in paragraph 72 of the counterclaim and,
on that basis, deny the same.

73.  Counterdefendants deny the allegations set forth in paragraph 73 of the

counterclaim.
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74.  Counterdefendants deny the allegations set forth in paragraph 74 of the
counterclaim.

75.  Counterdefendants deny the allegations set forth in paragraph 75 of the
counterclaim.

76.  Answering paragraph 76 of the Counterclaim, Counterdefendants admit the
allegations regarding the timing of the audited reports and the disclosure of the same. With
respect to the remaining allegations set forth in paragraph, counterdefendants state that the
audited reports speak for themselves and deny any factual allegations regarding what was
disclosed in such audited reports unless such statements are expressly set forth in the audited
reports.

77.  Counterdefendants are unable to ascertain what facts are being alleged in
paragraph 77 of the Counterclaim and, on that basis, deny the same.

78.  Counterdefendants deny the factual allegations set forth in paragraph 78 of the
counterclaim.

79.  Counterdefendants deny paragraph 79 of the counterclaim.

80.  Counterdefendants deny paragraph 80 of the counterclaim.

81.  Counterdefendants deny paragraph 81 of the counterclaim.

82.  Answering paragraph 82 of the Counterclaim, Counterdefendants state only that
the Notice speaks for itself and deny the allegation that the document was designed with the
intent to mislead or deceive.

83.  Answering paragraph 83 of the counterclaim, counterdefendants state only that

the documents attached as Exhibit 14 speak for themselves.
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84.

Answering paragraph 84 on of the counterclaim, counterdefendants state that the

valuations reflected in Exhibit 14 speak for themselves.

85.

counterclaim.

86.

Counterdefendants deny the factual allegations set forth in paragraph 85 of the

Counterdefendants state that the Notice referenced in paragraph 86 of the

counterclaim speaks for itself.

87.

counterclaim.

88.

counterclaim.

89.

counterclaim.

90.

counterclaim.

91.

counterclaim.

92.

counterclaim.

93.

counterclaim.

94.

counterclaim.

Counterdefendants deny the factual allegations set forth in paragraph 87 of the

Counterdefendants deny the factual allegations set forth in paragraph 88 of the

Counterdefendants deny the factual allegations set forth in paragraph 89 of the

Counterdefendants deny the factual allegations set forth in paragraph 90 of the

Counterdefendants deny the factual allegations set forth in paragraph 91 of the

Counterdefendants deny the factual allegations set forth in paragraph 92 of the

Counterdefendants deny the factual allegations set forth in paragraph 93 of the

Counterdefendants deny the factual allegations set forth in paragraph 94 of the
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95.  Counterdefendants deny the factual allegations set forth in paragraph 95 of the
counterclaim.

96.  Counterdefendants deny the factual allegations set forth in paragraph 96 of the
counterclaim.

97. Paragraph 97 of the counterclaim is a legal conclusion for which no answer is
required; to the extent that paragraph 97 contains factual allegations that do require an answer,
counterdefendants deny the same.

98.  Paragraph 98 of the counterclaim is a legal conclusion for which no answer is
required; to the extent that paragraph 98 contains factual allegations that do require an answer,
counterdefendants deny the same.

99.  Answering paragraph 99 of the counterclaim, counterdefendants state that Idaho
Code Section 48-608(1) speaks for itself.

100. Answering paragraph 100 of the counterclaim, counterdefendants state that such
paragraph was improperly pled in violation of Idaho Code Section 6-1604.

101. Paragraph 101 of the counterclaim does not contain any factual allegations that
require a response; to the extent that any response is required, counterdefendants deny the same.

102.  Counterdefendants deny the allegations set forth in paragraph 102 of the
counterclaim.

103. Counterdefendants deny the allegations set forth in paragraph 103 of the
counterclaim.

104.  Answering paragraphs 104 — 110 of the Counterclaim, counterdefendants state
that such paragraphs are directed only at a party who is protected by the bankruptcy automatic

stay and that no answer is otherwise required.
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To the extent that the prayer for relief section of the counterclaim contains any facts to
which an answer is required, counterdefendants hereby deny the same.
AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES

1. Counterclaimant has failed to state a claim upon which relief can be granted.

2. Counterclaimants claims are barred by the two year statute of limitations set forth in
Idaho Code Section 48-619.

3. Counterclaimants counterclaims should be stricken in their entirety because they
improperly plead a claim for punitive damages, in violation of Idaho Code Section

6-1604.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF
Counterdefendants hereby pray for relief as follows:

1. That the counterclaims be dismissed with prejudice and that counterclaimant take nothing
thereby;

2. For reasonable costs and attorneys’ fees incurred in defending the counterclaims under
Idaho Code Section 12-120(3) and Idaho Code Section 12-121.

3. For such other relief as this Court deems just and proper.

DATED this 9th day of November, 2012.

RAINEY LAW OFFICE

Rebecca A. Rainey — Of thi ;

Attorneys for Plaintiff/Cross-
Defendants
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that on the 9th day of November, I caused to be served a copy of the
foregoing ANSWER on the following, in the manner indicated below:

Mark Boling () Via U.S. Mail
21986 Cayuga Lane ( ) Via Facsimile — 949-588-7078
Lake Forest, CA 92630 ( ) Via Overnight Mail
() Via Hand Delivery
&{Via e-mail

72(4_?'

Rebecca A. Rainey
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DEC 10 2012
CHRISTOPHER D. RICH, Clerk
’ . By ANNAMARIE MEYER
Mark Boling " pReTY '
21986 Cayuga Lane
Lake Forest, CA 92630

(949) 588-9222

(949) 588-7078 [fax]

maboling@earthlink.net
Defendant/Counter-Claimant/Third Party Plaintiff, in pro se

- INTHE DISTRICT COURT FOR THE FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT

FOR THE STATE OF IDAHO, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF ADA

.CLEARWATER REI, LLC, et al. ‘ Case No.: CV OC 1208669
Plaintiffs/Counter-Defendants,
vs. - AFFIDAVIT OF MARK BOLING IN
SUPPORT OF
MARK BOLING,
Defendant/Counter-Claimant DEFENDANT/COUNTER-
, CLAIMANT